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ENERGY ACT PROPOSAL (EZ)

Part One
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Chapter :ISUBJECT MATTER AND £O0OPE

Article 1
(Contents of the Act)

This Act lays down the principles of energy policy, energy market operation rules, manners and forms
of providing public services in the energy sector, principles and measures for achieving a secure
energy supply, foincreasing energy efficiency and energy saving and for increasing the use of energy
generated from renewable energy sources, and lays down the conditions for the operation of energy
installations, regulates the responsibilities, organisation and tatties Bhergy Agency (hereinafter:

the Agency) and the competences of other authorities operating under this Act.

Article 2
(Transposition and implementation of European Union regulations)

(1) By this Act the following EU directives shall be transposeal the legislation of the Republic of

Slovenia:

- Directive 2009/72/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council &iilf2009 concerning
common rules for the internal market in electricity and repealing Directive 2003/54/BCn@®J
211 of 14 Augus2009, p. 55; hereinafter: Directive 2009/72/EC),

- Directive 2009/73/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council &iilf2009 concerning
common rules for the internal market in natural gas and repealing Directive 2003/55/E@Qq0OJ
211 of 14 Augst 2009, p. 94; hereinafter: Directive 2009/73/EC),

- Directive 2005/89/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council concerning measures to
safeguard security of electricity supply and infrastructure investment 83, of 18January
2006, p. 22; hereatfter: Directive 2005/89/EC),

- Directive 2009/28/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on the promotion of the use
of energy generated from renewable sources and amending and subsequently repealing Directives
2001/77/EC and2003/30/EC (OJ L nol40 of 5 June 2009, p. 16; hereinafter: Directive
2009/28/EC),

- Directive 2009/125/EC of the European parliament and of the Council of 21 October 2009
establishing a framework for the setting of ecodesign requirements for eakatpd products (OJ
L no. 285 of 31 October 2009, p. 10; hereinafter: Directive 2005/89/EC),



Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 May 2010 on the
indication by labelling and standard product information of the consumption of energy and other
resouces by energyelated products (OJ L no. 153 of 18 June 2010, p. 1; hereinafter: Directive
2010/30/EV),

Directive 2010/31/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 May 2010 on the
energy performance of buildings (Q153 of 18 June 2010, [Al3; hereinafter: Directive
2010/31/EV),

Directive 2012/27/EC of the European parliament and of the Council of 25 October 2012 on
energy efficiency, amending Directives 2009/125/EU and 2010/30/EU and repealing Directives
2004/8/EC and 2006/32/EC (OJ L ndl53of 14 November 2012, p. 1; hereinafter: Directive
2012/27/EC),

Directive 2004/8/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 February 2004 on the
promotion of cogeneration based on a useful heat demand in the internal energy market and
amendiig Directive 92/42/EEC (O52 of 21 April 2004, p. 50; hereinafter: Directive
2004/8/EC),

Directive 2009/31/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on the geological storage of
carbon dioxide and amending Council Directive 85/337/EEC, Europadiankent and Council
Directives 2000/60/EC, 2001/80/EC, 2004/35/EC, 2006/12/EC, 2008/1/EC and Regulation (EC)
No 1013/2006 (OJ L no. 140 of 5 June 2009, p. 114; hereinafter: Directive 2009/31/EC).

(2) This Act shall also define the competent authoritedte implementation and sanctions for the
violations of the following Regulations of the European Union:

Regul ation (EC) No U714/2009 of the European
conditions for access to the network for crbssder &changes in electricity and repealing
Regulation (EC) No 1228/2003 (OJ L no. 211 of 14 August 2009, p. 15; hereinafter: Regulation
(EC) NoU714/20009),

Regul ation (EC) No U715/2009 of the European
conditions br access to the natural gas transmission networks and repealing Regulation (EC)
NoU177 80205211 of 14 August 2009, p. 36; hereinafter: Regulation (EC)
NoU715/2009) ,

Regulation (EU) N®94/2010 of the European Parliament and of the Council @c06ber 2010
concerning measures to safeguard security of gas supply and repealing Council Directive
2004/67/EC (0OJ L no. 295 of 12 November 2010, p. 1; hereinafter: Regulation (EU) 994/2010);
Regulation (EC) No 713/2009 of the European Parliament arideo€Council of 13 July 2009
establishing an Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators (OJ L 211 of 14 August 2009, p.
1; hereinafter: Regul ation (EC) NoU713/2009),
Regulation (EU) Nd.227/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 €&&0h1

on wholesale energy market integrity and transparency (OJ L no. 326 of 8 December 2011, p. 1;
hereinafter: Regul ation (EU) NoU1227/2011) .

Article 3
(Purpose of the Act)

The purpose of the act is to ensure a competitive, secure, reliatdeassible supply of energy and
energy services, taking into account the principles of sustainable development.

Article 4
(Definitions)

Unless individual meanings of terms are defined otherwise in individual Parts of this Act, the terms
used in this Atshall have the following meaning:



1. "ACER" means the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators established by Regulation
(EC) No713/2009;

2. "biofuel" means liquid or gaseous fuel intended for use in transport and produced from biomass;

3. "district coolng" means the distribution of cooled liquids from central production resources
through a network to final customers in several buildings or at several locations;

4. "district heating" means the distribution of steam, hot or warm water from central productio
resources through a network to final customers in several buildings or at several locations;

5. "distribution of liquid fuels" means the distribution of liquid fuels to final customers that is not
carried out through distribution piping networks;

6. "distribution of heat" means the distribution of heat through a distribution system that also
includes the supply to final customers;

7. "electricity distribution system operator” (hereinafter: the electricity DSO) means a natural or legal
person who carries out theurfction of electricity DSO and is responsible for operating,
maintaining and developing the electricity distribution system in a given area and, where
applicable, its interconnections with other systems, and for ensuring théetomability of the
systento meet reasonable demands for the distribution of electricity;

8. "long-term planning” means the planning of the need for investment in generation and
transmission and distribution capacity and other installations on adomgbasis, with a view to
meetirg the demand of the system for electricity, natural gas and other fuels and for securing
reliable supplies to consumers;

9. "electricity" means electric power;

10. "electricity system operator" means an electricity TSO or an electricity DSO;

11."energy review" meana systematic procedure carried out for the purpose of obtaining knowledge
of the existing consumption of energy by a building or a group of buildings, industrial or
commercial process, installation, private or public service, with the aim of determinthg a
assessing cogifffective options for energy savings, and in the framework of which the findings are
reported;

12."energy" means all forms of fuels as defined in point d) of Article 2 of Regulation (EC)
No 1099/2008 of the European Parliament and of thenCib of 22 October 2008 on energy
statistics (OJ L 304 of 14 November 2008, p. 1);

13."household customer" means a customer purchasing electricity, natural gas, heat or other energy
gas for his own household consumption, excluding consumption for perfomamgiercial or
professional activities;

14. "gross final energy consumption" means energy or fuel supplied for energy purposes to industry,
transport, households, the service sector, including the public sector, agriculture, forestry and
fisheries, includingelectricity and heat consumed by the energy transformation sector for the
generation of electricity and heat, and losses of electricity and heat in distribution and
transmission;

15."final energy consumption” means energy or fuel supplied for energy purpmseslustry,
transport, households, the service sector, including the public sector, agriculture, forestry and
fisheries, excluding that supplied to the energy transformation sector;

16."final customer" means any natural or legal person buying energy fowhiginal consumption;

17. "local community" means a sedoverning local community;

18. "local energy concept” is a concept of development of a local community or several local
communities in the field of energy supply and consumption which includes measueggient
energy use and the manner of supply of energy generated from renewable sotgeasyation,
excess heat and other sources;

19. "intelligent metering system" means an electronic system that can measure energy consumption,
which provides more infonation than a regular meter and can send and receive data by means of
electronic communication;

20. "low-carbon technologies" mean technologies that do not cause carbon dioxide emissions in the
process of heat or electricity generation;



21. "renewable energy saugs" are renewable ndassil energy sources (wind, solar, aerothermal,
hydrothermal and geothermal energy, ocean energy, hydropower, biomass, landfill gas, sewage
treatment plant gas and biogases);

22."commitments concerning renewable energy sources" isstipport programme that requires
from: energy producers to include a certain share of energy generated from renewable sources in
their production; energy suppliers to include a certain share of energy generated from renewable
sources in their supply; energpnsumers to include a certain share of energy generated from
renewable sources in their consumption;

23."customer"” is any legal or natural person buying energy or fuel for his or her own use or for
further sale;

24."operator" means an electricity system @per or a natural gas system operator;

25. "gas distribution system operator” (hereinafter: the gas DSO means a natural or legal person who
carries out the function of natural gas DSO and is responsible for operating, maintaining and
developing the distributin system in a given area and, where applicable, its interconnections with
other systems, and for ensuring the loaign ability of the system to meet reasonable demands for
the distribution of gas;

26. "gas transmission system operator" (hereinafter: thd §& means a natural or legal person who
carries out the function of natural gas TSO and is responsible for operating, maintaining and
developing the transmission system in a given area and, where applicable, its interconnections
with other systems, and rfeensuring the longerm ability of the system to meet reasonable
demands for the transport of gas;

27."gas system operator" is a natural gas TSO or DSO;

28."energy retail sale undertaking" means any natural or legal person selling energy to final
customers;

29."guaranteed energy performance savings contract’ means a contractual arrangement between the
user and the provider of a measure for an improvement in energy efficiency that is reviewed and
monitored for the entire period of validity of the contract and i@ ftamework of which
investments (labour, supply or service) in the measure are paid proportionally with the level of
improved energy efficiency agreed under the contract, or with another agreed measure of energy
efficiency, such as financial savings;

30."energy service provider" means a natural or legal person providing energy services or other
measures to improve energy efficiency in a building or on the premises of a final customer;

31."energy savings" means the quantity of energy saved determined by measuce assessed
consumption prior to the implementation of a measure to improve energy efficiency and thereafter,
while ensuring normal external conditions influencing energy consumption;

32. "auditor" means an auditing firm or an independent auditor tHds laopermit to perform auditing
according to the act governing auditing;

33."electricity transmission system operator" (hereinafter: the electricity TSO) means a natural or
legal person who carries out the function of electricity TSO and is responsibl@dmting,
maintaining and developing the electricity transmission system in a given area and, where
applicable, its interconnections with other systems, and for ensuring théetomgbility of the
system to meet reasonable demands for the transmissitectfcity;

34."co-generation" means the simultaneous generation in one process of thermal energy and electrical
or mechanical energy;

35."heat" means heat in the form of steam, hot water, warm water or cooled liquids;

36. "efficient district heating and coolii means a system of district heating or cooling that uses at
least 50 per cent of energy generated from renewable sources, 50 per cent of excess heat, 75 per
cent of heat from cgeneration or 75 per cent of combination of such energy and heat;

37. "efficient individual heating and cooling” means a system of supply for individual heating and
cooling that, in comparison with efficient district heating and cooling, considerably reduces the
input of primary energy from nerenewable sources necessary for the lsuppan energy unit
within an appropriate system limit, or requires an equal input of primary energy from non
renewable sources, but at lower costs, which takes into account the energy necessary for the
generation, conversion, transport and distributibenergy;



38. "policy measure" means a regulative, financial, fiscal, voluntary instrument or an instrument on
notification that a local community introduces and implements to create a supportive framework,
demands or incentives to ensure that market panttspaffer or purchase energy services and
implement other measures to improve energy efficiency.

Article 5
(Objectives of the Act)

The principal objectives in the field of energy supply and use are as follows:
- reliable energy supply,

- to establish effdove competition in the energy market,

- competitiveness in performing nonarket activities,

- efficient energy transformation,

- reduced use of energy,

- efficient use of energy,

- energy efficiency,

- increased production and use of renewable energy sources,

- transition to a lowcarbon society with the application of lexarbon energy technologies,
- provision of energy services,

- ensuring social cohesiveness,

- protecting consumers as final customers of energy,

- ensuring effective control of the implementation of thevisions of this act.

Article 6
(Implementation of the Act)

(1) The provisions of this Act, unless otherwise stipulated in individual Articles, shall apply to legal
and natural person of public and private law that carry out activities in the follandag of the
energy sector (hereinafter referred to as: performers of energy sector activities):

- processing of oil and petroleum products,

- storing of gaseous, liquid and solid fuels,

- transmission of energy and fuels through networks,

- production, generatig trading in and distribution of liquid and gaseous fuels,

- electricity generation,

- production and distribution of heat for district heating and cooling,

- operator activity,

- supply of electricity, gas or heat,

- activity of electricity market operator,

- trading, representation and intermediation in electricity and natural gas markets.

(2) The provisions of this Act, unless otherwise stipulated in individual Articles, shall also apply to

other legal and natural persons of public and private law and to na¢éusahs (hereinafter referred to

as other liable persons), namely to:

- economic operators who perform the activities of coal, petroleum and natural gas extraction,

- providers of energy services, energy consulting and energy audits,

- fitters of installationgising renewable energy sources,

- producers or their authorised agents or importers that place emétgd products on the market,

- producers or their authorised agents or importers who place on the market installations for the
production of heat from reme@ble energy sources,

- operators or owners of public car parks and car parks accessible to public, and car parks of public
sector entities,

- public sector entities,



- Eco Fund, Slovenian Environmental Public Fund,

- owners of buildings,

- users of buildings,

- legd persons of public and private law and natural persons who are owners or users of energy
installations, plants and lines,

- final customers of energy.

Chapter Il: FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES

Article 7
(Principle of priority)

(1) Measures to increase enegdficiency and reduce the use of energy shall have, with regard to
comparable costs considered in the life of the measure, priority over the provision of new capacities
for energy supply.

(2) Measures for the provision of new capacities for the supmnerfgy generated from renewable
and lowcarbon sources shall have, with regard to comparable costs considered in the life of the
facility, priority over the provision of new capacities for the supply of energy from other sources.

Article 8
(Principle ofcosteffectiveness)

When adopting policies, strategies, programmes, plans, general and concrete legal acts and
implementing measures based on this Act, the State and local communities shall make efforts to
minimise the direct costs of measures for legal natural persons and external costs relative to the
results achieved, with regard to the principle of costs in the entire life.

Article 9
(Principle of social cohesiveness)

Energy supply shall enable suitable living conditions for poorer populatianpg or households.

Article 10
(Principle of equal treatment)

Procedures related to the construction of capacities for the supply of energy, to the supply of energy or
use of energy that are implemented by the state or local communities shall bedmniptein a
manner that ensures the equal treatment of all parties to the procedures.

Article 11
(Principle of transparency)

Procedures related to the construction of capacities for the supply of energy, to the supply of energy or
use of energy that amaplemented by the state or local communities shall be implemented in a
manner that ensures the transparency of the implementation of procedures and decision making.



Article 12
(Principle of publicity)

(1) Quantitative data about the supply of endrgyypes of consumer groups and by groups of final
customers shall be public, except when otherwise provided by the this Act or other act.

(2) The public shall be included in the procedure of adopting policies, strategies, programmes and
plans referringd energy supply and consumption in accordance with this Act.

(3) The public shall be included in the procedure of issuing general legal acts referring to energy
supply and consumption in accordance with this Act.

Article 13
(Consumer protection prindg)

The rights of consumers as final customers of energy shall be considered in the supply of energy.

Article 14
(Principle of integrity)

When adopting policies, strategies, programmes, plans and general legal acts and implementing other
matters in tkir competence, the State and local communities shall take into account their impact on
achieving objectives in the fields of energy efficiency, renewable energy sources and environmental
acceptability.

Article 15
(Principle of incentives)

(1) The stag and local communities, in accordance with their competences, shall promote the activities
to increase energy efficiency and the share of renewable of othealtyn energy sources.

(2) In determining incentives, those installations, technologiespeguit, products and services and
activities that are more environmentally sound shall be granted greater incentives than those that are
less environmentally sound.

(3) The state and local communities shall promote awargaisésg, information and eduian about
energy efficiency and renewable energy sources.

Article 16
(Principle of transparent and ndiscriminatory energy supply)

Consumers of energy supplied from the networks shall enjoy the right to be supplied with energy in a
transparent and mediscriminatory manner, under conditions stipulated in this Act and in compliance
with the regulations adopted on its basis and on the basis of general legal acts issued under public
authority.

Article 17
(Principle of competitiveness)



(1) The state sl be obliged to implement market rules and promote competition in the energy
supply.

(2) Individual producers or suppliers shall be treated in admsriminatory manner within the
framework of the system operating conditions stipulated in this Act.

Article 18
(Polluterpays principle)

Energy producers shall bear the burdens and risks of environmental pollution caused by their
production. It is necessary to consider the environmental burdens and risks that occur throughout the
entire life cycle, fron the manufacture of raw materials, during operation, in the event of accidents,
when operations are terminated, in the rehabilitation of the environment and in waste disposal.

Article 19
(Environmental sustainability principle)

When adopting policiestrategies, programmes, plans, general and concrete legal acts and
implementing measures based on this Act, the State and local communities shall make efforts to
minimise the negative environmental impacts with regard to the environmental burdens thrtlvgho

entire life cycle. In the event of policies, strategies, programmes, plans, general and concrete legal acts
that have longerm environmental impacts, efforts shall be taken to reduce the environmental burden

of future generations.

Chapter Ill: ENERGY POLICY

Article 20
(Energy policy)

(1) Energy policy is the implementation of measures in accordance with the principles of this Act the

aim of which is to achieve a reliable, sustainable and competitive national supply with energy by

means of promatg the following:

- security and quality of energy supply,

- balanced longerm development of energy economy considering trends in energy consumption,

- planned diversification of various primary energy sources, taking into account their economics,

- competitiveenergy supply,

- use of renewable and legarbon energy sources,

- ensuring the priority of efficient energy use over energy supply,

- environmentally acceptable generation, production, transmission and consumption of all types of
energy,

- competition in the enrgy market,

- flexible energy users,

- consumer protection.

(2) The measures to achieve the objectives referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be determined
in the following longterm planning documents: the energy concept of Slovenia, the nationaf energ
development plan and operational and action plans for individual fields of energy supply and
management. The measures shall include the regulative management of energy supply, conclusion and
implementation of international treaties in the field of engrmgplementation of investments and

promotion of investments in the field of energy, and other activities.



(3) The implementation of the measures to achieve the objectives referred to in the first paragraph of
the present Article is in the general econointerest of the state.

Article 21
(Priority use of energy)

With equal specific costs of achieving energy savings in comparison to the costs of providing new
capacities for the same amount of energy, priority shall be given to measures for adnewyyy
savings while maintaining the existing reliability of the energy system.

Article 22
(International obligations)

Obligations under international treaties and agreements, in particular those concerning the energy
market, investments, the transei of energy and fuels and connections to international energy
networks shall form an integral part of energy policy and planning of the development of energy sector
activities.

Article 23
(Energy Concept of Slovenia)

(1) The Energy Concept of Slovenihereinafter: the ECS) is the core development document that
constitutes the national energy programme and that is adopted by a resolution of the National
Assembly of the Republic of Slovenia (hereinafter: the National Assembly) following the proposal of
the Government of the Republic of Slovenia (hereinafter: the Government).

(2) ECS shall determine the objectives of reliable, sustainable and competitive energy supply for the
period of the next 20 years and for the framework period of 40 years orste@bthe projected

economic, environmental and social development of the state and on the basis of adopted international
commitments.

(3) The ECS shall determine the following:
projected energy balance and the manner of energy supply and managenmkonkhsetwenty
year development projection of the state, considering technological, environmental and
geopolitical development trends;

- objectives of the state in energy supply and management;

- measures necessary to achieve the objectives referred wpretteding indent;

- commitments concerning renewable energy sources;

- indicators by corresponding objectives of the energy policy of the programme budget of the
Republic of Slovenia.

(4) The Government shall renew the ECS every ten years, except évethtereferred to in the sixth
paragraph of this Article.

(5) The Government shall be responsible for implementing the ECS measures. Every three years, the
Government shall report to the National Assembly on the achievement of the national energy policy
objectives, the implementation of measures under the ECS and the investments in infrastructure
facilities defined in the national energy development plan.



(6) If the valid ECS is amended with respect to certain objectives or measures on the basis of the
report referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Government shall propose to the National Assembly
the adoption of the new ECS.

Article 24
(National Energy Development Plan)

(1) The National Energy Development Plan (hereinafter: DREN) is a frameworklpn of
investments in energy infrastructure for achieving the objectives referred to in Article 5 of this
Act for the period to which the ECS refers.

(2) Within a year of adopting the ECS, the ministry responsible for energy shall prepare the
draft DREN and submit it to the Government for adoption.

(3) Investments in energy infrastructure covered by DREN are in the general national economic
interest.

(4) In the process of adopting DREN, the Government shall observe the criteria for assessing
initiatives for drafting spatial acts in accordance with regulations governing the planning of
spatial arrangements of national importance and conditions to be fulfilled by installations
referred to in the first paragraph of Article 52 of this Act in order to obtain the final energy
permit referred to in the fourth paragraph of Article 52 of this Act.

Article 25
(Annual energy balance)

(1) The annual energy balance forecasts the total annual consumption of individual energy sources and
the types of provision of thenergy supply at the national level.

(2) The ministry responsible for energy shall submit each year's energy balance to the Government for
adoption.

(3) The compulsory components of the energy balance are the balances of the quantities of primary
andfinal energy expressed in natural quantities and equivalent energy value by individual sources in
the country; these are realisations in the previous year but one, the assessment for the previous year
and forecasts for the current and coming year. Enaatanbes shall also contain the plan for the
operation of the support scheme for electricity from renewable sources and freeffitigimcy co
generation, and the forecast of funding sources available for implementing the foreseen annual
objectives of thesupport scheme.

Article 26
(Action plans and operational programmes)

(1) To implement the ECS or meet international obligations from ratified and published international
treaties, regulations, strategies and programmes of the European Union that dpplfptmation of
programmes in the field of energy supply and use, the government, following the proposal of the
ministry responsible for energy, shall adopt the following operational programmes or action plans for
energy supply and/or use:

- energy effigency action plan;

- renewable sources action plan;

- action plan for nearly zerenergy buildings;



- other action plans or operational programmes for energy supply and/or use.

(2) The operational programme or action plan referred to in the preceding parstyghpletermine
the objectives, programmes and policy measures for achieving objectives, providers and level and
sources of programme implementation and policy measure funding.

Article 27
(Energyefficiency action plan)

(1) Following the proposal of ghministry responsible for energy, the Government shall adopt the
energy efficiency action plan for the period up to 2020 every three years.

(2) The energy efficiency action plan shall include the aims of energy efficiency increase, programmes
and policymeasures for achieving objectives in energy supply and consumption, and the target
consumption of primary energy and consumption of final energy in 2020.

(3) The ministry responsible for energy shall annually prepare a report on progress in increasing
erergy efficiency by 30 April and notify the European Commission thereof.

Article 28
(Renewable sources action plan)

(1) Following the proposal of the ministry responsible for energy, the Government shall adopt the
renewable sources action plan for thequkup to 2020 and forward it to the European Commission.

(2) The renewable energy sources action plan shall cover national and sectoral objectives of renewable
sources, programmes and measures to attain these objectives and human and financés fesour
the implementation of programmes and measures to attain the objectives.

(3) The Government shall set the following sectoral objectives in the renewable sources action plan for

each year until 2020:

- gross final consumption of electricity from reredsle sources;

- gross final consumption of energy generated from renewable sources used for heating and cooling,
and

- final consumption of energy generated from renewable sources in transport.

(4) The renewable sources action plan shall also cover the estifr@onstructing new infrastructure

for district heating and cooling generated from renewable energy sources necessary for attaining the
objectives referred to in the second paragraph of this Article that follows the development of the
generation of heah biomass, solar energy and geothermal energy installations.

(5) The renewable sources action plan shall also cover appropriate measures for the development of
network infrastructure for the transmission and distribution of intelligent network seitviees,
development of storage facilities and of an electric power system that enable the safe operation of the
electric power system and its adaptation to further developments in the field of electricity generation
from renewable energy sources, including ititerconnections among European Union Member States
and among European Union Member States and third countries.

(6) The minister responsible for energy shall determine the manner of calculating the national and
sectoral objectives referred to in thé@dhparagraph of this Article and indicators for verifying the
attainment of these objectives.



(7) The ministry responsible for energy shall biannually evaluate the progress in attaining the
objectives in the field of renewable energy sources by 31 Desreamniol notify the European
Commission thereof.

Article 29
(Local energy concept)

(1) Local communities shall adopt local energy concept (hereinafter: LEC) as a programme of energy
management in the local community with the prior consent of the minesgeonsible for energy, and
publish it on its websites.

(2) LEC shall serve as a basis for planning the spatial and economic development of the local
community, development of energglated local services of general economic interest, efficient use of
erergy and energy saving, use of renewable energy sources and improved air quality in the area of the
local community.

(3) LEC shall define objectives and measures for their implementation, which shall be in accordance
with the ECS and action plans refertedn Article 26 of this Act and the objectives to improve air
quality. LEC shall include specific objectives and measures for energy saving and increasing the
energy efficiency of buildings owned by local communities and housing funds, and local plans fo
energy efficiency based on lotgrm strategies to promote investments in the renovation of buildings
and possibility of efficient individual heating and cooling.

(4) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe a methodology of preparatiooltiuss
public participation and the compulsory contents of LEC.

(5) Local communities shall be obliged to harmonise LEC with the newly adopted ECS or action plan
in a period of one year following the adoption of the ECS or action plan.

(6) Several loal communities may adopt a common LEC which shall demonstrate objectives and
measures of individual local communities.

(7) LEC shall be adopted every ten years or even more frequently if objectives and measures are
changed by the ECS or action plansf@piatial planning and development bases in the local
community are changed.

(8) On the basis of orientations from LEC, a local community may issue a decree prescribing the
priority use of heating fuels with consideration to environmental criteria ahditat characteristics
of buildings.

(9) Local community authorities and performers of energy sector activities in the area covered by LEC
shall be obliged to harmonise their development documents and activities with objectives and
measures provided byHC.

(10) LEC shall constitute a compulsory expert basis for preparing the spatial plans of local
communities. A local community shall be obliged to harmonise its spatial plans with the LEC that
applies in its area. In the event of the fwammpliance of sgtial plans with LEC, a local community

shall observe the nerompliance in the process of drafting or amending its spatial plan. If a local
community does not conduct a procedure to draft or amend the spatial plan at the time of the adoption
of LEC, it shall commence the procedure on the basis ofecmmpliance established in LEC.

Article 30



(Development plans of operators and other performers of energy sector activities)

(1) On the basis of the methodology referred to in the fifth paragraph éfrtlile, a gas TSO,

electricity TSO and electricity DSO shall draft development plans of the system within nine months

of the adoption of DREN and acquire the consent of the ministry responsible for energy. Development
plans shall be produced for at leten years and aligned with DREN.

(2) The operators referred to in the preceding paragraph shall adopt system development plans every
two years.

(3) The minister responsible for energy shall decide on the consent to the development plan within
three moths of the receipt of the application; otherwise the consent shall be deemed granted.

(4) The development plan shall determine the main infrastructure for the transmission of electricity
and natural gas and for the distribution of electricity that shoellconstructed or modernised in the

next ten years in order to ensure a reliable electricity and natural gas supply, safe network operation
and adaptation to further developments in the field of generation of electricity from renewable sources
with the intoduction of intelligent network services and provision of storage facilities. The
determination shall be based on the forecast of the consumption of energy and power or natural gas,
and on the forecast capacity to cover the energy consumed and powatwuratigas. The

development plan shall include an estimate of the potential to increase the energy efficiency of the gas
and electricity infrastructure by balancing loads and interoperability related to installations for the
generation of energy, includingicro production, and define the time dynamics and financial

evaluation of planned investments and actual measures fegftedive improvements to the network
infrastructure.

(5) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the methodolodsafting development
plans.

Article 31
(Professional qualifications)

(1) To provide the safe and reliable operation of energy installations and efficient use of energy,
workers performing the tasks and duties of energy installation management ghafelssionally
gualified.

(2) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the method of meeting the requirement of
professional qualification referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) Article 343 of this Act shall appimutatis mutandifor the purpose of recognising the professional
gualifications of energy installation managers from other European Union Member States.

Article 32
(Duties of the ministry responsible for energy)

(1) The ministry responsible for energy shall perform the folgvéctivities related to energy

planning and monitoring of energy policy implementation:

- monitoring investments in energy infrastructure and granting approval to thyederplan of
operator development referred to in the first paragraph of Article 80sofct,

- collect and analyse data on production, generation, storage, transport, distribution, import, export,
consumption, prices of energy and fuels and trade in energy and fuels, and other data needed for
energy planning,



- carry out activities to prometthe production of electricity and heat from renewable energy
sources and efficient use of primary energy for the production of electricity and heat,

- draw up reports in the field of energy and publish them on websites in the context of public
information,

- perform duties of spatial planning stakeholder according to spatial planning regulations,

- participate in the preparation of the national spatial plan and be responsible for its professional and
efficient preparation according to regulations on planningtiap arrangements of national
importance in the field of energy infrastructure for electricity, natural gas and oil supply,

- implement sectoral policy from the ECS, action plans and operational programmes.

(2) In order to determine the suitability or adaqy of measures for the efficient implementation of
the adopted energy policy, the minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the scope and type of
necessary data that performers of energy sector activities and other persons liable are obliged to rep

(3) The minister responsible for energy shall issue technical rules concerning thewgetptanning,
construction, operation and maintenance of energy installations, plants, lines, networks and systems
that serve as the basis for prescribingatveditions for providing for the safe and reliable operation or
use of energy installations, plants, lines, networks, systems and fuels.

(4) Where a technical rule refers to particular standards and the energy installations, plants, networks,
systems antines comply with them, it shall be deemed that the energy installations, plants, networks,
systems and lines concerned are in compliance with the requirements of that technical rule.

Article 33
(Exchange of information)

(1) National authorities, thegency and other holders of public authority that collect the data from the
performers of energy sector activities and other persons with reporting obligation under this Act shall
be obliged to ensure efficient cooperation in the exchange of information.

(2) In the process of mutually exchanging information, the authorities and persons referred to in the
preceding paragraph may be provided only the data that said authority or persons need to carry out the
tasks under this Act or other tasks in the fidl@émergy. The data shall be communicated in a manner

that does not involve the communication or disclosure of personal data, unless this is necessary for the
purpose of exercising the statutory powers of the data user, or if the Act expressly deteamines th
communication of personal data to other persons as referred to in the first paragraph of this Article.

(3) The ministry responsible for energy shall harmonise and oversee the standardisation of the

procedures for exchanging data between authoritiepenstns referred to in the first paragraph of
this Article.

Part Two
ELECTRICITY
Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1: Introductory provisions

Article 34
(Application of the provisions of this Part)



The provisions of this Part shall apply toatieeity undertakings and to final customers of electricity.

Article 35
(Electricity activities)

(1) Electricity activities shall comprise the following:
- electricity generation,

- electricity supply,

- activity of the electricity TSO,

- activity of the elegicity DSO,

- activity of electricity market operator.

(2) The functions of the production and supply of electricity shall be carried out freely in the market,

in which participants shall freely agree on the price and quantity of electricity to be sufipdiked,
customers shall have the right to choose and switch the supplier from which they purchase electricity,
and producers shall have the right to choose and switch the supplier to which they sell electricity.
Traders shall conclude contracts among thérasesave for the congestion of the system referred to

in point c) of the second paragraph of Article 2 of Regulation (ECJIM@2009, when the right to
conclude contracts shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of Article 58 of this Act.
Suppiers to users shall conclude open contracts on the supply to final customers and purchasing from
producers regardless of the connection point. Suppliers shall have an offset balance; any imbalances
shall be calculated in accordance with the rules addpt¢dde market operator on the basis of the

fourth paragraph of Article 97 of this Act.

(3) The functions of an electricity TSO, electricity DSO and electricity market operator shall be
obligatory state services of general economic interest.

(4) An electicity TSO shall provide a service of general economic interest relating to the transmission
system that encompasses the elements of electricity system at tlaed @206kilovolt level, while an
electricity DSO shall provide a service of general econdmiézest relating to the distribution system

that encompasses elements at voltage levels lower than 110 kilovolts. The Government shall issue a
decree detailing the elements at the-kil@volt level that are part of the transmission or distribution
systan, considering especially the actual functionality of lines and junctions, the actual situation, the
minimisation of necessary ownership transfers and payments, and the uniformity of ownership of
individual loops.

Article 36
(Definitions)

In this Part of the Act, the following definitions shall apply:

1. "balancing contract" means a legal transaction by means of which a legal or natural person
shall arrange with an electricity market operator the supply of balancing energy and
financial settlement in cags of imbalance, through which a legal or natural person shall be
included in the balance scheme and acquire the status of a member of the balance scheme;
"a certificate" means a decision by means of which the Agency certifies the electricity TSO;
"distrib ution" means the distribution of electricity through distribution system;

"supply" means the sale, including resale, of electricity to customers;

"supplier" means any natural or legal person who performs the function of supply, and does
not mean producer,unless a producer is included in the balance scheme and acquires the
status of a member of the balance scheme;

aprwn
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"long-term planning" means the planning of the need for investment in generation and
transmission and distribution capacity on a longterm basis, with a view to meeting the
demand of the system for electricity and safeguarding the security of supply to customers;
"electricity undertaking” means any natural or legal person carrying out at least one of the
following functions: generation, transmissim, distribution, electricity market operator
function, electricity system operator, supply, or purchase of electricity, which is responsible
for the commercial, technical and maintenance tasks related to those functions, but does not
include final customers;
"horizontally integrated undertaking” means an undertaking performing at least one of the
functions of generation for sale, transmission, distribution, electricity system operator,
electricity market operator function or supply of electricity, and a honelectricity activity;
"integrated electricity undertaking” means a vertically or horizontally integrated
undertaking;
"balancing energy" is electricity that is necessary at a certain hour to clear imbalances of
forecast consumption, delivery and crossorder transmissions;
"balancing electricity market" means an organised market of balancing energy;
"electricity derivative" means a financial instrument specified in points 5, 6 or 7 of the
second paragraph of Article 7 of the Financial Instruments Market At (Uradni list
Republike Slovenije [Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia], nos 108/1D official
consolidated text, 78/11, 55/12 and 105/12 ZBan-1J), where that instrument relates to
electricity;
"small business customer" is a customer at lowoltage connection that is not a household
customer and whose maximum consumption power is not metered,
"control" means any rights, contracts or any other means which, either separately or jointly
and having regard to the considerations of fact or law inveled, confer the possibility of
exercising a decisive influence on an undertaking, in particular by:

a. ownership or the right to use all or part of the assets of an undertaking;

b. rights or contracts which confer a decisive influence on the composition, votingr

decisions of the bodies of an undertaking;

"direct line" means either a line linking an isolated generation site with an isolated
customer, or a line linking an electricity producer and an electricity supplier to supply
directly their own premises, subgliaries and customers;
"distribution system area" means a functional part of an electricity distribution system with
its own control system in which an electricity DSO function may be carried out separately;
"customer" means a supplier or a final customerof electricity; all customers shall be eligible
customers;
"open supply contract" means a legal transaction in the electricity market determining the
balancing affiliation of delivery points;
"network charges" is a sum that a system user is liable to pafor the use of an electricity
system;
"market operator" is a provider of the electricity market operator's obligatory state service
of general economic interest;
"agreement on balance scheme membership" means a legal transaction on the basis of which
an electricity market operator includes a natural or legal person in a balance scheme;
"supply contract" means an open or closed electricity supply contract, without electricity
derivatives;
"compensation agreement" means a legal transaction by means of whi@ legal or natural
person shall arrange with an electricity market balance scheme member the supply of
balancing energy and settlement in case of imbalances, through which a legal or natural
person shall be included in the balance scheme and acquire te&atus of a member of the
balance scheme;
"system use contract” means a contract concluded by an electricity system operator and
system user on the basis of which the user undertakes to pay the network charges for the use
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of the system, and the electricit system operator shall undertake to enable the user to
deliver electricity to the system or to consume electricity from the system;

"connection contract” means a contract concluded by an electricity system operator and
connection approval holder that reguates relations concerning connection, network charges
for connected load and payment for connection to the network;

"business customer" means a customer purchasing electricity, which is not for household
use, for their own use;

"interconnected system" means transmission and distribution systems linked by means of
one or more interconnector circuits;

"related undertaking" means an affiliated undertaking or an associated undertaking, within
the meaning of Article 56 or 69 of the Companies Act (Uradni list RSnos 65/09i official
consolidated text, 83/09Constitutional Court Decision, 33/11, 91/11, 100/1Constitutional
Court Order, 32/12, 57/12 in 44/13dl.US) or an undertaking which belongs to the same
shareholders;

"interconnector" means an electricity line that connects two electricity systems;

"producer" means a natural or legal person generating electricity;

"transmission" means the transmission of electricity through a transmission system;
"delivery point" means a point at a transmission or distribution system where the delivery
of electricity occurs and where the realised quantities of electricity delivered are established
by means of measurements or otherwise;

"regular price list" means a price list for a particular type of customer (a household,
business or subbusiness group customer), which applies to all customers that conclude a
supply contract with the supplier for a particular type of customer, with the exception of
action or package price lists, and includes at least 50 per cent of customerglat least 1000
customers with each supplier;

"regulated annual income" means the regulated annual revenue of the electricity system
operator for individual year of the regulatory period which is received from network
charges and other revenues and is iended to cover the operator's eligible costs;

"regulatory period" means a period of one or several consecutive calendar years for which a
regulatory framework is determined;

"regulatory framework" means a specification of the amount of planned eligiblecosts of the
electricity system operator by individual year of the regulatory period, planned network
charges, planned other revenue from performing the function of electricity system operator,
and network surplus or deficit from previous years;

"system" means electricity installations, plants and networks used for the function of
electricity system operator;

"ancillary services" means services necessary for providing the reliable and secure operation
of transmission and distribution systems; they are det&d in the Network Code referred to
in Article 144 of this Act;

"tariff" means a list of tariff elements which, on the basis of tariff rates, enable the
calculation of the network charge for the use of the electricity system;

"tariff item" means the value of individual tariff element for network use expressed in a
monetary unit per calculation unit;

"trader" means a natural or legal person purchasing electricity under a closed contract for
the purpose of resale inside or outside the system in which he isaddished;

"system user" means a producer or final customer;

"eligible customer" means a customer who is free to purchase electricity from the supplier
of his/her choice;

"vertically integrated undertaking” means an electricity undertaking or a group of
electricity undertakings where the same person or the same persons are entitled, directly or
indirectly, to exercise control referred to in point 15 of this Article, and where the
undertaking or group of undertakings perform at least one of the functions ofransmission
or distribution, and at least one of the functions of generation or supply of electricity;
"economic precedence" means the ranking of sources of electricity supply in accordance
with economic criteria;



46. "security" means the security of electrigty supply;

47."closed supply contract” means a legal transaction between the members of the balance
scheme of the electricity market, where the quantity of the supplied electricity within the
relevant period shall be fixed for every accounting interval;

48. "closed distribution system" is a network isolated from the public distribution network
which, under the conditions provided by this Act, is intended for the distribution of
electricity within a geographically confined industrial, commercial or shared servicesite
and, as a rule, does not supply household customers and is directly connected to the
transmission system.

Section 2: Tasks in the public interest and provision of service of general economic interest

Article 37
(Tasks of electricity undertakings

(1) Electricity undertakings shall, in the public interest, perform tasks that refer to the reliability,
regularity, quality and price of supply and to environment protection, including the efficient use of
energy, energy generated from renewable ssuand climate protection.

(2) The electricity undertakings providing the services of general economic interest under this Act

shall ensure:

- permanent and uninterrupted system operation within the limitations set by the technical condition
of equipment ath quality supply standards;

- safe and reliable operation and maintenance of the system;

- system development;

- connection of system users in accordance with general andismiminatory conditions;

- a system that enables customers to freely choose thegitiesupnd enables producers and
suppliers to freely sell and purchase electricity;

- billing the use of the system;

- long-term planning of system development;

- provision of emergency supply to vulnerable users;

- provision of sustaining supply;

- other obligatios specified in an Act or some other regulation.

Article 38
(Exclusive rights)

In order to ensure the fulfilment of obligations relating to the obligatory state services of general
economic interest referred to in the preceding Article, the Governmext¢cordance with the

regulations on services of general economic interest and on-puibtite partnership as well as in
accordance with this Act, shall grant an exclusive right to provide an electricity TSO service of general
economic interest, an exdive right to provide electricity DSO service and an exclusive right to

provide electricity market operator service.

Section 3: Protection of final customers and consumers

1. Subsection 1: General provisions regarding the protection of final customers

Article 39



(Right to conclude a contract with a supplier)

(1) Final customers of electricity shall have the right to an electricity supply on the basis of an open
contract on supply with supplier regardless of the European Union Member State in whigbptlez s
is registered.

(2) Prior to the conclusion of the contract on supply referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
supplier shall meet the requirements regarding balance scheme membership and other requirements
determined by this Act and other regtibns regarding the implementation of the activity of supply in

the electricity market in the Republic of Slovenia.

(3) Prior to connection to the system, the electricity DSO shall notify the customer of his or her rights
and obligations in connection tithe choice of supplier and in connection with the sustaining or
emergency supply in accordance with this Act.

(4) The electricity supply to customers and the purchase of electricity from producers connected to the
transmission or distribution systemthe Republic of Slovenia shall be subject to the provisions of

this Act and regulations issued pursuant to it and to the general acts for the exercise of public
authority, regardless of where the supply contract has been concluded.

Article 40
(Switching suppliers)

(1) A final customer who wishes to switch suppliers shall communicate a request for the change to the
electricity system operator of the system to which the customer is connected. The new supplier may
communicate the request on behalf ofj &or the account of, the final customer on the basis of an
authorisation.

(2) An electricity system operator that receives a request shall do everything necessary to enable the
final customer to begin implementing the contract for electricity supplytivitimew supplier within
21 days of lodging a complete request. Final customers must not be charged to change supplier.

(3) An electricity system operator shall reject the change of supplier if the new supplier fails to fulfil
the obligations set out bhis Act, the regulations issued pursuant to this Act and general acts for the
exercise of public authority.

(4) Final customers shall receive the final account after each change of supplier within six weeks from
the commencement of receiving the eledlyisupply from the new supplier.

(5) The change of supplier shall be detailed by the electricity system operator in the Network Code.

Article 41
(Access to consumption data)

(1) A supplier shall provide free and periodic information to final custsron actual electricity
consumption and the characteristics of such consumption with sufficient frequency to enable them to
regulate their own electricity consumption.

(2) An electricity system operator shall enable customers using the system orit warébrms the

function of an operator to access their consumption data; this information shall be given within a
sufficient time frame which takes account of the
electricity product in question and thestefficiency of such measures. An electricity system operator



shall also enable access to data to other legal or natural persons that enclose with a request for access
to data on a customer6s consumpti on lytorfagallcust omer
future cases until such authorisation is revoked.

(3) The costs of access referred to in the preceding paragraph shall comply with the direct costs of the
operator' service. No additional costs shall be charged to final customers foniicis; se

(4) The manner of access to consumption data shall be specified in detail by the electricity system
operator in the Network Code.

Article 42
(Indication of production energy sources on supplier's invoice)

(1) On the electricity invoices torfal customers, in the promotion materials and on the internet,

electricity suppliers shall indicate the following:

- shares of individual energy production sources in the whole structure of the electricity of
individual supplier in the preceding year inm@nner that enables a reasonable comparison of
different suppliers at the national level,

- at least a reference to existing reference sources (e.g. web pages where information on the
environmental impact in terms of G@missions and the quantity of radibee waste resulting
from the electricity generated by the overall structure of electricity production sources used by the
supplier over the preceding year is publicly available);

- information concerning the rights of final customers as regards the medispote settlement
available to them in the event of a dispute.

(2) As regards the obligations referred to in the first and second indents of the preceding paragraph
with respect to electricity obtained via a power exchange or imported from an undgsitkited

outside the European Union, aggregate figures provided by the exchange or the undertaking in
guestion over the preceding year may be used.

(3) If an electricity supplier uses electricity from renewable sources in its energy mix, it shall
demorstrate the share or quantity of electricity generated from renewable energy sources by means of
guarantees of origin from its account kept in the register referred to in Article 368. The quantity of
energy generated from renewable sources that corresmtidsguarantees of origin and that the

supplier transfers to a third party shall be deduced from the share of energy generated from renewable
sources in its energy mix.

(4) In a general legal act, the Agency shall detail the method for determirispates of individual
production sources and the method for presenting them.

(5) The Agency shall monitor the fulfilment of suppliers' obligations and especially verify the
authenticity of data communicated by suppliers to their customers, and whetldeta are
communicated in a manner that enables a simple comparison at the national level.

Article 43
(Provision of energy efficiency)

Electricity undertakings shall ensure maximum energy efficiency by optimising , in accordance with
t he Ag eanmmgndations, thecuse of electricity, especially by providing electricity use
management services, developing innovative pricing formulas and introducing intelligent metering
systems or networks when appropriate.



Subsection 2: Sustaining supply

Article 44
(Sustaining supply)

(1) The electricity DSO shall automatically and without transfer windows ensure supply to final
customers connected to its system if the contract for supply is terminated because of measures
resulting from the insolvency or illigdity of a supplier, in accordance with the regulation governing
the operation of the electricity market. The electricity DSO shall immediately notify the customer of
the termination of the contract for supply and of the commencement of the provisigtaifisg

supply.

(2) At the request of a customer, the electricity DSO shall provide a supply to each:
- household customer;
- small business customer.

(3) The price of supply referred to in the preceding two paragraphs shall be made public and be higher
than the market price of the supply to a comparable customer, but it shall not exceed the price by more
than 25 per cent. The electricity price for sustaining supply shall be set by the electricity DSO at a

level that covers the loAgrm electricity purchse price and additional costs of supplying and

providing sustaining supply. The conditions of sustaining supply shall be detailed by the Network
Code.

(4) If the electricity DSO does not set the price of electricity for sustaining supply or sets ityctmtra
the preceding paragraph, the price shall be set by the Agency.

(5) The electricity DSO shall notify customers of the possibilities and conditions of sustaining supply
and of obligations related to the supply of vulnerable customers referredrticla 51 of this Act.

3. Subsection 3: Special provisions on the protection of household and small business customers
and other system users

Article 45
(General)

(1) The provisions of Articles 45 to 51 of this Act shall apply to household custontéles the

provisions of Articles 46 and 48 shall also apply to small business customers, except to the extent that
they refer to the handling of complaints referred to in Article 50. The provision of Article 49 shall

apply to all system users.

(2) The spplier or the electricity DSO may natiscriminatorily guarantee the rights determined in

this subsection to household customers also to other final customers.

Article 46
(Single point of contact)

(1) The Agency shall provide for household customesigigle point of access to information on their
rights, valid regulations and general acts for the exercise of public authority and the methods for



handling complaints referred to in Article 50 that are available to customers in the event of a dispute
with a supplier or electricity DSO (hereinafter: single point of contact).

(2) The single point of contact of the Agency shall provide access to at least information on:

- methods for handling complaints referred to in the preceding paragraph;

- valid network chege tariffs and general conditions related to the use of the network;

- comparison of valid regular price lists of electricity suppliers for household and small business
customers, without a comparison of promotional or package price lists;

- method of acquirig data on their consumption;

- rights to sustaining supply referred to in Article 44 or emergency supply referred to in Article 51
of this Act;

- quality of voltage, security of supply and commercial quality that the electricity system operator is
obliged toprovide;

- right to switch suppliers.

(3) For the performance of tasks referred to in the third indent of the preceding paragraph, suppliers
shall communicate the data on changes in prices to the Agency by electronic means as laid down by
the general actfadhe Agency by the date of application of the changed price at the latest.

(4) The Agency shall issue a general act determining the manner of electronic communication of data
for the performance of the tasks referred to in the third indent of the seamutaph of this Article

by which it shall determine the system for communicating data on prices and the manner of use of the
system, or a form for the electronic communication of data.

Article 47
(Energy checkilist)

(1) Suppliers of electricity to fad customers shall be obliged to make public and provide each of their
household customers with a copy of the energy consumer checklist established by the European
Commission on the basis of the sixteenth paragraph of Article 3 of the Directive 2009/72/EC,
including its instructions for use.

(2) The manner and frequency of sending the energy checklist shall be regulated in detail by a general
act of the Agency. The Agency shall publish the checklist on its website.

Article 48
(Supply contract and genétarms and conditions)

(1) The supply contract between a household customer and a supplier shall be concluded in writing or
in electronic form in accordance with the regulations on electronic commerce.

(2) The contract referred to in the preceding geaph shall determine at least the following:

- the identity and address of the supplier,

- price and terms of payment,

- rights and obligations of the contracting parties with respect tacompliance with the contract;

- types of services provided by the supphnd the level of service quality offered,;

- the means by which djo-date information on all applicable tariffs and charges for maintenance
offered may be obtained,;

- the duration of the contract, the conditions for renewal and termination of servicéshar o
contract, and whether withdrawal from the contract without charge is permitted,

- any compensation and the refund arrangements which apply if contracted service quality levels are
not met, including inaccurate and delayed billing of electricity andiaddl services,



- manner of initiating procedures for considering complaints under Article 50 of this Act, and

- information relating to household customer rights, including on the handling of complaints
referred to in Article 50 of this Act, and all of theformation that suppliers must clearly
communicate through billing or their web sites.

(3) A household customer may withdraw from a supply contract without paying a penalty, damages,
compensation or any other form of payment for reasons of withdrasvaltfre contract prior to the
expiry of the set time limit, provided that such withdrawal takes effect at least one year following the
conclusion of the contract.

(4) Due to switching suppliers, a household customer may withdraw from a contract witbout pr

notice. If withdrawal from a contract as referred to in the preceding paragraph takes effect prior to one
year following the conclusion of the contract, the customer shall be obliged to bear the consequences
of early withdrawal laid down in the suppdgntract.

(5) The general terms and conditions, which form an integral part of the contract, should be fair and
well-known in advance , and should be provided to the household customer prior to concluding a
contract even where contracts are concludezutity intermediaries. The general terms and conditions
shall be stated in clear and comprehensible language and shall not inclutrantual barriers to

the exercise of customers' rights, for example excessive contractual documentation. Custorbers shall
protected against unfair or misleading sales methods by electricity suppliers. Electricity suppliers shall
provide household customers with transparent information on applicable prices and tariffs and on
standard terms and conditions in respect oftetéty supplies, at least by publishing these on their
website.

(6) Electricity suppliers shall notify their household customers directly, in a transparent and
comprehensible manner, of any change in standard contractual terms and conditions & freastfon
prior to their taking effect, in particular, where such changes apply to compliance with the contract
concluded with a household customer.

(7) Due to a modification of the general contractual terms and conditions referred to in the preceding
paragaph, household customers shall have the right to withdraw from a supply contract within one
month following the entry into force of the modified general terms and conditions, without notice and
without being subject to a penalty payment, which will be rmomicated by the supplier in the
notification referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(8) The provisions of the sixth and seventh paragraphs shall also apply to the changed electricity prices
that may imply an increase in the payment for electricity émrskhold customers.

(9) The supplier shall offer household customers a wide choice of payment methods, including
prepayment systems, which shall be fair and adequately reflect probable consumption. Payment
methods shall not unduly discriminate betweesta@mers. Any difference in price and terms and
conditions shall reflect the costs to the supplier of the different payment systems.

(10) Suppliers may charge household customers for operating costs erateflasis, regardless of
how these costs adesignated in the offered promotional and package price lists. Household
customers shall not be charged for-flatie operating costs on the basis of a regular price list. In the
case of late payment, the costs of the reminder shall not be deemedats fbgierating costs.

Article 49
(Intelligent metering systems)



(1) The electricity DSO shall provide household customers and other system users with intelligent
metering systems that encourage the active participation of consumers in the electricty enable

the charge of costs by actual consumption, the use of new methods of charging that are adapted to
supply and demand in the market, and the implementation of services by providers in the market.

(2) The Agency shall make an economic assessaiatitthe longterm costs and benefits to the

market and the individual customer, an economic assessment of which form of intelligent metering is
economically reasonable and ceffective and which timeframe is feasible for their distribution.

Where theoll-out of smart meters is assessed positively, at least 80% of consumers shall be equipped
with intelligent metering systems by 2020.

(3) The Government shall issue a decree prescribing measures and procedures for the introduction and
interoperabilityof intelligent metering systems in the territory of the Republic of Slovenia, taking into
account the economic assessment referred to in the second paragraph of this Article, best practices, as
well as the importance of developing the internal electriogyket.

Article 50
(Handling the complaints of household customers relating to electricity supply)

() The electricity supplier shall provide household customers with transparent, simple and
inexpensive procedures for handling their complaints.

(2) For the purpose referred to in the preceding paragraph, the supplier alone, or jointly with other
suppliers within the Association, shall appoint an independent and impartial person or several persons
(hereinafter: the person appointed) responsible foiddey on complaints to whom household

customers shall address their complaints in relation to alleged violations of the supplier in
implementing the electricity supply contract.

(3) The independence of the persons appointed shall be guaranteed tipwiegoneasures:

- the person appointed shall possess the abilities, experience and competence, particularly in the
field of law, required to settle such disputes;

- the person shall be appointed for a period of office of six years and shall not be lifgle to
relieved of his duties except in justified cases of-acompliance with the conditions laid down in
this paragraph;

- the person concerned cannot be appointed if, during the three years prior to the appointment, the
person has worked for the same sugptir association concerned.

(4) A supplier shall provide the household customer with the following information, in writing or any

other suitable form:

- aprecise description of the types of complaint to be decided upon by the person appointed, as well
asany existing restrictions and the value of the disputed claim;

- the rules governing the referral of the matter to the person appointed, including any requirements
that the household customer may have to meet, as well as other procedural rules, nowbly thos
concerning the written or oral nature of the procedure, attendance in person and the languages of
the procedure;

- the rules serving as the basis for decisions;

- the type of decision to be taken in the procedure referred to in the first paragraph dficles A

(5) The person appointed shall decide on complaints within two months following their receipt. The
decision shall be binding on the supplier if the customer confirms it by means of a written statement
within eight days of its receipt. If the coster disagrees with the decision, he may bring an action
before the court.



(6) The supplier or association referred to in the second paragraph may determine a system of
reimbursement and compensation for customers which shall apply to individual brefttieds
obligations relating to supply, provided this is justifiable given the amount of damage, gravity of the
breach and level of responsibility.

(7) The procedure by which the person appointed handles complaints shall comply with the following

principles:

- the two parties concerned shall be permitted to present their viewpoints and hear the arguments of
the other party, and any expert statements;

- simplicity of procedure, which allows the customer to take part in the procedure without recourse
to a le@l representative;

- the procedure shall be free of charge;

- the person appointed shall be given an active role in the procedure, enabling him to take into
consideration any facts conducive to decision making about the complaint;

- a decision on the complaishall be communicated to the parties concerned, stating the grounds
on which it is based.

(8) More detailed rules on the appointment of persons for handling complaints, information to
household customers on complaint handling, the system of reimbursemdestmpensation and the
procedure for complaint handling shall be laid down by the supplier or association of suppliers and
shall be made public.

(9) The costs of the procedure incurred by the person or persons appointed shall be covered by the
supplieror the association of suppliers.

(10) The supplier or the association of suppliers shall annually publish on its website a report on
complaints that have been settled.

Article 51
(Vulnerable customers and emergency supply)

(1) A vulnerable customer § a household customer who, due to his financial circumstances,
income and other social circumstances and living conditions, is unable to obtain an alternative
source of energy for household use that would incur the same or smaller costs for essential
household use.

(2) The electricity DSO shall not cut off power or restrict supply to a vulnerable customer below
the quantity or power that is absolutely necessary in view of the circumstances (season,
temperatures, place of residence, health condition andfeér similar circumstances) in order not
to jeopardise life and health of the customer and persons living in his household.

(3) Prior to disconnection, an electricity DSO shall notify the customer of the possibilities of

emergency supply and of the eviderio be provided by the customer in order to be approved for
emergency supply by the operator, and of the time limits within which such evidence must be
submitted. Detailed conditions and the price of emergency supply that covers the costs of the purchase
of energy shall be prescribed by the operator in the Network Code referred to in Article 144 of this Act
in accordance with the rules and criteria prescribed by the Energy Agency.

(4) The costs of emergency supply of vulnerable customers shall be eigsitdeof DSO.

Chapter ILELECTRICITY GENERATON



Article 52
(Energy permit for production capacities)

(1) Prior to the construction of electricity production installations with a nominal power capacity
exceeding 1 MW that are connected to publictelety networks, an investor shall obtain a final
energy permit issued by the minister responsible for energy.

(2) In the event of the construction of an installation referred to in the preceding paragraph that
requires a building permit, an investoayrequire the issue of a building permit after obtaining a final
energy permit; in the event of the construction of an installation constituting a spatial arrangement of
national importance, the procedure for the elaboration of a spatial plan mayaiedrafiter obtaining

a final energy permit.

(3) The energy permit shall determine the following:

- the location and area to which the energy permit shall apply;

- the type of installation or fuel to which the energy permit shall apply;

- the method and regqeiments for providing the energy sector activity in installations;

- the conditions relating to installations after the termination of their operation;

- the conditions relating to use of public goods or public infrastructure;

- the obligations of energy permitolders in relation to the provision of data to the minister
responsible for energy.

(4) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the requirements and content of the application

for issuing energy permits for individual types of installatiamfrthe first paragraph of this Article

that refer to:

- definitions of criteria and conditions for determining compliance with the condition referred to in
the first paragraph of this Article that concerns power exceeding 1 MW,

- influence of the installatioon the safety and security of the electricity system, installations and
associated equipment;

- required energy efficiency of technology or consideration of the latest developments in
technology;

- type of primary energy sources, with a stress on renewahileesoand domestic energy sources;

- technical, economic and financial competence of the applicant for an energy permit for the
completion of the installation;

- consistency of the installation with measures to perform the tasks referred to in the firstpparagra
of Article 35 of this Act in the sense of providing reliable, regular, quality and appropriately priced
generation, including the use of renewable energy sources, efficient energy use and environmental
protection;

- types of location and area where thergly sector activity will be performed;

- contribution of the generating capacity of the installation to attaining national goals concerning the
share of renewable energy sources in the final gross energy consumption of the European Union in
2020;

- the contrbution of generating capacity to reducing emissions.

(5) An energy permit shall be obtained for every reconstruction of facilities referred to in the first
paragraph that changes energy regeneration facility parameters to such an extent that a bmiitling pe
must be obtained for reconstruction activities.

(6) If, prior to commencing construction or during construction, an investor that has received an
energy permit transfers the right to build the generation facility to which the energy permit refers to
another person, the energy permit shall remain valid and may be amended at the request of the new
investor. The new investor shall produce proof of the right to build when requesting an amendment.
The proof of the right to build shall include the evidereferred to in Article 56 of the Construction

Act (Uradni list RS, Nos 102/0#4 official consolidated text, 14/G5amended., 92/06 ZJCGB, 93/05



I ZVMS, 111/05i Constitutional Court Decision, 126/07 and 108/09, 61/ZRud-1A, 20/11i odl.
US and 57/12hereinafter: ZGEL) as well as documents referred to in Article 475 of this Act. In such
a case, the building permit shall be amended in arasit procedure without the parties being heard.

(7) The ministry responsible for energy shall keep a regitenergy permits. When an energy permit
holder is a natural person, the following data shall be entered into a register: personal name and
permanent or temporary address of the permit holder. The register data shall be public.

Article 53
(Tender forequisite new capacities)

(1) If the extent of capacities for generating electricity for which the national spatial plan has been
adopted or for which a building permit was issued if the national spatial plan is not compulsory, and
the measures for energfficiency adopted on the basis of this Act do not provide security of
electricity supplies, the ministry responsible for energy or a market operator under its authority may
carry out a public tender for new production capacities or for the implementétiozasures for the
efficient use of electricity.

(2) Prior to the beginning of the public tender procedure referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
ministry responsible for energy shall establish whether the security of electricity supplies can be
provided with the measures for efficient energy use.

(3) The invitation to the public tender shall be published in Uradni list Republike Slovenije and in the
Official Journal of the European Union. The closing date for submitting applications (tenddrisg shal

no less than six months. The public tender procedure, terms of reference and selection criteria shall be
transparent and nediscriminatory.

(4) The public tender for new capacities or for the implementation of efficient energy use measures
shall contain a detailed description of the contract specifications and of the procedure for selecting
applicants and an exhaustive list of criteria governing the selection of bidders, including a definition of
foreseen incentives to be provided to successfulogdd he criteria shall include the requirement that
any new production facility must increase competitiveness in the electricity market.

(5) Instead of offering new generation capacity, a bidder may offer electricity from existing generation
capacitieon condition that longerm provision, the same security of supplies and environmental
acceptability of electricity generation are ensured.

(6) Among the terms of reference , the public tender shall also stipulate the siting conditions to be met
by the liilding which is the subject of public tender, in compliance with Article 464 of this Act.

(7) The procedure for selecting a candidate for the new capacity shall be carried out according to the
public-private partnership regulations if a pubfidvate patnership is formed between the investor
and the Republic of Slovenia with regard to the new capacity.

Chapter Ill: TRANSMISSION

Section 1: Service of general economic interesectricity TSO

Article 54
(Functions of the electricity TSO)



(1) Theelectricity TSO functions shall be carried out as an obligatory national service of general
economic interest.

(2) The electricity TSO service of general economic interest shall include:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

secure, reliable and efficient operation and maintenance ofatniission system;

development of the system that takes into account the anticipated needs of system users, the
requirements for safe and reliable system operation, and the guidelines from the development plan
of the electricity TSO referred to in ArticBO of this Act;

long-term capacity of the transmission system to meet reasonable demands for connection to the
system and energy transmission;

control of electricity flows in the transmission system and provision of ancillary services;
clearing of imb&ances of consumption, delivery and crbssder transmissions in the system;

provision of information to any other operator that is necessary to ensure the secure and efficient
operation, coordinated development and interoperability of the interconsgstech

provision of data necessary to effectively conclude supply contracts and for the exercise of the
right to connection to system users and suppliers;

nondiscriminatory treatment of system users and suppliers;

electricity consumption and necessanergy sources forecasts through a comprehensive planning
method, taking due account of savings measures taken by system users;

collection of payments for congestion and of payments resulting from thetrembemission
system operator compensation methm, in accordance with Article 13 of Regulation (EC)
No 714/2009;

purchase of electricity to cover shortfalls in the transmission system and the purchase of ancillary
services in the transmission system by means of transparestistoiminatory and nmket-based
procedures;

quality of supply in accordance with the minimum standards.

(3) The electricity TSO shall perform its tasks in a manner that particularly promotes the integration of
the electricity market.

Article 55
(Method of providing servie of general economic interest)

(1) The concession to provide the service of general economic interest of an electricity TSO shall be
granted by the Republic of Slovenia as concession grantor to a legal or natural person for the entire
territory of the Rpublic of Slovenia for a period not exceeding 50 years.

(2) The concession referred to in the preceding paragraph shall not be subject to the payment of a
concession fee.



(3) Electricity TSO activity may be performed by a concessionaire that fulfifeftbeving
conditions:

- 0wns a transmission system,

- holds an electricity TSO certificate, and

- is designated as electricity TSO.

Article 56
(Granting of concessions)

(1) The granting of a concession for the service of general economic interest ofigtec®O shall
be subject to the regulations governing services of general economic interest angrpuaiéc
partnership, unless particular issues are regulated otherwise by this Act.

(2) The concession is granted after a tendering procedure or othpetitive procedure determined

by the regulations on publjarivate partnership, unless the concession is granted to an undertaking
fully owned by the Republic of Slovenia that is not performing marker energy sector activities. In the
latter case, the carssion shall be granted with the direct conclusion of a concession contract.

(3) When a competitive procedure is foreseen for granting a concession, the concession act shall
determine transparent, naliscriminatory and proportional conditions that aalegy natural person

must fulfil in order to be granted a concession. The ownership of a transmission system or part of it, an
electricity TSO certificate and an electricity TSO designation shall not be conditions for obtaining a
concession.

(4) The proedure for granting a concession by means of public tender shall be managed by the
ministry responsible for energy. The decision on the selection of the concessionaire shall be issued by
the Government.

(5) When the decision on the selection of the cesiomaire becomes final, the grantor shall sign a
concession contract with the concessionaire.

Article 57
(Funding of service of general economic interest)

The electricity TSO activity shall be funded from network charges and other revenue fovibmpro
of the service of general economic interest.

Article 58
(Crossborder exchanges in electricity)

(1) The electricity TSO shall ensure and regulate conditions for granting rights for the use-of cross
border transmission and for concluding consaut crossorder electricity transmissions in
accordance with the rules of Regulation (EC)™d&/2009.

(2) The electricity TSO shall adopt and publish on its websites the rules on allocating and using
interconnection capacities when these capacitefaufficient to meet all the demands for access to
the network. These rules shall be objective,-dzeriminatory and in accordance with the guidelines
from Annex | to Regulation (EC) N614/20089.

(3) The electricity TSO shall obtain approval from &gency prior to the publication of the rules
referred to in the preceding paragraph.



Article 59
(Construction and operation of transmission system)

(1) Only the electricity TSO may be an investor in the procedure for issuing a building permit for the
construction or reconstruction of an installation or facility that forms part of a transmission system.

(2) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, a producer, the electricity DSO or a customer may act as
an investor in the event of the constructionemonstruction of an installation or facility that connects

a producer, distribution system or customer with the transmission system when the installation or
facility is not yet owned by the electricity TSO.

(3) The provisions of the first and the precedparagraphs shall also apply to the issue of a permit of
use or other individual act that permits the operation of an installation or facility that forms part of the
transmission system.

(4) This Article shall not apply to new interconnectors that atéed to exemption in accordance
with Article 139 of this Act.

Section 2: Unbundling of transmission systems and electricity TSOs

Subsection 1: Ownership unbundling

Article 60
(Transmission system ownership)

(1) A legal or natural person that owagransmission system must perform the activity of an
electricity TSO. A person other than an electricity TSO may not, in whole or in part, own the
transmission system on which the electricity TSO performs TSO activity, unless otherwise provided
by this Act.

(2) The requirement from the preceding paragraph shall be deemed fulfilled when two or more legal or
natural persons that own a transmission system establish a joint undertaking that acts as an electricity
TSO in two or more European Union Member &atNo other undertaking may participate in the

joint undertaking. The owners of the transmission system that established a joint undertaking shall
meet the requirements referred to in Articles 51, 63 and 64 of this Act.

Article 61
(Controtrelated proHiitions)

(1) The same legal or natural person or the same legal or natural persons may not:

- directly or indirectly exercise control as referred to point 14 of Article 36 of this Act of an
undertaking that performs any function of production or supplydimectly or indirectly exercise
control as referred to point 14 of Article 36 of this Act of an electricity TSO or transmission
system or exercise any right to them; nor

- directly or indirectly exercise control as referred to point 14 of Article 36 af Alut of an
electricity TSO or transmission system and simultaneously directly or indirectly exercise control
as referred to point 14 of Article 36 of this Act of an undertaking performing any function of
production or supply or exercise any rights in suetertaking.



(2) An undertaking performing any function of production or supply referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall not include final customers who perform any function of production or supply of
electricity, either directly or via undertakingdich they control, either individually or jointly,

provided that the final customers including their shares of the electricity produced in controlled
undertakings are, on an annual average, net consumers of electricity, and provided that the economic
value of the electricity they sell to third parties is insignificant in proportion to their other business
operations.

(3) An undertaking performing an activity of production or supply as referred to in the first paragraph
of this Article shall be an undertalk that performs any production and supply activity according to
the meaning of Part Ill of this Act, which governs natural gas. An electricity TSO and transmission
system referred to in the first paragraph of this Article shall refer also to a gas @@Qransmission
system according to the meaning of Part lll of this Act, which governs natural gas.

(4) The same natural or legal person or persons are not entitled to appoint members of the supervisory
board, the administrative board or bodies legapresenting the undertaking, of an electricity TSO or

a transmission system, or to directly or indirectly exercise control as referred to in point 14 of Article

36 of this Act or to exercise any right in an undertaking performing any function of prodaiction

supply.

Article 62
(Definition of rights)

The rights referred to in the first and fourth paragraphs of the preceding Article shall encompass
especially the following:

a) the power to exercise voting rights;

b) the power to appoint members of the superyidmard, the administrative board or bodies legally
representing the undertaking; or

¢) the holding of a share that exceeds half of the share capital, or shares of, the undertaking.

Article 63
(Prohibitions concerning membership of bodies)

The same legair natural person shall not simultaneously be:

- a member of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body legally representing the
undertaking, of an electricity TSO or a person owning a transmission system, or a representative
related to the omership management of an electricity transmission system or an electricity or
natural gas transmission system, and

- a member of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body legally representing the
undertaking performing the functions of puntion or supply of natural gas or electricity.

Article 64
(Special provision in the event of state ownership)

When a person as referred to in Articles 61 or 63 is the Republic of Slovenia or another European
Union Member State, a local community oraarthority of these persons, the requirements referred to

in Articles 61 and 63 shall be deemed fulfilled when two separate authorities of these persons exercise
control as referred to point 15 of Article 36 of this Act of an electricity TSO or transmsgtam

and of an undertaking performing activities in the field of production or supply.



Article 65
(Obligation to take measures to eliminate reasons that constitute violations of prohibitions)

(1) A legal or natural person with regard to whom a reasises that constitutes a violation in relation

to the requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act shall be obliged to promptly take
all necessary measures to eliminate the reason and notify the Agency of the occurrence of the reason
and the aforesaid measures.

(2) As soon as an electricity TSO is aware of a reason that constitutes a violation in relation to the
requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act, it shall notify the Agency in
accordance with the predad paragraph of this Article and take all measures within its power to
eliminate the reason.

(3) An electricity TSO shall also notify the Agency of any planned transaction that might require a re
examination of the compliance with the requirements redieto in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this
Act.

(4) The Agency shall monitor compliance with the requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 and
64 of this Act. If in the course of monitoring the Agency finds that a reason that constitutes a violation
occurred in relation to a certain person, it shall indicate the reason and the obligation to take measures
under the first and second paragraphs of this Article, respectively.

Article 66
(Agency measures)

(1) If the reason concerning the requiremeafsired to in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act has not
been eliminated in a reasonable period of not less than one month and no more than six months from
the day of notification of the reason in accordance with the first, second or third paragridyehs of
preceding Article, or in the period when the Agency indicated the reason in accordance with the fourth
paragraph of the preceding Article, the Agency shall, by way of a decision:

- prohibit the execution of voting rights or execution of proprietarytlentents pertaining to the
management of less than a half of the equity stake, contrary to Article 61 of this Act;

- impose the sale of the share in capital stock or an equity stake in the transmission system insofar
as this exceeds half of the stock capibalshares of, the undertaking;

- find that a member of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body representing the
undertaking was appointed contrary to this Act or that the person who represents the transmission
system owner was authorisedntrary to this Act, and propose to the competent authority the
commencement of a procedure for the dismissal or withdrawal of the authorisation;

- prohibit the exercise of indirect or direct control referred to in point 15 of Article 36 of this Act.

(2) The Agency may, by means of a decision, impose one or more measures referred to in the
preceding paragraph of this Article insofar as this is necessary to eliminate the reason for the violation
of requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of Aut.

(3) If the decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article is executed forcibly, individual
financial penalties in the forcible execution procedure shall not exceed EUR 100,000, notwithstanding
the rules of the act governing general adstrative procedures.

(4) When the reason for the violation of the requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 and 64
cannot be eliminated by measures, as referred to in this Article, the Agency shall initiate a procedure
to test the conditions fahe certificate.



Subsection 2: Certification and designation of electricity TSO

Article 67
(Certificate)

(1) The electricity TSO shall be certified.
(2) A certified electricity TSO is one that holds a certificate.

(3) The Agency shall find in theertification procedure whether the entity requesting a certificate
complies with the criteria set out in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act for an electricity TSO.

Article 68
(Application for certificate)

(1) The certification procedure shall comroemwith the submission by the transmission system owner
or operator of a complete application for certification. The application shall be considered complete
when the evidence on compliance with the requirements referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 and 64 of
this Act is attached to the application.

(2) After receiving a complete application for certification, the Agency shall issue an acknowledgment
of receipt of a complete request for certification and information specifying the conditions for the
applicaton of a tacit decision on the certification.

(3) The Agency shall decide on the request within four months of receiving a complete application. If,
by the date of expiry of this period, the Agency fails to serve a relevant decision on the interested
party, the certificate shall be deemed to have been granted.

(4) The period for issuing the decision shall be suspended when either the certification procedure or
the implementation of a regulation serving as a basis for the Agency's decision have beeeaduspend

(5) It shall not be possible to claim reinstatement of the previous state of affairs during a certification
procedure.

(6) In the case of the assumption referred to in the third paragraph of this Article, the complete
application and the acknowledgnt of its receipt after expiry of the tidfienit referred to in the

second paragraph of Article 69 shall be regarded as meaning that a certificate has been granted, unless
a negative decision is issued by the Agency.

(7) The time limit for filing rel@ant legal remedies against the certificate having legal validity on the
basis of the preceding paragraph shall commence on the day following the expiry of the time limit
specified in the second paragraph of Article 69.

(8) A tacit decision on certifiteon as referred to in the sixth paragraph of this Article shall not be
applicable in procedures based on extraordinary legal remedies.

(9) The electricity TSO and undertakings performing the functions of production and supply shall
communicate to the Agncy and the European Commission any information that these bodies request
for the purpose of performing their tasks in the certification procedure.



(10) In the certification procedure, the Agency shall protect the confidentiality of commercially
sensitve information.

Article 69
(Communication to the European Commission)

(1) A decision by the Agency or tacit decision on the certification referred to in the third paragraph of
the preceding Article shall be communicated without delay to the Europeami€sion, including alll
relevant information relating to the decision.

(2) A decision by the Agency or a tacit decision on certification as referred to in the third paragraph of
the preceding Article shall take effect after the European Commissionlheseatean opinion or after

the expiry of the time limit referred to in the first paragraph of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No
714/2009.

Article 70
(Certification in relation to third countries)

(1) Where certification is requested by a transmissistegy owner or an electricity TSO which is
controlled by a person or persons from a country or from countries that are not European Union
members (hereinafter: third country) or who comes from a third country or countries, the certification
procedure and sting of conditions for the certificate shall be subject to the provisions of Articles 67,
68, 69 and 71, unless provided otherwise. A third country shall also be deemed a European Union
Member State which is subject to the derogation referred to in &aitlof Directive 2009/72/EC.

(2) The Agency shall immediately notify the Commission of receiving a request and of any
circumstances that would result in a person or persons from a third country or third countries acquiring
control referred to in pointSLof Article 36 of a transmission system or an electricity TSO.

(3) The electricity TSO shall immediately notify the Agency of any circumstances that would result in
a person or persons from a third country or third countries acquiring control ofraiisios system
or an electricity TSO as referred to in point 15 of Article 36 of this Act.

(4) The certification procedure under this Article does not include the application of a tacit decision on
the certification referred to in Article 68 of this Act.

(5) In the certification procedure, the entity requesting a certificate referred to in the first paragraph of

this Article shall prove that it complies with the criteria in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act, and

that granting certification will not fiwat risk the security of the energy supply of the Republic of

Slovenia, some other European Union Member State or the European Union. In considering this, the

Agency shall take into account:

- the rights and obligations of the European Union with resjoettiat third country arising under
international law, including any agreement concluded with one or more third countries to which
the European Union is a party and which addresses the issues of security of energy supply;

- the rights and obligations of thHdember State with respect to that third country arising under
agreements concluded with it, insofar as they are in compliance with the European Union law; and

- other specific facts and circumstances of the case and the third country concerned.

(6) The Agery shall adopt a draft decision within four months from the date of receiving the request
and shall immediately notify the European Commission of the request and of all relevant information
with respect to it.



(7) Prior to adopting the decision on cectition, the Agency shall seek an opinion from the European
Commission on whether the interested party complies with the prohibitions from Articles 60, 61, 63
and 64 of this Act and whether granting certification can put at risk the security of the Buropea
Uni onds energy supply.

(8) In the certification procedure under this Article, the Agency shall adopt a decision within two
mont hs of the expiry of the period for the deliwv
compliance with the sixth paragraphAticle 11 of Directive 2009/72/EC and shall take the fullest

account of the Commission's opinion. The Agency shathediatelynotify the Commission of the

decision,and provide all the relevant information regardingdéesion.

(9) The Agency may rebke to grant certification if this would put at risk the security of the energy
supply of the Republic of Slovenia or another European Union Member State.

(10) The Agencyod6s final decision and the Commiss
|l i st Republike Slovenije. Where the final deci si
reasoning of the Agency underlying its decision shall be published with that decision.

Article 71
(Procedure for testing conditions for the certificate)

(1) The Agency shall monitor the compliance of the electricity TSO with the requirements referred to
in Articles 60, 61, 63 and 64 of this Act. The Agency shall initiate the procedure for testing the
conditions for the certificatex officio,if:

- it receivesa natification from the electricity TSO referred to in the second paragraph of Article 65
of this Act;

- itis acquainted with the planned transaction referred to in the third paragraph of Article 65;

- it finds that reasonable grounds exist for believing thalanned change in rights or influence
over transmission system owners or electricity TSO may lead to a violation of the requirements
referred to in Articles 60, 61, 63 or 64 of this Act, in accordance with the fourth paragraph of
Article 66 of this Act;

- suchis a reasoned request from the European Commission.

(2) The procedure for testing the conditions for the certificate shall be subject to the provisions of this
Act concerning the regular certification procedure, unless provided otherwise by tbis. Art

(3) The assumption referred to in the second paragraph of Article 68 shall apply in the procedure for
testing conditions for the certificate only in the case referred to in the first and fourth indents of the
first paragraph of this Article. The femnonth period for enforcing a tacit decision on certification

shall commence on the day that the Agency receives notification from an electricity TSO or a request
of the European Commission.

(4) The Agency shall, by way of a decision:
decide on the comiaince of the planned transaction with the requirements referred to in Articles
62, 63, 65 and 66 of this Act;

- confirm a certificate;

- withdraw a certificate.

(5) The withdrawal of a certificate shall take effect on the day the decision becomes final.

Article 72
(Designation of electricity TSO)



(1) If, after the decision on the certification becomes final or after the tacit decision on certification
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 68 of this Act, a legal or natural person meets the
requirenents referred to in the first and second indents of the third paragraph of Article 55 of this Act,
such person shall, on a proposal from the Agency, be designated as an electricity TSO by way of
Government decision.

(2) The Government, on a propbfam the Agency, and based on a final decision establishing non
compliance with meeting the requirements, shall annul the decision on the designation of an electricity
TSO when it finds that the electricity TSO fails to meet any of the requiremente fpetformance of
electricity TSO functions as referred to in the third paragraph of Article 55 of this Act, and when any
such requirement cannot be expected to be met within a reasonable time.

(3) The decision on the designation or annulment of a datsgnshall be published in the Official
Journal of the European Union and in Uradni list Republike Slovenije, and communicated to the
European Commission.

Article 73
(Measures if the electricity TSO ceases to implement its functions)

(1) If any requirenent for carrying out the functions of electricity TSO referred to in the third

paragraph of Article 55 of this Act is not met and cannot be expected to be met within a reasonable

time, or if the electricity TSO ceases to carry out the functions of eliégffiSO and cannot be

expected to resume these functions within a reasonable time, the Agency shall issue a decision that:

- designates an electricity TSO in the Republic of Slovenia or any other European Union Member
State to temporarily undertake the ftinns of the electricity TSO in the transmission system that
failed to meet the requirements or ceased to carry out the functions of the electricity TSO;

- lays down the conditions under which the owner oowwoers shall be obliged to lease the
transmissiorsystem for use to the electricity TSO envisaged to undertake the activities under the
previous indent of this paragraph and the time limit for the owner -ome@rs to comply with
this obligation;

- decides on other issues of the relationship betweenvihercor ceowners of the transmission
system and the operator referred to in the first indent of this paragraph in connection with
temporarily carrying out the functions of the electricity TSO.

(2) The operator referred to in the first indent of the pieeparagraph shall perform the functions of
an electricity TSO until these are undertaken by another electricity TSO that meets the requirements
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 55 of this Act.

(3) If the owner or cawners of the transmigs system fail to ensure, within one year of the final
decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, that the functions of electricity TSO are
resumed in their transmission system by an electricity TSO that meets the requirements ogferred t
the third paragraph of Article 55 of this Act, while the operation of this transmission system is
necessary for a secure and reliable electricity supply in the Republic of Slovenia or a part of its
territory, or in the case of an interconnector, tlyeicy shall propose to the Republic of Slovenia as
the beneficiary of the expropriation that it initiate the expropriation procedure or procedure to restrict
ownership rights.

(4) The expropriation or restriction of ownership rights referred to in treegieg paragraph shall be
for the public benefit.



Section 3: Provision of ancillary services

Article 74
(Imposing the obligation to conclude a contract for the provision of ancillary services)

(1) When the electricity TSO fails to provide sufficienti#lary services in the market (secondary
regulations with secondary reserve, reserve to the amount of the largest production unit, black start
and voltage regulation when necessary) or when it fails to purchase them on competitive terms, the
Agency follonving a request from the electricity TSO may, without prejudice to concluded supply
contracts, issue a decision requiring one or several producers or customers of electricity that can, in
view of technical and economic criteria, provide appropriate questfiancillary services on the

most favourable terms (hereinafter referred to in this Article as person liable) to conclude a contract
immediately for the provision of ancillary services with the electricity TSO.

(2) The absence of competitive conditi@ssreferred to in the preceding paragraph shall be
established, especially in view of the structure of the relevant market, number of providers in the
market, rigidity of prices offered, barriers to entry to the market, and in view of other criteriaabn wh
effective competition depends.

(3) With the decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, the Agency, based on the
methodology referred to in the fourth paragraph of this Article, shall determine the type, price and
guantity of ancllry services, the duration of the contract and the time limit for concluding the
contract.

(4) The Agency shall issue a general act determining the methodology for pricing ancillary services. In
determining the methodology, the Agency shall take intowaat the prices of ancillary service

provision, including a reasonable rate of return on all investments with consideration of the risks
involved. In so doing, the Agency may also consider the prices offered for comparable ancillary
services provided bytler electricity TSOs in the region.

(5) In the procedure for issuing the decision, the Agency may request from the person liable any data
necessary for the decision on the electricity TSO request referred to in the first paragraph of this
Article.

(6) If it is absolutely necessary for the security of electricity supplies that ancillary services be
provided to the electricity TSO before the procedure is concluded, the Agency shall issue a temporary
decision temporarily regulating the relations in acaom with this Article. The procedure for issuing

the temporary decision in accordance with this Article shall be subject to the provisions of the General
Admi ni strative Pr ocedur iofficial donsglidhtechteky 126/07,i65/48 R S,
and 8/10; hereinafter: ZUP), except provision of the second paragraph of Article 221 of ZUP.

(7) If the contract is not concluded for reasons caused by the person liable, a fine in accordance with
the rules of the ZUP on the forcible execution of admiaiiste decisions shall be imposed on the

person liable. Notwithstanding the provision of the third paragraph of Article 298 of the General
Administrative Procedure Act, the first fine concerning forcible execution shall not exceed EUR
100,000.

(8) A pesson liable acting contrary to a decision imposing a measure under this Article shall have to
compensate the electricity market participants and the electricity TSO for any damage suffered as a
consequence thereof.



(9) If the Agency imposes an obligation the person liable pursuant to this Article, the person liable
shall have the right to demand reasonable compensation from the Republic of Slovenia if they suffer
damage arising from the implementation of the measure.

Article 75
(Purchase of resengower)

(1) To the extent required in the interest of providing reliable ancillary services and conditioned by
objective technical reasons, such as the technical limits of the transmission system or limits of cross
border lines, the electricity TSO shphovide reserve power from the reserve capacities available that
are located within the control area for the secondary regulation of the transmission system of the
Republic of Slovenia.

(2) When providers of production units located outside the conmtzalrmanaged by the electricity

TSO participate in a tender for the purchase of reserve capacity, they shall demonstrate the following

in the contract award procedure:

- that the scope of quantities of ancillary services they offer includes-tmooder transission
capacities on the borders between different control areas,

- that the scope of reserve capacity offered is intended solely for the provision of tendered needs for
reserve power (prohibition of multiple sales of the same capacities to different etstcand

- that they meet the minimum requirements concerning the technical competence for providing
reserve power as defined by the Network Code.

(3) Prior to selecting the candidate referred to in the preceding paragraph, the electricity TSO shall
verify the technical competence and other indicators listed in the tender. If the accuracy of the data on
the technical competence from the selected tender cannot be verified by other methods, such as
certificates on the conformity of technical equipment ofddwedidate issued by official authorised
institutions, an inspection and testing of production capacities shall be carried out by authorised
representatives of the electricity TSO. In the case of reasonable doubts about the fairness of the
contract of theselected bidder, the electricity TSO shall request information on the leased reserve
capacities of other customers from competent system operators in other countries or from the
electricity TSO from which the reserve power is provided.

(4) If the scope oappropriate reserve capacities from existing production units does not suffice to
provide sufficient reserve power for the production of balancing energy necessary for the secure
operation of the system, the electricity TSO may stimulate investmentsiiesbrve capacities
required by means of a lostgrm agreement on the lease of reserve power from the new production
unit.

Section 4: Confidentiality obligations of electricity TSO and transmission system owners
Article 76

(Confidentiality obligatios)

(1) An electricity TSO shall be obliged to preserve the confidentiality of commercially sensitive
information obtained in the course of carrying out its business, regardless of whether this is defined as
a business secret or not.

(2) An electricity TSO shall be obliged to prevent the discriminatory disclosure of commercially
advantageous information about its own activities; in particular, it shall not disclose commercially



sensitive information to other parts of the undertaking that are not engagledtricity TSO
activities, except where and to the extent that this is strictly necessary to carry out a legal transaction.

(3) The transmission system owner and, in the case of a combined operator, the electricity DSO, and
the other parts of the undiaking that are not involved in electricity TSO activities, shall not use joint
services, such as joint legal services, except for purely administrative or IT functions.

(4) The provisions of this Article shall not prejudice the obligation to disclédsamation to the
Agency and competent bodies.

Article 77
(Prohibition of misuse of information and duty of publication)

(1) An electricity TSO shall not, in the context of sales or purchases of electricity by related
undertakings, misuse commerciallyhsiive information obtained from third parties in the context of
providing or negotiating access to the system.

(2) An electricity TSO shall make public any data necessary for effective competition and the efficient
functioning of the market. This obligan shall be without prejudice to the obligation to protect
commercially sensitive information as referred to in the preceding Article.

Chapter IV: DISTRIBUTION

Section 1: Service of general economic interesectricity DSO

Article 78
(Tasks ofservice of general economic interest)

(1) Electricity DSO activity shall be an obligatory state service of general economic
interest.

(2) The electricity DSO service of general economic interest shall include:
1. secure, reliable and efficient operatiorand maintenance of the distribution system;
2. development of the distribution system, taking into consideration:
T anticipated needs of system users;
T requirements concerning safe and reliable system operation; and
T guidelines from the development pla of the electricity DSO referred to in
Article 30 of this Act;
3. long-term ability of the distribution system to meet reasonable demands for
connection to the system and energy distribution;
4. security of energy supply through adequate capacity and netwk reliability;
5. the management of electricity flows in the system and ancillary services;
6. data that must be provided to system users and suppliers to enable them to
effectively conclude supply contracts and exercise the right to connection;



7. forecasts ofelectricity consumption and necessary energy sources by means of a
comprehensive planning method, taking due account of saving measures taken by
consumers;

8. provision of information to any other operator necessary to ensure the secure and
efficient operation, coordinated development and interoperability of the
interconnected system;

9. quality of supply in accordance with minimum standards;

10. purchase of electricity to cover losses, and ancillary services in the distribution
system in transparent, non-discriminatory and market-based procedures.

(3) When planning the development of the distribution system, energy efficiency and/or
consumption-side management measures or distributed generation that might supplant
the need to upgrade or replace ektricity capacity shall be considered by the electricity
DSO.

(4) Upon prior approval by the Government, the electricity DSO may temporarily
transfer the tasks referred to in the second paragraph of this Article to a natural or legal
person that has appopriate staff and technical equipment to carry out the transferred
tasks, provided that this entity does not carry out the activities of electricity supply or
generation. This entity shall ensure the electricity DSO direct and permanent access to
all data used and obtained for the purpose of carrying out electricity DSO tasks.

(5) Where the tasks are transferred to the entity referred to in the preceding paragraph,
the persons employed by this entity may conduct the procedures referred to in Articles
147and 465 of this Act and take decisions within the framework of their expert tasks for
the exercise of public authority of the electricity DSO provided they fulfil the
requirements to conduct administrative procedures and take decisions.

(6) The electricity DSO shall inspect the implementation of the transferred tasks on a
guarterly basis, and the natural or legal person referred to in the fourth paragraph of
this Article shall allow the electricity DSO comprehensive access for the purpose of
inspection.

(7) The electricity DSO shall procure the electricity needed to carry out its activities
according to transparent, norrdiscriminatory and market based procedures.

(8) The electricity DSO shall refrain from discriminating between individual system
users orsuppliers, particularly in favour of its related undertakings.

(9) The electricity DSO shall be responsible for developing the public infrastructure of
fasti charging stations for electric vehicles.

Article 79
(Funding of service of general economic rest)

Electricity DSO activity shall be funded from network charges and other revenue for the
provision of the service of general economic interest.



Article 80
(Territory covered by service of general economic interest)

(1) The state shall ensure thelectricity DSO service of general economic interest in a
part or throughout the territory of the state in a manner stipulated by the act governing
the services of general economic interest.

(2) No concession fee or other payment of equal effect shall ddearged for the
concession referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 81
(Requirements for performing electricity DSO activity)

Electricity DSO activity shall be performed by a person owning or leasing a distribution
system and holding a concessiagranted by the Government for the provision of the
service of general economic interest concerned.

Article 82
(Distribution system leasing and payment for implementing tasks)

(1) An electricity DSO not owning a distribution system, or a part theréafpablic

character shall conclude a contract with its owner or the person managing or holding the
property with a view to regulating all the issues related to using the system to carry out the
tasks of electricity DSO under this Act. The contract slegjulate in particular the scope and
purpose of using the system, the lease payment and/or other payments made by the electricity
DSO, the conditions and methods of both routine and major network maintenance work and
other issues enabling the electricity@ % perform its tasks effectively under this Act. The
Agency shall supervise the content of the contract and its implementation in terms of its
compliance with the general acts issued by the Agency. The system or a part thereof shall be
deemed to have auplic character if required to supply more than one system user. Common
parts intended to supply individual system users in residential and other buildings with several
individual parts and the connection line in the common ownership of the owners of the
building concerned shall not be deemed to be of a public character.

(2) The contracts concluded by the contracting parties may not provide for the payment of
lease and/or payment for carrying out tasks transferred by the electricity DSO to the lessor
purswant to the fourth paragraph of Article 78 in the amount exceeding that specified by the
Agency by way of a decision on a regulatory framework, in accordance with Article 123 of
this Act. Any contractual provisions contrary to this decision shall be ndivaial, and in

lieu thereof, the decision of the Agency on the regulatory framework shall apply to the
obligations of the parties regarding the payment of lease and/or services.

(3) If the electricity DSO and the owner or other person managing or hodirgystem or a

part thereof fail to reach an agreement to conclude a lease contract within three months after
the operator established that such system or its part existed and informed the Agency and the
owner thereof, the Agency shall, upon the reqaoé#te electricity DSO, impose on the

owner or other person managing or holding property (hereinafter: the person liable) the



obligation to lease the system or part of it for use to the electricity DSO. The decision shall
include a list of facilities, ingllations and other devices subject to this measure.

(4) In its request to impose the obligation referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
electricity DSO shall specify the facilities, installation and other devices subject to the
obligation and listhie unique identification marks used in dealings with them. If it is not
possible to identify the aforementioned in artb@spot examination or in any other way not
interfering with the rights of the person liable, the Agency shall obtain a court decision
allowing it access to the premise, facilities, land, equipment and installation of the person
liable without his approval. The costs and any damage arising from the access shall be borne
by the person liable.

(5) If the aforementioned devices are lodaba the premises and/or land not pertaining to the
person liable, the owner or the holder of these premises or land shall allow the electricity DSO
to enter them, provided that the devices of the person liable which are subject to the procedure
referred o in the third paragraph of this Article are located there. Should the person liable

deny entry, a court decision against, and at the expense of, this person shall be obtained and
the visit carried out without his approval.

(6) If the electricity DSO doesot have the appropriate number of staff to allow it to take over

for its use the system or part thereof at the time when the request referred to in the third
paragraph of this Article is submitted, or if taking it over for use is not feasible for stiNestan
reasons, the Agency shall, upon request of the electricity DSO, impose upon thé& owner

other person managing or holding the property and providing, at the time the request was
submitted, the distribution system maintenance and operation seretmssary for the

provision of the service of general economic inteirdbie obligation to continue to provide

these services under the conditions and in the manner laid down by the Agency in the decision
if necessary for the smooth and safe operatiohetystem. In such cases, the types of

services and conditions for their provision shall be specified by the Agency in its decision.

(7) If the person liable fails to act in compliance with an enforceable decision imposing the
measures under this Articla fine in accordance with the rules of the General Administrative
Procedure Act on the forcible execution of administrative decisions shall be imposed on him.
Notwithstanding the provision of paragraph three of Article 298 of the General
Administrative Pocedure Act, the first fine concerning forcible execution shall not exceed
EUR 50,000.

(8) A person liable that acts contrary to a decision imposing measures under this Article shall
have to compensate the users of the system, the suppliers andtii@tglBSO for any
damage suffered as a consequence thereof.

(9) The person liable encumbered with obligations under this Article shall have the right to
receive payment for the use of its system in the amount of the lease payment specified by the
Ageng by way of a decision on the regulatory framework or the decision referred to in the
third paragraph of this Article. The same applies to the payment for provided maintenance and
operation services related to the performance of the tasks of the ele@18€ the payment

may be fixed by the Agency in the decision referred to in the sixth paragraph of this Article.

(10) The measure taken by the Agency referred to in the third paragraph of this Article shall
remain in force until the leasing or otheru@gd contract is concluded, or the expropriation



procedure referred to in the fourth paragraph of Article 83 of this Act is finally concluded, or
the electricity DSOs own system is built and all system users in the area concerned are
connected to it.

Article 83
(Measures in case of cessation of electricity DSO activity)

(1) If any requirement for performing electricity DSO activity as referred to in Article 81 of
this Act is not met and cannot be expected to be met within a reasonable time, or if the
electricity DSO ceases to perform electricity DSO activity and cannot be expected to resume
the activity within a reasonable time, the Agency shall issue a decision:

T designating an electricity DSO in the Republic of Slovenia or any other European Union
Member State to temporarily undertake electricity DSO activity in the distribution system of
the operator that failed to meet the requirements or ceased to perform electricity TSO activity;
I setting out the conditions under which the owner eowaers shihbe obliged to lease the
distribution system for use to the electricity DSO envisaged to undertake the activity under
the previous indent of this paragraph and the time limit for complying with this obligation;

I decide other matters in the relationshgiween the owner or emvners of the distribution
system and the operator referred to in the first indent of this paragraph in connection with the
temporary performance of electricity DSO activity.

(2) The operator referred to in the first indent ofpheceding paragraph shall perform
electricity DSO activity until it is undertaken by an electricity DSO that meets the
requirements referred to in the first paragraph of Article 81 of this Act.

(3) If the owner or cawners of the distribution system f&al ensure, within one year of the
final decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, that electricity DSO activity
will be resumed on their distribution system by an electricity DSO fulfilling the requirements
referred to in Article 81 othis Act, the State as beneficiary of the expropriation shall initiate
the expropriation procedure or procedure to restrict ownership rights.

(4) The expropriation or restriction of ownership rights referred to in the preceding paragraph
shall be for theublic benefit.

Section 2: Unbundling of electricity DSOs
Article 84
(Functional unbundling)
(1) An electricity DSO that is part of a vertically integrated undertaking shall be independent
in terms of its legal form, organisation, decision makingiafamation system from other

activities not relating to distribution.

(2) The aforementioned requirement shall not create an obligation to separate the ownership
of assets of the distribution system from the vertically integrated undertaking.

(3) The povisions of this Article and Article 85 shall not apply to an electricity DSO having
fewer than 1,000 customers connected.



Article 85
(Requirements regarding functional unbundling)

(1) The electricity DSO shall perform electricity DSO activity as arsdpadegal entity not
engaged in other activities.

(2) In addition to the requirements referred to in the preceding paragraph, an electricity DSO
that is part of a vertically integrated undertaking shall also be independent in terms of its
organisation ath decision making from other activities not related to distribution. For this
purpose, it shall ensure the implementation of the following measures:

(a) the persons responsible for the management of the electricity DSO shall not participate in
the compangtructures of the integrated electricity undertaking responsible, directly or
indirectly, for the dayto-day operation of the production, transmission or supply of
electricity;

(b) the professional interests of the persons responsible for managing theigi&SO shall
be taken into account in a manner that ensures their ability to act independently;
the electricity DSO shall have effective decisimaking rights, independently of the
integrated electricity undertaking, with respect to the assets aegés®perate,
maintain and develop the network.

(3) In order to fulfil the tasks referred to in point c) of the preceding paragraph, the electricity
DSO shall have at its disposal the necessary resources, including human, technical, financial
and physial resources. The parent company shall approve the annual financial plan or any
equivalent instrument and set limits on the levels of indebtedness of the electricity DSO as its
subsidiary; the economic and management supervisory rights of the parent gampan

respect of returns on assets shall also be maintained. The parent company shall not be
permitted to issue instructions on the deyday operations or individual decisions concerning
the construction or upgrading of distribution lines that do notexktiee terms of the

approved financial plan, or any equivalent instrument.

(4) The electricity DSO shall prepare a compliance programme that specifies measures to
prevent discriminatory conduct, and shall ensure appropriate supervision of its
implementatbn. The compliance programme shall lay down the specific obligations of
employees to meet this objective. The electricity DSO shall submit the compliance
programme to the Agency for approval before the programme enters into force.

(5) The electricity DSGhall have a fully independent compliance officer who shall have

access to all the information of the electricity DSO and any affiliated undertaking that is
necessary to perform his task. Measures to ensure the independence of the compliance officer
and he effectiveness of his supervision shall be set out in the compliance programme.

(6) The person or body responsible for supervising the compliance programme shall send the

annual report on the measures taken to the Agency; the report shall be published.

Article 86
(Avoiding distortion of competition)



(1) If the electricity DSO is part of a vertically integrated undertaking, the Agency shall
monitor its activities so that the DSO cannot take advantage of its vertical integration to
distort competition.

(2) In their communications and branding, vertically integrated electricity DSOs shall not
create confusion with respect of the separate identity of the supply branch of the vertically
integrated undertaking.

Section 3: Confidentiality obligations tie electricity DSO

Article 87
(Confidentiality obligations regarding information)

(1) The electricity DSO shall preserve the confidentiality of commercially sensitive
information obtained in the course of carrying out its business, and prevent coatiynerci
advantageous information on its own activities from being disclosed in a manner that would
discriminate between distribution system users.

(2) The electricity DSO shall not misuse any commercially sensitive information obtained
from third parties thiarelates to the sale or purchase of electricity through related
undertakings in the context of performing electricity DSO activity.

(3) The provisions of this Article shall not prejudice the obligation to disclose information to
the Agency and competebodies.

Section 4: Combined operator

Article 88
(Combined operator)

Notwithstanding Article 84 of this Act, electricity TSO activity and electricity DSO activity
may be performed by the same legal or natural person, provided it complies with Aflicles 6
61, 63 and 64 of this Act.

Section 5: Closed distribution systems
Article 89
(General provision)
The distribution of electricity within small and closed electricity distribution systems which
obtain the status of a closed distribution system ao@ance with this Act shall not be

deemed an electricity DSO service of general economic interest as referred to in Article 78 of
this Act.

Article 90



(Conditions for acquiring the status of a closed distribution system)

(1) An electricity distributio system with a single network supply point directly connected to

the transmission system distributing electricity within a geographically confined industrial,
commercial or shared services site, and as a rule not supplying household customers, shall
obtan the status of a closed distribution system if:

T for specific technical or safety reasons, the operations or the production process of the final
customer of that system are integrated; or

T that system distributes electricity primarily to the owneomerator of the system or their

related undertakings. This requirement shall be considered as satisfied when the owner and its
related undertakings make at least 80% of the total yearly electricity consumption and
production.

(2) Incidental use by a snhalumber of households having an employment or other
relationship with the owner of the system shall not preclude the electricity distribution system
referred to in the preceding paragraph from obtaining the status of a closed distribution
system.

Article 91
(Authorisation of closed distribution system status)

(1) The Agency shall issue the authorisation for closed distribution system status on the basis
of a request from the owner or other person managing the closed distribution system
(hereinafter: th closed distribution system operator).

(2) The authorisation referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be issued for a period of ten
years.

(3) The operative part of the authorisation of the closed distribution system status shall also
include, in ddition to the elements prescribed for written decisions by the General
Administrative Procedure Act, the description of geographically confined site, clearly
delineated from the remaining area.

(4) An electricity DSO performing DSO activity in a geodrmal area where a closed
distribution system is located shall participate in the procedure for issuing the authorisation as
a secondary participant.

(5) Upon a request from the closed distribution system operator, the Agency may extend the
authorisatiorby ten years at a time, subject to satisfying all the requirements for obtaining the
status of a closed distribution system applicable upon the expiry of authorisation validity.

Article 92
(Consequences of having closed distribution system status)

(1) Subject to the conditions of this Act, the electricity TSO shall provide to the closed
distribution system operator access to the transmission system in accordance with this Act.



(2) A closed distribution system operator shall enjoy the same rightss dund

responsibilities as stipulated for the electricity DSO by this Act and its implementing
regulations, except as approved by a decision of the Agency in accordance with Article 93 of
this Act.

(3) The status of closed distribution system shall netlpde a final customer located within
the geographically confined site from requesting and being granted access to the distribution
or transmission system in accordance with this Act.

Article 93
(Exemptions referring to a closed distribution systenratpe)

(1) Upon a request from the closed distribution system operator, the Agency may decide:

T that the closed distribution system operator shall not be obliged to follow non
discriminatory and markdiased procedures when purchasing the electricitgas to cover
energy losses and reserve capacity in its system;

T that the network charges within the closed distribution system shall not be set by the
Agency.

(2) Notwithstanding the decision referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall set
the network charges upon the request of the closed distribution system user.

(3) The Agency shall specify criteria for setting network charges for closed distribution
systems by way of a general act and by means of the methodology contained in thentiocume
on methodology referred to in Article 116 of this Act.

Article 94
(Transfer of authorisation to third parties)

(1) The closed distribution system operator may transfer the authorisation of the closed
distribution system status to a new closed distrdn system operator subject to the approval
by the Agency.

(2) The authorisation referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be issued upon a request
from the transferor or transferee of the authorisation, which shall indicate:

T that the transfereaulfils the conditions for carrying out the functions of the closed
distribution system operator;

T that the transferor and the transferee have regulated relations with customers regarding the
transfer of authorisation.

Article 95
(Reasons for withdrawg closed distribution system status)

(1) The Agency shall withdraw the status of a closed distribution system by way of a decision
issued upon the request of the closed distribution system operator or the electricity SO or
officio if requirements foclosed distribution system status under this Act are no longer
satisfied.



(2) The closed distribution system operator shall forthwith report to the Agency any change
related to the fulfilment of the requirements referred to in Article 90 of this Act.

Article 96
(Consequences of terminating closed distribution system status)

Upon the termination of the authorisation of the status of the closed distribution system, or in
cases where the request for renewal is refused by a final decision, or afteigiua dec

withdraw the closed distribution system status becomes final, the relations between the owner
of the closed distribution system and #hectricity DSO where the closed distribution system

is located shall be regulated in accordance with the gioms of Article 82 of this Act.

Chapter V: ELECTRICITY MARKET OPERATOR ACTIVITY

Article 97
(Service of general economic interest)

(1) Electricity market operator activity shall be an obligatory state service of general
economic interest.

(2) The eletricity market operator service of general economic interest shall include:

T management of the electricity market balance scheme;

T registration of agreements on balance scheme membership, operation forecasts and closed
contracts;

I balancing of the elagcity market;

T carrying out the activities of the centre for support referred to in Article 376 of this Act;

I imbalance clearing;

T clearing and settlement of transactions in connection with the tasks referred to in the
preceding indents;

T collecting,analysing and publishing data in order to ensure transparency in the electricity
market.

(3) The market operator shall perform its activity in a manner that enables fair, non
discriminatory and transparent market operations.

(4) Acting under public atiority, and in order to ensure the provision of the service of

general economic interest, the market operator shall issue the following regulations:

T rules on electricity market operations to be published in Uradni list Rep@iokenije,

subject to therior approval of the Agency.

T rules on implementing market balancing to be published in Uradni list Republike Slovenije
when they have been harmonised with the electricity TSO and subject to the prior approval of
the Agency;

T rules on the operations tife centre for support, to be published in Uradni list Republike
Slovenije, subject to the prior approval of the Government.



(5) If persons' claims are passed onto the market operator in the course of performing
activities referred to in the second paggah of this Article and the market operator assumes

the financial liabilities of the aforesaid persons to offset mutual receivables and payables, the
provisions of the regulation governing bankruptcy proceedings unauthorised offsetting

of claims orthe initiation of bankruptcy proceedings and prohibition on offsetting a

bankruptcy debtor's claims having arisen after the commencement of bankruptcy proceedings
T shall not apply to bankruptcy proceedings against those persons.

(6) The preceding paraaph of this Article shall also apply if persons' claims are passed onto
the exchange operator in the course of its energy exchange activity and exchange clearing
transactions, and the financial obligations of the aforesaid persons are assumed by the
exchamge operator to offset mutual receivables and payables.

(7) Performers of energy sector activities shall ensure that the market operator has prompt and
unlimited access to data relevant for implementing its tasks within the framework of the

market operatoservice of general economic interest. Types of data and the method of access
shall be regulated by the regulations referred to in the fourth paragraph of this Article.

Article 98
(Funding of service of general economic interest)

(1) Electricity markebperator activity shall be funded from:

T contributions for the functioning of the market operator;

I payments made by members of the balance scheme for the registration of closed contracts;
T part of the contribution for ensuring support for the prodaabibelectricity from high

efficiency cogeneration and from renewable energy sources determined on the basis of the
sevenths paragraph of Article 379 of this Act;

i other payments made by users for the use of the service of general economic interest.

(2) The contribution for the functioning of the market operator shall be earmarked to cover the
operator's expenditure for providing the service of general economic interest. The contribution
shall be paid by final consumers according to individual consumptioris and per

consumed kilowatt hour (kWh). The final customers shall pay the contribution specified
separately in the monthly network charges invoice. The person receiving the contribution
through the invoice payment shall immediately and free of ctieagsfer it in favour of the

market operator.

(3) The payments for registration of closed contracts referred to in the second indent of the

first paragraph of this Article shall be due from members of the balance scheme included in
closed contracts onefrsupply side, except in the case of providers of services of general
economic interest referred to in Articles 54, 78 and 97 of this Act and the energy stock
exchange. The payments by balance scheme members shall depend on the scope of registered
closed ontracts, excluding closed contracts for electricity imports.

(4) The level of the sources of funding referred to in the first and second indent of the first
paragraph of this Article shall be decided by the Government, taking into account the scope of
individual types of tasks of the market operator and the eligible operating costs in accordance
with the principles of rationality and efficiency of operations. The Government shall take
account of the envisaged expenditure apportioned to individual cdigribulf funding



resources exceed expenditure in a particular period, account shall be taken thereof in the next
change in resource amounts.

Article 99
(Exclusive right)

(1) As concession grantor, the Republic of Slovenia shall grant the concessooviding
the electricity market operator service of general economic interest to one market operator and
for the entire territory of the Republic of Slovenia.

(2) No concession fee or other payment of identical effect shall be charged for the concessio
referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 100
(Manner of granting a concession)

The concession for the provision of electricity market operator service of general economic
interest shall be granted in accordance with the regulations governimgesef general
economic interest and publprivate partnerships, unless particular issues are regulated
otherwise by this Act.

Article 101
(Roles in the electricity market)

(1) Market participants shall conduct electricity business activitiesifottowing manner:

T the producer: shall sell in its own name under open contract;

i the final customer: shall purchase in its own name under open contract;

T the supplier to system users: shall sell to final customers or purchase from producers under
open contract;

T the dealer: shall purchase and sell electricity under closed contract.

(2) An individual legal or natural person may simultaneously conduct activities related to
electricity in several different roles as referred to in the preceding pamagrap

(3) All concluded closed contracts necessary for electricity supply throughout the territory of
the Republic of Slovenia, including closed crossder contracts, shall be registered with the
market operator in terms of their quantity and time franteaat once a day for the following
day.

Article 102
(Balance scheme)

(1) The electricity market shall be hierarchically structured in a balance scheme in which the
relations between the balance scheme members and their respective inflow and outflow
bdance keeping are specified in a uniform manner by the balance scheme membership



agreements. The membership and structure of the balance scheme shall be established in the
balancing contracts and compensation agreements, which are regulated in degail by th
regulation referred to in the fourth paragraph of Article 97 of this Act.

(2) An individual natural or legal person may join the balance scheme as a member only
through a single balancing contract or a single compensation agreement, with the ex€eption o
the providers of services of general economic interest referred to in Articles 54, 78 and 97 of
this Act, which may, in order to carry out individual tasks of the services of general economic
interest in a transparent and economically effective mamrmaddition to the mandatory
establishment of their own balancing group also establish separate balancing groups or
subgroups. The rules for electricity market operation referred to in the first indent of the

fourth paragraph of Article 97 of this Act magwesage special statuses for balance scheme
members providing services of general economic interest under this Act.

(3) The market operator shall manage imbalance clearing in a manner and within time limits
that do not hinder the right of a final custorteeswitch supplier within the time limits
referred to in the second paragraph of Article 40 of this Act.

(4) Market participants who wish to actively conduct activities in the market and accordingly
assume the responsibilities to settle imbalancesmhadlance clearing shall be included in
the balance scheme.

(5) The market organiser shall conclude a balancing contract with the market participant and
thereupon, or on the basis of a compensation agreement, include the market participant that
fulfils the statutory requirements in the balance scheme.

(6) Balance scheme membership shall cease upon the cessation of validity of the balancing
contract or compensation agreement.

(7) For the purpose of managing the balance scheme and entering data oariegetitms

and other relations affecting the inflow and outflow balances of balance scheme members, the
market operator shall, pursuant to the second paragraph of Article 97 of this Act, establish and
keep records which include at least data concerning:

i contracts on balance scheme membership;

T operation forecasts;

i closed contracts; and

T the existence and use of crdmsder transmission capacities.

(8) A closed contract may be concluded only between two members of the balance scheme,
with the exceptin of closed crosborder contracts concluded between a balance scheme
member and a foreign market participant.

(9) An open contract may be concluded only between a balance scheme member and a legal
or natural person entitled to conclude an open corftvaet delivery point in the Republic of
Slovenia that is the subject of the contract concerned. In open contracts and closed cross
border contracts, the same legal or natural person may act as a party to the contract on both
sides.

(10) The actual consymtion of a delivery point shall be taken into account in the balance of
the member of the balance scheme to which the delivery point is affiliated.



Article 103
(Reciprocity)

The market operator may refuse or limit inclusion in the balance schemegrnouinels of
reciprocity. The market operator may decide not to grant this right to a legal person
established in a country where the right to choose a supplier freely is not available to all
consumers. The market operator may prohibit such a suppliestrpptying customers in the
Republic of Slovenia that would be unable to purchase electricity from a supplier of their
choice in the country where the supplier is established.

Article 104
(Market plan and schedule)

(1) All closed contracts shall be regiged with the market operator in the manner stipulated

by the rules on the operation of the electricity market referred to in the first indent of the
fourth paragraph of Article 97 of this Act. Using the amounts of electricity sold and purchased
under cleed contracts that are registered, the market operator shall calculate the market plan
of balance scheme members, which shall provide the basis for imbalance clearing.

(2) A daily operational delivery or consumption forecast for each delivery pointghall
submitted to the market operator in the manner stipulated in the rules for electricity market
operation referred to in the fourth paragraph of Article 97 of this Act by the balance
responsible party of a balancing group or balancing subgroup andéwaechically lower
ranking balancing subgroup to which the delivery point is affiliated.

(3) The number of delivery points of a balance scheme member shall not be limited.

(4) The market operator shall draw up a framework transmission and distribetwork

schedule based on the registered closed contracts and operational forecasts. The electricity
TSO shall prepare a final schedule by including the solutions to potential technical barriers
and the system services in the framework schedule andattiallith submit it to the market
operator for its information. The final schedule shall be the basis for the operation of the
transmission system and for the implementation of the balancing market.

Article 105
(Compulsory balancing market)

In order toensure the efficient and transparent operation of the balancing market, producers of
electricity and customers shall-operate in the balancing market with regard to the technical
parameters of their installations and relevant characteristics and ciacwest The manner of
cooperation between production and customer units in the balancing market shall be regulated
in detail by the rules on the implementation of the balancing market referred to in the fourth
paragraph of Article 97 of this Act.



Article 106
(Settlement and imbalance clearing surplus)

(1) The calculation and financial settlement of the imbalance clearing of the Balance
Responsible Parties shall be performed by the market operator.

(2) Any excess revenue over expenditure from the imbalalearing shall be earmarked to
insure and cover the market operator's risks and shall be kept on its special account. The
amount of funds earmarked to insure and cover the risks of the market operator shall be
regulated in detail by the rules for elécityy market operations referred to in the fourth
paragraph of Article 97 of this Act.

(3) The Agency shall allocate the funds in excess of those referred to in the preceding
paragraph among persons participating in the imbalance clearing relativeatbduhlecosts of
balancing incurred by the electricity TSO in the relevant year.

(4) The electricity TSO shall submit to the market operator the data on the balancing of the
electricity system of the Republic of Slovenia which gave rise to imbalancerssitle

expenses; the data shall indicate the purpose of the purchase and/or sale of electricity and the
source and/or sink of electricity.

Article 107
(Monitoring restrictive contractual practices)

(1) The market operator shall monitor the occurrencesifictive contractual practices which
may prevent large nenousehold customers from contracting simultaneously with more than
one supplier or restrict their freedom to do so, and inform the Agency and the authority
responsible for the protection of contiien of such practices.

(2) The market operator shall submit the data collected to the Agency.
(3) The market operator shall ensure the protection of commercially sensitive information
obtained in the course of performing its activities.
Chapter V.UNBUNDLING AND TRANSPARENCY OF ACCOUNTS
Article 108
(Auditing and publication of annual accounts)

(1) Electricity undertakings, whatever their system of ownership or legal form, shall draw up,
submit to audit and publish their audited annual accourasdardance with the provisions of

the act governing companies, unless otherwise provided by this Act.

(2) The electricity system operator and the lessors and maintenance entities referred to in the
first and third paragraphs of Article 121 of this Aetgardless of their size, shall draw up,



audit and publish their annual accounts and annual reports in a manner stipulated for large
companies by the act governing companies.

(3) The electricity system operator and the lessors and maintenance engtiesiref in the

first and third paragraphs of Article 121 of this Act shall submit to the Agency their unaudited
annual reports within three months of the end of the calendar year; they shall submit their
audited annual reports and auditors' reports wigight days of their receipt and/or not later
than six months after the end of the calendar year.

(4) The audit of the annual accounts shall, in particular, verify that the requirements referred
to in Article 86 of this Act concerning the avoidance otdmination and crossubsidies are
respected and that the requirements concerning the disclosure of established deviations from
the regulatory framework, referred to in the fourth and fifth paragraphs of Article 120, are
satisfied.

(5) Electricity undetiakings not legally obliged to publish their annual accounts under the act
governing companies shall keep a copy thereof at their head office that must be at the disposal
of the public.

Article 109
(Separated activities)

(1) Electricity undertakings sitl keep separate accounting records in accordance with
accounting standards; their notes to the accounts shall show separate accounts for
transmission and distribution activities, as required for the activities in question carried out by
separate undertaigs.

(2) Electricity undertaking that is also engaged in activities other than transmission or
distribution shall keep separate accounting records for activities not related to transmission or
distribution; the notes to the accounts shall accordingiyws$eparate accounts in accordance
with the first paragraph of this Article.

(3) Electricity undertakings shall show revenue and expenditure related to leasing the
transmission or distribution system in their notes to the accounts.

(4) Electricity undetiaking also engaged in other activities not related to transmission or
distribution may keep consolidated accounting records and shall show the accounts for these
activities in the notes to the accounts in accordance with the first paragraph of thes Articl

(5) The separate accounts referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article shall
include: the balance sheet, the income statement and cash flow statement.

(6) Electricity undertakings subject to the act governing the transparencyrafifingelations

and separate accounts for different activities shall also keep accounting records and
statements in accordance with the aforementioned Act, unless this is contrary to this Act.

Article 110



(Criteria for classification by activities andsdlosure of transactions with related
undertakings)

(1) The internal acts of electricity undertaking shall lay down the criteria to allocate assets and
liabilities, costs and revenue and expenditure to be observed in keeping separate accounting
records ad in drawing up separate accounts for energy sector activities.

(2) The provisions of the act governing the transparency of financial relations and separate
accounts for different activities shall be applied to establish the criteria referred to in the
preceding paragraph.

(3) The criteria referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be changed only in exceptional
circumstances; the changes shall be justified and explained in the annual report.

(4) The notes to the accounts of an electricity undertpkhall disclose all individual
transactions with related undertakings exceeding EUR 100,000.

(5) In addition to the separate accounts for energy sector activities subject to separate
disclosure requirements, the notes to the accounts of electriceytakicigs shall fully

disclose the criteria referred to in the first paragraph of this Article. The suitability of criteria
and their proper use shall be audited annually by an auditor, who shall draw up a special
report.

(6) The Agency shall monitor treiitability and correct application of the criteria in
accordance with the provisions of the act governing supervision.
Article 111
(Right of access to accounts)
(1) The Agency shall have the right to access the accounts of electricity undertakings kep
accordance with Articles 108, 109 and 110 of this Act, to the extent necessary to carry out its

tasks.

(2) Should the electricity undertaking refuse access to its accounts, the Agency shall inspect
them pursuant to the provisions of this Act conaggraupervision by the Agency.

(3) The Agency shall protect the confidentiality of commercially sensitive information

obtained by accessing the accounts. This provision shall not prevent the Agency from

transmitting relevant information to a competentestatthority, local community authority or

bearer of public authority if required to exercise their powers in accordance with the law.
Chapter VII: ACCESS TO THE SYSTEM

Section 1: Organising access to the system

Subsection 1: General provisions reguigtaccess to the system



Article 112
(Principle of regulated access to the system)

(1) An electricity supply shall be provided in accordance with the principle of regulated third
party access to the system. The system costs shall be paid by the ssteonuhe basis of
the previously published tariff rates and in accordance with Article 138 of this Act.

(2) Persons who wish to become system users and electricity system operators shall have the
right to be connected to the system in accordancethatieriteria set out by the Network
Code.

(3) The connection approval referred to in Article 147 of this Act issued by the electricity
system operator shall determine the scope of the right to use the system by the system user or
electricity system opetar concerned by identifying their highest connected load or other
operational constraint.

(4) A system use contract within the limits referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be
concluded by the electricity system operator and the system useioghercommencement

of electricity delivery to the system or electricity consumption from the system or prior to
connection to the system. The electricity system operator shall inform the system user of the
rights and obligations regarding choice of sugpéind provide final customers with the list of
suppliers to final customers prior to concluding the system use contract.

(5) A system user shall also conclude an electricity supply contract prior to connection to the
system.

Article 113
(Refusal to conect)

(1) The electricity system operator may refuse the system user a connection or operational
constraint reduction on account of lack of capacity or because the increased consumption
and/or power delivery would prevent the operator from providingss\wf general interest
referred to in Articles 54 and 78 of this Act.

(2) The electricity system operator shall provide substantiated reasons for refusing the
connection or operational constraint reduction, based on objective and technically and
economially justified criteria, and shall forthwith inform the person requesting a connection
or reduction of operational constraint thereof in writing. The operator shall provide the person
in question with access to all documents connected with the refusal.

(3) Any disputes concerning the connection or reduction of operational constraint refusal shall
be settled by the Agency, having regard to the procedure set out in Articles 414 to 419 of this
Act.

(4) An electricity system operator refusing a connectioreduction of operational constraint
due to a lack of capacity or lack of connections shall be obliged to make necessary
enhancements to the system upon the request of the person in question, and as far as it is



economic to do so, or when this person lisha or with other persons, willing to pay for such
enhancements.

(5) If the negotiations between the electricity system operator and the person referred to in the
preceding paragraph fail to result in an agreement to make enhancements, the maiter shall
settled, upon request of the person concerned, by the Agency, which shall follow the
procedure set out in Articles 414 to 419 of this Act and shall lay down the conditions for
enhancing the system capacities or refuse the request.

Subsection 2: The syem use contract and contract of electricity supply to final customers

Article 114
(System use contract)

(1) If the electricity system operator does not refuse the request for a connection or reduction
of operational constraint in accordance with thecpding Article of this Act, it shall ensure

the user the use of the transmission or distribution system by concluding a system use contract
which shall bind the user to pay the network charges and the electricity system operator to
enable the user to detr electricity to the system and/or to consume electricity from the

system within the established operational constraint. A change in the delivery point

operational constraint in accordance with Article 147 of this Act shall give rise to a change in
the system use contract.

(2) The system use contract with the electricity DSO shall be concluded either by the system
user or, on its behalf, by the supplier.

(3) If the system user is not a holder of the connection approval referred to in Article 147 of
this Act, the system use contract shall be subject to the consent of the person holding the
aforementioned approval; the consent shall indicate that the approving entity allows the
system user to use its delivery point.

(4) The obligation to pay the netwotkarges for a particular delivery point may be assumed

by the supplier instead of, and in agreement with, the system user; in this case, a single bill
shall be issued to the user by the supplier. The electricity system operator shall have the right
to refuse to conclude the contract on the payment of the network charges with the supplier if
the latter fails to provide, upon the request of the electricity system operator, appropriate
insurance to cover the assumed liability.

(5) Detailed rules on concludy and implementing system use contracts and the method of
network charge payments shall be laid down by the electricity system operator in the Network
Code.

Article 115
(Supply contract)



(1) The supplier and the system user shall conclude an elgcsugiply contract specifying
the balancing affiliation of any individual delivery point of the user (hereinafter: the open
contract).

(2) If the system user is not a holder of the connection approval referred to in Article 147 of
this Act, the supply adtract shall be subject to the consent of the person holding the
aforementioned approval; the consent shall indicate that the approving entity allows the
system user to consume electricity through its delivery point.

(3) Only a supplier that is a membéitioe balance scheme may conclude an open contract
with the system user.

(4) The system user shall have an open supply contract concluded for any one delivery point.

(5) Only one open contract shall be concluded with one supplier at any one time déoieany
distribution system delivery point. The system user may simultaneously conclude open
contracts with several suppliers for a delivery point with a connected load exceeding 40MW.
In this case, the balancing affiliation shall be distributed in advancegthe suppliers.

(6) Electricity system operators shall keep records of delivery points and their balancing
affiliation and shall provide access to the data from the records to the market operator and the
Agency.

(7) The detailed rules for open contraeagistration shall be laid down by the electricity
system operator in the Network Code referred to in Article 144 of this Act.

Section 2: Network charges for the transmission and distribution system

Subsection 1: Regulatory framework

Article 116
(Methodology for setting out the regulatory framework)

(1) The network charges paid by the system user for the use of the electricity system shall be
one of the sources to cover the eligible costs incurred by the electricity system operators. The
eligible coss of the electricity system operators, the network charges and other sources to
cover these costs shall be set by the Agency in the regularity framework.

(2) The Agency shall prescribe the methodology to set out the regulatory framework by
means of a gamal act and in a manner promoting electricity system operators and efficiency
of system use. The methodology established by the Agency shall be based on the method of
regulated annual revenue of the electricity system operator and its regulated neaxgek,.ch
which shall ensure that all eligible annual costs of the electricity system operator, including
the regulated return, are covered.

(3) The general act of the Agency referred to in the second paragraph of this Article shall
specify:
T the duration bthe regulatory period,;



T the types of elements of the regulatory framework;

T the criteria for setting out individual regulatory framework elements;

T the method of calculating individual regulatory framework elements;

T the types of eligible costs, inaing the regulated return, the criteria for identifying costs

and the method of determining costs;

T the rules and method to establish deviations from the regulatory framework and the method
of taking established deviations into consideration;

T the pararsters of individual quality dimensions, their reference values and the method and
standards of their calculation;

T the rules for calculating the influence of quality on eligible costs;

T minimum quality standards for various services of the electricgieay operators; and

T the amount of compensation and time limits for the payment of compensation referred to in
the third paragraph of Article 130 of this Act.

Article 117
(Setting out the regulatory framework)

(1) The Agency shall set out the regulgtinamework by way of a decision specifying the
amount of the planned eligible costs of the electricity system operator by individual years of
the regulatory period, planned network charges, other planned revenue from performing
electricity system operataictivity and network charges surplus or deficit from previous

years. If the regulatory period is more than one year, the regulatory framework may provide
for tariff rate equalisation in order to prevent the occurrence of any rapid tariff rate changes in
individual years of the regulatory period.

(2) The Agency shall establish the value of the regulatory framework by calculating the
network charges and other revenue from performing electricity system operator activity,
including the cumulative network cfgge surplus or deficit of the electricity system operator

from previous years, so as to cover the planned eligible costs of the electricity system operator
set by the Agency and take into account all envisaged circumstances related to the cost
effective orations of the electricity system operator.

(3) Upon a prior declaration by the electricity TSO, other revenue from congestion
management shall be taken into account in the year of the regulatory period in which eligible
costs for the purposes set authe sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No
714/2009 are planned and in accordance with the Guidelines in Annex | to the Regulation
(EC) No 714/2009 and shall be disclosed separately in the regulatory framework.

(4) The electricity TSO shatfleparately keep cro$®rder congestion revenue that has not
hitherto given rise to eligible costs and is temporarily not used for any of the purposes set out
in the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009, including the amounts
placal on a separate account line in accordance with the third subparagraph of the sixth
paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009, which shall be kept outside the
regulatory framework until the occurrence of the eligible costs.

(5) Before the bagning of a new regulatory period, the electricity TSO shall ensure and
declare to the Agency the following:

T separate data on revenue planned from the congestion managementbbestines by
individual years of the regulatory period,;



T the amount®f revenue from congestion management not included in the previous

regulatory frameworks in accordance with the preceding paragraph, including the amount of
temporarily unused revenue from previous years placed on a separate account line referred to
in the third subparagraph of the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No

714/2009;

T the amounts of deviations from the regulatory framework referred to in Article 120 of this

Act relating to the congestion management of cbussler lines;

I sepaate data on the intended use of revenue under indents one to three of this paragraph for
the purposes referred to in the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009
and on the amounts of planned eligible costs for these purposes byuatlixedrs of the

regulatory period.

(6) In setting out the regulatory framework and under the conditions of Regulation (EC) No
714/2009, the Agency shall approve the intended use of revenue from the congestion
management of crodsorder lines to cover theetwork charges under the second
subparagraph of the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009, provided
that the electricity TSO shows that the revenue from the congestion management of cross
border lines cannot be used efficiently floe purposes set out in points a) and b) of the sixth
paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.

(7) In setting out the regulatory framework, the Agency shall separately disclose the revenue
from the congestion management of crbesder liresi including any unused revenue from
congestion management arising from deviations from the regulatory framework and
temporarily unused revenue from previous years placed on a separate account line, as referred
to in the third subparagraph of the sixtirggraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No

714/2009, and the eligible costs by purposes referred to in paragraph 6 of Article 16 of
Regulation (EC) No 714/20009.

(8) The Agency shall set out the regulatory framework for an individual electricity system
operator by means of a decision issued to the electricity system operator not later than by 15
November of the year preceding the first year of the relevant regulatory framework
(hereinafter: the decision on a regulatory framework). The regulatory framéwak

electricity DSO may be divided into individual areas of the distribution system.

(9) The decision on the regulatory framework shall be issued by the Ageméficia The
Agency shall initiate the decisiemaking procedure concerning the regutatbamework and
specify the data required for decision making, including the investment plan referred to in
Article 118 of this Act, and the time limit for their submission by the electricity system
operator, not later than by 15 September of the yeaegneg the first year of the subsequent
regulatory framework.

Article 118
(Investment plan of the electricity system operator)

(1) The electricity system operator shall prepare an investment plan and submit it to the
Agency for the purpose of settingtdbe regulatory framework, by 31 January of the year in
which the Agency decides on the regulatory framework. The electricity system operator's
investment plan shall include a financial evaluation of the investments under the applicable
tenyear developmd plan to be carried out in the subsequent regulatory period. The



electricity TSOs investment plan shall separately disclose the investments to be funded by the
dedicated revenue derived from the congestion management cbordes lines under
Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.

(2) The Agency shall examine and evaluate the investment plan in the procedure for setting
out the regulatory framework. The aforementioned evaluation shall provide the basis for
specifying the planned eligible costs of the electirisitstem operator in the subsequent
regulatory period. In evaluating investment plans and setting the eligible costs of the
electricity system operator, the Agency shall not be bound by the value of the investments and
their time schedule under the ECSetdevelopment plans in the energy sector or the
development plans of electricity system operators.

(3) If the Agency's evaluation of the investment plans establishes an excessive impact on
network charges if all investments from the investment plamalgded in the eligible costs
of the electricity system operator, it may take into account only some investments in
accordance with the order of priority specified in the investment plan.

(4) The investment plan of the electricity DSO shall show thestmrents needed to maintain
the operational capacity of the existing infrastructure (reconstruction) and investments in new
infrastructure separately.

(5) If the electricity TSO fails to carry out the planned investments to increase the
interconnector cagrities envisaged in the investment plan to be funded from the dedicated
crossborder congestion revenue under Regulation (EC) No 714/2009, the TSO shall treat the
aforementioned investments as unused congestion revenue that may be used only for the
purpo®s set out in the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation No 714/2009 and its
Annex|, and/or may be used by the Agency to reduce network charges when setting out the
regulatory framework.

(6) The Agency shall establish the methodology for prepandgeaaluating the investment
plans in a general act, specifying at least:

I the methodological approaches to investment assessment and evaluation;

T the types and mandatory content of investment plans;

i the procedures for preparing and evaluating itnaeat documents and deciding on
investments;

T minimum criteria for determining the efficiency of projects.

Article 119
(Eligible costs of the electricity system operator)

(1) The eligible costs of the electricity system operator incurred in the parioenof

electricity system operator activity shall be established and specified by individual years of
the regulatory period. An electricity system operator engaged in the activities other than
electricity system operator activity shall attribute the propoate part of the costs to those
other activities.

(2) The eligible costs shall also include the regulated return of the electricity system operator.



(3) The method of establishing and specifying eligible costs shall encourage tb&exdste
opemtions of the electricity system operator and enable it to attain a return higher than that set
out in the regulatory framework if the eligible costs savings result from the operator's
endeavours to increase its ceffiectiveness. If the electricity systeoperator incurs costs
exceeding the eligible costs, the difference shall be offset against the regulated return on
assets.

(4) In setting out the eligible costs, the Agency shall bear in mind the electricity system
operator's obligation to improve itefformance by a factor set by the Agency in a general
act, taking account the planned general economic productivity and the efficiency of the
electricity system operator based on comparative efficiency analyses.

(5) The regulated return of the electricstystem operator and the eligible depreciation costs
shall provide for the economic viability of investments in the development of the system and
shall depend on the regulated amounts of tangible fixed assets in use and intangible fixed
assets in use cogponding to the use of the system, the nature of the electricity system
operatoro6s activity, the regulated structure
system. There shall be no regulated return on assets recognised with respect tmthlegart
value of assets taken over free of charge, acquired through the payment of disproportionate
costs for connection and on assets under construction and manufacture, built with funds from
congestion and etunding, on European funds granted free ofrghar on other grants and

funds not prerequisite to carrying out the activities of the electricity TSO. The electricity TSO
shall be granted a special incentive for having acquired European funds free of charge
proportional to the amount thereof. Thisentive shall be included in the regulatory

framework in the year in which the assets constructed with these funds are handed over for
use.

Article 120
(Deviations from the regulatory framework)

(1) The electricity system operator shall identify deviadifrom the regulatory framework for
particular years shown as a surplus or deficit from network charges and shall disclose the
established deviations in the notes to the accounts.

(2) A surplus of regulated annual revenue over the actual annual etiggiteof the

electricity system operator shall be deemed the surplus from network charges. It shall be
disclosed as the surplus of the total annual amount of the charged network charges (minus the
deficit from the network charges from the previous yeargjus the surplus from network

charges from the previous years) plus the amount of other annual revenue from electricity
system operator activity over the amount of actual annual eligible costs.

(3) A surplus of the actual annual eligible costs overégulated annual revenue of the
electricity system operator shall be deemed the deficit from network charges. It shall be
disclosed as the surplus of the actual annual eligible costs over the total annual amount of the
network charges (plus the defiaibm the network charges from previous years or minus the
surplus from network charges from previous years) plus other annual revenue from electricity
system operator activity.



(4) The electricity system operator shall use the network charges surplespayitient for

the electricity system operator service of general economic interest for the following year or
years; therefore, the surplus of the network charges shall be disclosed as overpaid amounts in
the year of the regulatory period in which the suspt established. In setting the network
charges for the subsequent regulatory period, the Agency shall take the surplus from network
charges into account as network charges already charged in previous periods.

(5) The electricity system operator shaiteive the settlement of the deficit from network
charges in the following year or, in order to prevent any rapid tariff rate changes, in the
following years as the payment for the electricity system operator service of general economic
interest for the yar in which the deficit was established. The electricity system operator shall
disclose the deficit from network charges as receivables for the year of the regulatory period
in which the deficit from network charges was established if it reasonably eipedsficit

from network charges to be charged and paid in the subsequent periods. The Agency shall
take the deficit from network charges into account when setting the network charges for the
subsequent regulatory period or subsequent regulatory periods.

(6) The electricity system operator shall submit to the Agency the calculation of the surplus or
deficit from network charges for an individual year of the regulatory period within 15 days of
receiving the auditor's report or not later than in six moattes the end of the calendar year.
Should the Agency, in the procedure to establish the deviation, find a surplus or deficit from
network charges not equal to that established by the electricity system operator, it shall issue a
separate decision estabiisg the amount of surplus or deficit in accordance with the

provisions of the second and third paragraphs of this Article.

(7) Notwithstanding the provision of the eighth paragraph of Article 117 a decision may be
issued by the Agency during the regutgtperiod which sets out a new regulatory framework
for the remaining years of the regulatory period if unexpected changes in the use of the
system or other unexpected circumstances give rise to a surplus or deficit from network
charges that cannot be adfsvhen setting out of the regulatory framework for the subsequent
regulatory period.

(8) The calculation of deviations from the regulatory framework made by the electricity TSO
shall disclose crossorder congestion revenue and eligible costs sepatatehdividual
years.

(9) The annual report of the electricity TSO shall also disclose amounts of annual revenue and
expenditure incurred in acquiring the right to use interconnection capacity, in accordance with
the purposes set out in the sixth paragmaphrticle 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.

(10) The Agency shall examine the intended use of 4vos$er congestion revenue, whereby
it shall examine and confirm whether the total actual amount of revenue from congestion
related to the allocation afossborder lines was used for the purposes set out in the sixth
paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.

(11) The provisions relating to the calculation of surplus or deficit from network charges shall
also apply if another provider begito carry out operator activity on the system concerned.

The previous provider shall pay any surplus to the new provider and may request that the new
provider recompense it for any deficit not later than by the end of the regulatory period in
which the stplus or deficit is taken into account in setting network charges.



Subsection 2: Special provisions concerning the setting of the regulatory framework if the
electricity DSO is not the owner of a significant part of the distribution system or the main t&s
of the electricity DSO are carried out by another person

Article 121
(Setting out the regulatory framework for a distribution system not owned by the operator)

(2) If the electricity DSO is not the owner of the whole or a significant part of thédigin system

in which it carries out its activity and leases a significant part or the whole of the distribution system
from the owner or other legal or natural person managing or holding it (hereinafter: the lessor) and/or
uses it on a legal basis ottitean the property right, the provisions of Articles 121 to 126 shall apply

in addition to Articles 116 to 120 and 127 to 130 in setting out the regulatory framework for such a
distribution system, in establishing deviations from the regulatory frameamnatkn calculating

network charges.

(2) A significant part of the distribution system as referred to in the preceding paragraph shall mean a
part of the system that meets the following conditions:
T it had at least 1,000 final customers connected onagey given day in the calendar year
preceding the year in which the network charges for the subsequent regulatory period were set;
and
T the electricity transmitted across this network in the calendar year preceding the year in which
the network charges fahe subsequent regulatory period were set represented at least five per cent
of the total electricity transmitted through the distribution system in the Republic of Slovenia.

(3) The provisions of the first paragraph of this Article shall apply in aaege the tasks of the

electricity DSO, including the professional obligations for the exercise of public authority, are carried
out by another legal or natural person to which the electricity DSO has transferred the tasks, or which
carries out these taslon some other legal basis (hereinafter: the maintenance entity).

(4) The electricity DSO shall make arrangements regarding its relationships with the lessor and the
maintenance entity referred to in the first and third paragraphs of this Articleefentine subsequent
regulatory period not later than by the commencement of the procedure to set out the regulatory
framework. The Agency shall also serve the decision referred to in the ninth paragraph of Article 117
on the lessors and maintaining ensitieferred to in the first and third paragraphs of this Article if data
required to set out the regulatory framework are at its disposal when issuing the decision; otherwise, it
shall obtain these data from the electricity DSO and shall invite thesespargarticipate in the

procedure after obtaining the data.

(5) The electricity DSO shall not amend the relationships with the lessor and the maintaining entity
referred to in the first and third paragraphs of this Article during the regulatory perimdgemcy

shall issue a new decision on the regulatory framework applyintatis mutandisthe provisions of

the seventh paragraph of Article 118 of this Act if the relationships with the lessor and the maintaining
entity referred to in the first and thiparagraphs of this Article are to be amended during the

regulatory period for reasons which emerged after the commencement of the regulatory period and
were beyond the electricity DSOs control and have a significant impact on the applicable regulatory
framework.

Article 122
(Keeping of separate accounts)

(1) The lessor and the maintaining entity referred to in the first and third paragraphs of the previous
Article shall keep in their respective books of account separate accounting records and separate



accounts, in accordance with Articles 109 to 111 of this Act, even if they do not pursue energy sector
activities related to electricity.

(2) The lessor and the maintaining entity referred to in the first and third paragraphs of the previous
Article shallkeep in their respective books of account separate accounting records and separate
accounts for the distribution system and its development separate from other activities and separate for
carrying out the tasks.

(3) If the lessor and the maintaining éntieferred to in the eight paragraph of the preceding Article
do not use criteria compliant with the provisions of Articles 109 to 111 of this Act regarding the
separate accounts of electricity undertakings, the Agency may use other criteria to assign cos
expenditure and revenue to various activities when issuing the decision referred to in the eight
paragraph of Article 117 of this Act.

Article 123
(Rules for determining the lease payment and/or payment for performance of tasks)

(1) The provisions foArticles 116 to 120 of this Act regarding the setting out of the regulatory

framework shall apply to determining the lease paid by the electricity DSO for the use of the
distribution system (hereinafter: the payment for leasing the system) and the pympenforming
tasks carried out by another person.

(2) The payment for leasing the system and the payment for the performance of tasks shall be set for
individual important parts of the distribution system in the decision on the regulatory framework an
shall cover the planned eligible costs for the distribution system and for the performance of tasks of
the electricity DSO, including the regulated return, in the regulatory period.

(3) The provisions of contracts concluded between the lessors andititermance entities referred to
in the first and third paragraphs of Article 119 of this Act and the electricity DSO which set higher
payments for leasing the system and for the performance of tasks shall be null and void.

Article 124
(Setting the payméror leasing and the performance of tasks in the decision on the regulatory
framework)

In the case referred to in the first and second paragraphs of Article 121 of this Act and by way of the
decision referred to in the eight paragraph of Article 11higfAct, the Agency shall also set the

amount of the payment for leasing the system or the performance of tasks for the lessor and the
maintenance entity referred to in the first and third paragraphs of Article 121 of this Act. The payment
shall be deemeadn eligible cost of the electricity DSO.

Article 125
(Communication of data and supervision)

The provisions of this Act concerning the obligation to communicate to the Agency the data referred

to in Article 407 of this Act and concerning the supervidigrihe Agency referred to in Articles 421

to 433 of this Act shall also apply to the lessors and the maintenance entities referred to in the first and
third paragraphs of Article 121 of this Act.

Article 126
(Leasing other parts of the distribution netiwor performance of services)



(1) If the electricity DSO leases or uses a part of the distribution system not deemed an important part
of the distribution system within the meaning of the first paragraph of Article 121 of this Act, or if
another legabr natural person performs certain tasks for the electricity DSO on such part of the
distribution system, the DSO shall submit to the Agency, in the procedure to set out the regulatory
framework, all data required to set the level of eligible costs feirlgauch part of the system or for

such services.

(2) If the electricity DSO fails to submit the data referred to in the preceding paragraph, the regulatory
framework shall be set out taking into account the minimum eligible system leasing or semgce cos
established for a comparable part of the distribution system or comparable services.

Subsection 3: Provisions regarding regulation through quality

Article 127
(Regulation through quality)

(1) In setting the eligible costs for the purpose of setiinghe regulatory framework for an
electricity distribution system, the Agency shall also take into account the regulation of electricity
supply quality within the framework of electricity DSO activity.

(2) Within the framework of performing electriciBSO activity, quality of supply shall be
determined according to the following quality dimensions:

T voltage quality;

I commercial quality; and

T continuity of supply.

(3) The Agency shall specify the reference value of the parameters of the qualitgidimeor the
electricity DSO and/or for individual areas of the distribution system so that these values provide a
realistic target for quality of supply, taking into account the condition of the system, the performance
of the activity to date and the eqation of the system.

(4) An electricity DSO not providing all services shall nevertheless be responsible for the quality of
supply of the services which are subject to the assessment of achieved values of quality dimension
parameters, except as regatfus lessors and maintenance entities referred to in the first and third
paragraphs of Article 121 of this Act, which shall share the responsibility for quality with the
electricity DSO.

Article 128
(Monitoring the quality of supply and auditing)

(1) The electricity DSO and/or the lessors and maintenance entities referred to in the first and third
paragraphs of Article 119 of this Act shall monitor the quality of supply of the distribution system
and/or particular areas of the distribution system by:

T measuring voltage quality;

T calculating the parameters of the quality dimensions referred to in the second paragraph of the
preceding Article; and

I communicating the measurement results and parameters of the quality dimensions to the Agency.

(2) The Agecy shall conduct auditing at the electricity DSO and/or the lessor and maintaining entity,
as referred to in the first and third paragraphs of Article 119.



(3) The auditing shall be conducted in a manner that does not disturb the operations or perfofmanc
the electricity DSO activity and shall not impose a disproportionate burden related to the assessment
of monitoring.

(4) Following the audit, an authorised Agency employee shall prepare a report assessing the
appropriateness of the monitoring.

(5) If the Agency establishes irregularities, the greatest negative impact laid down in the general act of
the Agency shall be considered with regard to the influence on eligible costs.

(6) The Agency shall lay down, by means of a general act, the rules fidornmyg the quality of

supply and shall specify:

T the procedures and methods for monitoring the quality of supply and calculating different quality
parameters;

T the method and time limits for submitting these data to the Agency; and

T the auditing proedure and methodology and the measures to improve them.

Article 129
(Quality of supply impact on the regulatory framework)

(1) The impact of achieved values of the particular quality dimension parainetéatve to the

reference values of these aareters, fixed by the minimum standards of qualiby eligible costs

shall be taken into account by the Agency when setting network charges for the following regulatory
period, except in cases referred to in the fifth paragraph of the preceding Article.

(2) The incentives for better quality and/or sanctions for poorer quality shall be fixed according to the
discrepancy between the achieved and the reference quality level and shall be reflected in the share of
eligible costs of the electricity system ogiar.

Article 130
(Guaranteed supply quality standards)

(1) The minimum supply quality standards of the electricity DSO shall take the form of the guaranteed
standards to be met by the operator and shall be defined by minimum values of the sertyce quali
parameters, which shall be ensured for each delivery point of the electricity DSO.

(2) If, for reasons on its part, the electricity DSO breaches the standards of quality guaranteed to a
system user, it shall pay compensation to the system user upgittéa request.

(3) The amount of compensation and method and time limit for compensation payment for individual
types of breach shall be determined by the Agency by means of a general act, as referred to in Article
116 of this Act with a view to disewaging system operators from repeating these breaches.

(4) If the operator fails to pay compensation to the system user following its written request within the
prescribed time limit, the Agency shall decide on the right to compensation upon the oétuest
system user. The Agency may not initiate the procedure to decide on compesmsafiizia

(5) Notwithstanding the compensation paid, the system user may claim compensation from the
electricity system operator under the general rules on liafblitgamages for any damage caused by a
breach of the guaranteed standard of quality if the damage exceeds the amount of compensation paid.



Article 131
(Provisions applicable to the electricity TSO)

The provisions of the first and third indents of teeand paragraph of Article 127, the fourth
paragraph of Article 127, and the first, second, third, fourth, fifth and seventh paragraphs of Article
128 shall also apply to the electricity TSO.

Subsection 4: Calculating network charges and other elegtrigjistem operator services

Article 132
(Principle for establishing the methodology)

(1) System users shall pay network charges which comprise the payment for services performed by the
electricity system operator in accordance with this Act.

(2) Typesof system users and the pertinent tariff rate ratios shall be laid down by the Agency to reflect
the costs incurred by the use of the electricity system.

(3) Tariff rates for producers using renewable energy sources shall take account of the tangible cost
based benefits derived from the integration of the power plant into the network.

(4) The Agency, by means of a general act and in a manner promoting electricity system operators and
system use efficiency, shall specify the methodology for calculatimgpriecharges for the

transmission and distribution system, excessive reactive power consumption and other services, and
the connected load.

Article 133
(Network charges for transmission system)

(1) Network charges for transmission system shall be ekeahd@o cover the electricity TSOs

expenditure on maintenance, operation and develop the system. Transmission system network charges
shall also be earmarked to cover the electricity TSOs expenditure on ancillary services of power
oscillation damping in theystem, voltage and reactive power regulation, and the procurement of
blackstart services.

(2) Network charges for transmission system shall be charged periodically and paid by final customers
according to individual delivery points.

(3) Tariff rates ®network charges for transmission system shall be set according to chargeable
demand (kW) and consumed electrical active power (kWh).
Article 134

(Network charges for the distribution system)

(1) Network charges for distribution system shall be earetht& cover the electricity DSOs
expenditure on maintenance, operation and developing the system.

(2) Network charges for distribution system shall be charged periodically and paid by final customers
according to individual delivery points.



(3) Tariff rates of network charges for distribution system shall be set according to the chargeable
demand (kW) and consumed electrical active power (kWh).

Article 135
(Network charges for connected load)

(1) Network charges for connected load shall be earmaokeoMer the electricity system operator's
expenditure on maintenance, operation and development of the system.

(2) Network charges for connected load shall be paid by all final customers as a singseitlamp
payment relative to the connected load (kWthatinitial connection to the network and at any
increase in the connected load of the existing connector, except for temporary connections as laid
down in the Network Code referred to in Article 144.

(3) The amount of network charges for connected lbatl be set by the Agency according to the
level of influence of the connection capacity of the system user on the required expansions,
reinforcements and development of the system.

Article 136
(Network charges for excessive reactive power consumption)

(1) Network charges for excessive reactive power consumption shall be earmarked to cover the
electricity system operator's expenditure on providing network voltage conditions and shall
simultaneously encourage users to take measures to reduce reactiveqgrsuenption.

(2) Network charges for excessive reactive power consumption shall be charged periodically and paid
by final customers according to excessive reactive power consumption or delivery (kVArh) by
individual delivery points.

Article 137
(Payment for other services)

The prices of other services not covered by network charges and charged to system users by the
electricity system operator shall be set by the Agency, taking account of the actual costs thereof.

Article 138
(Setting tariff rates)

(1) The Agency shall set tariff rates for network charges, as referred to in Articles 133, 134, 135 and
136 of this Act, by a decision on the regulatory framework referred to in Article 117 of this Act. The
payment for other services referred to in Adit37 of this Act shall be set by the Agemsyofficioor

upon the request of the electricity system operator.

(2) When necessary, due to unforeseen deviations in the actual use of the system from its planned use,
and if no new decision on the regulgtéramework is issued, the Agency shall also set the tariff rates

for the network charges referred to in the preceding paragrapfiicioor upon the request of the

electricity system operator.

(3) The Agency shall publish the tariff rates referreohtthe first paragraph of this Article in Uradni
list Republike Slovenij@ot later than five days before their entry into force.



Chapter VIII: OTHER PROVISIONS

Section 1: Exemption of new infrastructlireaew interconnectors

Article 139
(Exemption sope and conditions)

(1) The Agency, upon request of the party and in accordance with Article 17 of Regulation (EC) No
714/2009, may grant exemption from the provisions of the sixth paragraph of Article 16 of Regulation
(EC) No 714/2009 and Articles 606d,112 and 116 to 138 of this Act for a limited period to new

major infrastructure, i.e. new direct current interconnections or significant increases in capacity in
existing interconnectors.

(2) The Agency shall publish decisions on exemption on itsiteetasd in Uradni list Republike
Slovenijenot later than one month after they become final.

Article 140
(Procedure of the Agency following a European Commission decision)

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of the act governing general administrativedure, the Agency
shallex officiorepeat the procedure for issuing a decision granting exemption within one month of
receiving a decision by the European Commission requesting the Agency to amend ab amitiol

the decision granting exemption.

(2) In a repeated procedure, the Agency shall issue the decision without a spediadifiagt
procedure, but shall provide the party the opportunity to make a statement on the facts and
circumstances relevant to making a decision.

Article 141
(Crossborderdistribution lines)

(1) If a crosshorder distribution line supplies electricity to customers outside the Republic of
Slovenia, the supplier delivering electricity via the croseder distribution line shall be the person
liable for the payment of the tweork charge.

(2) With regard to the payment of the network charge, the supplier referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be regarded as the final customer or producer having a delivery point on the border
with the electricity takeup or production ithe amount of the flow of electricity on the crdswder
distribution line. The supplier on the crdssrder distribution line shall be exempt from paying the

fees referred to in Article 377 of this Act.

(3) The connection and manner of operatiothefcrossborder distribution line shall be subject to the
approval of the electricity TSO.

Section 3: Direct lines

Article 142
(Admissibility of direct lines)



(1) Electricity supply through a direct line shall be permissible for:
legal and natal entities performing the function of production and supply of electricity to final
customers established within the Republic of Slovenia, to supply their own premises, subsidiaries
and customers;

- final customers in the territory of the Republic of Sloieeto be supplied electricity through a
direct line by legal or natural entities performing the functions of the production and supply of
electricity to final customers.

(2) The possibility of supplying electricity through a direct line as referredtteipreceding
paragraph shall not affect the possibility of contracting electricity in accordance with Article 39 of this
Act.

Article 143
(Authorisation for direct lines)

(1) Direct line may be constructed by an electricity undertaking or a custpragided they obtain
the relevant authorisation by the Agency.

(2) The Agency may issue an authorisation to construct a direct line only if the legal or natural entities
or final customers referred to in the first sentence of the preceding Artidiaahg denied system

access pursuant to Article 113 of this Act, or if the necessary system does not exist and the Agency
decides against increasing the capacities of the system under the fifth paragraph of Article 113.

(3) Notwithstanding the precedjmparagraph, the Agency may refuse to issue an authorisation for a
direct line subject to a significant deterioration in the conditions for performing the function of an
electricity TSO.

(4) The Agency shall specify the criteria for issuing an auth@is&b construct a direct line, which
shall be objective and natiscriminatory.

Section 4: Network Code and technical safety of operation

Article 144
(Network Code)

(1) A Network Code shall regulate the operation and manner of managing transraissi
distribution systems. The Network Code shall ensure the interoperability of systems and shall be
transparent, objective and ndiscriminatory.

(2) The Network Code shall regulate, in particular:
the technical and other conditions for the safe atpmr of the systems to ensure a secure and
high-quality energy supply;

- the manner of providing ancillary services;

- system operation procedures in a crisis situation;

- the requirements for connection to the system and the method of connection;

- the technicalkconditions for the interconnection and operation of systems of various electricity
system operators;

- the monitoring of the quality of electricity supply;

- the type, structure, frequency and method of exchanging data between electricity system operators
which are required for the safe operation and efficient management of the systems.



(3) The Network Code shall include provisions on the costs of technical measures necessary for the
connection of new electricity producers.

(4) The Network Code shall defilee roles and responsibilities of electricity TSOs, DSOs, suppliers
and final customers, producers and market operator with respect to contractual arrangements,
commitments to customers, data exchange, data ownership, metering responsibility, including
procedures when a supplier or final customer withdraws from a supply contract.

(5) The Network Code for an individual transmission or distribution system shall, under the public
authority, be issued by an electricity system operator performing the fun€@osystem operator in
this system, and published in Uradni list Republike Slovenije.

(6) Prior to publishing the Network Code, the electricity system operator must obtain approval from
the Agency and the Government.

Article 145
(Technical safety obperation)

(1) An electricity system operator or another entity that operates power plants, installations, and
networks shall be obliged to ensure the safety of their operation.

(2) The technical rules referred to in Article 32 of this Act that relatiee@lectricity supply shall
ensure the interoperability of systems and shall be objective andiswiminatory.

Section 5: Safety measures in the event of a crisis in the electric power system

Article 146
(Exceptional circumstances in the system)

(1) In the event of a sudden crisis in the energy market, and when the physical safety or security of
persons, apparatus or installations or electric power system integrity is threatened, a electricity TSO
may impose measures to reduce the energy stpphrtain categories of customers, determine the
order of reductions, lay down the method for using energy and determine obligatory energy
production. The electricity TSO shall implement measures in cooperation with the electricity DSO .

(2) Without prgudice to the preceding paragraph, measures shall be imposed by the electricity DSO if
the conditions for the introduction of the measures referred to in the preceding paragraph of this
Article are limited to the distribution system.

(3) The measures rafed to in the first paragraph of this Article shall be carried out in a manner that
causes the least possible disturbance in the functioning of the internal electricity market and must not
be wider in scope and longer in duration than is strictly negetsaemedy the consequences of the
shortage and to restore the normal operation of the system.

(4) The method of implementation and the reasons for imposing the measures referred to in the first
and second paragraphs of this Article shall be laid doyine Government by means of a decree,
whereas a more detailed specification shall be made by electricity system operators within the
framework of the Network Code. In determining the scope and order of reduction, the electricity
system operator shall taknto account safety, health, technical and economic criteria, while equally
observing consumption in the country and cilossder exchanges.



(5) In the event that loads are limited, in accordance with the first and second paragraphs of this
Article, the operator limiting the loads shall be exempt from any damage liability or compensation
claims made by customers, producers, traders, intermediaries, suppliers or operators of interconnected
systems.

(6) The electricity system operator shall immediatedyify the ministry responsible for energy of the
introduction of the measures referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article, while the
ministry shall immediately submit the notification concerning the adopted measures to other EU
MembersStates and the European Commission.

(7) The electricity system operator shall, without delay, amend or terminate the measures referred to in
the first and second paragraphs of this Article if it is established by the European Commission that
they contragne competition rules in the internal market.

Section 6: Connection to the system and option to disconnect a system user

Article 147
(Connection to the system)

(1) For each connection to the transmission or distribution system or its modificgimtensal

system user shall obtain a connection approval, in accordance with this Act or the law governing
construction. Under this Act, a connection approval shall mean approval for the connection to the
electricity network under the law governing constion. To obtain approval in the case of a new
construction, the electricity system operator must be submitted a preliminary or conceptual design in
accordance with the law on construction. In the connection approval, the electricity system operator
shalldetermine the connection point and conditions for making the connection. Detailed conditions for
connection approval shall be laid down in the Network Code.

(2) The final approval for connection shall be valid for two years. Within this time limit,ollderhof
the approval for the connection of an existing facility shall fulfil all the requirements stated in the
connection approval and implement the connection.

(3) If a new facility is being built, the holder of the connection approval shall, witkipériod
referred to in the preceding paragraph, submit a final building permit, on the basis of which the issued
connection approval shall be extended for the period of validity of the submitted building permit.

(4) At the request of the holder of thepaoval, the electricity system operator may extend the validity
of the connection approval, but not more than twice, and each time for no more than one year. The
request for the extension of connection approval shall be submitted within thirty daysthefore

expiry of the connection approval.

(5) If, prior to the expiry of the connection approval, its holder concludes a connection contract and
pays the network charge for the connected load, no charge shall be levied for the same metering point.

(6) When the connection has been made, the conditions of connection approval shall be applicable
until the discontinuance or change at the metering point.

(7) Acting under public authority, the electricity system operator shall decide on issuing or refusing
comection approvals by means of an administrative decision.

(8) A prospective user of the system shall not have the right to connection in the following cases
- where the prospective user fails to meet the required conditions for connection
- where the conraion would cause severe disruptions to the power supply, or



- where the electricity system operator would incur disproportionate costs due to the connection.

(9) The disproportionate costs referred to in the preceding paragraph shall mean construstfon cost

the service connecting line to the point in the system where the connection is possible, or costs that are
necessary because of the reinforcement of the existing network, or the combination thereof, whereas
within a reasonable time an increase inuke of the system is not expected to occur on the new

service connecting line or on an existing line to the extent that allows normal investment amortisation.

(10) In the event referred to in the third indent of the eighth paragraph of this Artickysteen user
shall have the right to connection in accordance with the Network Code, provided that he covers the
costs that exceed the proportionate costs.

(11) The Agency shall decide on appeals against decisions on issuing or refusing a connection
approsal. A system user that is refused a connection shall have the right to inspect the full technical
documentation that the electricity system operator has at its disposal concerning the connection
approval.

(12) When the connection approval is final, ghectricity system operator and the user of the system
as the beneficiary of the connection approval (hereinafter: the holder of connection approval) shall
enter into a connection contract which regulates all mutual relations regarding the connectien and t
connection procedure, and mutual relations regarding the maintenance of the connection.

(13) If the operational constraints contained in the connection approval are changed, the system user
shall apply for a new connection approval.

(14) If the eletricity system operator refuses the connection or operational constraint reduction to the
customer because the system lacks the necessary capacity or this would prevent the user from
performing the service of general economic interest referred to ineABYcbf this Act, the provisions

of Article 113 of this Act shall apply to the refusal. Regarding the amount of funds necessary to
reinforce the system, the provisions of the ninth paragraph of this Article regarding disproportionate
costs shall apply.

Article 148
(Transfer of connection approval)

(1) A connection approval may be transferred to a legal or natural entity that has acquired facilities,
devices or installations if:

- the holder of an approval, in the case of a natural person, dies;

- the holde of an approval, in the case of a legal entity, ceases to exist;

- achange in a building permit occurs due to a change of investor;

- alegal transaction of the facility, device or installation is carried out.

(2) The new user shall, within thirty daysreteiving a court or administrative decision, or the signing
of a contract, notify the electricity system operator of that the change has occurred and submit
respective evidence thereof; failing this, the new user shall be obliged to apply for a newi@onnec
approval.

(3) The transfer of connection approval which does not arise from a legal succession shall be
admissible only if all the obligations arising from the system use contract and connection contract
concerning the connection to be transferredfalfilled within a period which may not be less than ten
days, and is laid down by the electricity system operator in the procedure for transferring approval,
unless an agreement on the acceptance of debt or accession to debt is agreed upon between the
connection transferee and the electricity system operator.



Article 149
(Technical requirements for installations of the system user)

(1) The power plants, installations and lines of the system user shall meet the prescribed technical
requirements, ensimg their smooth operation and the safety of people and property. Compliance with
technical requirements prescribed for a facility, installation or line shall be the responsibility of the
owner.

(2) The electricity system operator may temporarily refassnnect new facilities, installations or

lines to its system, or it may temporarily interrupt the power supply if it establishes that the facilities,
installations or networks of the system user fail to meet the prescribed technical requirements or that
an illegal construction has been built under the regulations governing construction.

(3) Connection or reconnection to the system shall be carried out by the electricity system operator
after the deficiencies have been corrected.

(4) The energy inspeatghereinafter: the inspector) shall supervise the compliance of the power
plants, installations and lines of the user.

Article 150
(Temporary disconnection)

(1) The electricity system operator may temporarily disconnect the system user for thespaofpose
- ordinary or extraordinary maintenance;

- inspection or repair;

- checks or check meterings;

- network expansion.

(2) The electricity system operator shall carry out such disconnection at a time when system users are
least affected.

(3) The electricity sstem operator shall timely notify system users of the scheduled disconnection in
writing or in another direct way. If a large number of customers is concerned and if personal
communication is not costffective, such information shall be published in thblig media or on the
Internet at least 48 hours prior to disconnection.

Article 151
(Disconnection upon prior notice)

(1) The electricity system operator shall disconnect a system user at individual delivery points upon
prior notice if the system us#ils to comply with its obligations within the time limit specified in the
notice in the following cases in which the system user:

a) disrupts the supply of electricity to other system users;

b) denies access to, or prevents persons authorised bysteensoperator, access to any part of the
connection, protection or metering devices and energy facilities, installations or lines where there
is a belief that such installations could be causing disturbances;

c) without the approval of the electricitystgm operator, connects its energy installations or lines to
the network or enables other users to connect their energy installations through its own energy
installations;

| ) upon the electricity system operator's reminder fails to reduce the consunmptiivery of
electric power or volume to the agreed value within the specified time limit;



d) prevents the proper registration of consumed quantities of power, or when the user uses power
without the metering devices required or agreed upon, or whes¢hewades them;

e) fails to pay the network charge within the specified time limit;

f) fails to eliminate or reduce disturbances caused by the user's facilities, installations or lines or
customers to the permissible limit of disturbances within the timit stipulated by the
electricity system operator or the competent inspection authority;

g) has no valid contract for electricity supply at the specified delivery point, or the supplier informs
the operator in writing that the supplier or final custornas withdrawn from the contract for
electricity supply at the specified delivery point of the system user, except in the cases referred in
Article 44 of this Act.

(2) The electricity DSO shall not disconnect a vulnerable customer for the reasorsirefénrpoints
e) and g) of the preceding paragraph if the conditions referred to in Article 51 of this Act have been
met.

(3) A supplier that has withdrawn from the contract for electricity supply, or a supplier that has been
notified by the final custmer of the withdrawal of the supply contract, shall be obliged to notify the
electricity DSO of the withdrawal no later than the last working day of the notice period.

(4) If the supplier withdraws from the supply contract for reasons on the partfofaheustomer, the
final customer shall be obliged to cover all the costs under this title that have been incurred by the
electricity DSO.

(5) In the event of withdrawal from the supply contract by the supplier or final customer, the

electricity DSO shihexclude the delivery point which is the object of the supply contract from the
balancing group of the current supplier on the day of the final reading of the metering device,
regardless of whether the electricity DSO actually carried out the discamactccordance with

this Article. The electricity DSO shall be obliged to take the final reading of the metering device not
later than within five working days before or after the last day of the month following the month in
which the electricity DSO inotified of the withdrawal, or the last day of supply if a change of

supplier has been arranged beforehand or a new supply contract has been concluded with the existing
supplier.

(6) A supplier that has withdrawn from the supply contract on the grainmaspayment of costs for
electricity supplied may cancel the withdrawal by means of a unilateral statement until the final meter
reading of the metering device has been carried out by the electricity DSO.

(7) The electricity DSO referred to in the Merk Code under Article 144 shall specify the

obligations and procedure of conduct of the electricity DSO and supplier in the event of a withdrawal
from the supply contract by a supplier or final customer, and the type of costs referred to in the fourth
paragraph of this Article.

(8) If the disconnection referred to in the first paragraph of this Article exceeds a period of three years,
the system user, prior to the reconnection, shall obtain a new approval for connection to the system, as
referred to in Aticle 147 of this Act, and conclude a new contract for connection without paying the
charge for the connected load.

(9) The electricity system operator shall notify the household customer of a disconnection at least 15
days in advance, and a businesdamsr at least 8 days in advance.
Article 152

(Disconnection without prior notige

(1) The electricity system operator shall disconnect a system user without prior notice if:



- by operation of its energy facilities, installations or lines, the systermendangers the life, health
or property of people;

- in the event of an electricity shortage, the system user fails to comply with special safeguard
measures restricting the consumption of electricity from the system referred to in Article 146 of
this Act.

(2) The electricity system operator shall be obliged tcorenect the system user at the user's expense.
Should the disconnection referred to in the preceding paragraph exceed a period of three years, the
system user shall, prior to the reconnection,ialaew approval for connection to the system, as
referred to in Article 147 of this Act, and conclude a new contract for the connection without paying a
charge for the connected load.

(3) If the system user does not allow the electricity system operaitsrauthorised representative to

carry out the disconnection in accordance with the provisions of this Article and Articles 150 and 151,
or threatens the operator, the authorised representative of the operator may carry out the disconnection
with assisance from the police.

Article 153
(Disconnection at the request of the system user)

(1) A system user holding a connection approval may require the electricity system operator to
disconnect its delivery point from the network.

(2) The electricitysystem operator shall be obliged tecamnnect the user to the system at the user's
expense. If the disconnection referred to in the preceding paragraph exceeds a period of three years,
the system user shall, prior to the reconnection, obtain a new apfmosannection to the system, as
referred to in Article 147 of this Act, and conclude a new contract for connection without paying a
charge for the connected load.

(3) The electricity system operator may refuse to reconnect to the system a systiiat usquired a
disconnection, or to issue a new connection approval, until all obligations arising from the contract for
use of the system and the contract for connection to the system are met by the system user.

(4) The electricity system operatoradirspecify in the Network Code mutual relations and the
payment of costs in the event of reconnection if a disconnection is carried out at the request of the
system user.

Article 154
(Reconnection, disconnection and connection on the basis of adessied by the competent
authority)

(1) The electricity system operator shall be obliged to reconnect a system user that has been
disconnected at the user's own expense when it is established that the deficiencies that formed the
grounds for disconndéion have been eliminated; this shall be carried out no later than three days after
the payment of costs for disconnection and reconnection.

(2) An electricity system operator that unjustifiably disconnects a system user must reconnect the
facilities, ingallations or lines of the system user to its sysaéits own expense and within 24 hours
from when the unjustified disconnection is established.

(3) The electricity system operator shall disconnect or connect the system user also on the basis of a
decision issued by the competent authority.



Article 155
(Compensation for damage due to disconnection)

(1) An electricity system operator shall have the right to compensation for damage caused by acts of a
system user for which reasons the electricigtesy operator disconnected the system user with or
without prior notice.

(2) The system user shall have the right to compensation for damage caused by an unjustified
disconnection by the electricity system operator.

Section 7: Records

Article 156
(Retention and transmission of data)

(1) Suppliers shall be obliged to keep data on all transactions relating to electricity supplies and
electricity derivatives with other suppliers and electricity TSOs for at least five years, and ensure that
these datara available to the Agency, national authorities, competition authorities , and the European
Commission, for the exercise of their powers.

(2) The data referred to in the preceding paragraph shall include details on relevant transactions, such
as durationdelivery and settlement rules, quantities, dates and times of execution, and transaction
prices and means of identifying the wholesale customer concerned, as well as specified details of all
unsettled electricity supply contracts and electricity derresti

(3) By way of its general act for the exercise of public authority, the Agency shall specify the type of
information that is available to market participants, provided that commercially sensitive information
on individual market players or individusihnsactions is not released. This paragraph shall not apply
to information on financial instruments which are within the scope of the act governing the market in
financial instruments.

Article 157
(Derivative financial instruments)

(1) The retentiomf and access to data relating to transactions in electricity derivatives referred to in
the preceding Article shall be ensured after the adoption of the Guidelines referred to in the fourth
paragraph of Article 40 of Directive 2009/72/EC.

(2) For entites regulated by the act governing the market in financial instruments, the provisions of
this and the preceding Articles shall not create additional obligations for the authorities referred to in
the first paragraph of the preceding Article.

(3) If the authorities referred to in the first paragraph of the preceding Article require access to data
kept by entities regulated by the act governing the market of financial instruments, the authority
regulated by the act governing the market in financial instnisrehall provide the authorities referred
to in the first paragraph of the preceding Article with the required data.



Part Three
NATURAL GAS

Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1: Introductory provisions

Article 158
(Application of the provisionsf this Part)

(1) The provisions of this Part of the Act shall apply to natural gas undertakings and natural gas
customers.

(2) The energy sector activities performed by the gas undertakings referred to in the preceding
paragraph include the following:

natural gas production;

the function of a natural gas TSO;

the function of a natural gas DSO;

natural gas supply;

the function of a natural gas storage system operator;

the function of a liquefied natural gas (hereinafter: LNG) terminal operator.

(3) The provisions of this Part of the Act shall also apply to biogas or other types of gas, provided that
such gases may technically and safely be injected into, and transported through, the natural gas
system.

Article 159
(Definitions)

In this Part othe Act, the following definitions shall apply:

1.

2.

10.

11.

'biogas' means energy gas produced from biomass or from biodegradable waste, or wood gas that
can be refined to a degree of quality which is interchangeable with natural gas;

'balancing contract' means agreement on the settlement and calculation of imbalances between
the system user and the gas TSO.

'natural gas balance scheme' means a list of market participants that have concluded a balancing
contract with a gas TSO or a compensation agreement witiathecing group leader;

'balancing group' means a group of system users with respect to which the volume imbalances of
the injection and offake of natural gas are offset and calculated within a billing period;

'a certificate' means a decision by meansftth the Agency certifies a gas TSO;

'distribution' means the transport of natural gas through local or regional pipeline networks with a
view to its delivery to customers, but not including supply;

'supply’ means the sale, including resale, of nat@abgd LNG to customers;

'supplier’' means any natural or legal person who performs the function of supply;

longterm planning’ means the planning of supply and transport capacity of natural gas
undertakings on a loAgrm basis with a view to meeting tldemand for natural gas of the
system, diversification of sources and securing supplies to customers;

‘horizontally integrated undertaking’ means an undertaking performing at least one of the
functions of production, transmission, distribution, supply oragie of natural gas, and a rges

activity;

'integrated natural gas undertaking' means a vertically or horizontally integrated undertaking;



12.

13.

14.
15.
16.

17.

18.
19.
20.
21.

22.
23.

24,

25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

31.

32.

33.

'exit points' means all consumption points at the transmission system and all points at which the
transmission syem of the Republic of Slovenia is linked with the transmission systems of
neighbouring countries, other transmission systems in the Republic of Slovenia or storage of
natural gas;
'gas derivative' means a financial instrument as specified in pointsob,760f the second
paragraph of Article 7 of the Financial Instruments Market Act (Uradni list RS, nos 108/10
official consolidated text, 78/11, 55/12 and 105/12Ban-1J), where that instrument relates to
natural gas;
‘balancing market' means tradiimg volumes of natural gas necessary to offset the imbalances
concerning the supply and consumption of natural gas at the TSO level;
'final customer' means a customer purchasing natural gas for his own use with a concluded gas
supply contract ;
'small bugness customer' is a ndnousehold natural gas customer whose estimated average
annual consumption does not exceed 10,008 Sm
‘control' means any rights, contracts or any other means which, either separately or in
combination and having regard to the siderations of fact or law involved, confer the possibility
of exercising a decisive influence on an undertaking, in particular by:
a) ownership or the right to use all or part of the assets of an undertaking;
b) rights or contracts which confer a decisive ieflee on the composition, voting or decisions

of the bodies of an undertaking;
‘emergent market' means a Member State in which the first commercial supply of its first long
term natural gas supply contract was made not more than ten years ago;
'nonhousehd customer' means a customer purchasing natural gas which is not for his own
household use;
'direct line' means a natural gas pipeline complementary to the interconnected system;
‘balancing group leader' means a system user with a concluded balanciagtgontr
'new infrastructure' means gas infrastructure not completed by 4 August 2003;
'billing period' means the period within which the imbalances between injected and withdrawn
natural gas volumes are determined; billing period means a balancing pehodtiét meaning
of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
'LNG facility' means a terminal which is used for the liguefaction of natural gas or the
importation, offloading, and rgasification of LNG, and includes ancillary services and
temporary storage necessary fine regasification process and subsequent delivery to the
transmission system, but does not include any part of LNG terminals used for storage; the term
shall not apply to plants intended for the liquefaction of natural gas and distribution of LNG in
containers to final customers or final customers in aintegrated network;
'natural gas injection' means a flow of natural gas into the system at an entry point;
'natural gas offake' means a flow of natural gas out of the system at an exit point;
‘consumption point' means a point in the transmission or distribution system where the natural gas
off-take from the network is made by final customers, or a point where the volumes of natural gas
for a final customer are established by means of meter reautingserwise;
‘customer' means a wholesale or final customer of natural gas or a natural gas undertaking which
purchases natural gas;
'open contract' means a natural gas supply contract determining the balancing affiliation of
consumption points;
'netwok charge' means a fee that a system user must pay for the use of the natural gas system and
which is calculated on the basis of network charge tariffs and the scope of system use;
'LNG system operator' means a natural or legal person that carries auidtierf of liquefaction
of natural gas, or the importation, offloading, andyasification of LNG and is responsible for
operating an LNG facility;
'storage system operator' means a natural or legal person that carries out the function of storage
and is esponsible for operating a storage facility;
'natural gas undertaking' means a natural or legal person carrying out at least one of the following
functions: production, transmission, distribution, supply, purchase or storage of natural gas,



34.
35.

36.
37.

38.

39.

40.

41].

42.

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

including an LNG, which is responsible for the commercial, technical or maintenance tasks
related to those functions, but shall not include final customers;

'‘gas supply contract' means a contract for the supply of natural gas, but does not include a gas
derivative;

'transmission agreement' means an agreement concluded between the gas TSO and the system
user with the aim of natural gas transmission;

'interconnected system' means a number of systems which are linked with each other;

06rel ated under t aldiundgridkingne am assocated uadertakirg iwahin éhe
meaning of Article 56 or 69 of the Companies Act (Uradni list RS, nos 66/@icial
consolidated text, 83/68onstitutional Court Decision, 33/11, 91/11, 1000dnstitutional Court

Order, 32/12, 572 and 44/1Zonstitutional Court Decision), or an undertaking is owned by the
same shareholders;
'"interconnector
borders with other countries for the sole purpose of connetttgngational transmission system

of these countries;

‘transmission' means the transport of natural gas through a network which mainly contains high
pressure pipelines with a view to its delivery to customers, but not including supply.
Transmission does hanean transport through an upstream pipeline network, including high
pressure pipelines primarily used in the context of the local distribution of natural gas;

‘'upstream pipeline network' means any pipeline or network of pipelines operated or conatructed
part of an oil or gas production project, or used to convey natural gas from one or more such
projects to a processing plant or terminal or final coastal landing terminal;

‘connection' means a gas pipeline intended to interconnect a distributionsonission pipeline

and a consumption point;

'free market' means a market in which participants may directly conclude agreements on natural
gas supply. A supplier and customer shall freely agree on the price and quantity of natural gas to
be supplied;

‘vulnerable customer' means a household customer that, due to financial circumstances, income
and other social circumstances and living conditions, is unable to provide itself with an alternative
source of energy for heating that would incur the same orrloasts for heating residential
space;

'regulated annual income' means the regulated annual revenue of the natural gas system operator
for an individual year of the regulatory period which is received from network charges and other
revenues and intendeal ¢over the operator's eligible costs;

‘regular price list' means a price list for a particular type of customer (a household, business or
subbusiness group customer), which applies to all customers that conclude a supply contract with
the supplier for garticular type of customer, with the exception of promotional or package price
lists, and includes at least 50 per cent of customers and at least 250 customers with each supplier;
'regulatory framework' means a specification of the amount of planngihl@licosts of the
natural gas system operator by individual year of the regulatory period, planned network charges,
planned other revenue from performing the function of natural gas system operator, and network
surplus or deficit from previous years.

'requlatory period' means a period of one or several consecutive calendar years for which a
regulatory framework is determined;

'system' means transmission networks, distribution networks, LNG facilities and/or storage
facilities owned or operated by a natlugas undertaking, including linepack and its facilities
supplying ancillary services and those of related undertakings needed to provide access to
transmission, distribution and LNG;

‘ancillary services' means all services needed for access to, angetlagiam of, transmission
networks, distribution networks, LNG facilities or storage facilities, including load balancing,
blending and the injection of inert gases, but not including facilities reserved exclusively for gas
TSOs carrying out their functien

'storage facility' means a facility used for stocking natural gas which is owned or operated by a
natural gas undertaking,, including the part of LNG facilities used for storage, but excluding the

means a transmissi on l i ne w h



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.
63.

portion used for production operations, and excludicditi@s reserved exclusively for gas TSOs

in carrying out their functions;

'linepack’ means the storage of gas by compression in gas transmission and distribution systems,
but not including facilities reserved for gas TSOs carrying out their functions;

‘tariff means a list of structured tariff elements which, on the basis of tariff rates, enable the
calculation of the network charge for the use of the natural gas system;

‘network charge tariff means the amount of the fee for the use of the systefflinqgeubit;

'transaction' means any legal transaction undertaken by the natural gas market participant on the
basis of which the right to dispose of a certain natural gas volume in the transmission system has
changed in one or several billing periods,luiding legal transactions that could lead to such a
change, even if the entire sequence of legal transactions fraakeffo injection has not resulted

in a change of the final customer;

‘wholesale customer' means a natural or legal person, othea thas TSO or a gas DSO, that
purchases natural gas for the purpose of resale inside or outside the system in which he is
established;

'system user' means a natural or legal person supplying to, or being supplied by, the system;
‘eligible customer' means @istomer who is free to purchase gas from a supplier of his own
choice;

‘vertically integrated undertaking' means a natural gas undertaking or a group of natural gas
undertakings in which the same person or the same persons are entitled, directly atyinidire
exercise control, as referred to in point 17 of this Article, and where the undertaking or group of
undertakings perform at least one of the functions of transmission, distribution, LNG or storage,
and at least one of the functions of productiosupply of natural gas;

'virtual point' means a notional point located between the entry and exit points in a transmission
system, at which it is considered that natural gas undertakings and final customers in the Republic
of Slovenia have conducted athdling in volumes of natural gas;

‘'entry points' mean points in the transmission system at which the transmission system of the
Republic of Slovenia is linked with the transmission systems of neighbouring countries, other
transmission systems in the Réfia of Slovenia or delivery sources, storage facilities and LNG
terminals in the Republic of Slovenia;

'closed contract' means a natural gas supply contract in which the volume of natural gas supplied
within a relevant period shall be fixed for everilibg period and which is deemed to have been

fully implemented;

'security' means both security of supply of natural gas and technical safety;

‘closed distribution system' means a distribution system in the local community that is separated
from the distibution system intended for the distribution of natural gas within a geographically
confined industrial, commercial or shared services site and, as a rule, does not supply household
customers in this area and is directly connected to the transmissiem sgsbugh an exit point.

Section 2: Tasks in the public interest and provision of service of general economic interest

Article 160
(Tasks of naturafjas undertakings)

(1) Naturalgas undertakings shall, in the public interest, perform tasks getatihe security,
regularity, quality and price of supply, and environmental protection, including energy efficiency,
energy from renewable sources and climate protection.

(2) Naturalgas undertakings performing a service of general economic interestthrgdAct shall
provide the following:

permanent and uninterrupted operation of the system within the limitations set by the state of the
art and supply quality standards;



- safe and reliable operation and maintenance of the system;

- connection of systemsers on general and ndiscriminatory terms;

- access to the system on general anddiscriminatory terms;

- charging for access to the system at the regulated access tariff;

- longterm planning of system development;

- other obligations under this Act other regulations;

- system enabling customers to freely choose their supplier, and producers and suppliers to freely
sell and purchase natural gas.

(3) The ministry responsible for energy shall notify the European Commission once every two years of
new meaures adopted for public service obligations, including consumer and environmental
protection, and of their possible effect on national and international competition.

Section 3: Protection of customers and consumers

Subsection 1: General provisions@arstomer protection

Article 161
(Right to conclude a contract with a supplier)

(1) Natural gas customers connected to the transmission or distribution system shall be entitled to have
their gas provided by a supplier, subject to the supplier's agneéeragardless of the European Union
Member State in which the supplier is registered.

(2) Prior to the conclusion of the contract referred to in the preceding paragraph, the supplier shall
follow the balancing and other requirements determined by ttiad other regulations relating to
the function of natural gas supply in the Republic of Slovenia.

(3) The natural gas supply to customers connected to the transmission or distribution system in the
Republic of Slovenia shall be subject to the provisiohthis Act and the regulations issued pursuant

to it and to the general acts on the exercise of public authority, regardless of where the supply contract
is concluded.

(4) Prior to the connection to the system, the gas DSO shall notify the custdriterigifits and
obligations in connection with the choice of supplier and in connection with the emergency supply, in
accordance with this Act.

Article 162
(Switching suppliers)

(1) A final customer who wishes to switch suppliers shall communicatguasefor the change to the
gas system operator to which the customer is connected.

(2) The new supplier may communicate the request on behalf of, and for the account of, the final
customer on the basis of an authorisation.

(3) An operator that receigea request to switch supplier shall do everything necessary to enable the
final customer to begin implementing the natural gas supply contract with the new supplier within 21
days of a completed request being lodged. Final customers shall not be chadeh§ing supplier.



(4) The gas system operator shall ensure a reading of the metering device when the change takes place.
The costs of the gas system operator for the meter reading shall be covered from the amount allocated
for meter readings. If a spfeer, in connection with a change of supplier, requires additional metering,

the gas system operator may charge the costs of such metering to the supplier in accordance with the
price list approved by the Agency.

(5) An operator shall refuse the chan@ewpplier if the new supplier fails to fulfil the obligations set
out by this Act, regulations issued pursuant to this Act, and general acts for the exercise of public
authority.

(6) The final customer shall receive a final closure account followinglaayge of natural gas
supplier no later than six weeks from when the natural gas supply from a new supplier begins.

(7) The manner of changing a supplier shall be specified by means of the decree referred to in Article
240 of this Act.

Article 163
(Report on consumption)

(1) The gas system operator shall provide periodic information free of charge to final customers who
are users of the system where it carries out the function of gas system operator of actual natural gas
consumption and the charagstics of such consumption frequently enough to enable them to regulate
their own gas consumption.

(2) At the request of a final customer or on the basis of the consent of a final customer given to
another legal or natural entity, the gas system opeshtdrinform the final customer and/or another
legal or natural entity of its consumption and of the characteristics of such consumption. This
information shall be given within a sufficient time frame, which takes account of the capacity of the
final custaner's metering equipment to measure consumption and theffiosncy of such

measures.

(3) The costs of information referred to in the preceding paragraph shall comply with the direct costs
of the operator' service. No costs shall be charged to fisébmers for this information.

(4) The detailed manner of providing information on the consumption to final customers shall be
specified by the gas system operator in the Network Code.

Article 164
(Provision of energy efficiency)

Natural gas undertakgjs shall strive to ensure energy efficiency by optimising, in accordance with the
Agency recommendations, the use of gas, especially by providing energy management services,
developing innovative pricing formulas or introducing advanced metering systesmsud grids

where appropriate.

Article 165
(Energy checklist)



(1) Natural gas suppliers shall be obliged to send to all of their final customers an energy checklist
established by the European Commission on the basis of the twelfth paragraphi@fAstic
Directive 2009/73/EC, including the instructions for its use.

(2) The manner and frequency of sending the energy checklist shall be specified in a general act by the
Agency. The Agency shall publish the checklist on its website.

Subsection 2: Euring the security of natural gas supply

Article 166
(General provision on ensuring security of natural gas supply)

(1) The security of natural gas supply shall be ensured in accordance with Regulation (EU) No
994/2010.

(2) In order to ensure a seewsupply in the internal market in natural gas, the Republic of Slovenia
shall cooperate with other European Union Member States with the aim of promoting regional and
bilateral solidarity.

(3) Such cooperation shall include situations resulting onfiteetesult in the short term in a severe
disruption to supply that affects the Republic of Slovenia, and in particular include:

a) coordination of measures to safeguard the security of the natural gas supply;

b) identification and, where necessary, depeaient or upgrading of electricity and natural gas
interconnections; and

¢) conditions and practical modalities for mutual assistance.

(4) The ministry responsible for energy shall inform the European Commission and other Member
States of the European Wni of the cooperation referred to in the previous paragraph.

(5) If, in the previous calendar year, one natural gas provider supplied natural gas to final customers in
the Republic of Slovenia, the same provider shall ensure that the supply of natunalhgacurrent

calendar year is provided from at least two different sources of supply, on the condition that the largest
supply source does not exceed 70 per cent of the volumes supplied by the same provider for final
customers in the Republic of Slovan

Article 167
(Designation of the Competent Authority under Regulation (EU) No 994/2010)

(1) The Agency shall be the Competent Authority under the second paragraph of Article 3 of
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010.

(2) The Agency may delegate specifiddmas set out in point 2 of second paragraph of Article 2 of
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 to other bodies.

(3) The Agency shall be the Competent Authority under the second paragraph of Article 7 of
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010, which may, in an administeatirocedure, adopt decisions relating to
the content under this Article. Regarding the procedure for dealing with exceptions, the provisions of
this Act governing the exceptions applying to new infrastructure shall apply.



Article 168
(Definition of prdected customers)

(1) The protected customers referred to in subpoint a) of point 1) of the first paragraph of Article 2 of
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 shall be household customers connected to a gas distribution system
and essential social services carted to a gas distribution or transmission system.

(2) The essential social services referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be providers of:
- health care services, including the rehabilitation and care;

- educational and care activities;

- educational etivity, including student residence halls and university libraries;

- social welfare services.

(3) Any disputes as to whether a particular person falls within the definition of a protected customer
shall be settled by the Agency, with regard to the praeesiet out in Articles 414 to 419 of this Act

(4) A natural gas supply contract shall indicate whether the customer is a protected customer, of which
fact the gas system operator to which the customer is connected shall be notified.

Article 169
(Emergency measures to safeguard the security of supply)

(1) If due to the scope and duration of exceptional circumstances or other circumstances that endanger
the security of natural gas supply and/or for a longer period cause a serious supply disrupion in th
Republic of Slovenia, and suppliers are unable to ensure a supply of natural gas to protected customers
in sufficient volumes by means of the measures set out in the Emergency Plan referred to in the second
paragraph of Article 3 of Regulation (EU) No42010, gas system operators shall take all steps to

enable customers transmission and distribution for the supply of natural gas within the framework of
safe operation of natural gas network.

(2) In order to meet the objective referred to in the pregeparagraph, gas system operators shall

prepare a plan of emergency measures which shall include the circumstances for the application of
such measures and the method, time and scope of their implementation; this plan shall be in
compliance with the Emeegicy Plan adopted by the Agency in accordance with Regulation (EU) No
994/2010. The measures shall be carried out in edismniminatory and transparent manner and may

affect customers only to the extent necessary to ensure a secure supply of suffiitties of

natural gas to protected customers. The emergency plan shall be published by the gas system operator
on its website and sent to the Agency.

(3) If, due to the scope and duration of exceptional circumstances, the planned emergency measures
referred to in the preceding paragraph cannot ensure a secure supply of natural gas to protected
customers, gas system operators shagardless of their contractual obligations to their suppliers,
users and customers under the emergency-plauce ornterrupt the consumption of natural gas at
consumption points of individual types of customers or their appliances.

(4) Customers other than household consumers shall communicate the data on their appliances to gas
system operators to whose networks tamyconnected with a view to implementing the measure to
reduce and interrupt consumption, as referred to in the preceding paragraph. If these data are not
communicated, gas system operators may take a decision on the basis of the data availablé or genera
capacities of appliances of individual type of customers. The data reporting forms for appliances shall
be prepared by gas system operators and published on their websites.



(5) The sequence of reducing or interrupting the consumption of natural gpedmf customers and

their appliances shall be laid down by the Agency in the Emergency Plan, taking into consideration the
manner of use of natural gas by individual types of customers, the need to consume natural gas with
the aim of ensuring the life drhealth of people, and the type and scope of damage which may be
caused to individual types of custombysa reduction or interruption in the consumption of natural

gas.

(6) Gas system operators shall immediately notify the Agency, in electroni@fatnm writing, of
every implemented emergency measure.

(7) Gas system operators, natural gas suppliers or customers shall cover their own costs for the
implementation of emergency measures and/or measures to reduce or interrupt consumption referred
to inthe third paragraph of this Article, and shall cover the damage sustained for this reason. In the
event of force majeure, they shall not be liable for damage caused to third persons due to a violation
of, or failure to comply with, a contract.

Subsectia 3: Special provisions on the protection of household and small business customers and
other system users

Article 170
(General)

(1) The provisions of Articles 171, 172, 173, 174, 175 and 176 of this Act shall apply to household
customers, while the prasibns of Articles 171 and 172 shall also apply to small business customers,
except to the extent that they refer to the handling of complaints referred to in ArticldHers
provision of Article 174 shall apply to all system users.

(2) The supplier or thgas DSO may nediscriminatorily guarantee the rights determined in this
subsection for household customers also to other final customers.

Article 171
(Single point of contact)

(1) The Agency shall provide for household customers a single point afsatcformation on their
rights, valid regulations and general acts for the exercise of public authority and the methods for
handling complaints referred to in Article 175 that are available to customers in the event of a dispute
with a supplier or gas 80 (hereinafter: single point of contact).

(2) The single point of contact shall provide the Agency access to at least information on:
methods for handling complaints referred to in the preceding paragraph;

- a comparison of applicable regular price lisfsnatural gas suppliers for household and small
business customers, without a comparison of promotional or package price lists; and network
charge tariffs and standard terms and conditions on access to, and use of, these services;

- method of acquiring daton their consumption;

- right to switch suppliers;

- their rights to be supplied, in accordance with the regulations and general legal acts in force, with
natural gas of a specified quality at reasonable prices;

- rights to the emergency supply referred téiticle 176 of this Act

(3) For the performance of the tasks referred to in the second indent of the preceding paragraph,
suppliers shall communicate the data on changes in prices to the Agency in an electronic manner, as



laid down by the general act tife Agency, by the date of application of the changed price at the
latest.

(4) The Agency shall issue a general act determining the manner of electronic communication of data
for the performance of the tasks referred to in the second indent of the pacagidph of this Article

by which it shall determine the system for communicating data on prices and the manner of use of the
system, or a form for the electronic communication of data.

Article 172
(Supply contract and general terms and conditions)

(1) The natural gas supply contract between a household customer and a natural gas supplier shall be
concluded in writing, or in electronic form in accordance with the regulations on electronic commerce.

(2) The contract referred to in the preceding paplgishall determine at least the following:

- the identity and address of the supplier;

- price and terms of payment;

- rights and obligations of the contracting parties with respect tacompliance with the contract;

- types of services provided by the suppknd the level of service quality offered;

- the means by which uj@-date information on applicable tariffs and maintenance charges may be
obtained;

- the duration of the contract, the conditions for the renewal and termination of services or of the
contra¢, and whether withdrawal from the contract without charge is permitted,;

- any compensation and the refund arrangements which apply if the contracted service quality levels
are not met, including inaccurate and delayed billing of supplied natural gas demaaice
services;

- the method of initiating procedures for handling complaints under Article 175 of this Act, and

- information relating to household customer rights, including on the complaint handling referred to
in Article 175 of this Act, and all of thenformation that suppliers must clearly communicate
through billing or their web sites.

(3) A household customer may withdraw from a supply contract without paying a penalty, damages,
compensation or any other form of payment for reasons of withdrawallfre contract prior to the
expiry of the set time limit, provided that such withdrawal takes effect at least one year following the
conclusion of the contract.

(4) Due to switching suppliers, a household customer may withdraw from a contract witbout pri

notice. If withdrawal from a contract as referred to in the preceding paragraph takes effect prior to one
year following the conclusion of the contract, the customer shall be obliged to bear the consequences
of early withdrawal laid down in the supplgrtract.

(5) The general terms and conditions, which form an integral part of the supply contract, should be fair
and weltknown in advance, and should be provided to the household customer prior to concluding a
contract even where contracts are conclutiealigh intermediaries. The general terms and conditions
shall be stated in clear and comprehensible language and shall not inclwmtrantual barriers to

the exercise of customers' rights, such as excessive contractual documentation. Custorbers shall
protected against unfair or misleading sales methods of gas suppliers. Gas suppliers shall provide
household customers with transparent information on applicable prices and tariffs and on standard
terms and conditions in respect of natural gas supjalideast by publishing these on their website.

(6) Gas suppliers shall notify their household customers directly, in a transparent and comprehensible
manner, of any change in standard contractual terms and conditions at least one month prior to their



taking effect, in particular, where such changes apply to compliance with the contract concluded with
a household customer.

(7) Due to a modification of the standard terms and conditions referred to in the preceding paragraph,
household consumers shallieahe right to withdraw from a gas supply contract within one month
following the entry into force of the modified general terms and conditions without notice and without
being subject to a penalty payment, which will be communicated by the gas supgiEnbtification
referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(8) Gas suppliers shall notify their household customers, directly and in a transparent and
comprehensible manner, of any increase in the natural gas price before the expiry of the billing period
after the increase comes into effect. The provisions referred to in the preceding paragraph shall also
apply to any increase in the natural gas price that may imply an increase in the payment for natural gas
for the household customers.

(9) The supplieshall offer household customers a wide choice of payment methods, including
prepayment systems, which shall be fair and adequately reflect probable consumption. Payment
methods shall not unduly discriminate between customers. Any difference in priegraacnd
conditions shall reflect the costs to the supplier of the different payment systems.

(10) Suppliers may charge household customers for operating costs erateflasis, regardless of
how these costs are designated in the offered promotodgbackage price lists. Household
customers shall not be charged for-fliatie operating costs on the basis of a regular price list. In the
case of late payment, the costs of the reminder shall not be deemedats fhgerating costs.

Article 173
(Information and access to consumption data)

(1) When connected to the natural gas system, household customers shall be informed by the gas DSO
about their right to be supplied, in accordance with the regulations and general legal acts in force, with
natural gas of a specified quality at reasonable prices.

(2) A gas DSO, at the request of a household customer or on the basis of its authorisation for each case
separately or for all future cases until its revocation, shall enable a natural gas undégaldegess

to its consumption data. The gas DSO as a party responsible for data management shall be obliged to
provide these data to the undertaking within a period of five working days.

(3) The minister responsible for energy shall define a formahéodata and a procedure enabling
suppliers and customers access to the data referred to in the preceding paragraph. No additional costs
shall be charged by the gas DSO for this service.

(4) The gas DSO shall ensure that household customers connettedystem where it carries out

the function of a system operator are informed at least once a year of their actual gas consumption and
costs. The information shall be provided within a sufficient time frame which takes account of the
capacity ofthecustner 6 s met er i ng e-gfficienpyroesach measurds. Klohe cos't
additional costs shall be charged by the gas DSO to the customers for this service.

Article 174
(Intelligent metering systems)

(1) The gas DSO shall provide household customersimtghHigent metering systems that encourage
the active participation of customers in the gas supply market.



(2) The Government shall prescribe the measures and determine Hietimedor the introduction of
intelligent metering systems by taking irocount an economic assessment of the suitability of the
form of intelligent metering, the relevant tiframe and the interoperability of intelligent metering
systems for the development of the internal gas supply market; such assessment shall Berubgierta
the Agency.

Article 175
(Handling the complaints of household customers relating to gas supply)

(1) The natural gas supplier shall provide household customers with transparent, simple and
inexpensive procedures for dealing with their compfaint

(2) For the purpose referred to in the preceding paragraph, the supplier alone or with other suppliers
within the Association shall appoint an independent and impatrtial person or several persons
responsible for the treatment of complaints and to whousehold customers shall address their
complaints in relation to alleged violations of the supplier in implementing a natural gas supply
contract.

(3) The independence of the persons appointed shall be guaranteed by the following measures:

- the persomappointed shall possess the abilities, experience and competence, particularly in the
field of law, required to settle such disputes;

- the person shall be appointed for a period of office of six years and shall not be liable to be
relieved of his duties expt in justified cases of nezompliance with the conditions laid down in
this paragraph;

- the person concerned cannot be appointed if, during theyheggeriod prior to the appointment,
the person has worked for the same supplier or association cedcer

(4) A supplier shall provide the household customer with the following information, in writing or any

other suitable form:

- a precise description of the types of complaint to be decided upon by the person appointed, as
well as any existing restrictisrand the value of the disputed claim;

- the rules governing the referral of the matter to the person appointed, including any requirements
that the household customer may have to meet, as well as other procedural rules, notably those
concerning the writteor oral nature of the procedure, attendance in person and the languages of
the procedure;

- the rules serving as the basis for decisions;

- the types of decision to be taken in the procedure referred to in the first paragraph of this Article.

(5) The perso appointed shall decide on complaints within two months following their receipt. The
decision shall be binding on the supplier if the customer confirms it by means of a written statement
within eight days of its receipt. If the customer disagrees witdebesion, he may bring an action

before the court.

(6) The supplier or assaociation referred to in the second paragraph may determine a system of
reimbursement and compensation for customers which shall apply to individual breaches of their
obligations réating to supply, provided this is justifiable given the amount of damage, gravity of the
breach and level of responsibility.

(7) The procedure by which the person appointed handles complaints shall comply with the following

principles:

- the two parties@ncerned shall be permitted to present their viewpoints and to hear the arguments
of the other party, and any expert statements;



- simplicity of procedure, which allows the customer to take part in the procedure without recourse
to a legal representative;

- the procedure shall be free of charge;

- the person appointed shall be given an active role in the procedure, enabling him to take into
consideration any facts conducive to decision making about the complaint;

- a decision on the complaint shall be communttatethe parties concerned, stating the grounds
on which it is based.

(8) More detailed rules on the appointment of persons for handling complaints, information to
household customers on complaint handling, the system of reimbursement and compers#i®n an
procedure for complaint handling shall be laid down by the supplier or association of suppliers and
shall be made public.

(9) The costs of the procedure incurred by the person or persons appointed shall be covered by the
supplier or the associatioapresenting the suppliers.

(10) The supplier or the association representing suppliers shall annually publish on its website a
report on complaints that have been settled.

Article 176
(Vulnerable customers and emergency supply)

(1) A gas DSO shall naisconnect a vulnerable customer from the gas supply or restrict his
consumption of natural gas before it reaches a quantity that is absolutely necessary in view of the
circumstances (season, temperatures, place of residence, health condition amahitgher s
circumstances) in order not to jeopardise life and health of the customer and persons living in his
household.

(2) The costs of vulnerable customers for natural gas consumption shall be covered by the gas DSO
until they are settled by the vulnetalzustomer.

(3) The costs referred to in the preceding paragraph which the gas DSO is unable to recover from
vulnerable customers shall be the eligible costs of the operator concerned.

(4) Prior to disconnection, the gas DSO shall notify the custonmtbegfossibilities of emergency
supply and of the evidence to be provided by the customer in order to be approved for emergency
supply by the operator, and of the time limits within which such evidence must be submitted. The gas
DSOshall lay down detaileclles on the protection of vulnerable customers in connection with a
continued natural gas supply in the Network Code.
Chapter Il: TRANSMISSION, STORAGE AND LNG
Section 1: Service of general economic intefegis TSO
Article 177
(Service of genal economic interest)

(1) Gas TSO activity shall be an obligatory state service of general economic interest.

(2) The gas TSO service of general economic interest shall include:
- transmission;



- secure, reliable and efficient operation and maintenance dfghsmission system;

- development of the system that takes into account the anticipated needs of system users, the
requirements concerning safe and reliable system operation, and the guidelines from the
development plan of the gas TSO referred to in A8 and/ or Article 200 of this Act

- provision of the longerm ability of the transmission system to meet reasonable demand for
connection and access to the system;

- provision of security of a natural gas supply through adequate capacity and systaitityrelia

- provision of ancillary services;

- determining and charging for natural gas supply and consumption imbalances against the forecast;
- providing to any other gas TSO, any other storage system operator, any other LNG system
operator and/or any gas DSQiffcient information to ensure that the transport and storage of
natural gas may take place in a manner compatible with the secure and efficient operation of the

interconnected system;

- provision of information to system users of data they need forasfficiccess to the system;

- establishment and supervision of mechanisms for flow control and imbalance settlement in the
network defined in the natural gas transmission Network Code;

- forecast of natural gas consumption and necessary energy sources by ihr@anmprehensive
planning method, taking due account of saving measures imposed on the system users;

- nondiscriminatory treatment of individual system users or types of system users, particularly not
in favour of its related undertakings;

- other duties mscribed by law, regulations or the general act on the exercise of public authority;

- organisation of the balancing market for natural gas.

(3) Gas TSO service of general economic interest shall be provided by a gas TSO that has been
granted a concessiondmeets the requirements referred to in the third paragraph of Article 178 of
this Act

(4) All gas TSOs shall be obliged to build sufficient ckbesder capacity to integrate European
transmission infrastructure, accommodating all economically reasomadh technically feasible
demands for capacity and taking into account the security of gas supply.

(5) Gas TSOs shall procure the energy they use to perform their functions according to transparent,
nontdiscriminatory and markdiased procedures.

Article 178
(Method of providing a gas TSO service of general economic interest)

(1) The Republic of Slovenia as concession grantor shall grant the concession to provide the gas TSO
services of general economic interest throughout the territory of the RepiuBlovenia for a period
not exceeding 35 years.

(2) The concession referred to in the preceding paragraph shall not include the granting of special
exclusive rights.

(3) Gas TSO activity may be performed by a concessionaire that fulfils the fajloagnirements:
- 0owns a transmission system,

- holds a gas TSO certificate, and

- has been designated as a gas TSO.

(4) If it fails to meet the operational requirements for gas TSO activity referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the transmission systermemshall fulfil these requirements not later than within one year
from the validity of the operating permit for the transmission system; otherwise, the provisions



concerning measures in the case of a cessation of gas TSO activity set out in ArticlehiSLAaif
shall apply

(5) The Government shall lay down by a decree the detailed rules for the provision of the gas TSO
service of general economic interest.

Article 179
(Granting of concessions)

(1) For the granting of a concession for the provisibgas TSO service of general economic interest,
the regulations governing services of general economic interest and-giNgdie partnership shall
apply, unless particular issues are regulated otherwise by this Act.

(2) The concession act, to be pgabkd in Uradni list Republike Slovenije, shall determine general,
transparent, nediscriminatory and proportional conditions that a legal or natural person must fulfil in
order to be granted a concession. The ownership of a transmission system oit,pagasf TSO

certificate and a gas TSO designation shall not be conditions for obtaining a concession. If the
concession grantor enables the concessionaire to obtain real rights in real estate owned by the state or
other benefits concerning the operatidrthe concession, such benefits shall be offered to all
concessionaires on equal terms.

(3) The concession may be granted by any legal or natural person established in an EU Member State.

(4) The Government shall issue a decision granting a concessibie request of the party concerned.
The granting of a concession shall not be subject to a public tender procedure or to any other
competitive procedure laid down by the regulations governing pphbirate partnerships. For the
procedure for grantindhe decision referred to in this paragraph, the provisions of the law governing
services in the internal market shall apply.

(5) The ministry responsible for energy, within 30 days from the finality of the decision, shall inform
the European Commission ife reasons for refusing to grant the concession.

(6) When the decision on the granting of the concession is final, the grantor shall sign a concession
contract with the concessionaire.

Article 180
(Funding of service of general economic interest)

(1) The gas TSO activity shall be funded from network charges and other revenue for the provision of
the service of general economic interest.

(2) The other revenue referred to in the preceding paragraph shall also include the revenue from cross
border cogestion auctions.

Article 181
(Construction and operation of transmission system)

(1) In the procedure for granting a construction permit for the construction or reconstruction of a
facility or installation that is part of the transmission systemirestor may act as a concessionaire

of the service of general economic interest, performing the gas TSO activity or a third person under
point b) of the fifth paragraph of Article 201 of this Act.



(2) The provision of the preceding paragraph shall atgady to the issuing of an operating permit or
another individual act that permits the operation of an installation or facility that is part of the
transmission system.

(3) The ministry responsible for energy, within 30 days from the finality of theidadssued by the

state authority, local community authority or a bearer of public authority, by which the concessionaire
of gas TSO service of general economic interest was prevented from implementing the investment
and/or operating the facility or indi&ion that is part of the transmission system, shall inform the
European Commission thereof.

Section 2: Unbundling of transmission systems and gas TSOs

Subsection 1: Ownership unbundling

Article 182
(Transmission system ownership)

(1) A legal or mtural person that owns a transmission system shall perform the function of a gas TSO
in accordance with this Act. A person other than the gas TSO may not, in whole or in part, own the
transmission system on which the gas TSO performs the TSO activigswtherwise provided by

this Part of the Act.

(2) The obligation set out in the preceding paragraph shall be deemed to be fulfilled in a situation
where two or more legal or natural persons that own transmission systems have created a joint venture
which acts as a gas TSO in two or more European Union Member States. No other undertaking may
be part of the joint venture, unless it has been approved as an independent transmission operator. The
owners of the transmission system that have created a jotoreeshall meet the requirements

referred to in Articles 183, 185 and 186 of this Act or the requirements for an independent
transmission operator under Article 189 of this Act.

Article 183
(Restrictions applying to producers, suppliers, gas systematopg and persons exercising control
over them)

(1) The same legal or natural person or the same legal or natural persons may not:

- directly or indirectly exercise control, as referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act, of an
undertaking performig any of the functions of production or supply, and at the same time directly
or indirectly exercise control as referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act of a gas TSO or
of transmission system, or exercise any right over them; or

- directly or indiectly exercise the control referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act of a gas
TSO or of a transmission system, and at the same time directly or indirectly exercise control as
referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act of an undertakindgearing any of the functions
of production or supply, or exercise any right over them

(2) An undertaking performing any of the function of production or supply referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall also be deemed to be an undertakingerforms any of the functions

of production and supply in the meaning of Part Il of this Act, which governs electricity. A gas TSO
and transmission system as per the first paragraph of this Article shall also be deemed to be the
electricity TSO and tr@smission system in the meaning of Part Il of this Act, which governs
electricity.



(3) The same natural or legal person or persons shall not be entitled to appoint a member or members
(hereinafter: member) of the supervisory board, the administrativd bo&aodies legally representing

the undertaking, of a gas TSO or transmission system, and at the same time be entitled directly or
indirectly to exercise the control referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act or exercise any right
over an undertdng performing any of the functions of production or supply.

(4) The provisions of this Article shall not constitute a derogation from the requirement referred to in
the first paragraph of Article 182 of this Act

Article 184
(Definition of rights)

The rights referred to in the first and third paragraphs of the preceding Article shall include, in
particular:

(a) the power to exercise voting rights;

(b) the power to appoint members of the supervisory board, the administrative board or bodies legally
representing the undertaking; or

(c) the holding of a share that exceeds half of the share capital or shares of the undertaking.

Article 185
(Prohibitions concerning membership of bodies)

The same legal or natural person shall not simultaneously be:

- a nember of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body legally representing the
undertaking at a transmission system operator or person which owns a transmission system, or a
representative related to the corporate governance of an eledtdacigynission system or natural
gas transmission system, and

- a member of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body legally representing the
undertaking performing the functions of production or supply of natural gas or electricity.

Article 186
(Special provision in the event of state ownership)

When the person referred to in Articles 183 or 185 of this Act is the Republic of Slovenia or another
European Union Member State, a local community or an authority of these persons, the ratglireme
referred to in Articles 183 and 185 of this Act shall be deemed to be fulfilled when two separate
authorities of these persons exercise the control referred to point 17 of Article 159 of this Act of a gas
TSO or transmission system and of an undertpggrforming the activities in the field of production

or supply

Article 187
(Obligation to take measures to eliminate reasons that constitute violations of prohibitions)

(1) A person in relation to whom a reason arises that constitutes a violatierefjuirements

referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 or 186 of this Act shall be obliged to promptly take all necessary
measures to eliminate the reason and notify the Agency of the occurrence of such reason and the
measures



(2) As soon as the gas TS aware of a reason that constitutes a violation in relation to the
requirements referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 or 186 of this Act, the gas TSO shall notify the
Agency under the preceding paragraph of this Article and take all measures in itsgelivainate

the reason

(3) The gas TSO shall also notify the Agency of any planned transaction that might require a re
examination of compliance with the requirements referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 or 186 of this
Act.

(4) The Agency shall exeise control of compliance with the requirements referred to in Articles 182,
183, 185 and 186 of this Adtvhere the Agency, during the exercise of control, finds a reason that
constitutes a violation has occurred in relation to a certain person, itlshalthe attention of that

person to the reason and the obligation to take measures under the first or second paragraph of this
Article.

Article 188
(Agency measures)

(1) If the reason concerning the requirements referred to in Articles 182, 18%, 186 of this Act

has not been eliminated in a reasonable period not shorter than one month and not longer than six
months from the day of notification of the reason under the first, second or third paragraph of the
preceding Article, or in the period wi¢he Agency drew attention to the reason in accordance with
the fourth paragraph of the preceding Article, the Agency shall, by way of a decision

- prohibit the exercise of voting rights or exercise of ownership entitlements pertaining to the
managemenf less than a half of the equity stake contrary to Article 183 of this Act

- impose the sale of the share in capital stock or an equity stake in a transmission system insofar as
this exceeds a share not constituting a violation of Article 183 of this Act;

- find that a member of the administrative board, supervisory board or other body representing the
undertaking was appointed contrary to this Act or that the person who represents the transmission
system owner has been authorised contrary to this Act, rapdge to the competent authority the
commencement of a procedure for the dismissal or withdrawal of the authorisation;

- prohibit the exercise of indirect or direct control referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act

(2) The Agency may, by meansafiecision, impose one or more of the measures referred to in the
preceding paragraph of this Article to the extent necessary to eliminate the reason for the violation of
the requirements referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 or 186 of this Act

(3) If the decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article must be executed forcibly, individual
financial penalties in the forcible execution procedure shall not exceed EUR 100,000, notwithstanding
the rules of the act governing the general admirnig&@rocedure

(4) When the reason for the violation of the requirements referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 or 186

cannot be eliminated by the measures referred to in this Article, the Agency shall initiate a procedure
to testing the conditions for etcertificate

Subsection 2: Independent transmission operator



Article 189
(Exemption from ownership unbundling)

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 182, 183 and 185 of this Act, the gas TSO
functioning as a vertically integrated undertakiwhich on the date of 3 September 2009 was
the transmission system owner, shall comply with the requirements in Articles 189 to 202 of
this Act.

(2) Undertakings performing the functions of production or supply shall not assume direct or
indirect supevision as referred to in Article 159, point 17 of this Act or exercise the rights
under Article 184 of this Act over gas TSOs functioning under provisions of Articles 182 to
188 of this Act.

Article 190
(Legal status, identity and activities of indegent transmission operator)

(1) The legal form of the gas TSO shall be that of a public limited company, limited liability
company or limited partnership.

(2) The functions of the gas TSO shall include at least the following tasks:

a) the representatioof the gas TSO in legal transactions and in any communication with the
Agency, other regulatory bodies or third persons;

b) the representation of the gas TSO within the European Network of Transmission System
Operators for Gas (ENTSO for Gas);

c) decisims on granting access to the system and performance of activities necessary for its
operation without discriminating between system users or types of system users, particularly
in favour of its related undertakings;

| ) the coll ect i dothetrdnsmissidnsystémar ges r el at ed
d) the operation, maintenance and development of a secure, efficient and economic
transmission system;

e) investment planning that ensures the {targh capacity of the system to meet reasonable
demand and to guarantee the siggwf supply;

f) establishing appropriate joint ventures, including with one or more gas TSOs, gas
exchanges, and other relevant actors pursuing the objective of developing the creation of
regional markets or to facilitate the liberalisation process; and

g) all corporate services, including legal services, accountancy and IT services, and

h) other tasks relating to the gas TSO as laid down by this Act.

(3) The gas TSO shall not, in its corporate identity, communication, branding and premises,
create cofusion in respect of the separate identity of the vertically integrated undertaking or
any part thereof.

(4) Regardless of its legal form, an undertaking constituting the gas TSO shall have bodies
that the act governing companies defines with respegptblec limited company. Unless
determined otherwise by this Act, the tasks and responsibilities of the gas TSOs bodies shall
mutatis mutandibe subject to the provisions of the act governing companies with respect to
public limited company bodies.



(5) The gas TSO shall not have a singigg management system within the meaning of the
act governing companies.

(6) The gas TSO partners shall not manage the undertaking directly or conduct its business.

Article 191
(Assets, equipment and staff)

(1) GasTSOs shall dispose of all the human, technical, physical and financial resources
needed to fulfil their obligations and carry out the activity of natural gas transmission.

(2) Assets that are necessary for the activity of natural gas transmission ngcheli

transmission system, shall be fully owned by the gas TSO. The transmission system by means
of which the gas TSO performs the activity of natural gas transmission shall not be owned,
fully or in part, by any other person.

(3) The personnel necesgdor the activity of natural gas transmission, including the
performance of all corporate tasks, shall be employed by the gas TSO.

(4) Leasing of personnel and rendering of services, to and from any other parts of the
vertically integrated undertaking prohibited.

(5) However, TSOs may render services to the vertically integrated undertaking provided that:
a) the provision of those services does not discriminate between system users, is available to
all system users on the same terms and conditiodsid@es not restrict, distort or prevent
competition in production or supply; and

b) the terms and conditions of the provision of the aforesaid services are approved by the
Agency prior to commencing the provision of such services.

(6) The TSO shall nathare IT systems or equipment, physical premises or security access
systems with any part of the vertically integrated undertaking, or use the same consultants or
external contractors for IT systems or equipment, or security access systems.

Article 192
(Resources and financial independence of gas TSO)

(1) The gas TSO shall ensure it has the financial and other resources it needs to carry out the
function of a gas TSO correctly and efficiently and to develop and maintain an efficient,
secure and economiransmission system.

(2) Without prejudice to the decisions of the supervisory body referred to in Article 196 of

this Act, appropriate financial resources for future investment projects and for the replacement
of existing assets shall be made availablthe gas TSO in due time by the vertically

integrated undertaking, following an appropriate request from the gas TSO.

(3) The TSO shall inform the Agency of the financial resources referred to in the preceding
paragraph.



(4) Without prejudice to theettisions of the supervisory body under Article 196 of this Act,

the gas TSO shall have the power to raise funds on the capital market, in particular through
borrowing and capital increase. Notwithstanding the act governing companies, the decision on
raising a loan or issuing debt securities shall be taken by the gas TSO management, and the
decision on the TSOs capital increase by the supervisory body referred to in Article 196 of
this Act.

(5) The TSO, independently of the vertically integrated undeigakimall have effective
decisionmaking rights with respect to the assets required to operate, maintain or develop the
transmission system. Without prejudice to the decisions of the supervisory body under Article
196 of this Act, the gas TSO managementhinithe limits of its competence and
responsibilities, shall take the necessary decisions independently with respect to the assets
required to operate, maintain or develop the transmission system.

(6) The accounts of gas TSOs shall be audited by armawditer than one that audits the
vertically integrated undertaking or any part thereof.

Article 193
(Commercial, financial and capital relations in vertically integrated undertakings)

(1) Any commercial and financial relations between the verticalbgnated undertaking and
the gas TSO shall comply with market conditions. The gas TSO shall not provide loans to the
vertically integrated undertaking.

(2) The gas TSO shall keep detailed records of the commercial and financial relations referred
to in the preceding paragraph and make them available to the Agency upon request.

(3) The TSO shall submit for approval by the Agency all commercial and financial contracts
and agreements with the vertically integrated undertaking.

(4) Any agreements as refedrto in the preceding paragraph which fail to obtain the approval
of the Agency shall be deemed null and void.

(5) Subsidiaries of the vertically integrated undertaking that perform functions of production
or supply shall have no direct or indirect shatding in the gas TSO.

(6) The gas TSO shall have neither any direct or indirect shareholding in any subsidiary of the
vertically integrated undertaking performing functions of production or supply, nor receive
dividends or any other financial benefibiin that subsidiary.

Article 194
(Independence of the gas TSO)

(1) The overall management structure, including memoranda and/or articles of association of
the gas TSO, shall ensure the effective independence of the gas TSO in compliance with
Articles 189to Article 202 of this Act.



(2) The vertically integrated undertaking shall not determine through its representatives in the
gas TSO bodies, directly or indirectly, the competitive behaviour of the gas TSO in relation to
its activities and managementtbe network, or in relation to activities necessary for

preparing a tetyear network development plan developed pursuant to Article 200 of this Act.

(3) In fulfilling its tasks under this Act, and in complying with first paragraph of Article 13,
point a)of the first paragraph of Article 14, second, third and fifth paragraph of Article 16,
sixth paragraph of Article 18 and first paragraph of Article 21 of Regulation (EC) No
715/2009, the TSO shall not discriminate against different persons or entitigisadinubt
restrict, distort or prevent competition in production or supply.

(4) The vertically integrated undertaking shall refrain from any action preventing the gas TSO
from complying with its obligations under this Act or exerting influence on itshiatl not

require the gas TSO to seek permission from the vertically integrated undertaking to fulfil
those obligations.

(5) The gas TSO management, within the framework of its competences and responsibilities,
shall independently take the necessarysiecss and perform the necessary activities to
ensure the independent behaviour on the part of the gas TSO.

Article 195
(Independence of staff)

(1) Decisions regarding appointment, remuneration, and termination of the term of office of
the gas TS@dministrative board members shall be taken by the supervisory body of the gas
TSO referred to in Article 196 of this Act.

(2) The supervisory body shall notify in writing the Agency of any appointment, termination

of the term of office or other decisi®ion the conditions governing the term of office of the

gas TSO administrative board members and of the persons responsible for the executive
management, its duration and termination, and of the reasons for any proposed termination of
the term of office othese persons.

(3) The decisions referred to in the first paragraph shall become binding only if the Agency
raises no objections within three weeks of notification.

(4) The Agency may object to the decisions referred to in the first and second paadraph
this Article when doubts arise as to:

a) the professional independence of a person appointed as a member of the administrative
board, or

b) the justification of eventual premature termination of the person's term of office.

(5) As a person responséfor management of a particular area and/or as a member of the
administrative board of the gas TSO, a person may be appointed who, in the period of three
years prior to the appointment, had no professional position or responsibility, interest or
businesselationship, directly or indirectly, with the vertically integrated undertaking or any
part of it or its controlling shareholders and/or partners other than the gas TSO..



(6) The preceding paragraph shall apply to the majority of persons responsible for
management and members of the administrative board of the gas TSO. The remaining gas
TSO management members shall be subject to a condition that they have exercised no
management or other relevant function in the vertically integrated undertaking foochgfe

at least six months prior to their appointment.

(7) The persons responsible for management, members of the administrative bodies and
employees of the gas TSO shall have no other professional position or responsibility, interest
or business relatieship, directly or indirectly, relating to any other part of the vertically
integrated undertaking other than the gas TSO, nor shall they obtain any financial benefit
from it and shall have no business relationship with its controlling shareholders and/or
partners.

(8) The remuneration of persons responsible for management, members of the administrative
board and employees of the gas TSO shall not depend on the activities or results of the
vertically integrated undertaking other than those of the gas TSO.

(9) The president, a member of the administrative board or any other person responsible for
the management of a particular area of the gas TSO with a limited term of office may exercise
his/her right of appeal against a decision by the gas TSO or @seoflies due to which

his/her term of office is prematurely terminated. A request for legal protection against
premature termination of office shall be subject to a decision by the Agency pursuant to the
procedure laid down in Articles 414 to 419 of tAid.

(10) After the termination of their term of office in the gas TSO, persons responsible for the
management of a particular area and members of the administrative board shall have no
professional position or responsibility, interest or businessaesdtip relating to any part of

the vertically integrated undertaking other than the gas TSO, or relating to its controlling
shareholders and/or partners, for a period of not less than four years.

(11) The controlling shareholders and/or partners withenmeaning of the fifth, seventh and
preceding paragraph shall be persons or a person whose share of voting rights, separately or
jointly, attains the takeover threshold under the act governing takeovers.

(12) The fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth, nintenth and the preceding paragraph of this Article

shall be applicable to those persons responsible for the executive management of the gas TSO,
and to those directly reporting to them on matters related to the operation, maintenance and
development of thaetwork.

(13) The decisions referred to in the seventh and eighth paragraph of Article 196 shall be
taken independently by the gas TSO management within the framework of its competences
and responsibilities.

Article 196
(Supervisory body)

(1) The ga TSO shall have a supervisory body established pursuant to the provisions of this
Article.



(2) The supervisory body shall be the gas TSO supervisory board. The supervisory board may
perform its functions and powers according to the act governing corsganidded this is
not contrary to the provisions of this Act or to European Union regulations.

(3) The supervisory body shall consist of the following members:

- representatives of the vertically integrated undertaking, or representatives of an
undertalkng which under the act governing company takeovers is deemed to be
operating in concert with the vertically integrated undertaking;

- representatives of third party shareholders pursuant to the relevant gas TSOs rules;

- worker representatives under @& governing worker participation in management.

(4) A decision concerning the early termination of the term of office of the supervisory
body's president or a member shall be subject to the application of point b) of the fourth
paragraph of Article 1®of this Act.

(5) The president, deputyresidents and a sufficient number of members, which taken
together constitute more than a half of the total supervisory body's membership, shall be
subject to the application of second, third, fifth, seventthtejginth, tenth and eleventh
paragraph of Article 195 of this Act. All supervisory body members shall provide for the
protection of commercially sensitive information obtained as a result of their membership of
the supervisory body.

(6) The supervisgrbody shall take decisions which may have a significant impact on the
value of the assets of the shareholders within the gas TSO, in particular decisions regarding:
- the approval of annual and longerm financial plans;

- the level of indebtedness of thas TSO, and

- the amount of dividends distributed to shareholders.

(7) Decisions falling under the remit of the supervisory body shall not include those that are
related to the dato-day activities of the gas TSO and management of the network, ingludin
the conclusion of related legal transactions and decision making related to their
implementation.

(8) The supervisory body shall not take decisions which would have an impact on activities
necessary for preparing the tg@ar network development planrpuant to Article 200 of this
Act, or which would be related to them.

Article 197
(Compliance programme)

(1) The TSO shall establish a compliance programme which sets out the objectives and
measures taken to ensure that discriminatory conduct is exiladd the specific obligations
of employees to meet those objectives.

(2) Prior to its implementation, the compliance programme shall be subject to approval by the
Agency.



t hetscompliance

(3) The TSO shall provide for
the measures take

monitoring. The system and
monitoring shall be constituent parts of the programme.

(4) Without prejudice to the powers of the Agency, compliance with the programme shall be
independently mdtored by a compliance officer, pursuant to Articles 198 and 199 of this
Act.

(5) When the gas TSO patrticipates in a joint undertaking referred to in Article 182 of this Act,

the compliance programme shall be developed and implemented by the jointkingefthe

compliance programme shall lay down the specific obligations of employees in the joint
undertaking which they have to meet in order to exclude discriminatory ancbametitive

conduct. The programme mentioned in the preceding sentence sapfiroged by ACER

and shall not be subject to the application of the second paragraph of this Article. Compliance
with the programmeds objectives shall be ind
of the gas TSOs integrated in the joint undertgkin

Article 198
(Compliance officer)

(1) The gas TSO supervisory body shall appoint a compliance officer who may be a natural or
physical person.

(2) The appointment of the compliance officer shall be subject to approval by the Agency.

(3) The Agencynay refuse to give consent to the appointment of compliance officer due to
his lack of independence or professional ability.

(4) The supervisory body may, following prior consent from the Agency, relieve the
compliance officer of duty. At the proposdltbe Agency, the supervisory body shall relieve
the compliance officer of duty if the reasons for such a proposal are justified on the grounds
of a lack of independence or of professional ability.

(5) The conditions governing the compliance officerandate, the duration and termination
of office shall be adopted by the supervisory body following the prior approval of the Agency.

(6) The conditions referred to in the preceding paragraph shall ensure the independence of the
compliance officer, includg by providing him/her with all the resources required to fulfil
his/her duties.

(7) During his mandate, the compliance officer shall have no other professional position,
responsibility or interest, directly or indirectly, in or with any part of teaigally integrated
undertaking or with its controlling shareholders and/or partners.

(8) The compliance officer shall be subject to the provisions of the second, fourth, fifth, sixth,
seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth and eleventh paragraph of Articlefii d\ct.



Article 199
(Tasks and powers of the compliance officer)

(1) The compliance officer shall be responsible for:

(a) monitoring the implementation of the compliance programme;

(b) elaborating an annual report that sets out the measures takderino implement the
compliance programme and submitting it to the Agency;

(c) reporting to the supervisory body and issuing recommendations on the compliance
programme and its implementation;

(d) notifying the Agency in writing of any substantial biee€ with regard to the
implementation of the compliance programme; and

(e) reporting to the Agency on any commercial and financial relations between the
vertically integrated undertaking and the gas TSO.

(2) The compliance officer shall submit the progbdecisions on the investment plan or on
individual investments in the network to the Agency; this shall occur at the latest when the
management body of the gas TSO submits them to the supervisory body.

(3) Where the vertically integrated undertakingha gas TSOs general assembly, or through
the vote of members of the supervisory body it has appointed, prevents the adoption of a
decision which has the effect of preventing or delaying investments which under-yleaten
network development plan werelie executed in the ensuing three years, the compliance
officer shall report this to the Agency, which then shall act in accordance with Article 201 of
this Act.

(4) The compliance officer shall report regularly to the Agency, either orally or in wigtal,
shall have the right to report regularly, either orally or in writing, to the supervisory body of
the gas TSO.

(5) The compliance officer may attend the meetings of the gas TSO management body, and
those of the supervisory body and the general asggemb

(6) The compliance officer shall attend all meetings that address the following matters:

a) conditions for access to the network, as defined in Regulation (EC) No 715/2009, in
particular regarding tariffs, third party access services, capacity tiblo@ad congestion
management, transparency, balancing and secondary markets;

(b) projects undertaken in order to operate, maintain and develop the transmission system,
including investments in new transmission connections, in expansion of capacity and in
optimising existing capacity;

(c) energy purchases or sales necessary for the operation of the transmission system.

(7) The compliance officer shall monitor the compliance of the gas TSO with Articles 214 and
215 of this Act.

(8) The compliance officeshall have access to all relevant data and to the offices of the gas
TSO and to all the information necessary to perform his task. The compliance officer shall
have access to the offices of the gas TSO without prior notice.



Article 200
(Network developmet)

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 30 of this Act, the gas TSO shall elaborate a ten
year development plan pursuant to the provisions of this Article.

(2) Annually, by 1 June at the latest, the gas TSO shall submit to the Ageneyeaten
network development plan after consulting all the relevant stakeholders. For the next three
years of this plan, the gas TSO shall submit the plan of investments in compliance with the
tenyear development plan and with the methodology referred to iioting paragraph of
Article 252 of this Act.

(3) The tenyear network development plan shall be based on existing and forecast supply and
demand, and shall contain efficient measures to ensure the adequacy of the system and the
security of supply.

(4) The tenyear network development plan shall, in particular:

(a) indicate to market participants the main transmission infrastructure that needs to be built
or upgraded over the next ten years;

(b) contain all the investments already decided and identiyimeestments which have to be
executed in the next three years; and

(c) provide for a time frame for all investment projects.

(5) When elaborating the tgrear network development plan, the gas TSO shall make
reasonable assumptions about the evolutidgheproduction, supply, consumption and
exchanges with other countries, taking into account investment plans for the networks in the
Republic of Slovenia, regional and European Uniode networks, as well as investment

plans for storage and LNG facilife

(6) The Agency shall consult all actual or potential system users on theaenetwork
development plan in an open and transparent manner. Persons or undertakings claiming to be
potential system users may be required to substantiate such claims.

(7) The Agency shall publish on its web page the results of the consultation process, in
particular possible needs for investments, and shall inform the gas TSO thereof.

(8) The Agency shall examine whether the-year network development plan includéistze
investment needs identified during the consultation process, and whether it is consistent with
the nonbinding European Union teyear network development plan referred to in point b) of

the third paragraph of Article 8 of Regulation (EC) No 71520Dany doubt arises as to
consistency with the European Union network development plan, the Agency shall consult the
ACER.

(9) The Agency may require the gas TSO to amend itggandevelopment plan and to

submit the investment plan for the firsteb years. The gas TSO shall submit to the Agency

the tenyear network development plan consistent with the relevant requirements and the
investment plan within two months, at the latest, of receiving the requirements of the Agency.

(10) The tenyear netwark development plan shall be subject to the approval of the Agency.



Article 201
(Powers to make investment decisions)

(1) The Agency shall monitor and evaluate the implementation of theesgmetwork
development plan.

(2) In circumstances where thas TSO, other than for overriding reasons beyond its control,

does not execute an investment, which, under thgdannetwork development plan, was to

be executed in the following three years and is still relevant on the basis of the most recent

tenyear network development plan, the Agency shall require the transmission operator:

a) to execute the investment in question, or

b) to accept a capital increase to finance the necessary investments and allow independent
investors to participate in the capital

(3) The measures referred to in the previous paragraph shall be subject to a decision by the
Agency.

(4) Where the operator fails to act in compliance with the-timi set in the decision
referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shalemmgait a tender procedure open to
any investors for the investment in question referred to in the second paragraph above.

(5) In the case referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency may by a decision require

the gas TSO to:

a) agree to financingytany third party through debt or equity capital in the gas TSO;

b) agree to financing construction by any third party and, in the event that this is not the gas
TSO, transferring property and other real rights over facilities and devices constitating th
network to the gas TSO, and to establishing the corresponding contractual obligations
between the system operator and the investor;

(c) build the new assets concerned;

(d) operate the new asset concerned.

(6) The provisions referred to in the preced@gagraph do not constitute a derogation from
the requirement made in the second paragraph of Article 191 of this Act.

(7) The TSO shall provide the investors with all the information needed to realise the
investment, shall connect new assets to thermrasson network and shall generally make
every effort to facilitate the implementation of the investment project.

(8) The conclusion of contracts on financing investments under this Article shall be subject to
the approval of the Agency.

(9) The cost®f investments under this Article shall be covered from the network charges,

regardless of the scope of use of the investment.

Article 202
(Connection of storage facilities, LNG facilities and industrial customers)



(1) In the Network Code, the gas TShall specify transparent and efficient procedures and
tariffs for the nordiscriminatory connection of storage facilities, LNG regasification facilities
and industrial customers to the transmission system.

(2) The TSO shall not be entitled to refuse tonnection of a new storage facility, LNG
facility or industrial customer on the grounds of possible future limitations with respect to
available network capacities or additional costs linked to necessary capacity increases.

(3) The TSO shall ensureffigient entry and exit capacity for the new connection.

Article 203
(Monitoring and measures by the Agency)

(1) The Agency shall monitor compliance with the requirements referred to in Articles 189 to
202 of this Act.

(2) In addition to the powers uadthis Act and to the monitoring referred to in the preceding

paragraph, the Agency shall have the following powers:

a) to monitor communications between the gas TSO and the vertically integrated undertaking;

b) to monitor commercial and financial relats including loans, between the vertically
integrated undertaking and the gas TSO;

c) to request justification from the vertically integrated undertaking when notified by the
compliance officer in accordance with Article 195 of this Act.

(3) In the exetise of its powers, the Agency shall monitor the gas TSO, the vertically
integrated undertaking and its related undertakings or other entities subject to the
requirements of Articles 189 to 202 of this Act.

(4) Disputes between the vertically integratediertaking and the gas TSO in respect of
meeting the requirements of Articles 189 to 202 of this Act shall be decided by the Agency in
a disputesettlement procedure.

(5) Commercial and financial agreements between the vertically integrated underntaeiking a
the gas TSO shall be subject to approval by the Agency. The Agency shall give its approval
on the condition that agreements comply with market conditions.

(6) The Agency may assign all or specific tasks of the gas TSO to another gas TSO, in
accordancevith the second and third paragraphs of Article 210 of this Act in the case of a
persistent breach by the gas TSO of its obligations under this Act, in particular in the case of
repeated discriminatory behaviour to the benefit of the vertically integnatiettaking.

(7) If the Agency finds in monitoring that a reason, which constitutes a breach in respect of
these requirements, has arisen in the gas TSO, one of its bodies or a member of such body or
in the vertically integrated undertaking, one of itglies, or in some other person, it shall

require of the entity concerned by a decision that it eliminate the aforementioned reason in a
period not shorter than one month and not longer than six months from the date of the final
decision.



(8) If the deision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article is to be executed by
coercion, individual financial penalties in the execution procedure by coercion shall not
exceed EUR 100,000, notwithstanding the provisions of the act governing the general
administrative procedure.

(9) When the reason for the breach of the requirements referred to in Articles 189 to 202
cannot be eliminated by measures referred to in this Article, the Agency shall initiate the
procedure to test the conditions for the certtBca

Subsection 3: Certification and designation of gas TSOs

Article 204
(Certificate)

(1) The TSO shall be certified.
(2) A certified natural gas TSO is one that holds a certificate.

(3) The Agency shall find in the certification procedure whetherentity requesting a
certificate complies with the requirements for the gas TSO referred to in Articles 182, 183,
185 and 186 of this Act, or with those concerning meeting the requirements referred to in
Articles 189 to 202 of this Act.

Article 205
(Reguest for certification)

(1) The certification procedure shall commence with the submission of a complete application
for certification by the transmission system owner or operator. The application shall be
considered complete when the evidence on comgaiavith the requirements referred to in
Articles 182, 183, 185 and 186, and/or evidence on compliance with the requirements referred
to in Articles 189 to 202 of this Act is attached to the application.

(2) After receiving a complete application for dgeation, the Agency shall issue an
acknowledgment of receipt of a complete request for certification and information specifying
the conditions for the application of a tacit decision on the certification.

(3) The Agency shall decide on a request witbur months of receiving a complete
application. If, by the date of expiry of this period, the Agency fails to serve a relevant
decision on the interested party, the certificate shall be deemed to have been granted.

(4) The period for issuing the decisishall be suspended when either the certification
procedure or the implementation of a regulation serving as a basis for the Agency's decision
have been suspended.

(5) It shall not be possible to claim reinstatement of the previous state of affaiig @urin
certification procedure.



(6) In the case of the assumption referred to in the third paragraph of this Article, the
complete application and the acknowledgment of its receipt, after expiry of théntiine
referred to in the second paragraph of Aeti206, shall be regarded as a granted certificate,
except in the case of a negative decision by the Agency.

(7) The time limit for filing relevant legal remedies against the certificate that has legal
validity on the basis of the preceding paragrail ssommence on the day following the
expiry of the time limit specified in the second paragraph of Article 206.

(8) A tacit decision on certification as referred to in the sixth paragraph of this Article shall
not be applicable in procedures base@xinaordinary legal remedies.

(9) The gas system operator and undertakings performing the functions of production and
supply shall communicate to the Agency and the European Commission all the requested
information that the latter may need to performirtteesks in the certification procedure.

(10) In the certification procedure, the Agency shall protect the confidentiality of
commercially sensitive information.

Article 206
(Communication to the European Commission)

(1) A decision by the Agency ordia decision on the certification referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be communicated without delay to the European Commission, including all
relevant information relating to the decision.

(2) A decision by the Agency or tacit decision on tedification referred to in the second
paragraph of this Article shall take effect after the delivery of the opinion by the European
Commission, or after the expiry of the time limit referred to in the first paragraph of Article 3
of the Regulation (EC) N&@15/2009.

Article 207
(Certification in relation to third countries)

(1) Where certification is requested by a transmission system owner or a gas TSO monitored
by a person or persons that are citizens of a country or countries that are not Eurapean Un
members (hereinafter: third country) or who are citizens from the third country or countries,
the certification procedure and testing conditions for the certificate shall be subject to the
provisions of Articles 204, 205, 206 and 207 of this Act, unjpesvided otherwise. A third
country shall also be deemed a European Union Member State which is subject to the
derogation referred to in Article 49 of Directive 2009/73/EC.

(2) The Agency shall immediately notify the Commission of a receipt of a reg@®f any
circumstances that would result in a person or persons from a third country or third countries
gaining control of a transmission system or a gas TSO as referred to in point 17 of Article 159
of this Act.



(3) The TSO shall immediately notitiie Agency of any circumstances that would result in a
person or persons from a third country or third countries gaining control of a transmission
system or a gas TSO as referred to in point 17 of Article 159 of this Act.

(4) The certification procedurender this Article precludes the use of a tacit decision on the
certification referred to in the second paragraph of Article 205 of this Act.

(5) In the certification procedure, the entity requesting a certificate referred to in the first
paragraph of thidrticle shall prove that it complies with the criteria in Articles 182, 183, 185
and 186 or with the requirements of Articles 189 to 202 of this Act, and that granting
certification will not put at risk the security of the energy supply of the RepubBtweénia,
another European Union Member State or the European Union. In considering this, the
Agency shall take into account:

- the rights and obligations of the European Union with respect to that third country arising
under international law, including ynagreement concluded with one or more third
countries to which the European Union is a party and which addresses the issues of
security of energy supply;

- the rights and obligations of the Member State with respect to that third country arising
under agrements concluded with it, insofar as they are in compliance with European
Union law; and

- other specific facts and circumstances of the case and the third country concerned.

(6) The Agency shall adopt a draft decision within four months from the dateedfingcthe
request and shall immediately notify the European Commission of the request and of all
relevant information with respect to it.

(7) Prior to adopting the decision on certification, the Agency shall seek an opinion from the
European Commissiaon whether the interested party complies with the prohibitions in
Articles 182, 183, 185 and 186 or with the requirements of Articles 189 to 202 of this Act,
and whether granting certification might put at risk the security of European Union energy

supply.

(8) In the certification procedure under this Article, the Agency shall adopt its decision within

t wo months of the expiry of the period for t
opinion, in compliance with the sixth paragraph of Article 11 of Divec2009/73/EC, and

shall take the fullest account of the Commission's opinion. The Agency shall immediately

notify the Commission of the decision, and provide all the relevant information regarding the
decision.

(9) The Agency may refuse to grant cectitiion if this would put at risk the security of the
energy supply of the Republic of Slovenia or another European Union Member State.

(10) The Agencyo6s final decision and the Corm
Uradni list Republike ®veni je. Where the final deci si on
opinion, the reasoning of the Agency underlying its decision shall be published with that

decision.

Article 208
(Procedure for testing conditions for the certificate)



(1) The Agency shalhonitor the compliance of the gas system operator with the

requirements referred to in Articles 180, 181, 183 and 186 of this Act. The Agency shall

initiate the procedure for testing the conditions for the certifieatefficio,if:

- it has been provided ith the information from gas TSO referred to in the second
paragraph of Article 187,

- it has been informed of the planned transaction referred to in the third paragraph of Article
187;

- it has established reasonable grounds for believing that a plannedectmarights or
influence over transmission system owners or the gas TSO has led to, or may lead to, a
violation of the requirements referred to in Articles 182, 183, 185 and 186 of this Act, or
the requirements referred to in Articles 189 to 202 of #u$ pursuant to the tenth
paragraph of Article 203 of this Act;

- such is a reasoned request from the European Commission.

(2) The procedure for testing the conditions for the certificate shall be subject to the
provisions of this Act concerning the régucertification procedure, unless provided
otherwise by this Article.

(3) The assumption referred to in the second paragraph of Article 205 shall apply in the
procedure of testing conditions for a certificate only in the case referred to in thedirst an
fourth indents of the first paragraph of this Article. The fowanth period for enforcing a

tacit decision on the certification shall commence on the day when the Agency receives a
notification from the natural gas TSO or a request from the EuropeamiSsion.

(4) The Agency shall, by way of a decision:

- decide on the compliance of the planned transaction with the requirements referred to in
Articles 182, 183, 185 and 186 of this Act;

- confirm a certificate;

- withdraw a certificate.

(5) The withdrawal of certificate shall take effect on the day the decision becomes final.

Article 209
(Designation of gas TSO)

(1) Provided that after the decision on the certification has become final or after the tacit
decision on the certification referred to in gexond paragraph of Article 205, a legal or

natural person meets the requirements referred to in the first and second paragraphs of Article
178 of this Act, such person shall, on a proposal by the Agency, be designated as a gas TSO
by way of a Governmentedision.

(2) The Government, on a proposal by the Agency and based on a final decision establishing
non-compliance with the requirements, shall annul the decision on the designation of a gas
TSO when it finds that the gas TSO fails to meet any ofaeirements for performing the

gas TSO functions referred to in the third paragraph of Article 178, and when any such
requirement can not be expected to be met within a reasonable time.



(3) The decision on the designation or annulment of a desigrshtadinbe published in the
Official Journal of the European Union and in Uradni list Republike Slovenije, and
communicated to the European Commission.

Article 210
(Measures if a gas TSO ceases to implement its activities)

(1) Where any requirement forrcging out the functions of a gas TSO referred to in the third
paragraph of Article 178 of this Act is not met and cannot be expected to be met within a
reasonable time, or where the gas TSO ceases to carry out the functions of a gas TSO and
cannot be exped to resume these functions within a reasonable time, the Agency shall issue
a decision that:

- designates a certified gas TSO in the Republic of Slovenia or in any other European Union
Member State to temporarily undertake the functions of the gas T8@ tmansmission
system of the operator that failed to meet the requirements or ceased to carry out the
functions of the gas TSO;

- lays down the conditions under which the owner cowmers shall be obliged to lease the
transmission system for use to tjes TSO envisaged to undertake the activities under the
previous indent of this paragraph and the time limit for the owner-ome®rs to comply
with this obligation;

- decides on other issues of the relationship between the owner-awness of the
transnission system and the operator referred to in the first indent of this paragraph in
connection with the temporary performance of the functions of the gas TSO.

(2) The operator referred to in the first indent of the preceding paragraph shall perform the
functions of the gas TSO until these are undertaken by another gas TSO that meets the
requirements referred to in the third paragraph of Article 178 of this Act.

(3) If the owner or camwners of the transmission system fail to ensure, within one year of the
final decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, that the functions of gas TSO

are resumed in their transmission system by the natural gas TSO that meets the requirements
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 178 of this Act,levthie operation of this

transmission system is necessary for a secure and reliable natural gas supply in the Republic
of Slovenia or part of its territory or it is a case of an interconnector, the Agency shall propose
to the Republic of Slovenia that, #i® beneficiary of the expropriation, it initiate the
expropriation procedure or procedure to restrict ownership rights.

(4) The expropriation or restriction of the ownership rights referred to in the preceding

paragraph shall be for the public benefit.

Section 3: Storage and LNG system operators

Article 211
(Designation of storage and LNG system operators)

(1) Prior to starting their operation, the storage system or LNG system owner or owners shall
be obliged to designate at least one or more staygiem or LNG system operator.



(2) The period for which the storage system or LNG system operator are to be designated
shall be determined by an Agency decision taken on a request from the storage system or
LNG system owner or owners, taking into accahetefficiency and economic balance
assessment,

Article 212
(Tasks of storage and LNG system operators)

(1) The storage or LNG system operator shall operate with secure, reliable and efficient
natural gas transmission, storage or LNG facilities; itl shaintain and develop such
facilities with due regard to economic conditions and the environment, and shall ensure
adequate means to meet service obligations.

(2) The natural gas storage system or LNG operator shall refrain from discriminatimgbetw
individual system users or types of users, particularly in favour of its related undertakings.

(3) The storage or LNG system operator shall provide any other gas TSO, any other storage
system operator, any other LNG system operator or any gas D8Gsufficient information

to ensure that the transport of natural gas may take place in a manner compatible with the
secure and efficient operation of the interconnected system.

(4) The storage or LNG system operator shall provide system users witfotineaition they
need for efficient access to the system.

Article 213
(Unbundling of storage system operators)

(1) The storage system operators whose facilities are technically or economically required in
order to provide efficient access to the systenthe supply of customers pursuant to third
paragraph of Article 246 of this Act, and which are part of vertically integrated undertakings,
shall be independent at least in terms of their legal form, organisation and decision making
from other activities at relating to transmission, distribution and storage

(2) In order to ensure the independence of the storage system operator, the operator referred to
in the preceding paragraph shall, with regard to organisation and operation, ensure the
implementatio of at least the following measures:

(a) persons responsible for the management of the storage system operator shall not
participate in company structures of the integrated natural gas undertaking responsible,
directly or indirectly, for the dayo-day ogeration of the production and supply of natural
gas;

(b) the professional interests of persons responsible for the storage system operator
management shall be taken into account in a manner which provides for their capacity to
act independently;

(c) the sbrage system operator shall have effective decisiaking rights, independent of the
integrated natural gas undertaking, with respect to the assets required to operate, maintain
or develop the storage facilities.



(3) The performance of tasks under painin the preceding paragraph shall not preclude the
existence of appropriate mechanisms to ensure that the economic and management
supervision rights of the parent company in respect of a return on assets in a subsidiary are
protected. In particular, thghall enable the parent company to approve the annual financial
plan, or any equivalent instrument, of the storage system operator and to set global limits on
the levels of indebtedness of its subsidiary, with the exception of issuing instructions
regardng dayto-day operations or individual decisions concerning the construction or
upgrading of storage facilities that do not exceed the terms of the approved financial plan, or
any equivalent instrument.

(4) The storage system operator shall establismmgpliance programme setting out in more

detail the measures referred to in the preceding paragraph and the measures to prevent
discriminatory conduct, and shall ensure appropriate monitoring of its implementation. The
compliance programme shall lay down #pecific obligations of employees to meet these
objectives. The person or body responsible for monitoring the compliance programme shall
submit to the Agency an annual report setting out the measures taken, which it shall publish it
on its website.

(5) The European Commission may adopt Guidelines to ensure the effective compliance of
the requirements referred to in this Article; in such a case, the storage system operator shall be
obliged to act in accordance with these guidelines.

Section 4: Confideraiity obligations of gas TSOs, storage systems and LNG systems, and
transmission system owners

Article 214
(Confidentiality obligations)

(1) Any TSO, storage system or LNG system operator or transmission system owner shall be
obliged to protect the coidentiality of commercially sensitive information obtained in the
course of carrying out its business, regardless of whether this has been defined as a business
secret or not.

(2) The operator referred to in the preceding paragraph shall preventatiforran its own

activities which may be commercially advantageous from being disclosed in a discriminatory
manner; in particular, it shall not disclose commercially sensitive information to the

remaining part of the undertaking which is not related eagtis TSO or the storage system
operator or LNG system operatords performanc
that this is strictly necessary to carry out a legal transaction.

(3) The transmission system owner, the storage system opearatéGosystem operator,
including, in the case of a combined operator, the gas DSO, and the remaining part of the
undertaking which is not related to the gas TSO, storage system operator or LNG system
operator activity, shall not use joint services, sucjoias legal services, apart from purely
administrative or IT functions.



(4) The provisions of this article are without prejudice to the obligation to disclose
information to the Agency, the ministry and other competent authorities, including the
concession grantor, within the public service framework based on a concession.

Article 215
(Prohibition of misuse of information and duty of publication)

(1) Transmission, storage or LNG system operators shall not, in the context of sales or
purchases afiatural gas by related undertakings, misuse commercially sensitive information
obtained from third parties in the context of providing or negotiating access to the system.

(2) Transmission, storage or LNG system operators shall make public the informatio
required for effective competition and the efficient functioning of the market, except for the
commercially sensitive information referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Chapter IlI: DISTRIBUTION

Section 1: Service of general economic interegasDSO

Article 216
(Service of general economic interest)

(1) The gas DSO functions shall be carried out as an optional local service of general
economic interest.

(2) The gas DSO service of general economic interest shall include:

- provision of natural gs distribution;

- safe, secure and efficient operation and maintenance of the distribution system under
acceptable economic conditions, with due regard for the environment and energy
efficiency.

- development of the distribution system, while also taking extcount the anticipated
needs of system users and the requirements concerning safe and reliable system operation;

- longterm ability of the distribution system to meet reasonable demands for connection
and access to the system;

- security of natural gas sply through adequate capacity and network reliability;

- provision of necessary information to system users to enable them to effectively exercise
the right to access the system and its use.

(3) The natural gas DSO shall refrain from discriminating betwadinidual system users or
types of users, particularly in favour of its related undertakings.

(4) The gas DSO service of general interest functions may be provided by a local community
within a part or throughout its territory in a manner stipulatethbyact governing services of
general economic interest, and the act governing pphblate partnerships.



(5) Where a local community grants a concession for the performance of a gas DSO service of
general economic interest, the procedure for gramtamgessions shall require the application

of provisions of the act governing services of general economic interest, and the act governing
public-private partnerships.

(6) The distribution system shall, as a rule, have at least one connection to tinessimms
system. The distribution system may be connected to another distribution system only on the
basis of the prior approval of the Agency when this involves the same gas DSO.

(7) In issuing the approval referred to in the preceding paragraphgtdreyshall take into

account the teiyear gas network development plan and the distribution network development

plan, and shall give its approval provided that:

- the interconnecting distribution systems is reasonable in terms of costs and development,
and

- adequate safety and reliability of operation of all relevant distribution systems have been
provided for.

For eventual interconnected distribution systems, the gas DSO shall adopt a single act on the

definition of network charge tariff rates for thetural gas distribution network.

(8) Notwithstanding the provisions of the act governing services of general economic interest
concerning procedure for granting concessions, the local community, in the case of approval
by the Agency as referred to iretBixth paragraph of this Article, may directly grant a
concession for the provision of the service of general economic interest of natural gas
distribution to the gas DSO to which the new system is connected.

(9) Changes made to interconnected distion systems as a result of the establishment of
new local communities or their transformation, and changes in the concession relationship
regarding relevant local communities after the approval referred to in the sixth paragraph of
this Article shall bewvithout prejudice to the validity of the approval, provided that these
changes do not affect the security and reliability of operation of relevant distribution systems.
Should the interconnected distribution systems fail to meet any of the requirenfiemesirs

in the seventh paragraph of this Article, the Agency shall annul its approval.

(10) The natural gas DSO shall provide other gas DSOs, the natural gas TSO, the LNG
system operator and the storage system operator with sufficient informationite &vad the
transport and storage of natural gas may take place in a manner that secures the reliable and
efficient operation of the interconnected system.

Article 217
(Financing undertakings of general economic interest)
The gas DSO activity shall bended from network charges and other revenue for the

provision of the service of general economic interest.

Article 218
(Exclusive right)



(1) The local community may, in accordance with the regulations on undertakings of general
economic interest, wihi n a part of, or throughout, the
exclusive right to perform an optional local service of general economic interest of a gas DSO
for a maximum period of 35 years.

(2) If a local community, in accordance with the maiog paragraph, grants an exclusive

right to perform a service of general economic interest of a gas DSO in a given area, the
natural gas final customers within this area may be connected to the system solely by the gas
DSO in the capacity of exclusiveght owner, except in cases where the gas DSO has rejected
their connection or access to the system on the grounds of insufficient distribution system
capacity.

(3) The exclusive right referred to in the first paragraph of this Article shall not apply to
closed distribution systems.

Article 219
(Designation of gas DSO)

(1) The functions of a gas DSO may be carried out by a legal or natural person which:

- has the right to perform the service of general economic interest;

- is the owner or leaseholdef @ distribution system allowed to operate in accordance with
the relevant regulations, and

- has been designated as a gas DSO.

(2) When the gas DSO is neither the owner of the system nor a part thereof, the gas DSO and
the owner shall conclude a contreegulating all the issues regarding the use of the network
concerned, in order for the gas DSO to perform the tasks of a gas DSO pursuant to this Act.
The contract shall, in particular, regulate the scope and purpose of the use of the system, the
rights and obligations with respect to the connection of new customers and coverage of
disproportionate costs of such connection, the obligations concerning future network
expansion, lease and/or other payments made by the gas DSO, the conditions and methods of
routine and major maintenance works on the network and other issues enabling the gas DSO
to perform its tasks effectively under this Act. The Agency shall review the contract content
and the method of its implementation in accordance with the monitoringgoweer this

Act.

(3) A person meeting the conditions in the first and second indent of the first paragraph above
shall, on its own request, be designated by way of a decision of the Agency as the gas DSO.
In setting the period for which the gas DSOoive designated, the Agency shall take into
account the efficiency and economic balance assessment, whereby such a period if the
concession is granted, shall be equal to the duration of the concession. The longest period for
which the Agency may designaeelevant gas DSO shall be 35 years.

(4) The Agency shall annul the act on the designation of a gas DSO if it determines that any
of the conditions relating to the performance of the gas DSO activity referred to in the first
and second indent of the fingaragraph has not been met, and when any such condition can
not be expected to be met within a reasonable time, and when the gas DSO acts contrary to
Article 216 and Articles 221 to 225 of this Act.



Article 220
(Measures when a gas DSO ceases to imgieints activities)

(1) Where any requirement for carrying out the functions of a gas DSO referred to in the third

paragraph of Article 219 of this Act is not met and cannot be expected to be met within a

reasonable time, or where the gas DSO ceasesrioatd the functions of a natural gas DSO

and cannot be expected to resume these functions within a reasonable time, the Agency shall

issue a decision that:

- designates a gas DSO in the Republic of Slovenia or any other European Union Member
State to tempmrily undertake the functions of the gas DSO in the distribution system of
the operator that failed to meet the requirements or ceased to carry out the functions of the
gas system operator;

- lays down the conditions under which the owner cowmers shalbe obliged to lease the
distribution system for use to the gas DSO envisaged to undertake the activities under the
previous indent of this paragraph and the time limit for complying with this obligation;

- decides on other issues of the relationship betweenowner or cewners of the
distribution system and the operator referred to in the first indent of this paragraph in
connection with the temporary performance of the functions of the gas DSO.

(2) The operator referred to in the preceding paragraphpsgréorm the functions of the gas
DSO until these are undertaken by another DSO which meets the requirements referred to in
the first paragraph of Article 219 of this Act.

(3) If the owner or capwners of the distribution system fail to ensure, withie gear of the

final decision referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, that the functions of the gas
DSO are resumed in their distribution system by the gas DSO which meets the requirements
referred to in Article 219 of this Act, the local commity as beneficiary of the expropriation,
shall initiate the expropriation procedure or procedure to restrict ownership rights.

(4) The expropriation or restriction of the ownership rights referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be for the public leéih

Section 2: Unbundling of gas DSOs

Article 221
(General provision and combined operator activity)

(1) Where the gas DSO is part of a vertically integrated undertaking, it shall be independent in
terms of its legal form, organisation, and decisizaking from other activities not relating to
distribution.

(2) The above requirement shall not create an obligation to separate the ownership of assets of
the gas DSO from the vertically integrated undertaking.

(3) The provision of the first paragraphthis Article shall not prevent the operator of the
combined system of transmission, LNG, storage and distribution from performing its



functions, provided that this operator meets the criteria for gas TSO ownership unbundling
referred to in Articles 18 185 of this Act, or the criteria for the independent TSO referred
to in Articles 190 to 202 of this Act.

Article 222
(Requirements regarding functional unbundling)

(1) The gas DSO shall carry out its gas DSO functions in a separate legal drgitgaged
in other activities.

(2) In addition to the requirements referred to in the preceding paragraph of this Article,
where the gas DSO is part of a vertically integrated undertaking, it shall be independent in
terms of its organisation and decisimaking from the other activities not related to
distribution. To this end, it shall provide for the implementation of at least the following
measures:

(a) those persons responsible for the management of the gas DSO must not participate in the
company stratures of the integrated natural gas undertaking responsible, directly or
indirectly, for the dayto-day operation of the production, transmission and supply of
natural gas;

(b) the professional interests of persons responsible for the gas DSO managethbat s
taken into account in a manner which provides for their capacity to act independently;

(c) the gas DSO must have effective decisimaking rights, independent of the integrated
natural gas undertaking, with respect to the assets required to ppe@tain or develop
the network.

(3) In order to fulfil the tasks referred to in point c) of the preceding paragraph, the gas DSO
shall have at its disposal the required resources, including human, technical, financial and
physical resources. The pareompany shall approve the annual financial plan or any
equivalent instrument, and set limits on the levels of indebtedness of the gas DSO in the
capacity of its subsidiary; the economic and management supervision rights of the parent
company in respect @af return on assets shall also be maintained. The parent company shall
not be permitted to issue instructions regardingtdeday operations, or with respect to
individual decisions concerning the construction or upgrading of distribution lines, that do n
exceed the terms of the approved financial plan, or any equivalent instrument.

(4) The natural gas DSO shall establish a compliance programme setting out measures to
prevent discriminatory conduct, and shall ensure appropriate monitoring of its

implementation. The compliance programme shall lay down the specific obligations of
employees to meet this objective. The gas DSO shall submit the compliance programme to the
Agency for approval before it enters into force.

(5) The gas DSO shall have a fulldependent compliance officer who shall have access to

all the necessary information of the gas DSO and any affiliated undertaking to fulfil his task.
The measures to ensure the independence of the compliance officer and the effectiveness of
his monitoringactivities shall be set out in the compliance programme.

(6) An annual report, setting out the measures taken, shall be submitted to the Agency by the
person or body responsible for monitoring the compliance programme and shall be published.



Article 223
(Avoiding distortion of competition)

(1) Where the gas DSO is part of a vertically integrated undertaking, the Agency shall
monitor the activities of the gas DSO, to prevent it from taking advantage of its vertical
integration to distort competition.

(2) Vertically integrated gas DSOs shall not, in their communication or branding, create
confusion in respect of the separate identity of the supply branch of the vertically integrated
undertaking.

Article 224
(Exemption relating to gas DSO legal indegdence)

The provisions of Articles 221, 222 and 223 of this Act shall not apply to integrated gas
undertakings having fewer than 100,000 connected final customers.

Section 3: Confidentiality obligations of gas DSOs

Article 225
(Confidentiality obligéions regarding information)

(1) The gas DSO shall be obliged to protect the confidentiality of commercially sensitive
information obtained in the course of carrying out its business, and shall prevent the
information on its own activities which may bensmercially advantageous from being
disclosed in a manner which would discriminate against distribution system users and/or
customers.

(2) Gas DSOs shall not, in the context of sales or purchases of natural gas by related
undertakings, abuse commerciansitive information obtained from third parties in the
context of providing or negotiating access to the system.

(3) The provisions of this article are without prejudice to the obligation to disclose
information to the Agency, the ministry and other petent authorities, including the
concession grantor, with respect to the provision of the service of general economic interest
based on a concession relationship.

Section 4: Closed distribution systems

Article 226
(General provision)



Natural gaglistribution within small and closed distribution systems which, in accordance
with this Act, obtain the status of a closed distribution system, shall not be carried out as a gas
DSO service of general economic interest as referred to in Article 2165 dfah

Article 227
(Conditions for acquiring the status of a closed distribution system)

(1) A natural gas distribution system with a single network supply point, which is directly

connected to the transmission system and which is intended for tititeudiisn of natural gas

within a geographically confined industrial or commercial area or shared services site and as a

rule does not supply household customers, may obtain the status of a closed distribution

system if:

- for specific technical or safetgasons, the operations or the production processes of the
final customers of that system have been integrated; or

- the network distributes the natural gas primarily to the system owner or its related
undertakings. This requirement shall be considered t&fisd when the owner and its
related undertakings account for at least 80% of the total annual natural gas consumption
and generation.

(2) Incidental use by a small number of households with employment or other associations
with the owner of the systesmall not preclude the natural gas distribution system referred to
in the first paragraph of this Article from obtaining the status of a closed distribution system.

Article 228
(Authorisation to acquire the status of a closed distribution system)

(1) The Agency shall issue the authorisation granting the status of a closed distribution system
on the basis of a request from the owner or other person managing the closed distribution
system (hereinafter: closed distribution system operator).

(2) The authdsation referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be issued for a period of ten
years.

(3) In addition to elements prescribed for issuing decisions based on the General
Administrative Procedure Act, the operative part of the authorisation grantistatbe of a

closed distribution system shall also include a designation of the geographically confined site
clearly delineated from the remaining area.

(4) The gas DSO may patrticipate as a secondary participant in the procedure for issuing the
authorsation in the geographical area where the closed distribution system is located,
provided that, in accordance with Article 218 of this Act concerning the performance of gas
DSO functions, it has been granted an exclusive right by the local communityaigoch
includes the area of the envisaged closed distribution system.

(5) Upon a request from the closed distribution system operator, the Agency may extend the
authorisation for ten years at a time, subject to all the requirements needed to olstaitushe
of a closed distribution system applicable on the expiry of authorisation validity being met.



Article 229
(Consequences of terminating the status of a closed distribution system)

(1) The gas TSO shall provide the closed distribution systemtopaixess to the
transmission system in accordance with this Act.

(2) The closed distribution system operator shall have equal rights, duties and responsibilities
as stipulated for the gas DSO by this Act and its implementing regulations, apart from
exceptions approved by a decision of the Agency in accordance with Article 230 of this Act.

(3) The status of a closed distribution system shall not preclude the final customer located
within the geographically confined site from requesting and beingtegtatcess to the
distribution or transmission system in accordance with this Act.

Article 230
(Exemption from obligations)

(1) Subject to the consent of the closed dis
transmission system exit point coeted to the closed distribution system have available

more than 90 per cent of the contractual transmission capacities, the Agency shall by way of a
decision exempt the closed distribution system operator from the obligations under Article

254 of this Actregulating the Agency's approval of the network charge and relevant tariff

rate. An exemption from the Agency shall be obtained prior to any change in the network fee
and/or tariff.

(2) In the case referred to in the preceding paragraph, a closebutistrisystem final

customer that fails to agrees to the granting of an exemption may request that the Agency
establish in the course of supervisory procedure whether the network charge or the relevant
tariff were fixed pursuant to the Agency's generad golverning the methodology for
determining and calculating the network charge.

Article 231
(Transfer of authorisation to another person)

(1) The closed distribution network operator may transfer the authorisation granting the status
of a closed distbution system to a new operator, subject to the approval of the Agency.

(2) The authorisation referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be issued upon a request

from the transferor or transferee of the authorisation, which shall indicate:

- that the trasferee fulfils the conditions for carrying out the functions of the closed
distribution system operator;

- that the transferor and the transferee have regulated relations with customers regarding the
transfer of authorisation.



Article 232
(Reasons withdmging the status of a closed distribution system)

(1) The Agency, by way of a decision, shall withdraw the status of a closed distribution
system upon a request from the closed distribution system operator, the gas DSO in a local
community, a local commuty, or ex officio,if

- the criteria referred to in Article 227 of this Act are no longer met.

(2) The closed distribution system operator shall immediately report to the Agency any
change relating to meeting the criteria referred to in Article 227 oftttis

Article 233
(Consequences of terminating the status of a closed distribution yystem

After the termination of the authorisation granting the status of a closed distribution system
which has not been renewed pursuant to the fifth paragraph oieAt#8, or in cases when

the request for renewal is refused by a final decision, or after the decision to withdraw the
status of a closed distribution system is final, the relations between the owner of the closed
distribution system and the gas DSO indinea where the closed distribution system is

located shall be regulated in accordance with the second paragraph of Article 219 of this Act.

Chapter IV: UNBUNDLING AND TRANSPARENCY OF ACCOUNTS

Article 234
(Auditing and publication of annual accounts)

(1) Natural gas undertakings, regardless of their system of ownership or legal form, shall draw
up, submit to audit and publish their audited annual accounts in accordance with the
provisions of the act governing companies, unless otherwise providers #cth

(2) A gas system operator, regardless of its size, shall draw up, audit and publish its annual
accounts and annual report in a manner stipulated for large companies by the act governing
companies.

(3) The gas system operator shall submit toAhency the audited annual report and the
auditor's report within eight days of their receipt and/or not later than six months following
the end of the calendar year.

(4) The audit of the annual accounts shall, in particular, verify that the requirenfentsd

to in Article 235 and 236 of this Act concerning the avoidance of discrimination and cross
subsidies are respected and that the requirements referred to in the fourth and fifth paragraph
of Article 255 concerning the disclosure of establishedadiewis from the regulatory

framework are met.

(5) Undertakings which are not legally obliged to publish their annual accounts under the act
governing companies shall keep a copy thereof at the disposal of the public at their head
office.



Article 235
(Separated activities)

(1) Natural gas undertakings shall keep separate accounting records in accordance with the
accounting standards; their notes to the accounts shall show separate accounts for
transmission, distribution, LNG or storage activities asireduf the activities in question

were carried out by separate undertakings.

(2) Natural gas undertakings shall, in the manner referred to in the preceding paragraph, keep
separate accounting records; their notes to the accounts shall also show aepausits for
other gas activities not related to transmission, distribution, LNG or storage.

(3) Natural gas undertakings shall show revenue from, and expenditure on, the transmission or
distribution system lease in their notes to the accounts.

(4) Naural gas undertakings also engaged in other activities not related to gas undertaking
activities (hereinafter: negas activities) may keep consolidated accounting records; the notes
to the accounts shall show consolidated accounts for thgamactivites.

(5) The separate accounts referred to in the first and second paragraph of this Article shall
include the balance sheet, the profit and loss account and the cash flow statement.

(6) Natural gas undertakings subject to the act governing the tramspafdinancial
relations and separate accounts for different activities shall also keep accounting records and
statements pursuant to the aforementioned Act, unless this is contrary to this Act.

Article 236
(Criteria for classification by activities drdisclosure of transactions with related
undertakings)

(1) Natural gas undertakings shall, in accordance with the accounting standards, specify in
their internal acts the criteria for the allocation of assets and liabilities, costs, expenditure and
reverue to be observed in keeping separate accounting records and in drawing up separate
accounts as referred to in the preceding article.

(2) The provisions of the act governing the transparency of financial relations and separate
accounts for different actitves shall be applied to determine the criteria referred to in the
preceding paragraph.

(3) The criteria referred to in the first paragraph may be amended only exceptionally, whereby
the natural gas undertaking shall be liable to duly justify such amemd and explain them
individually.

(4) In the notes to the accounts, the natural gas undertaking shall disclose all individual
transactions with related undertakings exceeding EUR 20,000.



(5) In addition to the separate accounts for energy actigitiegect to separate disclosure
requirements, the notes to the accounts of the natural gas undertakings shall fully disclose the
criteria for classification by activities. The suitability of criteria and their proper use shall be
audited annually by an audr, who shall draw up a special report.

(6) The Agency shall monitor the suitability and correct application of the criteria in
accordance with the provisions of the act governing supervision.

Article 237
(Right of access to accounts)

(1) The Agencynhas the right of access to the accounts and other documents of natural gas
undertakings, which are kept in accordance with Articles 234 and 235 provisions of this Act,
to the extent needed to perform its tasks.

(2) Should the undertaking refuse accedgsstaccounts, the Agency shall inspect its accounts
pursuant to the provisions of this Act on the Agency's supervision.

(3) The Agency shall be obliged to protect the confidentiality of commercially sensitive
information obtained through its inspectiohthe gas undertaking's documents. This

provision does not prevent the Agency from transmitting relevant information to a competent
State body, local community authority or a holder of public authority, when, in accordance
with the regulations, this isgeired for the exercise of their powers.

Chapter V: ACCESS TO THE SYSTEM
Section 1: Organisation of access to the system
Subsection 1: General provisions on access to the transmission and distribution system
Article 238
(Principle of regulated @ess to the system)

(1) The natural gas supply shall be implemented in accordance with the principle of regulated
third party access to the system. The system costs shall be paid by the system users on the
basis of previously published tariff rates, ctardance with Article 257 of this Act.
(2) Gas TSOs shall, if necessary for the purpose of carrying out their functions in relation to
the crosshorder transmission of natural gas into/from Slovenia, have access to the network of
other gas TSOs.
(3) Thegas DSO shall have the right of access to the transmission system (exit) points of
consumption which are connected to the distribution system where it performs gas DSO

functions.

(4) The gas system operator shall enable system users to access thénsystehjective and
non-discriminatory manner.



Article 239
(Refusal of access)

(1) A gas system operator may refuse access to the system for the following reasons:

- lack of necessary capacity;

- access to the system prevents the implementation of thesed public service obligations
referred to in Articles 177 or 216 of this Act, or

- serious economic and financial difficulties with takepay contracts of natural gas undertakings.

(2) When refusing access on the basis of serious economic or firgiffaalties with takeor-pay
contracts, the gas system operator shall have regard to the criteria and procedures set out in Article 278
of this Act.

(3) The gas system operator shall provide substantiated reasons for such a refusal, based on objective
and technically and economically justified criteria, and immediately communicate them to the person
requesting access to the system. The operator shall ptédaerson in question witltcess to all
documents connected with the refusal.

(4) Any dispues concerning refusal of access to the system shall be settled by the Agency, having
regard to the procedure set out in Articles 415 to 420 of this Act.

(5) A gas system operator which refuses access to the system due to a lack of capacity or lack of
conrections shall be obliged, upon the request of the person which was refused access, to make
necessary enhancements to the system as far as it is economic to do so, or when the entity which was
refused access, alone or with other entities, is willing tofgraguch enhancements.

(6) When negotiations between the gas system operator and the entity referred to in the preceding
paragraph do not result in an agreement to make enhancements, the matter shall be settled, upon the
request of the entity concerned, the Agency, having regard to the procedure set out in Articles 415

to 420 of this Act. The Agency shall either define the conditions for system enhancements or refuse
the request.

Article 240
(Market in natural gas and gas supply contracts)

(1) An indvidual natural or legal person may join the balance scheme through a single balancing
contract or a single compensation agreement. Balance scheme membership shall cease upon cessation
of validity of the balancing contract or the compensation agreement.

(2) The supplier and the system user shall conclude a gas supply contract.

(3) Only a supplier that is a member of the balance scheme may conclude an open contract with the
system user.

(4) For each consumption point, the final system user shall hameesincontract that defines the
balancing affiliation of the consumption point concerned. Only one open contract with one supplier
may be may be in place for each consumption point at any one time. The final consumer shall not
conclude closed contracts wehppliers. All customers shall be eligible customers.

(5) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, there may be several open contracts with different
suppliers for any consumption point where® the

c
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of naural gas. In such cases, the customer shall notify the gas system operator and suppliers of the
relationship between balancing groups at the consumption point for each accounting interval
separately; otherwise, the gas system operator shall take intdexatisin the last relationship

notified.

(6) The actual consumption of any consumption point shall be taken in consideration in the statement
of balancing groups, in accordance with the affiliation of the consumption point.

(7) The gas TSO shall lay dovdetailed rules for the implementation and/or notification of natural gas
supply contracts in the Network Code.

(8) The Government shall lay down by means of a decree detailed rules for the operation of the natural
gas market, imbalance clearing foe ttonsumption and supply of natural gas, change of supplier and
for other elements concerning the operation of the natural gas market.

Subsection 2: Access to the natural gas transmission system

Article 241
(System of entry and exit points; and virtpalnt)

(1) The gas TSO shall provide access to the transmission system by concluding transmission contracts
at entry and exit points of the transmission system.

(2) The technical capacity of individual entry and exit points of the transmission systehean

limits shall be defined and published daily by the gas TSO on its web site. The transport of natural gas
between entry and exit points shall be carried out considering the technical capacity of the
transmission system and in compliance with thevigions of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009.

(3) Relevant points as defined and published by the gas TSO in compliance with Regulation (EC) No
715/2009 shall be approved by the Agency after consulting with network users.

(4) All transactions with natural gairrespective of the entry or exit point, shall be deemed to have
been carried out at the virtual point.

Article 242
(Transmission contracts)

(1) Transmission system users may conclude an individual transmission contract for one or more entry
points,and/or an individual transmission contract for one or more exit points of the transmission
system.

(2) Individual transmission contracts concluded by system users for entry or exit points may be
concluded for different transmission capacities and fdedint periods of time.

(3) A transmission contract may be concluded on condition that the transmission system technical
capacities and the technical capacity limits of individual entry or exit point allow for it.

(4) Transmission contracts at exit piof the transmission system in the Republic of Slovenia to
which final customers are connected shall be concluded by the final customer connected to the
transmission system or by the natural gas supplier on behalf of, and for, the account of the final
customer.



(5) Transmission contracts at exit points of the transmission system in the Republic of Slovenia to
which the distribution system is connected shall be concluded only by the operator of such distribution
system. The transmission contract maymré&ehe total capacity of several exit points of the

distribution network.

(6) The gas TSO shall prescribe procedures for transmission system capacity allocation, congestion
management and trading of capacities in the secondary market in complianBeguitation (EC) No
715/2009, subject to the prior approval of the Agency; in doing so, it shall provide for measures and
activities to prevent speculative practices by system users.

Article 243
(Balancing)

(1) The system user shall seek a balance dwoption and supply of gas within the accounting
interval (hereinafter: balancing) by concluding a balancing contract, or by including the consumption
point in a balancing group by concluding an open contract.

(2) Any natural gas supplier that suppliegural gas in the transmission system in the Republic of
Slovenia shall conclude a balancing contract establishing a balancing group.

(3) The balancing group leader shall conclude a balancing contract and shall announce natural gas
consumption and suppfgr balancing group members for each accounting interval; while the gas TSO
shall carry out for the balancing group leader the imbalance clearing for the supply and consumption
of natural gas of the balancing group.

(4) The balancing group leader shalhaance to the gas TSO the quantities of natural gas for the

balancing group at each entry point to the transmission system, separately for each gas supply contract

and in compliance with the Network Code. The balancing group leader shall announce $olt8&ga

the quantities of natural gas for any member of a balancing group at each exit point of the transmission

system, separately for each gas supply contract and in compliance with the Network Code in the

following cases:

a) the exit point is connected the transmission system in a neighbouring country;

b) there is more than one gas supply contract for a particular exit point in the Republic of Slovenia;

c) the contract capacity of a particular exit point in the Republic of Slovenia to which a final
consumers attached is essential for the smooth functioning of the transmission system.

(5) In compliance with the Network Code, the gas TSO shall verify whether the announcement
referred to in the preceding paragraph is balanced. Should the gas TSO estatihshafvaounced

supply and consumption is not balanced, it shall refuse such an announcement. Users of the system
shall not carry out an action in compliance with refused announcements.

(6) The balancing group leader shall establish and maintain a registmsumption points which

belong to the balancing group directly or indirectly, and shall regularly send these data to the gas TSO
operating the network containing such consumption points, in accordance with the Network Code. The
register and the dataferred to in the preceding paragraph shall be maintained and submitted by the
balancing group leader according to the classification structure of the balancing group and balancing
subgroups.

(7) Gas DSOs shall submit to the gas TSO and to the balagrang leader the data necessary for the
imbalance clearing for the supply and consumption of natural gas in the transmission system,
separately by balancing groups and subgroups in the distribution system.



(8) The gas TSO shall lay down detailed rulesnamalance settlement, which shall be objective,
transparent and nediscriminatory, in the Network Code.

Article 244
(Natural gas transactions in the transmission system)

(1) Natural gas undertakings and final consumers in the transmission systeputémrapsactions
with natural gas quantities in the transmission system at a virtual point established by the gas TSO.

(2) All transactions with natural gas quantities in the transmission system among individual market
participants shall be deemed todagried out at the virtual point and at the level of the accounting
interval, regardless of the entry or exit point of the transmission system and regardless of the
provisions of individual natural gas supply contracts.

(3) When transactions with natligas quantities at the virtual point are conducted, transactions

without a signed natural gas transmission contract are admissible in cases when the quantities that are
the subject of the transaction are covered by a transmission contract at the aehamgdbly a

transmission contract at the exit point for the accounting period or periods to which the transaction
refers.

(4) Natural gas undertakings and final consumers in the transmission system may carry out
transactions with natural gas quantities @irtual point subject to registering their participation at the
virtual point with the gas TSO and announcing the intended transaction in compliance with the rules of
operation of the virtual point as defined in the Network Code.

(5) The gas TSO sHdiave the obligation to assess the compliance of the announced transaction or
transactions of natural gas undertakings or final consumers with the rules on the operation of the
virtual point. Should the gas TSO establish that the transaction chain il rggtsl undertakings or

final consumers has no end and/or may not be balanced, the gas TSO shall refuse all announced
transactions in such a chain.

Article 245
(Virtual point services)

(1) For all transactions at the virtual point, the gas TSO shalirerthat all market participants are
subject to the same transparent and-disariminatory conditions.

(2) Users of the virtual point shall pay to the gas TSO the costs of registration of participation and the
costs of individual transactions. The nemeration for the virtual point services shall be defined by the
gas TSO following the prior approval of the Agency.

Article 246
(Specific provision for LNG (liquefied natural gas) systems, upstream pipeline networks and storage
facilities)

(1) The povisions of Article 239 of this Act shall also apply to access to the LNG system and
upstream pipeline networks, except for the parts of such networks and facilities which are used for
local production operations at the site of a field where the gasdsqed.

(2) In the event of crodsorder disputes, the disputettlement arrangements for EU Member State
having jurisdiction over the upstream pipeline network which refuses access shall be applied. If more



than one EU Member State has jurisdiction diaerupstream pipeline network, the Member States
concerned shall hold consultations with a view to ensuring consistent action.

(3) The provisions of Article 239 of this Act shall also apply to access to natural gas storage facilities
or linepack, when thnically or economically required to provide efficient access to the system for the
supply of customers, as well as for the organisation of access to ancillary services.

(4) The provisions of this Article shall not apply to ancillary services and tenysicaage that are
related to LNG facilities and are required for theyasification process and subsequent delivery of
natural gas to the transmission system.

(5) Any storage system user may conclude a supply contract with a competitor natural gakingde
which is not the system owner or operator or their related undertaking.

Subsection 3: Access to the natural gas distribution system

Article 247
(Access at exit points of the transmission system)

(1) The gas DSO shall ensure access to thsrmession system at the transmission system exit points
where the transmission system is connected to the distribution system on which he/she functions as
DSO to all distribution system users.

(2) Persons other than the DSO may not by themselves gaih alicess as referred to in the
preceding paragraph.

Article 248
(Access to the distribution system)

(1) Connection to the distribution system gives the final customer access to the system in compliance
with the connection conditions, the Network Codd t&he contract on access. The final consumer may
conclude a contract on access for a capacity that is lower than the technical capacity of the connection.

(2) The final consumer may authorise the natural gas supplier to conclude a contract on duoeess to t
distribution system with the gas DSO on behalf of, and for the account of, the final consumer.

(3) Refusal to conclude a contract on access for the requested capacity shall mean refusal of access
under Article 239 of this Act.

Article 249
(Single bil)

(1) The gas DSO shall allow the supplier to issue a single bill for natural gas supplied and for the use
of the system for those consumptions points for which the supplier obtained approval by the final
customer.

(2) The gas DSO and the supplier skalhclude an agreement on the single bill to be issued by the
supplier in compliance with the form published by the Agency on its website within one month
following the receipt of the supplier's request for the conclusion of such agreement.



(3) The gas DO may refuse to conclude the agreement or may withdraw from the agreement on the
single bill if the supplier fails to provide appropriate insurance to cover the assumed liability.

Section 2: Network charges for the transmission and distribution system

Subsection 1: Regulatory framework

Article 250
(Regulation method)

(1) The system user shall pay the network charges for the use of the natural gas system to cover the
eligible costs incurred by the gas system operators. The eligible costs incugasldystem

operators, the network charges and other sources to cover these costs shall be set by the gas system
operator in the regulatory framework, following the prior approval of the Agency .

(2) The Agency shall prescribe the methodology for setiighe regulatory framework by means of
a general act and in a manner promoting gas system operators and efficiency of system use.

(3) The general act of the Agency referred to in the preceding paragraph shall specify:
types, criteria for setting out anshethod of calculation of individual regulatory framework
elements;

- types of eligible costs, including the regulated return, criteria for identifying costs and method to
determine costs;

- the method for including incentives for having acquired Europeatsfun

- duration of the regulatory period;

- the contents of the request to consent to the regulatory framework to be submitted by the gas
system operator;

- the type, form and method of submission of information necessary to set out the regulatory
framework;

- detiled rules and the method to establish deviations from the regulatory framework;

- parameters of individual quality dimensions, their reference values, and method and standards for
their calculation;

- minimum quality standards for various services of thesgatem operator;

- the amount of compensation and time limits for payment of compensation referred to in the third
paragraph of Article 258 of this Act.

(4) When establishing the methodology, the Agency shall use the method of the gas system operator's
regulated annual revenue and regulated network charges, ensuring that all eligible annual costs
incurred by the gas system operator are covered, including the regulated return, unless this Act
provides for the coverage of eligible costs for a longer period.

Article 251
(Gas system operator's eligible costs)

(1) The eligible costs of the gas system operator incurred in carrying out the function of the gas system
operator shall be established and determined for individual years of the regulatory pgasd. A

system operator engaged in activities other than carrying out the function of the gas system operator
shall attribute the proportionate part of the costs to those other activities.

(2) The eligible costs shall also include the regulated returreajah system operator.



(3) The method of establishing and specifying the eligible costs shall encourage -#féectise

operations of the gas system operator and enable it to attain a return higher than that foreseen in the
regulatory framework wheresgings on eligible costs result from its endeavours to increase is cost
effectiveness. Should the gas system operator incur costs exceeding the eligible costs, the difference
shall be offset against the regulated return on assets.

(4) When determining mgible costs, it shall be taken into consideration that the gas system operator is
bound to improve its performance by a certain factor (hereinafter: the efficiency factor). The agency
shall specify the method of determining out the efficiency factoigieneral act, which takes into
consideration the general economic productivity planned and the gas system operator's efficiency as
established by expert methods in comparative analyses of efficiency.

(5) The regulated return of the gas system operatoth@neligible depreciation costs shall provide for

the economic availability of investments in the development of the system and shall depend on
regulated amounts of the tangible fixed assets in use and the intangible assets in use, except for good
will, which constitute a prerequisite for carrying out the activity. The regulated return shall also

depend on the nature and risk level of the gas system operator's activities, the regulated structure of
funding resources and the efficient use of the systemréithdated return on assets shall not be
recognised with respect to assets under construction or manufacture, assets and/or part of the value of
assets taken over free of charge from individuals and legal persons governed by private law, European
funds graied free of charge, other Government grants, local communities or legal persons under
public law grants, assets and/or part of the value of assets acquired through the payment of
disproportionate costs for connection to the system, and other funds npahmerequisite for

carrying out the activities of a gas system operator. The gas system operator shall be granted a special
incentive for having acquired European funds free of charge in proportion to the amount thereof. This
incentive shall be included the regulatory framework only once, that is, in the year in which the

assets constructed with these funds are handed over for use.

(6) When a comparative analysis of tariff rates of an efficient and structurally comparable network
operator for a partidar regulatory period fails to ensure such madification of tariff rates so as to
provide for all the eligible cost of depreciation, the eligible cost shall be settled in the following
regulatory periods in compliance with Article 255 of this Act, butlatr than the period in which

the aforementioned assets are expected to be used.

Article 252
(Gas system operators' investment plan)

(1) To enable the establishment of the regulatory framework, the gas system operator shall prepare an
investment planantaining a financial evaluation of investments under the applicablgeetan
development plan to be carried out in the subsequent regulatory period.

(2) The Agency shall examine and evaluate the investment plan in the procedure for setting out the
regubtory framework. This evaluation shall provide the basis for specifying the planned eligible costs
of the gas system operator in the subsequent regulatory period. When evaluating investment plans and
setting the eligible costs of the gas system oper&ergency shall not be bound by the value of the
investments and their time schedule under the ECS, other development plans in the energy sector or
the development plans of the natural gas TSO.

(3) Should the Agency's evaluation of the investment plaablesh an excessive impact on the
network charges if the eligible costs of the gas system operator include all investments from the
investment plan, only some investments according to the priority order specified in the investment
plan should be taken mtaccount.



(4) The Agency shall establish the methodology for preparing and evaluating the investment plans in a

general act specifying:

- methodological approaches to investment assessment and evaluation;

- the types and the mandatory content of investiplamis;

- procedures for preparing and evaluating investment documents and deciding on investments;

- minimum criteria for determining the efficiency of projects;

- deadlines for elaborating the investment plan and submitting it to the Agency for examindtion an
evaluation.

(5) The provisions of the first and second paragraphs of this Article shall not apply to the gas TSO,
which elaborates a terear network development plan in compliance with Article 200 of this Act.

Article 253
(Setting out the regulatpframework)

(1) A regulatory network is a specification, drawn up in agreement with the Agency, of the amount of
planned eligible costs of the gas system operator by individual year of the regulatory period, planned
network charges, other planned revefom performing the function of gas system operator, and the
network surplus and deficit from previous years. If the regulatory period is more than one year, the
regulatory framework may provide for tariff rate equalisation in order to prevent theeammiof any

rapid tariff rate changes in individual years of the regulatory period.

(2) The regulatory framework, network tariff items and tariff items for other services shall be defined
by the gas system operator in compliance with the general at®deto in Articles 250 and 256 and
subject to the approval of the Agency.

(3) The gas system operator shall establish the value of the regulatory framework by calculating the
network charges and other revenue from performing the function of gas systesior, including the
cumulative network charge surplus or deficit up to and including the year preceding the last calendar
year before the beginning of the regulatory period, to cover the planned eligible costs of the gas
system operator, unless otheseviprovided for by this Act.

(4) No later than by 30 April of the year preceding the beginning of the regulatory period, the Agency
shall , by way of a decision, specify for each transmission or gas DSO the efficiency factor by which
the gas system opeaoatis required to reduce its eligible costs in the subsequent regulatory period.
When defining the efficiency factor, the Agency shall take into consideration the planned general
economic productivity and the gas system operator's efficiency as establjstvguert methods in
comparative analyses of efficiency.

Article 254
(Procedure to obtain the Agency's approval)

(1) The gas system operator shall submit to the Agency the request for approval of the regulatory
framework, network tariff rates and tdiniites for other services no later than by 15 June of the year
preceding the beginning of the first year of the regulatory period concerned. Should the gas system
operator fail to submit the request for approval within the specified period, the Agelidyssieaa
decision ordering the operator to submit such a request within a period not exceeding 30 days.

(2) The request referred to in the preceding paragraph shall also contain the investment plan referred to
in Article 252 of this Act.



(3) When the gs system operator fails to submit the request for approval in the extended period, the
regulatory framework and network tariff items shall be specified by the Agency by way of a decision
on the regulatory framework to be issued no later than by 30 Noverhthes year preceding the first

year of the regulatory framework concerned, subject to criteria provided for in Articles 250 and 253 of
this Act.

(4) If the request for approval is submitted in time and the Agency fails to issue its approval by 15
November of the year preceding the first year of the regulatory period concerned, the Agency may
issue a decision whereby it refuses the approval and temporarily extends the regulatory framework or
temporarily sets up a new regulatory framework and netwafkitams (hereinafter: interim

decision), as follows:

- uncontested elements of the regulatory framework shall be specified in the amount indicated in the
request for approval,

- concerning the contested elements of the regulatory framework, equivalenetesawt the
preceding framework period shall be taken into consideration, account being taken of the
efficiency factor referred to in the fourth paragraph of Article 253 when defining the amount of
eligible costs.

(5) The interim decision shall apply irthe request of the gas system operator is approved. In the
interim decision, the Agency may specify the time limit within which the gas system operator is
required to submit a new request, such time limit shall not exceed six months. If the paimtefritme
decision specifying the time limit for the submission of the request for approval is enforced, the single
fine in the compulsory enforcement procedure shall not exceed EUR 100,000, notwithstanding the
provisions of the act regulating the generahandstrative procedure.

Article 255
(Deviations from the regulatory framework)

(1) The gas system operator shall identify the deviations from the regulatory framework for single
years, shown as surplus or deficit from network charges, and shall dis@asstablished deviations
in the notes to the accounts.

(2) A surplus of network charges is the surplus of the regulated annual revenue over the actual annual
eligible costs incurred by the gas system operator, not reduced by eligible costs savinigg timade

gas system operator through the increasedeftesttiveness of its activity. It shall be disclosed as the
surplus of the total annual amount of the charged network charges (minus the deficit from the network
charges from the previous years or ghus surplus from network charges from the previous years) and
the amount of other annual revenue from the activities of the gas system operator over the amount of
the actual annual eligible costs.

(3) A surplus of the actual annual eligible costs overdigulated annual revenue of the electricity

system operator shall be deemed the deficit from network charges. It shall be disclosed as the surplus
of the actual annual eligible costs over the total annual amount of network charges imposed (plus the
defidt from network charges from the previous years, or minus the surplus from network charges from
the previous years) and the amount of other annual revenue from the activities of the gas system
operator.

(4) The gas system operator shall use the surpdus tihe network charges for the payment for the

services of general economic interest provided by the gas system operator in the following year or
years. The surplus of network charges shall be disclosed as overpaid amounts in the regulatory period
year inwhich the surplus is established. The gas system operator shall take the surplus from network
charges into account, as network charges already charged in the previous periods, when setting out the
network charges for the subsequent regulatory period.



(5) The deficit from network charges shall be settled to the gas system operator in the subsequent year
or, in order to prevent any rapid tariff rate changes, years as the payment for service of general
economic interest of the gas system operator for theiyedrich the deficit was established. The gas
system operator shall disclose the deficit from network charges as receivables for the year of the
regulatory period in which the deficit from network payments was established if the SO expects with a
reasonale degree of probability that the deficit from network charges will be charged and paid in
subsequent periods. The gas system operator shall take the deficit from network charges into account
when setting out the network charges for the subsequent ragylatiod or subsequent regulatory

periods.

(6) The gas system operator shall submit to the Agency the calculation of the surplus or deficit from
network charges for any individual year of the regulatory period within 15 days of receiving the
auditor's reort or not later than six months from the end of the calendar year. If, in the procedure for
establishing the deviation, the Agency establishes a surplus or deficit from network charges different
from those established by the gas system operator, itishiz a separate decision establishing the
amount of surplus or deficit in accordance with the provisions of the fourth and fifth paragraphs of this
Article.

(7) By way of exception, the gas system operator may submit a request for approval for gtersegul
framework during the regulatory period if unexpected changes in the use of the system or other
unexpected circumstances give rise to such surplus or deficit of network charges in comparison to the
deficit planned in Article 251 of this Act which caotrbe offset when setting out the regulatory
framework for the subsequent regulatory periods. The decision making on this matter shall be
conducted in compliance with the provisions of the fourth and fifth paragraphs of the preceding

Article on interim deisions.

(8) The provisions relating to the calculation of the surplus or deficit from network charges shall also
apply when another provider begins to carry out the activities of the operator on the system concerned.
The former operator shall pay any dugpto the new operator, and may require the new operator to
recompense it for any deficit not later than by the end of the regulatory period in which the new
operator establishes such deficit.

Subsection 2: Tariff for the use of the natural gas system

Article 256
(Methodology for calculating network charges)

(1) System users shall pay network charges which represent the cost of services performed by the gas
system operator in accordance with this Act.

(2) The Agency shall, by means of a general smcify the methodology for calculating network
charges for each of the following separately:

- the use of the transmission system (separately for entry and exit points);

- use of the distribution system;

- ancillary services (own use for ensuring the fuoratig of the system, balancing);

- carrying out measurements;

- other services.

(3) the Agency shall specify the methodology referred to in the preceding paragraph in a manner that

promotes the efficiency of gas system operators



(4) In the general act referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall specify:

- tariffs and tariff rates representing classes of system users in terms of system use characteristics
within certain maximum value ranges;

- the services that may be chaillge system users in addition to network charges by the gas system
operator within the framewaork of the service of general economic interest;

- method of calculating network charges;

- method of calculating network charges and cost of services referrechtosadond suparagraph
of this paragraph.

(5) Tariffs and tariff rates for network charges shall be objective, transparent adtaminatory,
and shall encourage the consumption of gas from renewable sources.

Article 257
(Setting tariff rates)

(2) In compliance with the methodology referred to in the preceding Article, the gas system operator
shall set tariff rates so that the revenue from network charges envisaged for the planned use of the
system is equal to the amount of regulated revenuerfemwork charges in the regulatory period,

while taking care not to discriminate against remote regions.

(2) The prices of other services not covered by network charges and charged to system users by the
gas system operator shall be set by the systemtoparagreement with the Agency, account being
taken of actual costs thereof.

(3) The gas system operator shall publish tariff rates in Uradni list Republike Slovenije and on the
operatordés webpage.

Subsection 3: Special provisions on ensuring thédityud the natural gas transmission and
distribution systems

Article 258
(Quality of gas system operatorsoé se

(1) The quality of service shall be established in relation to the individual aspects of the gas system
operators' provision of servisén terms of access to these services and consumer satisfaction, as
follows:

- the duration and frequency of system operation disruptions;

- the time required to repair the system;

- the time required to deal with complaints and transmit information;

- the ime required for connection to the network;

- other quality aspects of services, as provided for in the Agency's general act.

(2) The Agency shall specify the reference value of the parameters of quality dimensions for each
natural gas system operator ardhdividual areas of the natural gas system so that these values
provide a realistic target for the quality of supply, taking into account the condition of the system, the
performance of the function to date and the operation of the system.

(3) A gas sgtem operator that does not provide all services shall nevertheless be responsible for the
quality of supply of services which are subject to the assessment of achieved values of quality
dimension parameters.



Article 259
(Monitoring the quality of servies and auditing)

(1) The gas system operator shall carry out measurements of parameters of service quality dimensions,
calculate such parameters and report them to the Agency in the prescribed manner and within the
prescribed time limits.

(2) The gas sysm operator may authorise another entity to carry out the monitoring referred to in the
preceding paragraph, but shall remain responsible for the correctness and timeliness of the monitoring
and reporting to the Agency.

(3) The Agency may audit the qitglcarried out by the natural gas system operator premises or by the
entity that carries out the monitoring.

(4) The auditing procedure shall be conducted in a manner that does not disturb the operations of the
natural gas system operator or the perfaoreeeof the function of the natural gas system operator, and
shall not impose a disproportionate burden related to the assessment of the monitoring.

(5) Following the audit, a responsible person of the Agency shall prepare a report assessing the
appropriagness of the monitoring.

(6) The Agency shall lay down, by means of a general act, the rules for monitoring the quality of
supply and shall specify:

- the procedures and methods for monitoring quality;

- the method and time limits for submitting these datédne Agency; and

- the procedure and method for assessing the quality of monitoring and measures to improve it.

Article 260
(Guaranteed supply quality standards)

(1) The minimum supply quality standards of the natural gas SO shall take the forngadtheteed
standards to be met by the gas system operator and shall be defined by minimum values of the service
quality parameters which shall be ensured for each delivery point.

(2) If the natural gas SO breaches, for reasons on its part, the starfdpardlityp guaranteed to a
system user, it shall pay compensation to the sy

(3) The amount of compensation and the method and time limit on compensation payments for
individual types of breach shall be set by thgeAcy by means of a general act, with a view to
discouraging the gas system operator from repeating such breaches.

(4) If the operator fails to pay compensation to the system user within the prescribed time limit
foll owing the us é&gedcy shall decitdetomrthe righetg aorepertsgtiontugomr the
request of the system user. The Agency may not initiate the procedure to decide on compmensation
officio.

(5) Notwithstanding the compensation paid, under the general rules on liability, & sygsr may
claim compensation for damages from the operator for any damage caused by a breach of the
guaranteed standard of quality if the damage exceeds the amount of compensation paid.



Section 3: Exemption of new infrastructure

Article 261
(Exemptbn scope and conditions)

(1) Major new infrastructure, i.e. the interconnection pipeline, LNG and storage facility, may, upon
request, be exempted from the provisions of Articles 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, 238, 242, 246, 250, 251,
252, 253, 254, 255, 256 @257. of this Act.

(2) The exemption referred to in the preceding paragraph may be granted under the following

conditions:

(a) the investment must enhance competition in gas supply and enhance the security of supply;

(b) the level of risk attached toglnvestment must be such that the investment would not take place if
an exemption were not granted;

(c) the infrastructure must be owned by a natural or legal person which is separate at least in terms of
its legal form from the gas system operators ilnsensystems said infrastructure will be built;

| ) charges must be |l evied on users of said infra

(e) the exemption must not be detrimental to competition or the effective functioning of the internal
market in natural gas, or to the efficient functioning of the regulated system to which the
infrastructure is connected.

(3) The exemption referred to in the first paragraph may also be granted for significant increases of
capacity in existing infrastructure and to modifications of such infrastructure which enable the
development of new sourcesgas supply.

Article 262
(Deciding on an exemption)

(1) The granting of the exemption referred to in Article 261 shall be decided by the Agency at the
request of the infrastructure owner or the investor.

(2) An exemption may cover all or part of thepacity of the new infrastructure, or of the existing
infrastructure with significantly increased capacity.

(3) In deciding to grant an exemption, consideration shall be given to the need to impose conditions
regarding the duration of the exemption aoed-discriminatory access to the infrastructure. The
Agency shall take into account in particular the additional capacity to be built or the modification of
existing capacity, the time horizon of the project and national circumstances in relation tppdas su

(4) The Agency shall lay down rules and mechanisms for management and he allocation of
transmission capacities, also covering the procedure for collecting expressions of interest in using such
capacities by all potential infrastructure users, incgdwn use, prior to allocating capacities.

(5) In the general act referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall include the obligation to
offer the unused transmission capacity of the new infrastructure on the market, and the right of users
of this infrastructure to trade their allocated capacities in the secondary market.

(6) In the assessment of conformity with criteria referred to in points a), b) and d) of the second
paragraph of Article 261 of this Act, the Agency shall take intowadciine results of the capacity
allocation procedure referred to in the preceding two paragraphs of this Article.



(7) The Agency shall decide on a request for exemption within six months of receiving the request,
except in cases when decision making anrtbw infrastructure is being carried out in several Member
States.

(8) The Agency shall publish the decision on exemption on its webpage no later than one month after
the approval by the European Commission.

Article 263
(Agency's action following reggt of a request)

(1) As of its receipt, the Agency shall transmit to the European Commission a copy or the request for
exemption under Article 261.

(2) The Agency shall immediately inform the Commission of the provisions of the preceding Article

and simit information providing:

a) detailed reasons on the basis of which the Agency granted or refused the exemption, including the
financial information justifying the need for the exemption;

(b) the analysis undertaken of the effect on competition aneffibetive functioning of the internal
market in natural gas;

(c) the reasons for the time period and the share of the total capacity of the gas infrastructure in
guestion for which the exemption is granted,;

(1) if the exemption relates to an interconnecto
authorities of neighbouring countries;

(d) the contribution of the infrastructure to the diversification of natural gas supplies.

(3) At a request frorthe Commission, the Agency shall complete the notification referred to in the
preceding paragraph. Where the requested information is not provided within the period specified in
the request of the European Commission, the natification shall be deeneditbdrawn, unless,

before the expiry of that period, the period has been extended with the consent of the Commission, or
the Agency, in a duly reasoned statement, has informed the Commission that it considers the
notification to be complete.

Article 264
(Procedure of the Agency following a European Commission decision)

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of the act governing the general administrative procedure, the
Agency shalkx officiorepeat the procedure for issuing the decision granting the éwenagter
receiving the decision by the European Commission requesting that the decision granting the
exemption be amended or annulalinitio.

(2) In a repeated procedure, the Agency shall issue the decision without a spetiradifagt
procedure, bt shall give the party the opportunity to make a statement on the facts and circumstances
relevant to making a decision.

(3) On the basis of data collected in the repeated procedure, the Agency shall abrogate or annul the
decision granting exemption ic@ordance with the European commission decision within one month
of receiving the Commission's decision, and notify the European Commission thereof.

(4) A decision granting an exception approved by the European Commission shall lose its effect two
years fom the Commission's approval of the Agency's decision in the event that construction of the
infrastructure has not yet started, and five years from its adoption in the event that the infrastructure



has not become operational, unless the Commission dékatesny delay is due to major obstacles
beyond the control of the person to whom the exemption was granted.

Article 265
(New infrastructure in several Member States)

(1) When all the regulatory authorities of Member States in whose territory thefn@siructure

subject to the exemption under Article 261 of this Act is located agree on a request for exemption
within six months (of the date on which it was received by the last of the regulatory authorities), they
notify ACER thereof.

(2) The Agencyshall not perform any tasks in connection with the granting of an exception in the

following cases:

(a) when the regulatory authorities referred to in the first paragraph of this Article fail to agree within a
period of six months from the date on which tiequest for exemption was received by the last of
the aforementioned regulatory authorities; or

(b) upon a joint request from the regulatory authorities referred to in the preceding paragraph to
perform tasks in connection to granting exemption by ACER.

(3) The regulatory authorities referred to in the first paragraph of this Article may make a joint request
for the extension of the period referred to in point a) of the preceding paragraph for no more than three
months.

Chapter VI: OTHER PROVISIONS

Section 1: Direct lines

Article 266
(Admissibility of direct lines)

Natural gas undertakings established within the territory of the Republic of Slovenia supply their
customers within the territory of the Republic of Slovenia through direct lines.

Article 267
(Authorisation to construct a direct line)

(1) A direct line shall be constructed by a natural gas undertaking, provided it has obtained
authorisation from the Agency.

(2) The Agency may issue an authorisation to construct a direct line ardgés when, for the supply
referred to in the preceding Article, access to the system has been finally refused pursuant to Article
239 of this Act, or if the necessary system does not exist.

(3) The Agency shall issue the authorisation referred to ifirdigoaragraph if the conditions referred

to in the second paragraph of this Article are fulfilled and if the Agency decides not to increase the
capacity of the system under the sixth paragraph of Article 239.

Section 2: Network Code and technical saf# operation



Article 268
(Network Code)

(1) The Network Code regulating the operation and manner of management of the transmission and
distribution systems shall be transparent, objective andliseniminatory.

(2) The Network Code shall regudatin particular:
the technical and other conditions for the safe operation of the systems to ensure a secure and
high-quality gas supply;

- the organisation of access to the system;

- the manner of providing ancillary services;

- system operation proceduresairrisis situation;

- the requirements for connection to the system and the method of connection;

- the general conditions for supply and consumption of gas;

- the technical conditions for interconnection and operation of systems of different gas system
operatas;

- the rules for implementing Regulation (EC) No 715/2009.

(3) The Network Code shall define the roles and responsibilities of gas system operators, suppliers,
customers and, if necessary, other market participants with respect to contractual arrangement
commitment to customers, data exchange and settlements rules, data ownership and metering
responsibility.

(4) The Network Code for individual transmission or distribution systems shall be issued by the gas
system operator which carries out the functiba gas system operator in this system and acts under
public authority, and published in Uradni list Republike Slovenije.

(5) The Agency shall specify the mandatory content of the Network Code by means of a general act.

(6) Prior to publishing the Neork Code, the gas system operator shall obtain approval from the
Agency.

Article 269
(Technical safety of operation)

The technical rules referred to in Article 32 of this Act that relate to natural gas shall ensure the
technical safety of operatioimteroperability of systems and shall be objective and non
discriminatory.

Section 3: Connection to the system and option to disconnect a system user

Article 270
(Connection to the system)

(1) For each connection to the system or its modificatiersyistem user shall obtain a connection
approval. In the connection approval, the gas system operator shall specify the point of connection to
the network. Detailed conditions for connection approval shall be laid down in the Network Code.

(2) The final @proval for connection shall be valid for two years. Within this time limit, the holder of
the approval for the connection of an existing facility shall fulfil all the requirements stated in the
connection approval, and request the operator to executerthection. At the request of the holder



of the approval, the gas system operator may extend the validity of the connection approval, but no
more than twice, and each time for no more than one year. The request for the extension of connection
approval shalbe submitted within thirty days before the expiry of the connection approval. In the

event of a late response of the system operator, the approval shall be deemed automatically extended:;
the gas system operator shall notify to the holder of the appstnahas not yet connected to the

system of such extension.

(3) The gas system operator, which acts under public authority, shall decide on issuing or refusing
connection approvals by means of an administrative decision.

(4) The user of the system shatitiave the right to connect in the following cases:

- where the conditions for implementing a connection are not fulfilled;

- where the connection would cause severe disrup
- where the gas system operator would incur disptapute costs due to the connection.

(5) In the case referred to in the third indent of the preceding paragraph, the system user shall have the
right to connect in accordance with the Network Code, provided that the user covers the
disproportionate costepresenting the disproportionate share of cost of construction of the connection
up to the point of the system where connection is possible, or the disproportionate share of the cost
necessary to increase the capacity or extent of the existing netwarkporbination of both, taking

note of the fact that within a reasonable time an increase in the use of the system is not expected to
occur on the new connection or on the existing line to an extent that allows for a normal investment
depreciation.

(6) In determining disproportionate costs, the gas system operator shall consider the following in

particular:

- the extent of the investment required;

- planned additional revenue of the gas system operator resulting form the envisaged extent of use
of the connectin by the system user;

- planned additional costs of the gas system operator, such as maintenance and operating costs for
the new connection or costs in relation to the increased capacity of the system;

- planned regulated return on assets of the gas systeratop

(7) Disproportionate costs shall be calculated by the gas system operator in an amount that will cover,
considering the planned extent of the use of the connection during its economic life and the payment

of the disproportionate cost by the usdkcosts of the gas system operator, including the planned

regulated return of assets. The calculation shall be made according to methods used for investment
evaluation, and shall take into account the time value of money. If during the period ofateprexi

the system or of the connection for which the user paid disproportionate costs, other users are also
connected, the gas system operator shall refund to the user the adequate share of disproportionate costs
which is charged as a new disproporti@enabst to new users of the system in the relevant part of the
system or connection.

(8) The gas system operator shall specify the method and procedure for determining disproportionate
costs in the Network Code.

(9) The Agency shall decide on appealsiasiadecisions to issue or refuse a connection approval.

(10) When the connection approval has become final, the gas system operator and the user of the
system as the beneficiary of the connection approval (hereinafter: the holder of connection approval)
shall conclude a written connection contract which shall regulate the mutual relations between the
parties regarding the connection and the connection procedure, and mutual relations regarding the
maintenance of the connection.



(11) If the basic parametts of a connection already having an approval are changed, the system user
shall apply for a new connection approval.

(12) The gas TSO may connect a gas user located within the area of special and exclusive right of his
performance of service of geneemlonomic interest of natural gas distribution only if the gas DSO
refuses to connect such user on the grounds of insufficient capacity of the distribution system.

(13) The provisions of this Article shall appiputatis mutandigto connection to storadacilities,
LNG systems and upstream pipeline networks.

Article 271
(Transfer of connection approval)

(1) In the event of the death of the holder of a connection approval (in the case of a natural person) or
its termination (in the case of a legal gtior in the event of a modified building permit resulting

from a change of investor or due to legal transactions that involve the building, the permit may be
transferred to a legal or natural person that acquire the facilities, installations or lines .

(2) The legal or natural person that acquires the facilities, installation or lines on the basis of the
changes referred to in the preceding paragraph shall within thirty days at the latest of the receipt of a
court or administrative decision, or of thenclusion of the contract, notify the gas system operator of
the change and submit the relative evidence; if they fail to do so, such legal or natural person shall be
required to apply for a new connection approval.

Article 272
(Technical requirements ffinstallations of the system user)

(1) The plants, installations and lines of the system user shall meet the prescribed technical
requirements ensuring their smooth operation and the safety of people and property. Compliance with
technical requirementggscribed for a facility, installation or line shall be the responsibility of the
owner.

(2) A gas system operator may temporarily refuse the connection of new facilities, installations and
lines to its system and/or it may temporarily disconnect thtesysser, if the operator determines that
the facilities, installations or networks of the system user fail to meet technical requirements or that
under the act governing the construction of the facility is illegal .

(3) The gas system operator shall exe@ connection to the system or shall resume gas distribution
after the deficiencies have been corrected .

(4) The energy inspector shall supervise the compliance of facilities, installations and lines of the user.

Article 273
(Temporary disconneicin)

(1) The gas system operator may temporarily disconnect the system user for the purpose of:
- ordinary or extraordinary maintenance;

- inspection or repair;

- checks or check meterings;

- network expansion.



(2) The gas system operator shall carry out sustodinection at a time when system users are least
affected.

(3) The gas system operator shall timely notify the system user of the scheduled disconnection in
writing or in another personal way. If a larger number of customers is concerned and if personal
communication is not cosffective, such information shall be published in the public media or on the
Internet at least 48 hours prior to disconnection.

Article 274
(Disconnection upon prior notice)

(1) The gas system operator shall disconnect a systermat any individual consumption point upon

prior notice if the system user fails to comply with its obligations within the time limit specified in the

notice in the following cases in which the system user:

(a) disturbs the supply of gas to other systesers;

(b) denies access to, or prevents persons authorised by the gas system operator access to, any part of
the connection, protection or metering devices and energy facilities, installations or lines where
such installations are suspected of causistybances;

¢) without prior approval by the gas system, the operator connects his energy installations or lines to
the network, or enables other consumers to connect their installations through his own installation;

(1) upon t he s wgepfaiis® reduse tHe eonsureption or deliverg ah gas to the
agreed value within a specified time limit;

(d) prevents the proper registration of consumed quantities of gas;

(e) uses gas without the metering devices required or agreed upon, or bgpeksestering devices;

(f) fails to pay for distortions or network charges within the time limit specified pursuant to the
Network Code;

(g) fails to eliminate or reduce disturbances caused by his installations or lines or consumers within the
time limit gipulated by the gas system operator or the competent inspection authority; or fails to
meet technical requirements;

(h) has no valid gas supply contract for the particular consumption point, or the supplier informs the
operator in writing that the supptier the final customer has withdrawn from the gas supply
contract for the particular consumption point of the system user;

() has no contract covering liability for balancing the system (imbalance clearing).

(2) The DSO shall not disconnect a vulneeatiistomer for the reasons referred to in points f), h) and
i) of the preceding paragraph, provided the conditions referred to in Article 176 of this Act have been
met.

(3) A supplier that withdraws from a contract, or a supplier that has been notified tiyal customer
of the withdrawal of the supply contract, shall be obliged to notify the gas DSO of the withdrawal no
later than the last working day of the notice period.

(4) In the event that the supplier withdraws from the supply contract fsnsan the part of the final
customer, the final customer shall be obliged to cover all costs incurred by the gas DSO in relation to
the withdrawal.

(5) In the event of a withdrawal from a gas supply contract by the supplier or final customer, the gas
DSO shall exclude the delivery point which is the object of the supply contract from the balancing
group of the current supplier on the day of the final reading of the metering device, irrespective of
whether the gas DSO actually carried out the discororettiaccordance with this Article or not. The
DSO shall take the final reading of the metering device not later than within five working days before
or after the last day of the month following the month in which the gas DSO is notified of the
withdrawal,or the last day of the supply, provided that the change in supplier has already been
arranged or the new supply contract has been concluded with the existing supplier.



(6) A supplier that withdraws from a supply contract on the grounds epaypmenthe gas supplied
may cancel the withdrawal by means of a unilateral statement pending the taking of the final meter
reading of the metering device by the gas DSO.

(7) In the Network Code referred to in Article 268, the gas DSO shall specify the iolisgand

procedure of conduct to be taken by the gas DSO and the supplier in the event of the withdrawal from
the supply contract by a supplier or final customer, and the type of costs referred to in the fourth
paragraph of this Article.

(8) The gas sysie operator shall notify household customers of the disconnection at least 15 days in
advance, and business customers at least 8 days in advance.

Article 275
(Disconnection without prior notice)

The gas system operator shall disconnect the system ukeutyprior notice if:

- by operation of its energy facilities, installations or lines, the system user endangers the life or
health or property of people;

- in the event of a gas shortage, the system user fails to comply with special safeguard measures
restrcting the consumption of gas from the system.

Article 276
(Reconnection)

(1) The gas system operator shall be obliged to
who is disconnected, when the reasons for disconnection have been elinaindtin compliance with
the requirements provided for in this Section of this Act.

(2) In the case of disconnection pursuant to Articles 274 and 275 of this Act, the operator shall
permanently disconnect any user who does not eliminate the reasoissdmnédction within three
years (from the date when the disconnection was carried out).

(3) The connection of a system user at the consumption point where the permanent disconnection was
carried out shall be considered a new connection.

(4) A gas systm operator that unduly disconnects a system user or suspends the transmission or
distribution of gas to such user, shall at its own expense and within 24 hours from the time when
unjustified disconnection is established, reconnect the facilities, instadiair lines of the system

user to its system and refund to the user any cost incurred arising from such unjustified disconnection.

(5) The gas system operator shall have the right to compensation for damage caused by the acts of a
system user on groda of which the gas system operator disconnected the system user with or
without prior notice.

(6) The system user shall have the right to compensation for damage caused by an unjustified
disconnection by the gas system operator.

(7) In the event that ehuser is reconnected to the system within a period of less than one year, at the
moment of reconnection the user shall pay the fixed network charges applicable at the time of
disconnection.



Article 277
(Disconnection at the request of the system user)

(1) A system user holding a connection approval may require the gas system operator to disconnect its
consumption point from the network.

(2) The gas system operator shall be obliged to reconnect, at the user's expense, any system user that
fulfils the requirements for connection. In the event that the disconnection referred to in the preceding
paragraph exceeds a period of three years, the system user shall, prior to the reconnection, obtain a
new approval for connection to the system referred Article 270 of this Act and conclude a new

contract for the connection.

(3) The gas system operator may refuse the reconnection to the system to a system user that required
the disconnection, or to issue a new connection approval until all the obigyatising from the
transmission or access contract and the contract for connection to the system concluded prior to the
disconnection have been met by the system user.

(4) The gas system operator shall specify in the Network Code mutual relatiche gragment of
costs in the event of the reconnection if the disconnection is carried out at the request of the system
user.

(5) If the user is reconnected to the system within a period of less than one year, at the moment of
reconnection the user shplly the fixed network charges applicable at the time of disconnection.

Section 4: Derogations in relation to takepay commitments

Article 278
(Possibility of derogation from takar-pay type contracts)

(1) If a natural gas undertaking encounters;onsiders it would encounter, serious economic and
financial difficulties because of its take-pay commitments accepted in one or more gas purchase
contracts, the Agency may grant the natural gas undertaking a temporary derogation in relation to its
access to the system, as provided for in Articles 238, 239 and 242 of this Act.

(2) The natural gas undertaking may present the application for derogation before or after a refusal of
access to the system. Where a natural gas undertaking has refusedfaeeggsdication shall be
presented without delay.

(3) The application referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be accompanied by all relevant
information on the nature and extent of the problem referred to in the first paragraph of this Article
andon the efforts made by the natural gas undertaking to solve the problem.

(4) When deciding on the derogations referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, the Agency shall

take into account, in particular, the following criteria:

(a) the objectivef achieving a competitive gas market;

(b) the need to fulfil public service obligations and ensure the security of supply;

(c) the position of the natural gas undertaking in the gas market and the actual state of competition in
that market;

(') the seriousness of the economic and financi a
and transmission undertakings or eligible customers;

(d) the dates of signature and terms of the contract or contracts in question, including the extent
which they allow for market changes;



(e) the efforts made to find a solution to the problem;

(f) the extent to which, when accepting the takgpay commitments in question, the undertaking
could reasonably have foreseen, having regard to the providitinis Directive, that serious
difficulties were likely to arise;

(9) the level of connection of the system with other systems and the degree of interoperability of those
systems; and

(h) the effects that the granting of derogation would have on thetlsfumetioning of the internal

market in natural gas.

(5) Serious difficulties shall be deemed to exist when the sales of natural gas fall below the level of
minimum offtake guarantees contained in-gaschase taker-pay contracts, or in so far as the
relevant gagpurchase taker-pay contract can not be adapted to new quantities, or the natural gas
undertaking is unable to find alternative outlets.

(6) In relation to contracts concluded before 4 August 2003, it shall be deemed that it is possible to
find economically viable alternative outlets.

(7) Natural gas undertakings that have not been granted a derogation as referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall not refuse access to the system becausearfgagecommitments
accepted in gas purchase contract.

Article 279
(Notifying the European Commission in respect of takeay type contracts)

(1) The Agency shall notify the Commission of its decision to grant a derogation as referred to in the
preceding Article, together with ahe relevant information with respect to the derogation in an
aggregated form.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of the act governing the general administrative procedure, the
Agency shalkex officiorepeat the procedure for issuing the decision grathieglerogation after
receiving the decision of the European Commission requesting that the decision granting the
derogation be amended or withdrawn.

(3) In the repeated procedure, the Agency shall issue a decision without a spetiadifagt
procedurebut shall provide the party with the opportunity to make a statement on the facts and
circumstances relevant to making a decision.

(4) On the basis of data collected in the repeated procedure, the Agency shall abrogate or withdraw the
decision to grantlerogation in accordance with the European Commission decision within four weeks
at the latest of receiving the Commission's request, and notify the European Commission thereof.

(5) If the Agency does not comply with the Commission's request within@dparfour weeks, a

final decision shall be taken expeditiously, in accordance with the advisory procedure referred to in the
second paragraph of Article 51 of Directive 2009/73/EC.

Section 5: Records
Article 280
(Retention and transmission of data)

(1) Suppliers shall keep data relating to all transactions in gas supply and gas derivatives with
wholesale customers and gas TSOs, as well as storage and LNG operators, for at least five years, and



keep these data at the disposal of the Agency, natiotradrities, competition authorities and the
European Commission for the fulfilment of their tasks.

(2) The data referred to in the preceding paragraph shall include details on relevant transactions, such
as duration, delivery and settlement rules, thentitya dates and times of execution and the

transaction prices and means of identifying the wholesale customer concerned, as well as specified
details of all unsettled gas supply contracts and gas derivatives.

(3) By way of its general act for the exeecisf public authority, the Agency shall specify the type of
information that is available to market participants, provided that commercially sensitive information
on individual market players or individual transactions is not released. This paragrapotapfly

to information on financial instruments which are within the scope of the act governing the market in
financial instruments.

Article 281
(Derivative financial instruments)

(1) The retention of, and access to, data relating to transactigas derivatives referred to in the
preceding Article shall be ensured after the adoption of the Guidelines referred to in the fourth
paragraph of Article 44 of Directive 2009/73/EC.

(2) For entities regulated by the act governing the market in finanstaliments, the provisions of
this and the preceding Articles shall not create additional obligations to the authorities referred to in
the first paragraph of the preceding Article.

(3) If the authorities referred to in the first paragraph of the pregeliticle need access to data kept
by entities falling within the scope of the act governing the market of financial instruments, the
authority competent to regulate the market of financial instruments shall provide the authorities
referred to in the fitsparagraph of the preceding Article with the required data.

Part Four

HEAT AND OTHER ENERGY GASES FROM ISOLATED DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS

Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 282
(Application of the provisions of this Part)

(1) The provisions of thiRart of the Act regulate conditions for the supply of heat
or other energy gases from distribution systems (hereinafter: distribution system).

(2) The provisions of this Part of the Act shall not apply to distribution systems
where the total rated poweapacity of the connected consumer's equipment on the network
does not exceed 500kW, with the exception of Articles 288 and 311 of this Act.

(3) The provisions of this Part of the Act shall not apply to custawaed
distribution systems, with thexeeption of Articles 310 and 311 of this Act.

Article 283



(Definitions)

In this Part of the Act, the following definitions shall apply:
"other energy gas" means an energy gas used as a fuel, other than natural gas;
"distribution” means the transfef heat and other energy gases through a distribution
system, including supply to final customers;

3. "distribution system" means a system of installations and facilities that is not connected
to other distribution or transmission systems and enables th&ferasf heat or other
energy gases through a network from one or more sources to final customers in several
buildings or at several locations;

4. “distributor® means any natural or legal person that performs the function of
distribution;

5. "customer owned disbution system" means a distribution system owned evveoed
by the final customers and may also include a production resource;

6. "consumption point" means a point where the volumes of heat or other energy gases for
a final customer are established by meain®eter readings or otherwise;

N =

7. "connection" means a line running from the main pipeline to the heating station when
distributing heat, or to the shut off valve when distributing other energy gases;
8. "regulated heat producer" means any legal or naturabpehat supplies heat to a heat

distributor providing services of general economic interest and is connected to the

distributor through an equity stake, or sells to the distributor more than 30% of the total

amount of heat pl anmndstdoutboor the foll owing Yy«
9.9fheat tariff item"” means the fee amount for
10. "commercial distribution” means a mode of distribution of heat or other energy gases

without granting exclusive rights or imposing a mandatory connetiidhe system and

without heat price regulation for heating purposes.

Article 284
(Method of carrying out the activity of heat distribution and distribution of other energy
gases)

(1) The energy activities of heat distribution and distribution leéoénergy gases
may be carried out as:
- an optional local service of general economic interest (hereinafter: a service of general
economic interest), or as
- commercial distribution.

(2) Where a distributor supplies or intends to supply more than amzdt
household customers, district heating and cooling (DHC) shall be provided as a service of
general economic interest.

(3) The energy activities of heat distribution and distribution of other energy gases
shall be carried out as services of genecainomic interest when a sustainable and
uninterrupted supply of heat and other energy gases is in the public interest in order to meet
public needs. The ordinance referred to in Article 285 of this Act shall also specify the precise
territorial scope oftte distribution area for the provision of the service of general economic
interest.



Article 285
(Exclusive right)

(1) The local community shall lay down the conditions and method of providing a
service of general economic interest in accordancettéiegulations governing services of
general economic interest and of public private partnerships (PPP).

(2) With a view to satisfying the public needs referred to in the third paragraph of
Article 284 of this Act by the necessary scope of investimemtnew or existing distribution
system, a local community may, by means of an ordinance, grant a distributor the exclusive
right to provide the service of general economic interest of the distribution of heat or other
energy gases in the territory of leeal community or a part thereof.

(3) The local community shall inform the Agency of the adopted ordinance for the
provision of the service of general economic interest referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 286
(Decisionrmaking procedureof the local community regarding commercial distribution)

(1) For carrying out the energy activities of heat distribution and the distribution of
other energy gases as commercial distribution, the distributor shall obtain the prior approval
of the locdcommunity on whose territory the commercial distribution is to be carried out.
The application for commercial distribution shall also include the conceptual design of the
investment, the spatial delineation of the distribution area and the envisageer mmahlbype
of customers and their total consumption.

(2) The local community shall decide on the approval for commercial distribution
within three months of the receipt of the application referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) The local commuty may refuse to grant approval for commercial distribution
if:
a) the local community in the proposed area decides to provide the service of general
economic interest referred to in Article 284 or Article 216 of this Act, or
b) the proposed energy supplgrtravenes the guidelines of the adopted LEC.

(4) In the event of the refusal of the approval referred to in point a) of the preceding
paragraph, the local community shall, within three months following the refusal to grant
approval, start the procedufor drawing up a concession act introducing the public service of
general economic interest.

(5) In the approval referred to in the second paragraph of this Article, the local
community must provide a precise spatial layout of the distributiosrayst

(6) The local community may revoke the approval if the investor does not begin the
construction of the distribution system within two years after the issuance of the approval.

Article 287



(Notification of the activity to the Agency)

(1) The digributor shall provide prior notice to the Agency of the beginning or
termination of the energy activities of heat distribution or the distribution of other energy
gases through a particular distribution system.

(2) For the purposes of keeping recortiproviders of the energy activities of heat
distribution and the distribution of other energy gases, the Agency may, in accordance with
the act governing personal data protection, collect, keep and process the following personal
data of a distributor whis a natural person: name and surname, address of permanent
residence, and business address.

Chapter Il: CUSTOMER PROTECTION

Article 288
(Supply contract and general terms and conditions)

(1) A heat or other energy gas supply contract between anceisénd a distributor
shall be concluded in writing, or in electronic form in accordance with the regulations on
electronic commerce.

(2) The contract referred to in the preceding paragraph shall determine at least the
following:
- the name and addresstbé distributor;
- the services provided, the service quality levels offered,;
the rights and obligations of the contracting parties with respect teorapliance with
the contract;
- the types of maintenance services;
- the means by which djp-date informatn on applicable tariffs and maintenance
charges may be obtained,;
- the duration of the contract and the conditions for the renewal and termination of
maintenance services and of the contract;
- any compensation and the refund arrangements which apply dotiteacted service
guality levels are not met, including inaccurate and delayed billing of supplied heat or
other energy gas;
information relating to the customers' rights.

(3) The general terms and conditions that form an integral part of the supply
contract should be fair and wethown in advance, and should be provided to customers by
the distributor prior to concluding a contract even where contracts are concluded through
intermediaries. The general terms and conditions of the distributor protidirsgrvice of
general economic interest shall be in compliance with the Distribution Code referred to in
Article 297 of this Act. Customers shall be protected against unfair or misleading sales
methods of distributing heat or other energy gases.

(4) Distributors shall notify their customers directly, in a transparent and
comprehensible manner, of any change in standard contractual terms and conditions at least
one month prior to their taking effect, in particular, where such changes apply to a contract
concluded with a customer.



Article 289
(Point of contact for customers)

(1) A distributor shall provide customers with a single point of access to
information on their rights, valid regulations and the means of dispute settlement available to
them inthe event of a dispute (hereinafter: point of contact).

(2) The point of contact of the distributor shall provide access to at least
information on:
- the settlement of disputes;
- applicable prices for heat or other energy gas and on standard ternmenditbigs, in
respect of access to and use of these services;
- the method of acquiring data on their consumption;
- in accordance with the regulations and ge
be supplied with heat or other energy gas of a specifuality at reasonable prices.

Article 290
(Providing information to customers)

(2) Distributors shall, at least once a year, provide final customers, in a clear and
understandable form, information on the following:
- applicable prices and energy somption;
- a comparison of the consumer's energy consumption with the consumer's consumption
in the same period of the previous year;
- a comparison with an average normalised or benchmarked user of energy in the same
user category, where possible.

(2) In addition to the information referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
distributor shall also provide final customers with the data on the legal and natural persons
who provide information on efficient energy use, including website addresses providing
information on available energy efficiency improvement measures.

Chapter lll: METERING OF CONSUMPTION

Article 291
(Metering of consumption and supply)

(1) A distributor shall ensure the metering of consumption at the consumption point
of an individualcustomer or at the common consumption point of several customers or
buildings. The heat distributor shall also ensure the metering of the quality of the supplied
heat.

(2) A heat producer shall, for the purpose of resale, meter the quantity of the heat
supplied to the network. A heat producer using a common boiler house must meter the
guantity of the heat produced on the threshold of the boiler house, regardless of the type of
installation for heat production.



Article 292
(Providing information to dstributors)

(1) A customer oftaking heat from a part of a building or from a building at the
common consumption point of several customers or buildings shall no later than within 15
days following the day on which the heat-td#ke started or termired inform the distributor
of the following:t h e ¢ u $ull mammecor blusness name, the address and information
relating to the part of the building in which the heat istakien, or the building in which the
energyisofft aken, t he cntfisation nuenbedand thealate on whech the heat
off-take started or terminated. The start or cessation of hettkefshall be deemed to be the
start or cessation of the use of the building or part thereof referred to in the preceding
sentence.

(2) A distributor that does not have correct data on a customer referred to in the
preceding paragraph shall, either directly or through the manager of the building, call upon
the person using the building concerned or part thereof to promptly provide the data

(3) An inspector who during an inspection due to an infringement of the first and
second paragraphs of this Article obtains data about a customer referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall be obliged to communicate such data to thieudastr

Chapter IV: OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRIBUTORS ACTING IN THE PUBLIC
INTEREST

Article 293
(Obligations in the public interest)

(1) Distributors shall, in the public interest, ensure:
- the secure supply of heat and other energy gases;
- nondiscrimindory treatment of customers;
- emergency supply to district heating customers.

(2) Distributors providing the service of general economic interest of heat
distribution shall ensure the supply of heat to final customers of district heating at regulated
prices, in accordance with Articles 299 to 302 of this Act.

Article 294
(Security of supply)

(1) Distributors must take appropriate steps to ensure the security of the operation
of the distribution system by providing sufficient capacity and the ratiabil the system and
the security of the supply to the system.

(2) The minister responsible for energy may impose on distributors mandatory
minimum stocks of primary fuels, the obligation to conclude {@mgq contracts with heat



producers or fuel syghers, and other appropriate measures or criteria in order to guarantee
the security of supply.

(3) Distributors shall ensure that consumers receive information about disruptions
in the system of energy supply and shall, at the request of corsswgi@inate disturbances
that prevent the offake of heat or other energy gases in the quality and quantity agreed upon.

Article 295
(Non-discriminatory treatment of customers)

(1) Distributors may not discriminate between system users withdrég#ne
conditions for the use of the system. The differences in the conditions for the use of the
system must be based on objective and transparent criteria and defined in the Distribution
Code or in general contractual terms and conditions determingebigers of commercial
distribution.

(2) A customer contributing towards a more favourable distribution system load
through an offtake quantity or an adjustment in the offtake quantity shall be entitled to more
favourable conditions of supply, proMd that the reasons and criteria for favourable
treatment are determined in the Distribution Code or in general contractual terms determined
by the providers of commercial distribution.

Article 296
(Emergency supply to household customers)

(1) Emergency supply shall be provided to household customers who, due to
financial circumstances, income and other social circumstances and living conditions, are
unable to provide themselves with an alternative source of energy for heating that would incur
thesame or lower costs for heating a residential space.

(2) A distributor shall not disconnect customers referred to in the preceding
paragraph from the heat supply or restrict their consumption of heat or other energy gas
before it reaches a quantityatis absolutely necessary in view of the circumstances (the
season, temperatures, place of residence, health condition and other similar circumstances) in
order not to jeopardise the life and health of such customers and persons living in their
households

(3) The costs of heat consumption incurred by a customer referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall be covered by the distributor until they are settled by the
customer. The costs which the distributor providing the service of generadraic interest
of heat distribution is unable to recover from such customer as is referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall qualify as the eligible costs of the distributor concerned and
shall be taken into account in price regulation.

Chapter V: OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRIBUTORS

Article 297



(Distribution Code)

(1) A distributor carrying out the energy activities of heat distribution and the
distribution of other energy gases as services of general economic interest shall issue a
Distribution Code regulating the operation and the manner of management of the distribution
system. The Distribution Code shall be transparent, objective andismiminatory. It shall
regulate in particular the following:

- general conditions of supply andnsmmption regulating the rights and obligations of
customers with regard to the supply of heat or other energy gases;

- network operation, technical and other conditions for the safe operation of the system,
the conditions for connection to the system dredrhethod of connection, as well as other
issues relating to the secure and quality supply of heat and other energy gases;

- the tariff system which determines the method of charging for the supply and tariff
elements for the supply of heat and other epgrases to different groups of customers
with regard to the load, type and characteristics of the consumption, quality and other
elements.

(2) The Distribution Code referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be lawful and
drawn up in accordance withe general act of the Agency that stipulates in detail the content
of the Code.

(3) Prior to publishing the Distribution Code, the distributor shall obtain approval
from the Agency.

(4) The Distribution Code shall be published in the Uradni listiRBkige Slovenije.

(5) A distributor carrying out commercial distribution shall draw up general terms
and conditions which regulate the rights and obligations of customers regarding the supply of
heat and other energy gases and define network opetatbnjcal and other conditions for
the safe operation of the system, conditions for connection to the system and the method of
connection, as well as other matters relating to secure and quality supply, and shall inform
customers of such conditions.

Article 298
(Operation of a district heating or cooling system)

Heat distributors with a system of rated thermal output exceeding 10MW shall
ensure the following:
- a control system for the operation of the district heating and cooling (hereinafter: DHC)
sydem, which allows for optimum thermal and hydraulic operation of the system;
- the implementation of measures for optimising the operation of the DHC system.

Chapter VI: PRICE REGULATION OF DHC SUPPLY

Article 299
(Price regulation method)



(1) The pice of heat for district heating within distribution systems of distributors
carrying out a service of general economic interest, and the price charged by a regulated heat
producer shall be regulated in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

(2) The heat price regulation referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be based
on the methodology for determining the prices of heat for district heating (hereinafter: the
methodology), which shall be prescribed by the Agency in its general act.éthedualogy
shall lay down the manner of forming starting prices as the highest average prices on the basis
of which the distributor and regulated heat producer form heat prices of district heating in
accordance with the criteria and mechanisms set oheimethodology. The methodology
shall determine the following:

- the types and criteria for determining eligible costs;
- the elements of the starting price, which is composed of a fixed and a variable part;
- the method of determining the starting price dreldgrounds for its amendment;
- the criteria or mechanism for adjusting the individual elements of the starting price to
changes in eligible costs;

the type, form and method of the submission of the information necessary to determine
the eligible costs antthe starting price.

(3) The methodology must be determined in such a manner as to promote energy
and costeffective production and distribution of heat, as well as to promote investments and
customer benefits in a sustainable manner.

Article 300
(Determining the starting price of heat)

(1) The starting price of heat shall be set on the basis of eligible costs and shall be
composed of a fixed and a variable part.

(2) The starting price must take into account and support the implemenfatien o
objectives and tasks referred to in Part Five of this Act.

Article 301
(Eligible costs)

(1) The eligible costs of a distributor or regulated heat producer shall be the costs
that are necessary to carry out the activity of distribution. A digbrlor regulated producer
of heat that is engaged in activities other than the activity of distribution shall attribute the
proportionate part of its total costs to those other activities. Eligible costs shall comprise the
costs of fuels, energy, operatianaintenance costs, and depreciation and other eligible costs
that are strictly necessary to carry out this activity.

(2) In determining the eligible costs for the leasing of a distribution system, source
or part thereof from the owner, the Agency maythe decisiormaking process for the
approval of the starting price, also carry out an analysis of the eligible costs of the lessor of
the distribution system, whereby the lessee must ensure that all data of the lessor are available
to the Agency. Ingch a case, the Agency shall take into account the level of the lease on the
basis of comparable price trends in recent years.



Article 302
(The procedure for obtaining the Agency's approval of a starting price)

(1) A heat distributor or regulated phacer of heat shall, prior to commencing the
activity of heat distribution, lodge an application with the Agency for the approval of the
starting price, stating the grounds on which it is based. The distributor shall also obtain the
Agency's approval forry amendment to the starting price.

(2) The heat distributor shall submit a photocopy of the application to the local
community in the area that the activity of heat distribution is to be carried out. The local
community may, within 15 days of the rggeof this photocopy, forward to the Agency its
opinion on the application concerned.

(3) The heat distributor or regulated producer of heat shall be obliged, upon the
Agency's request, to provide all the data that the Agency requires to decide pplidatian.

(4) In the event of the amendment of the methodology determining the starting
price, the heat distributor or regulated producer of heat shall file an application for obtaining a
new approval for the starting price of heat.

Article 303
(Cadlculation of heat tariff rates)

(1) A heat distributor shall determine objective, transparent andlisoriminatory
heat tariff rates applicable to individual final customers, in accordance with the starting price
fixed on the basis of the methodologyd the tariff system.

(2) The tariff system and tariff rates should encourage customers to contribute to
the efficient operation of the distribution system by means of thetaké quantity, the
adjustment of their consumption, or otherwise.

(3) Prior to charging heat tariff rates, the distributor shall be obliged to publish
them and inform the Agency thereof no later than three days before the tariff rates are
published.

Article 304
(Billing for the energy delivered)

(1) The heat and itsuglity and other types of energy gases delivered from
distribution systems shall be paid for by final customers on the basis of a supply contract
concluded with the distributor.

(2) The heat and other energy gases delivered shall be billed fortaiieasa year.
In between two billing dates the final customer shall provide advance payment.



(3) The distributor shall enable a final customer to make monthly payments on the
basis of the advance payment or on the basis of actual consumption.

(4) The distributor shall, at the request of the final customer, also calculate the
balance due during the billing period in respect of the heat and other energy gases delivered.
The distributor may charge for the service of calculating the balance due, idaacmmwith
the price list of costs, which may not exceed the real costs of the distributor; this additional
calculation of the balance due shall be approved by the Agency.

Article 305
(Separate accounting records)

(1) Distributors that provide sends of general economic interest and, in addition
to carrying out the activity of distribution, also carry out other activities, shall keep separate
accounting records in accordance with accounting standards; their accounting records shall
show separate agants for heat distribution, heat production and other activities as required if
the activities in question are carried out by separate undertakings.

(2) The separate accounts referred to in the preceding paragraph shall include the
following: a balanceheet, an income statement and a cash flow statement.

(3) The heat distributors that in addition to the activity of heat distribution also
carry out other activities, shall, in accordance with accounting standards, specify in their
internal acts the teria for the allocation of assets and liabilities, costs, expenditure and
revenue to be observed in keeping separate accounting records and in drawing up separate
accounts as referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(4) The provisions of the law goveng the transparency of financial relations and
separate accounts for different activities shall be applied to determine the criteria referred to
in the preceding paragraph.

(5) In the accounting records concerning annual accounts, distributors sbiaei
all individual transactions with related undertakings exceeding EUR 20,000.

(6) Heat distributors providing a service of general economic interest shall, in
addition to the separate accounts for energy sector activities subject to sepa@gardiscl
requirements, fully disclose in their accounting records the criteria referred to in the third
paragraph of this Article. The suitability of the criteria and their proper use shall be audited
annually by an auditor, who shall draw up a special report

Chapter VII: CONNECTION TO THE SYSTEM

Article 306
(Connection to the system)

(1) For each connection to a distribution system or its modification, a user of the
system, as the beneficiary of the connection approval (hereinafter: the holder afticonne
approval) shall obtain a connection approval from the distributor. Conditions for the



connection are determined in the general contractual terms and conditions or in the
Distribution Code.

(2) The final approval for connection shall be valid f@o tyears. Within this time
limit, the holder of the approval for the connection of an existing facility shall fulfil all the
requirements stated in the connection approval, and request that the operator execute the
connection. At the request of the holdéthe approval, the system operator may extend the
validity of the connection approval, but no more than twice, and each time for no more than
one year. The request for the extension of a connection approval must be submitted within 30
days before the exy of the connection approval. In the event of a late response by the
system operator, the approval shall be deemed extended, of which the operator shall notify a
holder who has not yet implemented the connection to the system.

(3) Acting under publi@uthority, a distributor providing a service of general
economic interest shall decide on issuing a connection approval in an administrative
procedure. The mayor shall decide on appeals against decisions to issue or refuse a connection
approval. The locatommunity shall notify the Agency once a year of the number of appeals
against decisions to issue or refuse a connection approval.

(4) A distributor providing a service of general economic interest shall refuse to

issue a connection approval if:

- the u®r of the system does not meet the conditions for connection;

- the connection would cause severe disruptions to the supply, or

- the distributor would incur disproportionate costs due to the connection. The
disproportionate costs shall mean constructionsctwstthe service connecting line to the
point in the system where the connection is possible, or costs that are needed to reinforce
the existing system, or a combination thereof, whereas within a reasonable time an
increase in the use of the system is exjpected to occur on the new service connecting
line or in an existing distribution system to the extent that allows normal investment
amortisation.

(5) In the event of the occurrence of disproportionate costs, the system user shall
have the righto connection in accordance with the Distribution Code, provided that the user
covers the disproportionate costs.

(6) When the connection approval is final, the distributor and the holder of
connection approval shall enter into a connection contractafalates all mutual relations
regarding the connection, the maintenance of the connection, the supply of heat or other
energy gases, as well as other mutual relations regarding the connection, the connection
procedure and supply.

(7) A distributorproviding a service of general economic interest shall also
conclude a contract for the supply of heat or other energy gases with a person who is not the
holder of a connection approval if that person has obtained the authorisation of the holder of
the canection approval to ofiake heat and other energy gases through the connection of the
approval holder.

(8) In the event of a change in the ownership of the building to which the
connection approval relates, the new owner shall be obliged to itiierdistributor of such
within 15 days and provide supporting evidence.



Article 307
(Temporary disconnection)

(1) A distributor may temporarily disconnect a system user for the purposes of the

following:

ordinary or extraordinary maintenance;
inspecton or repair;

checks or to check meterings;

network expansion.

(2) The distributor shall carry out such disconnection at a time when system users

are least affected.

(3) The distributor shall timely notify system users of the scheduled disconnection

in writing or in another direct manner. If a larger number of customers are concerned and if
personal communication is not cagfective, such information shall be published in the
public media and on the Internet at least 48 hours prior to disconnection

Article 308
(Disconnection of a system user)

(1) A distributor shall disconnect a system user upon prior notice if the system user

fails to comply with its obligations within the time limit specified in the notice in the
following cases, i.e. whemé system user:

following a reminder from the distributor, fails to meet all obligations arising from the
contract;

disrupts the supply of heat or other energy gases to other system users;

denies access or prevents persons authorised by the distribatmess any part of the
connection, protection or metering devices, and energy facilities, installations or lines
where there is reason to believe that such installations could be causing disturbances;

without the distributor's approval, connects its epeigtallations or lines to the
network or enables other users to connect their energy installations through its own energy
installations;

following a reminder from the distributor and in accordance with the Distribution Code
or supply contract, fails toeduce consumption or quantity to the agreed amount within
the specified time limit;

prevents the proper registration of consumed quantities or when the user uses heat or
other energy gases without the metering devices required or agreed upon or when the us
evades such;

fails to eliminate or reduce disturbances caused by the user's facilities, installations or
lines to the permissible limit of disturbances within the time limit stipulated by the
distributor or the competent inspection authority;

(2) Thedistributor may disconnect the system user without prior notice if by the

operation of its energy facilities, installations or lines, the system user endangers the life,
health or property of people.



Article 309
(Reconnection and compensation for damage

(1) A distributor shaldl be obliged to re
and expense, any user who is disconnected, when the reasons for disconnection have been
eliminated and the conditions in this Chapter fulfilled.

(2) A distributorthat unjustifiably disconnects a system user must reconnect the
facilities, installations or lines of the system user to its system at its own expense and within
24 hours from the time when the unjustified disconnection is established.

(3) The distribudr shall have the right to compensation for damage caused by the
acts of a system user on grounds of which the distributor disconnected the system user with or
without prior notice.

(4) A system user shall have the right to compensation for damagldauan
unjustified disconnection.

Chapter VIII: SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Article 310
(Connection to a customeowned distribution system)

(1) A connection to a customewned distribution system shall be allowed to a
customer who, under the regulatiormgrning the rights to parts of buildings, is not a co
owner or common owner of the distribution system concerned, provided that the customer
obtains the approval of the local community.

(2) The local community shall issue its approval in accordandeAwiicle 286 of
this Act if the activity of the distribution of a service of general economic interest is not
provided in the area of connection pursuant to Article 216 or 285 of this Act, or if the provider
of the service of general economic interestriefissed to connect the customer to the system.

Article 311
(Reporting and analysis of heat prices)

(1) Distributors, operators of custormwned distribution systems and producers of
heat or other energy gases for sale shall report to the Agenimfitivéng information:
- the distribution network and installations;
- connection approvals and connections of customers;
- the quantities of heat and other energy gases generated and distributed,;
- the quality level achieved,
- complaints of customers;
- tariffs andprices separately by each customer category;
- the number of final customers by categories, including data on the share of energy
supplied in each category.



(2) For the purpose of implementing this Article, the Agency shall, in accordance
with the act geerning personal data protection, collect, keep and process the following
personal data of a distributor, an operator of a custanvaed distribution system and a
producer of heat and other energy gases for sale who is a natural person: name and surname,
address of permanent residence and business address.

(3) The Agency shall, by a general act, specify the scope and frequency of the
reporting of the data referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, and draw up a price
analysis of heat based dretreports from distributors and other information obtained. The
Agency shall make the results of the analysis public once a year by 1 July for the previous
year.

Part Five
ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES
Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 312
(Application of the provisions of this Part)

This part of the Act regulates the implementation of national policy and local
community policies in the area of energy efficiency and renewable energy sources.

Article 313
(Definitions)

(1) In this Part of the Act, the following definitions shall apply:
"aerother mal energyo means energy stored
"biomass" means the biodegradable fraction of products, waste and residues from
biological origin from agriculturéincluding vegetal and animal substances), forestry and
related industries including fisheries and aquaculture, as well as the biodegradable fraction
of industrial and municipal waste;

3. "placing on the market" means making an enesdgted product availdd for the first
time on the European Union market with a view to its distribution or use within the
European Union, whether for reward or free of charge and irrespective of the type of sales
(selling technique);

4. "putting into service" means the first uskan energyrelated product for its intended

purpose by an end user in the European Union;

"supply" means the sale, including resale, of energy to customers;
"energy supplier" means any legal or natural person who performs the function of
supply;

7. "distributor of an energyelated product” means any legal person, sole trader or person
that performs an independent business activity in the supply chain, other than a
manufacturer or importer, who makes an enegjgted product available on the market
or pus it into service;

8. "supplier of an energgelated product” means a manufacturer or its authorised
representative in the European Union or an importer who places or puts into service an
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energyrelated product on the EU market. In the absence of such, amsalnar legal
person who places on the market or puts into service enelafed products shall be
considered a supplier;

9. Aimaking available on the mar¥rrélated groduntef@ns t h
distribution, consumption or use on the Europdadnion market in the course of a
commercial activity, whether in return for payment or free of charge;

10. "other essential resources" means water, chemicals or any other substance consumed by
an energyrelated product in normal use;

11. "Eco Fund" means the E¢aund, Slovenian Environmental Public Fund, established by
the Environmental Protection Act (Uradni list RS, nos 39/@fficial consolidated text,
49/061 ZMetD, 66/061 Constitutional Court Decision, 33/7ZPNa | r ti,ZF&® 7/ 0 8
1A, 70/08, 108/09, 108/09Z P N aA, 48{12, 57/12 and 92/13);

12. “electricity produced from renewable energy sources" means electricity produced by
generation units using only renewable energy sources, as well as the proportion of
electricity produced from renewable energy souncemgeneration plants also using non
renewable energy sources but excluding electricity generation from pumping hydro power
plants and other energorage systems.

13. an fAenergy performance certificate" is an
the energy performance of a building and provides recommendations for improving
energy efficiency;

14. "energy service" means a physical effect, benefit or good derived from a combination of
energy with energy efficient technology and/or activity, which mayhelthe operations,
maintenance and control necessary to deliver the service, which is delivered on the basis
of a contract and in normal circumstances has proven to lead to verifiable and measurable
or estimable energy efficiency improvement and/or prynesrergy savings;

15. "energy performance of a building" means the calculated or measured amount of energy
needed to meet the energy demand associated with the typical use of the building, which
includes,inter alia, energy used for heating, cooling, venidat hot water and lighting;

16. "energy efficiency" is the ratio of output of performance, service, goods or energy, to
input of energy;

17. "energy distributor" means a natural or legal person, including a distribution system
operator, responsible for transpog energy with a view to its delivery to final customers
or to distribution stations that sell energy to final customers;

18. "geothermal energy" means energy stored in the form of heat beneath the surface of
solid earth;

19. "hydrothermal energy" means enesigred in the form of heat in surface water;

20. "plot ratio" means the ratio between the land area and the building floor area in a given
territory;

21. "energy efficiency improvement" means an increase in energy efficiency as a result of
technological, behawural and/or economic changes;

22. " b6useful heat" means heat produced in a c
justifiable demand for heating or cooling; "economically justifiable demand” means
demand that does not exceed the needs for heatinglimgand which would otherwise
be satisfied at market conditions by energy generation processes other than cogeneration;

23. "smallscale cogeneration unit" means a cogeneration unit with installed capacity below
1MWe;

24. "micro-cogeneration unit" means a cogestion unit with a maximum capacity below
50kWe,;

25. "nominal power capacity® means the maximum continuous power (without time
constraints) for which the plant has been designed and is indicated on the information



plate affixed to the generation unit or iretmanufacturers' specification or defined on the
basis of delivery measurements;

26. "unauthorised use of the label" means the use of the label indicating the energy class of
the product in a manner that does not comply with regulations;

27. "net generated elaatity" means the electricity generated by the generation unit minus
electricity consumed for the operation of the unit itself;

28. '"rated output of the air conditioning system" means the maximum calorific output,
specified and guaranteed by the manufactusebeing deliverable during continuous
operation while complying with the useful efficiency indicated by the manufacturer;

29. "new generation unit" means a unit for the production of electricity from renewable
energy sources or higfficiency cogeneration wiheby the period from its first operation
until the submission of the complete application for support under this Act does not
exceed one year. The first run of the generation unit shall be deemed to be the date of
issue of an operating permit for the gextem unit concerned or the date of its first
connection to the network if the operating permit for the generation unit is not prescribed.
If the generation unit started to operate before this date, the agency for determining the
age of the generation urshall determine the date when the unit started to operate in a
fact-finding procedure.

30. "new building" is a newly constructed building as stipulated in the regulations
governing the construction of facilities;

31. "major renovation" means the renovation of @lding where the total cost of the
renovation is higher than 50% of the investment value for a new and comparable
production facility;

32. "ecodesign" means the systematic integration of environmental aspects into product
design with the aim of improving thenvironmental performance of the product
throughout its whole life cycle;

33. "public sector entities" are state authorities, administrative bodies egmeadfning
local communities, public institutes and public service institutes, public funds, public
agercies and institutions established by the state or a municipality;

34. "product fiche" means a standard table of information relating to an eredeggd
product;

35. "authorised representative” means any natural or legal person established in the
European Union Wwo has received a written mandate from the manufacturer to perform on
his behalf all or part of the obligations and formalities relating to ereigyed products;

36. "individual action” means an action that leads to verifiable, and measurable or
estimable,energy efficiency improvements and is undertaken as a result of a policy
measure;

37. "guarantee of origin” means an electronic authentic document providing proof that a
given quantity of electricity was produced from higfficiency cogeneration of from
renavable energy sources;

38. "aggregator" means a demand service provider that combines multipledstairdon
consumer loads for sale or auction in organised energy markets;

39. "primary energy savings" means energy savings from fuel created by a cogeneration
unit in comparison with a separate electricity and heat generation process;

40. "connection to the network™ means physical connection or connection to the energy
network in accordance with the conditions determined in this Act;

41. "support scheme" means any instrumpescheme or mechanism that promotes the
energy efficiency or use of energy from renewable sources by reducing the cost of that
energy, increasing the price at which it can be sold, or increasing, by means of a
renewable energy obligation or otherwiseg tholume of such energy purchased. This



includes, but is not restricted to, investment aid, tax exemptions or reductions, tax refunds,
renewable energy obligation support schemes, including those using green certificates,
and direct price support schemeg|uding feedin tariffs and premium payments;

42. "manufacturer of energselated products” means any legal or natural person that
manufactures energglated products, or that has such products designed or
manufactured, and markets them under its nameadernark;

43. "energyrelated product® means any good having an impact on energy consumption
during use which is placed on the market and/or put into service, including parts intended
to be incorporated into energglated products which are placed on the ntaake/or put
into service as individual parts for end users and of which the environmental performance
can be assessed independently;

44. "generation unit" means a set of equipment and installations that transforms other types
of energy into electricity and &bto operate independently;

45. "energy management system" means a set of interrelated or interacting elements of a
plan which sets an energy efficiency objective and a strategy to achieve that objective;

46. "nearly zereenergy building" means a building withvary high energy performance or
nearly zero or a very low amount of energy required for operation, whereby the required
energy is, to a very significant extent, produced from renewable sours#e @n nearby;

47. "public sector buildings" are all buildisgpwned by public sector entities and used for
the performance of their activity based on a legal title;

48. "costoptimal level" means the energy performance level which leads to the lowest cost
during the estimated economic life cycle, where the lowestisastermined taking into
account energyelated investment costs, maintenance and operating costs (including
energy costs and savings, the category of building concerned, earnings from the energy
produced), where applicable, and disposal costs, whergeappl The cosbptimal level
shall lie within the range of performance levels where the cost benefit analysis calculated
over the estimated economic life cycle is positive;

49. fnheat pump"™ means a machine, a dewralce or
surroundings such as air, water or ground to buildings or industrial applications by
reversing the natural flow of heat such that it flows from a lower to a higher temperature.
For reversible heat pumps, it may also move heat from the building toatueal
surroundings;

50. "dealer in energyelated products" means a retailer or person who sells, offers for rent
or purchase in instalments or displays enerdgted products to end users;

51. Ai mporterr edfaterderpgyduct s o nmeesamperforminggan| e g al
independent business activity that is established in the European Union and places energy
related products from a third country on the EU market;

52. "savings potential® means the share of energy out of the total energy used by the final
customer that can be reduced through economically justified investments;

53. "major renovation" means the renovation or maintenance of a building where more than
25% of the surface of the building envelope undergoes renovation;

54. "product d e si g n procassesathas transtoren legak techrochl, safety,
functional, market or other requirements to be met by an emelgied product in the
technical specification for that product;

55. "obligated party" means an energy distributor or retail energy sales corthgtnig
bound by energy efficiency obligation schemes;

(2) The terms governing the construction of buildings that are not defined under
this Act shall have the same meaning as those defined by the regulations on building
construction.



Chapter Il: ENE RGY EFFICIENCY AND USE OF RENEWABLE ENERGY
SOURCES

Article 314
(Promotion of energy efficiency and the use of energy from renewable sources)

(1) The promotion of measures to improve energy efficiency and the use of energy
from renewable sources sha#l barried out by the state through its programmes of training,
informing, raising public awareness, energy counselling, promoting energy audits, drafting
regulations, financial incentives and other support schemes.

(2) The Eco Fund shall draw up and iempent the programme for improving
energy efficiency at the national level. The Eco Fund shall provide financial incentives in
accordance with this Act and on the basis of the approved project for energy efficiency
improvement and in accordance with theqadure for the allocation of specHtirpose
assets of the Eco Fund laid down by the law governing environmental protection, unless
otherwise provided for in this Act.

(3) Measures and mechanisms to promote an increase in energy efficiency and the
use of renewable sources shall be specified in action plans.

Article 315
(Purpose of the promotion of energy efficiency and use of renewable energy sources)

(1) The promotion of measures to improve energy efficiency and the use of
renewable energy sows shall be implemented with a view to decreasing the use of energy,
increasing the quantity and share of renewable energy sources, improving the security of the
energy supply, reducing dependence on energy imports and other energy reasons laid down in
the ECS.

(2) The level of incentives is designed in a esff¢ctive manner from the
perspective of energy and must ensure the implementation of the measures. The conditions
and criteria for the allocation of incentives and for eligible persons shalkéenieed in the
regulation referred to in the first paragraph of Article 316 of this Act.

(3) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the level of incentives in the case of
the complete energy renovation of existing buildings, which includes theistfumént of the
building envelope, the renovation of technical systems and the installation of devices for the
use of renewable energy sources, shall be relatively higher so that investors are encouraged to
opt for complete renovation.

(4) Notwithstandig the second paragraph of this Article, the social dimension may
also be taken into account when determining the methods of promoting and allocating the
amounts of incentives.

(5) Notwithstanding the second paragraph of this Article, when determirgng th
methods of promoting such and the amounts of incentives, other considerations such as



environmental protection, in particular the reduction of emissions, the preservation of the
cultural heritage, nature conservation, the use of natural materialsegitoor the promotion
of technologies, and the promotion of regional development, may also be taken into account.

(6) Notwithstanding the second paragraph of this Article, incentives for
demonstration projects may be higher.

Article 316
(Types of firancial incentives)

(1) The minister responsible for energy shall determine the types of financial
incentives for energy efficiency, district heating and the use of renewable energy sources,
conditions and criteria for the allocation of incentives, itiwerbeneficiaries and the
incentives allocated as st at aeminini§ 1 wmlcendand e
other financial incentives (hereinafter: subsidies).

(2) The authority allocating subsidies referred to in the preceding paragtaghs
publish on its website all subsidy beneficiaries with the title, type and size of the project
subsidised.

(3) The minister shall, in the regulation referred to in the first paragraph of this
Article, also lay down technical specifications torbet by the units and systems for the
production of energy from renewable energy sources in order to be eligible to receive
subsidies.

Article 317
(Funds for implementing the Eco Fund programme)

(1) Funds for the implementation of the Eco Fund prognameferred to in the
second paragraph of Article 314 of this Act shall be provided through an energy consumption
fee for increasing energy efficiency (hereinafter: energy efficiency fee). The energy efficiency
fee shall be charged on district heatingctleity and solid, liquid and gaseous fuels. Final
customers supplied with electricity and natural gas from the network shall pay the energy
efficiency fee to the network operator, whereas final customers supplied with heat from the
distribution networkand final customers of solid, liquid and other gaseous fuels shall pay the
aforementioned fee to the energy supplier.

(2) Operators and suppliers of heat from a distribution network and suppliers of
solid, liquid and other gaseous fuels shall transfercbllected funds referred to in the
previous paragraph to the Eco Fund.

(3) The Government shall fix the level of the energy efficiency fee referred to in the
preceding paragraph of this Article in such a way that there is an equal charge on g/l energ
irrespective of its type.

(4) The Government shall, upon its approval of the programme as an integral part
of the Eco Fund's business plan, designate a portion of the collected funds as revenue of the



Eco Fund to be spent on the implementation oktiergyefficiency improvement
programme.

(5) The Government may impose the obligation that the energy efficiency fee for
fuel be charged before the delivery of fuel to final customers.

(6) The Eco Fund shall be obliged to publish once a year & @pétne programme
implementation, energy savings achieved, level of funds used to implement the programme
and on specific costs of achieving savings.

Article 318
(Energy savings among final customers)

(1) Suppliers of electricity and heat and supglief solid, liquid or gaseous fuels to
final customers shall be designated as obligated parties (hereinafter: obligated parties) to
ensure the achievement of energy savings among final customers.

(2) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the ofgdgparties may, instead of
achieving the actual energy savings among final customers, fulfil their obligation referred to
in the preceding paragraph by making a payment to the Eco Fund. The amount to be paid
shall be equal to the product of the energyrags/that the obligated parties were required to
achieve among final customers and the specific costs of achieving the savings referred to in
the sixth paragraph of Article 317 of this Act.

(3) The Government shall determine the following by meandeteee.
- the period and level of engse energy savings that obligated parties have to achieve
over the period;
the method of calculating the level of savings;
- the distribution of savings by individual years of the set period; and
- the method and deadlines tthe fulfilment of obligations by the obligated parties under
the provisions referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(4) The Government may, in the decree referred to in the preceding paragraph,
determine exceptions so as to allow primary energy gavachieved in the energy
transformation, distribution and transmission sectors, including efficient district heating and
cooling infrastructure, to be counted towards the amount of final energy savings.

Article 319
(Types of energy services and enegfficiency improvement measures)

(1) The types of energy services and energy efficiency improvement measures to
achieve energy savings that the obligated parties referred to in the preceding Article shall
include in their programmes are mainly thedaling:

- measures for efficient energy use and greater use of renewable energy sources in heat
generation in the public and service sectors and in industry and households;

efficient energy use measures in buildings;

efficient energy use measures in trasp



- measures to increase the efficiency of district heating systems;
- energy audit programmes.

(2) The Government shall specify the types of energy services and energy
efficiency improvement measures in the decree referred to in the third paragrapiclef A
318 of this Act.

Article 320
(The evaluation of measures and programmes)

In the drawing up, implementation and evaluation of measures and programmes
aimed at improving energy efficiency and the use of renewable sources, the method
prescribed byhe minister responsible for energy shall be taken into consideration when
determining energy savings as well as the quantity of energy produced from renewable
sources of energy achieved as a result of individual measures to improve energy efficiency
andthe use of renewable sources.

Article 321
(Reporting and verifying energy savings achieved)

(1) By 31 March each year, the obligated parties referred to in Article 318 of this
Act shall submit a report to the Agency on the progress achieved towardy efficiency
targets for the previous year.

(2) By 30 April each year, the Agency shall publish all energy savings achieved by
each obligated party in the previous year.

(3) The Agency shall verify at least a statistically significant proportizh a
representative sample of energy efficiency improvement measures implemented by the
obligated parties.

(4) At the Agency's request and no more than once a year, the obligated parties

shall submit the following information:

- aggregated statistical formation on their final customers (identifying significant
changes to previously submitted information); and

- current information on final customersd c
profiles, customer segmentation and the geographicaltidocaf customers, while
preserving the integrity and confidentiality of private or commercially sensitive
information.

(5) The Agency shall specify the form and content of the report referred to in the
first paragraph of this Article.

Article 322
(Obligatory use of renewable energy sources, cogeneration and waste heat in district
heating systems)



(1) District heating and cooling systems must be efficient. Heat distributors shall
ensure an annual level of heat by using at least one of the folleaimges:
- at least 50% of heat produced from renewable energy sources;
- at least 50% of waste heat;
- at least 75% of cogenerated heat; or
- at least 75% of a combination of the heat referred to in the above three indents.

(2) The obligation referreatin the preceding paragraph based on reports referred
to in Article 311 of this Act shall be verified by the Agency. (1) By 1 May each year, the
Agency shall publish information for the previous year on which district heating systems are
energyefficient.

(3) Notwithstanding the first and second paragraphs of this Article, the values
referred to in the first paragraph of this Article may also be achieved through several networks
in the territory of the same local community, if so provided by the lotwaigy concept.

Article 323
(Payment of a contribution for the production of heat from renewable energy sources)

(1) Final customers of heat and fuels shall pay a contribution for the production of
heat from renewable energy sources.

(2) Notwithstawling the preceding paragraph, the contribution for the production of
heat from renewable energy sources shall not be paid for renewable sources and heat from
efficient district heating and cooling systems.

(3) The Government shall fix the level of thentribution in such a manner that
there is an equal charge on all energy, irrespective of its type.

(4) Distributors of heat and fuels shall transfer the collected funds referred to in the
first paragraph of this Article to the Eco Fund. In the regutateferred to in the preceding
paragraph, the Government shall specify the method of using the funds referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article in such a manner that these funds are used as incentives or subsidies
for the construction of heat praction units and district heating systems using renewable
energy sources and for the payment of costs incurred by the Eco Fund when managing these
funds.

Article 324
(Energy management system)

(1) An energy management system shall be establishedblig pactor entities.

(2) The Government shall issue a decree designating the obligated parties and
determining the minimum content requirements of the energy management system, including
targets for energy efficiency and renewable energy sourcesn @tdins for achieving
objectives, responsible persons and the method of verifying the achievement of results.



(3) The Government decree referred to in the preceding paragraph shall also
determine the mandatory share of renewable energy sources amethg performance
requirements of public sector buildings as well as measures to improve energy efficiency and
the use of renewable energy resources in the buildings used by public sector entities.

Article 325
(Local energy organisations)

(1) For theimplementation of the tasks under this Act that fall within the
competence of local communities, one or several local communities may establish or
authorise a local energy organisation.

(2) Local energy organisations shall carry out the followingstaskhe public
interest:
- the drawing up and implementation of local energy concepts;
- tasks related to the setting up and operation of the energy management system;
- implementation and management of international projects in the area of energy
efficiency and renewable energy sources.

(3) Local energy organisations shall keep separate accounting records for the funds
allocated for the tasks in the public interest referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 326
(Data for drawing up local energy conpés)

(1) Final customers of energy other than household customers that are located in the
area of an individual local community shall submit to the local community, at its request, data
on energy consumption that are necessary for the drawing up aledniempation of a local
energy concept.

(2) The data referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be data on the consumption
of fuels for heat production, produced heat, necessary heat and waste heat, and estimates for
the next fiveyear period.

Chapter lll: ENERGY EFFICIENCY
Section 1: Ecodesign requirements for enaejgited products

Article 327
(Environmental requirements for products placed on the market or put into service)

(1) An energyrelated product (hereinafter: the product) may be placethe
market or put into service or made available on the market if:
- it complies with the prescribed technical requirements for the ecodesign of products;
- a conformity assessment of the product has been carried out;
- an EC declaration of conformity fideen issued,;



- technical documentation has been provided in one of the official languages of the
European Union;

- it is affixed with the CE conformity marking, and

- the information for final customers is provided in the Slovenian language.

(2) The manudcturer or its authorised representative shall make the relevant
technical documents relating to the conformity assessment and the declaration of conformity
available for inspection for a period of 10 years after the final manufacture of the-energy
relatedproduct.

(3) Where the manufacturer is not established within the European Union and in the
absence of an authorised representative in the European Union, the obligations referred to in
the first and second paragraphs of this Article shall pertéimetamporter.

(4) A supplier or distributor of products shall, at the request of the surveillance
authority, provide technical documentation of the product, attesting to the conformity of the
product with ecodesign requirements.

(5) The affixing ofmarkings on a product which are likely to mislead users as to the
meaning or form of the CE marking shall be prohibited.

(6) Products which are not in conformity with the ecodesign requirements may be
displayed at trade fairs, exhibitions, demonstragiand other similar events, provided that
there is a visible indication that they may not be placed on the market and/or put into service
until brought into conformity therewith.

(7) The Government shall, by means of a decree, specify the techgisiatneents
for the ecodesign of products.

Section 2: Energy labelling of products

Article 328
(Energy labelling of products)

(1) Products may be placed on the market or put into service or made available on

the market if:

- the measuring proceduresvieabeen conducted for them in accordance with the decree
referred to in the tenth paragraph of this Article;

- they are affixed with the energfficiency label (hereinafter: the label) and a standard
product fiche;

- technical documentation has been produsich is sufficient to enable assessment of
the accuracy of the information contained in the label and the standard product fiche.

(2) The design and content of the label and standard product fiche shall be accurate
and in the Slovenian language.

(3) Suppliers of products shall store the technical documentation which enables
assessment of the accuracy of the information contained in the label and the standard product
fiche for a period ending five years after the last product concerned was ntaragac



(4) Suppliers or distributors of products shall provide the necessary labels and
standard product fiches to dealers free of charge. Suppliers are responsible for the accuracy of
the labels and standard product fiches that they supply.

(5) Suppliers or distributors of products shall, at the request of the surveillance
authority, make available technical documentation which is sufficient to establish the
accuracy of the information contained on the label and the standard product fiche.

(6) Where products are offered for purchase, rent or display, dealers shall make
available to the final customer, prior to the purchase or rent or display of the product, the
information indicated on the label or standard product fiche.

(7) Any advertisemdrand promotional material concerning the product shall
include, as appropriate, the energy class or other relevant information of the energy
consumption.

(8) With respect to the products covered by this Act, the display of other labels,
marks, symbolsr inscriptions which do not comply with the requirements of this Act shall be
prohibited, if such display is likely to mislead or confuse end users with respect to the
consumption of energy or, where relevant, other essential resources during use.

(9) Misleading advertising of energy characteristics or energy savings concerning
the product shall also be prohibited. Misleading advertising shall be deemed to be any
statement of untrue or insufficient information about the energy efficiency er cost
effeciveness of the product with respect to the admissible manner of its use. When
advertising the costs or savings and environmental and other characteristics of the product, it
shall not be permitted to withhold or write less clearly data that are of etgaptatance
with regard to the mode and purpose of the product use.

(10) The Government shall, by means of a decree, specify the technical
requirements regarding the information to be provided on energy efficiency in various selling
methods, leasingdvertising, and the content of the technical documentation.

Article 329
(Reporting on products)

(1) The manufacturer or its authorised representative or an importer who places the
products referred to in Article 328 of this Act or generation unitshfe production of heat
from renewable energy sources (hereinafter: generation units) on the market shall report to the
minister responsible for energy on the quantity of products placed on the market in the
Republic of Slovenia and on their energy claskcated on the energy label or technical
documentation of the product or unit. Data on the quantity and energy class of the products or
generation units supplied for the market of the Republic of Slovenia shall also be provided by
distributors.

(2) The minister responsible for energy shall define in regulations the type of
information and manner of the reporting referred to in the preceding paragraph.



Section 3: Energy performance of buildings

Article 330
(Nearly zereenergy buildings)

All new buildings shall be nearly zemenergy buildings.

Article 331
(Action plan for nearly zereenergy buildings)

(1) Following the proposal of the ministry responsible for energy, the Government
shall adopt an action plan for nearly zemergy buildingsdr the period up to 2020 every
three years.

(2) The action plan for nearly zeemergy buildings shall cover objectives,
programmes and measures to attain these objectives, and human and financial resources for
the implementation of these programmed areasures. In the action plan, the Government
shall also formulate the policy and measures to promote the energy efficiency renovation of
existing buildings into nearly zemnergy buildings.

(3) Every three years the ministry responsible for endngll draw up a report on
progress as regards increasing the number of nearherergy buildings and notify the
European Commission thereof.

Article 332
(Feasibility study of alternative energy supply systems)

() In constructing a new building amthen a building or part thereof undergoes
major renovation that under the building construction regulations entails reconstruction, a
feasibility study of alternative energy supply systems (hereinafter: a feasibility study) shall be
drawn up while takingnto account the technical, functional, environmental and economic
feasibility of these systems. Alternative systems shall be deemed to be:
- decentralised systems based on renewable energy sources;
- high-efficiency cogeneration;
- district or block heating ancboling, if available;
- heat pumps.

(2) The feasibility study referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be a mandatory
component of the basic design in compliance with the regulations on building construction.

(3) The feasibility studies referreéd in the first paragraph of this Article are not
necessary for buildings:
- whose type of energy supply shall be determined in the local energy concept referred to
in Article 29 of this Act;
- whose type of energy supply shall be determined by meansgtiation;
- referred to in the sixth paragraph of Article 334 of this Act;



- if according to the basic design tlards of the final energy needed for the operation
of the building is to be supplied from one or more alternative systems, the requirement fo
conducting the feasibility study shall be deemed fulfilled;

- with a surface area of up to 1009rif for the area in which it is or will be located a
local energy concept or analysis of the rounded spatial unit has been drawn up or made
with identified dternatives and capacities for using renewable energy sources.

(4) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the methodology for
drawing up the feasibility study and its obligatory content.

Article 333
(Energy performance certificate)

(1) Energy performance certificates of buildings shall contain reference values
allowing the comparison and assessment of the energy performance of buildings. The energy
performance certificate shall include recommendations for thesffestive improvemendf
the energy performance of the building, except in the case of +ewtybuildings and leased
buildings.

(2) Energy performance certificates shall be valid for ten years. A customer may
obtain a new energy performance certificate before the expingdenyear period.

(3) An individual building or a building unit may not have two or more valid
energy performance certificates. A new energy performance certificate for an individual
building or building unit shall revoke the previous energy parémce certificate.

(4) When the owner of a building unit in a mtdpartment building that may only
be issued an energy performance certificate for the entire building orders an energy
performance certificate, this certificate shall be valid for titeebuilding.

(5) Energy performance certificates of buildings shall be issued at the customer's
request by an authorised legal or natural person referred to in Article 339.

(6) Every issuance of an energy performance certificate shall be reported
concurrently with its issuance, for entry in the Energy Performance Certificate Register by an
independent expert for the production of building energy performance certificates. The energy
performance certificate shall be transferred to the owner andiddual building or building
unit.

(7) The Energy Performance Certificate Register shall be kept by the ministry
responsible for energy. The data on buildings or building units, data on energy performance
certificates, and data on the independeneexywho produces the energy performance
certificate shall be entered into the Energy Performance Certificate Register: their full name
and accreditation number as well as the date accreditation was issued. The Energy
Performance Certificate Register shadl accessible by the public. The data from the Energy
Performance Certificate Register shall be a part of the common spatial database infrastructure.

(8) The detailed content, form and methodology for issuing an energy performance
certificate as wellaithe data content, the method of keeping the Energy Performance



Certificate Register and the manner of reporting the issued energy performance certificate for
entry into the Energy Performance Certificate Register shall be prescribed by the minister
respasible for energy.

Article 334
(Duties relating to an energy performance certificate)

(1) The energy performance certificate shall be provided by the owners of buildings
or building units for buildings or building units that are built, sold or leasgdo a tenant
who, prior to leasing, did not have a permanent or temporary address at the building or
building unit. For buildings that are constructed on the basis of building regulations and are
not offered for sale or for leasing, the requiremerdrrefi to in the preceding paragraph shall
be deemed to be fulfilled with the issuance of the energy performance certificate of the
building. When selling or leasing out a building or building unit, its owner shall submit to the
buyer or tenant the applidabenergy performance certificate of the building or building unit
prior to the conclusion of the contract. The energy performance certificate of the whole
building may be presented instead of the energy performance certificate of the building unit.

(2) The energy performance certificate of a building or building unit shall not be
required for:
renting out the property for a period not exceeding one yeatr,
selling in the event of a demonstrated public interest in expropriation;
selling in the event of aenforcement or bankruptcy procedure;
selling or leasing a property that became the property of the Republic of Slovenia or a
local community based on a decree of distribution proving inheritance.

(3) The energy performance certificate shall be a ntanglaomponent of the as
built design. The energy performance certificate of new buildings shall demonstrate
compliance with the regulation governing the energy efficiency of buildings.

(4) When a building or building unit is sold or leased out poartitaining an
operating permit, the investor shall submit to the buyer and/or tenant an energy performance
statement which is drawn up in compliance with the regulations governing the energy
efficiency of buildings and is also a constituent part of tlegclhdesign. After acquiring the
operating permit, the investor shall provide an energy performance certificate to the buyer or
tenant.

(5) When a building or building unit is offered for sale or for rent, the owner of the
building or building unit shaensure that the energy performance indicator of the energy
performance certificate of the building or the building unit, as applicable, is stated in the
advertisement thereof.

(6) The requirements relating to the energy performance certificate argyen
performance statement of buildings shall not apply to the following:
- buildings that are protected in accordance with the regulations governing the protection
of the cultural heritage;
- buildings used as places of worship and for religious actiyities
- industrial buildings and warehouses;



nonresidential agricultural buildings where energy is not used to ensure indoor climate
conditions;
- simple and lowmaintenance buildings, and
- self-standing buildings with a total useful floor area of less tharf50m

Article 335
(Costs of producing energy performance certificates)

(1) Costs incurred for the production of an energy performance certificate shall be
borne by the owner or owners of the building.

(2) Costs for the production of the certificate sbaldeemed to be costs of regular
operation linked to improved energy efficiency.

Article 336
(The obligation to display an energy performance certificate)

(1) In buildings with a total useful floor area over 25@wned or occupied by the
public setor, the energy performance certificate shall be displayed by the operator of the
building in a prominent place clearly visible to the public.

(2) The minister responsible for energy shall specify the types of buildings to which
the obligation referretb in the first paragraph shall apply.

Article 337
(Inspection of air conditioning systems)

(1) The owners of buildings or building units in which an air conditioning system
with an effective rated output of more than 12kW is installed shall eeffigient operation
and regular inspections of the air conditioning system.

(2) Such inspections shall be carried out by independent and accredited experts
referred to in Article 341 of this Act.

(3) The inspections shall include an assessmetieaéfficiency of the air
conditioning system and its suitability in relation to the use of building.

(4) Based on the inspections carried out, the independent experts shall advise users
of technically feasible and cestfective improvements or replanent of the air conditioning
system and alternative solutions.

(5) Any issued report concerning the inspection of the air conditioning system shall
be reported by an independent expert for entry in the register of inspection reports on air
conditioningsystems. The inspection report on the air conditioning system shall be handed
over to the owner of the building or a building unit.



(6) The register of inspection reports on air conditioning systems shall be kept by
the ministry responsible for energyhe data on buildings or building units, data concerning
inspection reports on air conditioning installations, and data on the independent expert issuing
the report shall be entered in the register: full name and accreditation number as well as the
date acreditation was issued. The data from the register of inspection reports on air
conditioning systems shall be a part of the common spatial database infrastructure.

(7) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the details concerning the
contert, method of implementation and time intervals of regular inspections and the criteria
for determining the price of the inspection report on air conditioning systems as well as the
method of keeping the register of inspection reports on air conditionsbenssy.

Article 338
(Inspection of heating systems)

(1) The owner of a building or building unit shall ensure regular inspections of
accessible parts of systems used for heating buildings, such as the heat generator, control
system and circulation pyss, with boilers of an effective rated output for space heating
purposes above the power capacity prescribed by the minister.

(2) The inspections of heating systems shall be carried out by the independent and
accredited experts referred to in Articlel3df this Act.

(3) The inspections shall also include an assessment of the efficiency of the heating
systems and their suitability in relation to the use of buildings.

(4) Based on the inspections carried out, independent experts for drawing up the
inspection report on heating systems shall advise users of possible improvements or
replacement of parts of the heating system.

(5) Any issued report on the inspection of heating system shall be reported by the
independent expert for entry in the regrsbf inspection reports on heating systems. The
inspection report on the heating system shall be handed over to the owner of the building or
building unit.

(6) Independent experts authorised by legal or natural persons shall, during the
inspection, tak into account the methodology laid down in the regulation governing regular
inspections of the accessible parts of heating systems.

(7) The register of inspection reports on heating systems shall be kept by the
ministry responsible for energy. The databuildings or building units, data concerning the
inspection report on heating system, and data on the independent expert issuing the report
shall be entered in the register: full name and accreditation number as well as the date
accreditation was issdeThe data from the register of inspection reports on heating systems
shall be a part of the common spatial database infrastructure.

(8) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the details concerning the
content, type and time intervalsrefgular inspections of accessible parts of heating systems,
the content of data, the method of keeping the register, the method of reporting for entry in the



register and the method of training and criteria for determining the price of the inspection
repot on heating systems.

Article 339
(Authorisation for issuing energy performance certificates)

Energy performance certificates shall be issued by authorised legal or natural
persons (hereinafter: the issuing authorities). The minister responsibieefgyehall, by
means of a decision, authorise a legal or natural person that meets the following conditions:
- it is registered in the court register or in the Business Register of Slovenia as performing
the activity of designing or technical consultiagd
- for the implementation of the tasks referred to in the previous indent, the participation
of at least one independent expert for the production of energy performance certificates
has been ensured on the basis of an employment contract, a work donaeezirdance
with contractual obligations, through cooperation, or by any other legal means.

Article 340
(The issuance of energy performance certificates and reports on the inspection of air
conditioning and heating systems)

(1) The issuing authay shall, at the request of the customer, carry out the
procedure for issuing energy performance certificates and reports on inspections of air
conditioning and heating systems. A person applying for an energy performance certificate or
requesting the iqeection of an air conditioning or heating system shall make available to the
independent experts all necessary information and project documentation in compliance with
the building construction regulations and enable him to enter the premises for ticatinif
of data and the inspection of relevant objects, installations and systems.

(2) In performing their tasks, independent experts shall comply with the regulations
on energy performance certificates and inspections of air conditioning or heatemmsys
they shall carry out these inspections in accordance with the code of conduct of the
profession, without being influenced by the
instructions.

(3) Notwithstanding the first paragraph of this Articledeépendent experts shall not
issue an energy performance certificate or carry out an inspection of an air conditioning or
heating system if:

- there are grounds for being disqualified under the regulations governing the general
administrative procedure;

- in the past three years they have been employed by the customer, i.e. the person
requesting the issuance of an energy performance certificate or inspection, or if in the past
three years they have maintained any other relationship with the customerngublei
provision of services against payment or the performance of work in a subordinated
relationship in accordance with personal income tax regulations;

- they do not work in an independent manner, which affects the impartial production of
an energy perfonance certificate or report on the inspection of the air conditioning or
heating system;



- in the drawing up of recommended measures, they give priority to particular
installations or services of a particular provider and, in the interests of service or
equipment providers, propose measures that are not justified at the expert level.

(4) Independent experts shall deliver to the person requesting inspection a written
statement certifying the neexistence of any circumstances referred to in the preceding
paragraph which might represent an obstacle to producing an energy performance certification
of the building or carrying out an inspection of the air conditioning or heating systems.

(5) The price of energy performance certificates and the inspeefonts on air
conditioning or heating system consists of the cost of issuing the energy performance
certificates or the cost of issuing reports and fees.

(6) The base fee for issuing energy performance certificates or reports shall depend
on the intendd use of the building, the size of the building, the number of building units and
the installed air conditioning and heating systems. The base and the level of the fee for issuing
energy performance certificates and inspection reports on air conditenmingeating
systems shall be specified by the Government, taking into account the costs of supervision
and the cost of keeping registers relating to energy performance certificates and inspection
reports on air conditioning and heating systems.

Article 341
(Accreditation of independent experts)

(1) Independent experts shall be accredited for the production of energy
performance certificates provided that they meet the following requirements:

- they have at least a professional higher education degmegucation from a firdevel
study programme in the fields of study falling within a specific field of engineering or
architecture, urban planning, or construction or within a specific field of wood, paper,
plastics, glass, or similar technology, in @@ance with the regulations governing higher
education;

- they have at least two years of appropriate work experience in the field of energy
efficiency and renewable energy sources in buildings after attaining the educational level
referred to in the preding indent;

- during the five years prior to their application for accreditation they have successfully
completed an energy performance certificate training course for independent experts, in
accordance with this Act.

(2) Independent experts shall decredited for inspections of air conditioning

systems provided they meet the following requirements:

- they have at least a professional higher education degree or education froreasirst
study programme in the fields of study falling within a specifeld of engineering
(except specific fields of chemical engineering and process engineering or the field of
motor vehicles, vessels and aircraft), in accordance with the regulations governing higher
education;

- they have at least two years of appropriabrk experience in the professional field of
air conditioning systems after attaining the educational level referred to in the preceding
indent;



- during the last five years prior to their application for accreditation they have
successfully completed aatning course for independent experts for inspections of air
conditioning systems.

(3) Independent experts shall be accredited for inspections of heating systems

provided they meet the following requirements:

- they have at least a professional highatraation degree or education from a fiestel
study programme in fields of study falling within a specific field of engineering (except
specific fields of chemical engineering and process engineering or the field of motor
vehicles, vessels and aircrafi)) accordance with the regulations governing higher
education;

- they have at least two years of appropriate work experience in the professional field of
heating systems after attaining the educational level referred to in the preceding indent;

- during the last five years prior to their application for the accreditation they have
successfully completed a training course for independent experts for inspections of
heating systems.

(4) Independent experts shall be accredited at their request by theyminist
responsible for energy on the basis of proof of successful completion of training.

(5) The ministry responsible for energy shall keep the register of accredited
independent experts referred to in the first, second and third paragraphs of thés Ratiche
purpose of administrative decisiomaking and the work of experts under this Act, the register
shall maintain the personal data on an independent expert (full name, residence address,
academic or scientific titles, personal registration nuntippe of specialisation where
appropriate, and information on publications, telephone number, fax nurrhai, &ddress),
the date accreditation was issued and the date of its expiry. The following personal data shall
not be public: residential addreggrsonal registration number, telephone number, fax
number, email address. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the applicants for
accreditation shall be allowed to consent to their contact details (telephone number, fax
number, email address) being awle public.

(6) The independent experts referred to in the first, second and third paragraphs of
this Article shall be deemed to be among the regulated professions in the Republic of
Slovenia.

(7) The minister responsible for energy shall presdtiedraining programmes
which independent experts should complete in order to produce energy performance
certificates or carry out regular inspections of air conditioning and heating systems under this
Act, the detailed conditions referred to in Articié53of this Act, the form and content of the
accreditation certificate for independent experts, along with the detailed content and the
manner of keeping the register of accredited independent experts.

Article 342
(The competent authority)

(1) The task of the competent authority, in accordance with the rules governing the
procedure for the recognition of professional qualifications of nationals of EU Member States,
the European Economic Area and the Swiss Confederation relating to access to regulated



professions and professional activities in the Republic of Slovenia, shall be carried out by the
ministry responsible for energy.

(2) The ministry responsible for energy shall have all the rights and obligations
determined in the rules governing the rgaition of professional qualifications. Unless
otherwise provided by this Act, the rules governing the recognition of professional
gualifications shall apply to the implementation of these tasks.

(3) Nationals of EU Member States, the European EconAmaia and the Swiss
Confederation or of the states with which a relevant international agreement has been
concluded (hereinafter: State Parties) may practise regulated professions under this Act
subject to the same conditions as apply to Slovenian citinatess otherwise provided by
this Act. In doing so, they shall use the methodology and standards prescribed by the
Slovenian regulations.

Article 343
(Regulated professions pursued on a permanent basis by nationals of State Parties)

(1) The nationalsf State Parties wishing to pursue, on a permanent basis, a
regulated profession under this Act shall obtain a decision recognising a professional
gualification from the ministry responsible for energy.

(2) The application for the recognition of pre$éonal qualification shall be lodged
in accordance with the act governing the recognition of professional qualifications. In addition
to the evidence prescribed for the procedure of recognition by the act regulating professional
gualifications, the applation for the recognition of a professional qualification under this Act
shall also contain evidence demonstrating compliance with the conditions comparable to those
stipulated under this Act.

(3) The decision on the recognition of a professional fication issued by the
authority responsible for energy shall not be subject to appeal; however, an administrative
dispute may be initiated.

Article 344
(Regulated professions pursued on an occasional basis by nationals of State Parties)

(1) The natioals of State Parties wishing to pursue, on an occasional basis, a
regulated profession under this Act shall lodge a written application with the ministry
responsible for energy. In addition to the evidence prescribed for the application by the act
regulaing professional qualifications, the application to pursue, on an occasional basis, the
regulated professions under this Act shall contain evidence demonstrating compliance with
the conditions comparable to those stipulated under this Act.

(2) As regads regulated professions, the ministry responsible for energy shall, prior
to the first provision of service, verify the fulfilment of the conditions referred to in the
preceding paragraph and professional qualification of the provider in accordandeevattt t
governing the recognition of professional qualifications.



(3) Upon the fulfilment of the conditions referred to in the preceding paragraph of
this Article, the ministry responsible for energy shall temporarily enter the service provider in
the egister of accredited independent experts who pursue their profession in the Republic of
Slovenia on an occasional basis. The register of accredited independent experts shall be made
available to the public on the website of the ministry responsible &ggnThe entry into
the register of accredited independent experts shall not incur additional costs on the service
provider.

(4) An individual providing a service for more than one year shall extend its
application once per calendar year with the ntipieesponsible for energy and notify it of
any modification of the data.

Article 345
(Providers of training)

The training of independent experts for producing energy performance certificates
or carrying out regular inspections of air conditioning hadting systems under this Act
shall be provided by organisations selected in a public call for tenders and authorised for a
period of not more than five years by a decision of the minister responsible for energy.
Conditions for obtaining the authorisatishall apply to:
- the qualification of lecturers and other educational staff engaged by such organisation;
- staff required for successful training and other related tasks (receipt of applications,

keeping necessary records, etc.);

- equipment and premisesquired for training and other related tasks.

Article 346
(Warnings or revocation of authorisation or accreditation)

(1) The minister responsible for energy may, by means of a decision, issue a
warning to the issuing authority, or revoke the autlatios referred to in Article 339 of this
Act.

(2) The warning shall be issued to the issuing authority in the event of at least two
repeated deficiencies in issuing energy performance certificate.

(3) The authorisation may be withdrawn if the isswanghority:
- fails to meet the conditions referred to in Article 339 of this Act;
- or an independent expert engaged by the issuing authority, during the performance of
their tasks, violates the provisions of this Act or the provisions of the implementing
regulation more than three times.

(4) The minister responsible for energy may, by means of a decision, issue a
warning to independent experts or revoke their accreditation.

(5) The warning shall be issued to a holder of accreditation in the evarlieasa
two repeated deficiencies in producing energy performance certificates.

(6) Accreditation shall be withdrawn if the holder:



fails to meet the conditions referred to in Article 341 of this Act;

repeats a mistake after a warning has been issued,;

during the performance of his tasks violates the provisions of this Act or the provisions
of the implementing regulation more than once;

violates the third paragraph of Article 340 of this Act.

(7) Accreditation or authorisation may again be obtaint=t e expiry of three
years from the day the decision on revocation becomes final.

Article 347
(Professional control of energy performance certificates and inspection reports on air
conditioning and heating systems)

(1) The professional control ohergy performance certificates and inspection
reports shall be carried out by the ministry responsible for energy.

(2) Once a year the ministry shall subject to verification at least a statistically
significant percentage of certificates and inspeateports issued annually.

(3) The professional control shall entail the verification of:
- the data of the building or system;
- the input data and results stated in the energy performance certificate or inspection
report; and
- recommendations.

(4) For te verification purposes referred to in the preceding paragraph, the ministry
responsible for energy shall, for each energy performance certificate or inspection report that
is subject to verification, order an expert analysis to verify the regularihea$sued energy
performance certificate or inspection report. In the event of any established irregularities and
on the basis of the expert analysis, the ministry responsible for energy shall issue a decision
imposing on the authority issuing the energyfprmance certificate or inspection report the
obligation to eliminate the irregularities.

(5) For the purpose of professional control, the ministry or a person who conducts
expert analyses and obtains the explicit authorisation of the ministry neg data from
official records. The acquisition of data shall also include personal data from the official
records, i.e. the full name and address of the owner of the building or system.

(6) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the sletgihrding the
content, form, methodology and deadlines for the control of energy performance certificates
and inspection reports on air conditioning and heating systems.

(7) The control shall be financed from the fee referred to in Article 340 oAthis
(8) If, during the professional control procedure, the ministry has doubts about the

regularity of the energy performance certificate or inspection report, it shall notify the
competent inspectorate of its findings.



Article 348
(The longterm stategy to mobilise investment in the renovation of buildings)

(1) The Government shall, following the proposal of the ministry responsible for
energy and the ministry responsible for the tangible assets management system, adept a long
term strategy fomobilising investment in the renovation of the national stock of residential
and commercial buildings, both public and private. The strategy shall encompass the
designation of persons in the narrower and wider public sector for the purpose of renovation,
the floor area of buildings owned and occupied by pubic sector entities, the renovation rate of
the total building floor area used and occupied by entities in the narrow public sector, an
overview of the national building stock, the identification of ed#ctive approaches to
renovations relevant to the building type, measures to stimulateféestive deep
renovations of buildings, measures to guide the investment decisions of individuals, the
construction industry and financial institutions. The stggtshall give special consideration
to buildings that are protected in accordance with the regulations on the protection of the
cultural heritage. It shall take into account all programmes and action plans related to this
area. The strategy shall be upsthevery three years.

(2) When implementing measures for the comprehensive renovation of buildings,
the building as a whole shall be taken into consideration, including the building envelope,
equipment, operation and maintenance. The priority in refwovahall be given to the
buildings with the poorest energy performance, whereeaftsttive and technically feasible.

(3) The measures shall exempt buildings that are used:
- for national defence purposes, apart from individual residential buildingromercial
parts of buildings,
- as places of worship or for religious activities.

Article 349
(Methodology of the calculation of the renovation rate)

(1) The renovation rate, which is determined in the {tmnm strategy referred to in
the preceding Aicle, shall be calculated with regard to the total floor area of buildings with a
total useful floor area over 256rawned by public sector entities.

(2) If the annual renovation objective of the total floor area determined in the long
term strategyeferred to in the preceding Article is exceeded, the excess may be counted
towards the annual renovation rates of the following years. The annual renovation rate shall
apply to new buildings occupied and owned as replacements for specific buildings of a
narrow public sector that were demolished in any of the two previous years, or buildings that
have been sold, demolished or taken out of use in any of the two previous years due to more
intensive use of other buildings

(3) The ministry responsible fonergy shall, in cooperation with the ministry

responsible for the tangible assets management system, draw up an inventory of public sector
entities that contains the data on the useful floor area and energy performance indicators.

Article 350



(The methoalogy of the calculation of the energy performance of buildings)

(1) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the methodology for
calculating the energy performance of buildings at the national level, taking into account cost
optimal levels &minimum energy performance requirements for building units. The
methodology shall be taken into consideration when determining the minimum energy
performance requirements for building elements.

(2) The minister responsible for construction shall preedhe methodology for
calculating the energy performance of buildings by taking into accounbpbstal levels,
and lay down minimum energy performance requirements for buildings and building
elements. The methodology shall be taken into considenatien determining the minimum
energy performance requirements for building elements.

(3) Minimum energy performance requirements shall be reviewed every five years
and, if necessary updated.

Chapter IV: INFORMATION, AWARENESS RAISING, TRAINING

Article 351
(General information, awareness raising and training)

(1) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall draw up and implement programmes to
provide information, training and awareneassing of various target groups with regard to
the benefits and practitaspects of the development and use of energy efficiency and
renewable energy technologies.

(2) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall cooperate with the local community
authorities competent for energy efficiency and renewable energy sources whigry dia
and implementing the programmes referred to in the preceding paragraph that relate to local
communities.

(3) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall publish on its website information on
energy efficiency and renewable energy resources for diffeed@gories of persons, namely:

- information on the net benefits, costs and energy efficiency of installations and systems
for air conditioning, heating and the production of electricity from renewable sources;

- information on programmes providing suppdd measures relating to energy
performance and the use of renewable energy;

- information on the certification systems or installers of energy installations utilizing
renewable energy sources referred to in Article 359 of this Act and the list of accredited
installers, including full names and contact data;

- guidelines for the optimal combination of renewable energy sourcesgfiigiency
technology and district heating and cooling when planning, designing, constructing and
renovating commercial, industtiand residential areas;

- information on the availability and environmental advantages of different renewable
energy sources intended for use in transport,

- information on available mechanisms for improving energy efficiency;

- information on financial andegal frameworks for the implementation of energy
efficiency improvement measures.



(4) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall publish a geographical presentation of
the potentials for the use of renewable energy sources, and data on recipients of@upport
projects aimed at increasing energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy sources,
including the name or company of the recipient, the recipient's address and the type and size
of the financial project.

(5) Funds for the implementation of theogrammes referred to in this Article that
are carried out by the Centre for RES/CHP Support shall be provided from the funds for the
implementation of the Eco Fund programme for improving energy efficiency referred to in
Article 317 of this Act.

(6) Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article, the information to be provided to
energy consumers on measures to improve energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy
sources may be provided by all stakeholders in the energy market, including empgigrsu
and energy service providers.

Article 352
(Energy advice services for citizens)

(1) The provision of energy advice regarding energy efficiency in general
consumption shall be organised through a network of energy consulting offices.

(2) TheEco Fund shall organise and administer the energy advice services referred
to in the previous paragraph.

(3) The Eco Fund shall organise a network of consulting offices in cooperation with
the interested local communities.

(4) The programme of agities for education, information and advice services for
buildings and households may, in addition to advice services, also include the drawing up and
use of promotional and informational material and other instructions, mechanisms and tools
for this purmse.

(5) The provision of energy advice services for citizens shall be financed from the
funds for the implementation of the Eco Fund programme for improving energy efficiency.

Article 353
(Providers of energy advice for citizens)

(1) The informabn and advice service for buildings and households shall be
provided by independent experts who:
- have undergone the training for independent experts for the production of energy
performance certificates referred to in Article 345 of this Act, and
- havebeen accredited for the production of energy performance certificates referred to in
Article 341 of this Act.



(2) As part of the provision of the energy advice service referred to in the preceding
Article, additional expert training shall be organisedaaegular basis for energy advice
providers.

Article 354
(Energy audits)

(1) The ministry responsible for energy shall promote the development and
implementation of energy audits.

(2) The minister responsible for energy shall prescribe the nathgpdfor the
development and obligatory content of energy audits.

(3) Large enterprises as laid down in the regulations governing companies shall be
subject to an energy audit every four years.

(4) The requirement referred to in the preceding papyshall be deemed fulfilled

when:

- under voluntary agreements, energy audits are carried out in accordance with the
guidelines referred to in the second paragraph of this Article; or

- an enterprise implements an energy or environmental management sgstified by
an independent body in accordance with the relevant European or International Standards,
provided that the management system concerned includes an energy audit in accordance
with the guidelines referred to in the second paragraph of thideAric

- the energy audit is part of a broader environmental audit in accordance with the
guidelines referred to in the second paragraph of this Article.

(5) The Agency shall specify when the requirements referred to in the preceding
paragraph are deemeambe fulfilled, taking into account the prescribed methodology referred
to in the second paragraph of this Article.

(6) At the request of the beneficiary, the Agency shall issue a decision exempting
the enterprise from the obligation to undergo amggnaudit if the enterprise concerned,
during its business activities, achieves the purpose of energy audits in one of the manners
referred to in the fourth paragraph of this Article.

Article 355
(Compulsory metering and billing)

(1) An operator or nevork energy distributor shall meter the energy supplied to
each customer.

(2) The network energy distributor shall perform the billing of the energy on the
basis of actual energy consumption in a clear and understandable form. The network energy
distributor shall provide the billing frequently enough to enable customers to regulate their
own energy consumption, or at least once a year.



(3) The supplier shall at any time upon the request of the customer perform billing
for the supplied energy on thasis of actual consumption.

Article 356
(Compulsory metering of heat consumption for individual buildings)

(1) Where heating or cooling is supplied to a building from a district heating and
cooling network or from a central boiler house, as laid doyregulations governing multi
apartment buildings, the owner of each building shall ensure that a heat meter and hot water
meter are installed for each building separately.

(2) The costs of the heat consumed by individual buildings shall be cattalate
the basis of the costs of the heat or fuel established by metering in the central boiler house, on
the basis of the metering referred to in the preceding paragraph and in the ratio corresponding
to the metered heat consumption of individual buildings.

Article 357
(Compulsory metering of heat consumption for individual building units)

(1) In multiFapartment and other buildings with at least four individual units that are
supplied with heat from a common central heating system, the costs of laatihgt water
shall be determined mainly on the basis of the actual consumption of heat. For this purpose,
the owners of individual units of a building shall have individual meters installed indicating
the actual heat consumption in each unit of the mgldThe billing shall be based on the
metering of the heat consumption of the entire building.

(2) The owners of building units where meter readings are not available because
meters are not appropriately installed, or because their owners fail to thealdading of
data from the meters, shall be charged for their energy consumption on the basis of a
distribution key, taking into account the heated surface area or volume and augmented in the
manner prescribed by the regulation referred to in the plairdgraph of this Article so as to
preclude those owners from enjoying the benefits of entire building energy savings achieved
by the installation of metering devices and billing according to the actual heat consumption.

(3) The minister responsiblerfenergy shall, in agreement with the minister
responsible for the housing policy, lay down the manner of metering, dividing and
determining the heat costs in medfpartment and other buildings with several units.

Article 358
(The provision of informaiton on energy consumption to final customers)

(1) Suppliers of energy and fuels shall, at least twice yearly, provide billing
information to final customers in a clear and understandable form.

(2) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, supplieali provide billing
information at least four times a year:
- at the request of the customer, or



where the customer has opted to receive electronic billing.

(3) The information contained in the bill referred to in the first and second
paragraphs of thidrticle shall include:
- current actual prices;
- actual consumption of energy and actual costs in the billing period;
- comparisons of the customerds energy <con:¢
period in the previous year;
- comparisons with an average malised or benchmarked final customer in the same
user category wherever possible and useful.

(4) Customers that have had smart metering systems installed shall be provided

with easy access to complementary information on historical consumption allesiing

checks. Such complimentary information shall include:

- cumulative data for at least the three previous years or the period since the start of the
supply contract if this is shorter. The data shall correspond to the intervals for which
frequent billirg information has been produced; and

- detailed data on the time of use for any day, week, month or year. These data shall be
made available to the final customer via the internet or the meter interface for the period
of at least the previous 24 months oe teriod since the start of the supply contract, if
this is shorter.

(5) The supplier and operator shall, at the request of the final customer, make
available all information on the electricity billing and historical consumption to an energy
service proider designated by the final customer.

(6) The supplier and operator shall ensure that final customers are offered the
option of electronic billing information and bills and that they receive, on request, a clear and
understandable explanation of htweir bill was derived, especially where bills are not based
on actual consumption.

(7) The supplier shall ensure that information and estimates for energy costs are
provided to final customers on demand in an easily understandable format enablingecsisto
to compare offers on a liker-like basis.

(8) The supplier and operator shall ensure that final customers receive their energy
bills and billing information for energy consumption free of charge and that final customers
also have access to theonsumption data free of charge.

(9) In addition to the information referred to in the third paragraph of this Article,
the supplier and operator shall provide final customers with data on legal entities and natural
persons who provide information at@ifficient use and renewable energy sources, including
website addresses where information can be obtained on available energy efficiency
improvement measures, use of renewable energy sources, heat and electricity cogeneration
systems, comparable diagraofend use and unbiased technical specifications for the
equipment and products using the energy.

Article 359
(Training of installers of installations utilising renewable energy sources,



(1) With a view to ensuring the proper and efficient operatfanstallations and
systems using renewable energy sources, installers of sun collectors, heat pumps, shallow
geothermal systems, biomass boilers and solar energy installations shall undergo expert
training.

(2) Training programmes shall be carried bytatural or legal persons authorised
by the ministry responsible for energy (hereinafter: training provider). The authority to carry
out such training shall be granted as a public authority by the minister responsible for energy
following a completed tedering procedure.

(3) Certificates and other equivalent qualification certificates of installers of-small
scale generation units utilising renewable energy sources that are issued in EU Member States
in accordance with Directive 2009/28/EC shall beiegjent to certificates issued in
accordance with this Act.

(4) The minister responsible for energy shall, in agreement with the minister
responsible for the environment, stipulate the following:
- the requirements to be met by installers to participatiee training;
- the contents of the training programme;
- the requirements to be met by training providers;
- the records on implemented training programmes;
- the method of knowledge verification; and
- the content, form and validity of certificates of qualifioa.

Chapter V: ELECTRICITY PRODUCED FROM RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES
AND HIGH -EFFICIENCY COGENERATION

Section 1: Higkefficiency cogeneration of heat and electricity and efficient district heating
and cooling

Article 360
(Comprehensive assessment oétpotential for the application of higlefficiency
cogeneration and efficient district heating and cooling and a cbsnefit analysis)

(1) The ministry responsible for energy shall, every five years, draw up a
comprehensive assessment of the potefttidhe application of higlefficiency cogeneration
and efficient district heating and cooling, which shall include a description of heating and
cooling demand and a forecast of how this demand will change in the next 10 years, the
identification of the bating and cooling demand that could be satisfied by-difigtiency
cogeneration, the share of higfficiency cogeneration, an estimate of the primary energy to
be saved, measures to improve energy efficiency in the district heating and cooling
infrastructure and increase the share of cogeneration.

(2) The comprehensive assessment referred to in the preceding paragraph shall
include a cosbenefit analysis.

(3) The cosbenefit analysis shall include the creation of a baseline and feasible
alterndive scenarios in which only higéfficiency cogeneration, efficient district heating and



cooling or efficient individual heating and cooling supply options should be taken into
account, as well as an economic analysis with an inventory of all relevaiuineicoeffects.

(4) The minister responsible for energy shall issue rules laying down the detailed
content of the codbenefit analysis referred to in the second paragraph of this Article.

Article 361
(Reporting by the Agency)

(1) The Energy Agencghall, every two years, publish a report analysing the level
of success in achieving the adopted national framework objectives set for electricity generated
from high-efficiency cogeneration and renewable energy sources. The report shall also
consider clmatic factors which might affect the achievement of the adopted objectives and
shall establish the extent to which the measures adopted comply with the national
commitments in relation to climatic changes.

(2) The report shall include all measures addpb ensure the reliability of the
guarantee system so that guarantees of origin are accurate and reliable.

Article 362
(Provision of statistical data on the efficiency of cogeneration)

The national authority responsible for statistics shall sulantiié¢ European

Commission before 30 April each year statistics on the following:
- national electricity and heat production from high and low efficiency cogeneration in
relation to total heat and electricity production capacities;

annual statistics on cogeration heat and electricity capacities;

fuels for cogeneration;

district heating and cooling production and capacities, in relation to total heat and
electricity production and capacities; and

primary energy savings.

Article 363
(The methodology fodetermining the efficiency of higkefficiency cogeneration)

For individual types of cogeneration unit technologies, the Government shall
prescribe the manner of determining the efficiency of {effitiency cogeneration, the
manner of calculating theugntity of electricity produced from cogeneration considered to be
electricity from highefficiency cogeneration, and the manner of calculating primary energy
savings in higkefficiency cogeneration.

Article 364
(Assessment of efficient district heatirajd cooling potentials)

(1) When planning new constructions and major renovations during the procedure
for obtaining a building permit, the investor shall, by taking into account the comprehensive



assessment referred to in Article 360 of this Act, @ewa cosbenefit analysis regarding the

potential of the application of higkfficiency cogeneration and efficient district heating and

cooling in the case of:

- a thermal electricity generation installation with a total thermal input exceeding 20MW,
with an assessment of the costs and benefits of operating the installation as a high
efficiency cogeneration installation;

- a substantially refurbished thermal electricity generation installation with a total thermal
input exceeding 20MW, with an assessmenthef costs and benefits of converting the
installation to higkefficiency cogeneration;

- a planned or substantially refurbished industrial installation with a total thermal input
exceeding 20MW generating waste heat at a useful temperature level, witeasnaent
of the costs and benefits of utilising the waste heat to satisfy economically justified
demand, including through cogeneration, and of the connection of that installation to a
district heating and cooling network;

- planning a new district heatiramd cooling network, or in the case of an existing district
heating or cooling network, where a new boiler or energy production installation is
planned with a total thermal input exceeding 20MW, or in the case of substantial
refurbishment of such instatlan, with an assessment of the costs and benefits of utilising
the waste heat from nearby industrial installations.

(2) The minister responsible for energy shall issue rules laying down the
methodology, assumptions and timeline for the economic asalgsi principles to be taken
into account during the implementation of the daostefit analysis referred to in the previous
paragraph.

Section 2: Guarantee of origin of electricity

Article 365
(Guarantee of origin, register of declarations)

(1) A guarantee of origin of the electricity (hereinafter: guarantee of origin) shall
mean an electronic document enabling producers and suppliers to demonstrate that the
electricity they produced or supplied is produced from Jefiitiency cogeneration or from
renewable energy sources. The guarantee of origin may be transferred to another person
and/or it shall prove the generation of electricity from kedfitiency cogeneration or from
renewable energy sources in acquiring support for current operation ahd fpraranteed
purchase of electricity.

(2) A guarantee of origin may be obtained by producers of electricity produced
from generation units having a valid declaration, and who show that in the period to which the
guarantee refers the operation of tleagration unit complied with the conditions and
requirements determined for higifficiency cogeneration or for electricity produced from
renewable energy sources.

(3) The Agency shall, at the request of the electricity producer, issue a declaration
for the electricity generation unit if the generation unit complies with the prescribed
requirements for higlefficiency cogeneration, or for electricity generation from renewable
energy sources, or for hig#fficiency cogeneration utilising, in additionfssil fuels, also



fuels from renewable sources (hereinafter: the declaration). The declaration shall be issued for
a limited period of time.

(4) The authorised Agency employees referred to in Article 425 of this Act shall
supervise declaration holdearsd the fulfilment of the conditions and requirements referred to
in the declaration. Authorised Agency employees shall carry out supervision over the holders
of declarations and guarantees of origin in accordance with the provisions of this Act relating
to the supervisory tasks of the Agency.

(5) The electricity producer shall inform the Agency of any changes regarding a
generation unit that might affect the validity of a declaration. The Agency shall revoke the
declaration by means of a decisiorhiételectricity generation unit does not operate or is not
maintained or renovated in such a manner as to meet the conditions referred to in the
declaration, and if it was modified in such a manner that it affects the conditions and
requirements referred to the declaration.

(6) The Agency shall keep a register of declarations for units producing electricity
from renewable sources and higfiiciency cogeneration. The register shall keep the data on
generation units having a valid declaration and adpcers holding declarations. When the
electricity producer is a natural person, the following personal data shall be entered into the
register:

- the full name of the electricity producer;
- permanent residence.

(7) The data entered into the register othan the personal data referred to in the
preceding paragraph shall be public.

(8) Personal data may only be used for the purposes of keeping the register of
declarations for generation units and the register of guarantees of origin.

(9) The Governrant shall prescribe the content and form of the application for a
declaration, define in detail the method of issuing declarations, the validity period of the
declaration according to the type or technology of the generation unit, the conditions for high
efficiency cogeneration, reporting changes regarding the data in the declaration, the
conditions for meteringegistration devices and for the metering, registration and
communication of metering results, which producers must keep at or in electricitgtgmner
units and the content thereof, as well as the method of keeping the register of producers of
electricity from renewable sources or higfficiency cogeneration.

Article 366
(Guarantee of origin)

(1) The guarantee of origin shall be issued byAgency at the request of an
electricity producer holding a declaration. The guarantee shall be issued in an electronic form.
Such guarantee shall be considered an authentic public document.

(2) The guarantee of origin shall be issued to the producer tine entry of the
guarantee in the producer's account in the register of guarantees of origin. The guarantee of



origin may be transferred to the account of a new holder in the register of guarantees of origin
or by exporting the guarantee to holders adro

(3) If the Agency refuses to issue a guarantee of origin it shall issue a decision of
rejection on the matter.

(4) Electricity system operators of the network to which the electricity generation
units are connected shall be obliged to repoti¢oAgency all the data in connection with the
electricity produced for which the Agency has issued a guarantee of origin.

(5) A guarantee of origin shall be for a standard unit of IMWh. Any use of a
guarantee of origin shall take place within 12 moffittsn the last day of production of the
corresponding energy unit in respect of which the guarantee of origin has been issued. No
more than one guarantee of origin shall be issued in respect of each unit of energy produced
from a certain electricity generan unit.

(6) If support in the form of the guaranteed purchase of electricity has been
obtained for the electricity from the generation unit, all guarantees of origin shall, upon being
issued, be transferred to the Centre for RES/CHP Support. Thietradgguarantees issued
in the name of suppliers shall be cancelled by the Centre for RES/CHP Support, in accordance
with the criteria set by the Agency in its general act referred to in the fourth paragraph of
Article 42 of this Act, for their respectivaipply to final customers in the Republic of
Slovenia for the purpose of providing proof of the origin of the electricity. When support for
electricity from a generation unit is provided as financial aid for current operations, the Centre
for RES/CHP Supprt shall recognise to an electricity supplier that has concluded a contract
for the purchase of electricity produced from this generation unit the share of the so obtained
energy for the purpose of demonstrating the share of energy produced from rerawedye
sources in its energy mix, provided that, in the register of guarantees of origin, the guarantees
of origin were transferred to the supplier's account.

(7) The quantity of energy from renewable sources corresponding to guarantees of
origin trangerred by the energy supplier to a third party shall be deducted from the share of
energy from renewable sources in its energy mix for the purposes of providing information to
customers on the share of energy from renewable sources or the contribuéioh ehergy
source to the overall fuel mix of the supplier over the preceding year. The same applies to the
reference to existing reference sources, such as websites, where information on the
environmental impact, in terms of at least CO2 emissions rag@iim the electricity
produced by the overall fuel mix of the supplier over the preceding year is publicly available.

(8) Guarantees of origin shall not apply to the calculation of the gross final
consumption of energy from renewable sources and toding proof of the achievement of
the objectives referred to in Article 28 of this Act. Transfers of guarantees of origin by
suppliers, separately or together with the physical transfer of energy, shall have no effect on
the decision of the Republic ofddenia to use statistical transfers, joint projects or joint
support schemes for target compliance or on the calculation of the gross final consumption of
energy from renewable sources in accordance with Articles 5 tol1 of Directive 2009/28/ES.

(9) TheGovernment shall, by way of a decree, specify the conditions, method and
procedure for issuing guarantees of origin, the longest period of validity and the revocation of



the validity of guarantees, and specify the method of communicating the data refenred
the fourth paragraph of this Article.

Article 367
(The content of a guarantee of origin)

(1) The guarantee of origin for electricity produced from renewable energy sources shall

contain at least the following information:
- the energy source fronvhich the energy was produced and the start and end dates of

production;
- the identity, location, type and capacity of the installation where the energy was

produced,;
- whether and to what extent the installation has benefited from investment support,
whetherand to what extent the unit of energy has benefited in any other way from a
national support scheme, and the type of support scheme;

the date on which the generation unit became operational; and

- the date and country of issue and a unique identificatiorbeu

(2) A guarantee of origin of electricity from higgfficiency cogeneration shall, in
addition to the data referred to in the preceding paragraph, also include:

- the thermal and electricity capacity of the generation unit where the energy was
produed,;

- the lower calorific value of the fuel source from which the electricity was produced, the
use of the heat generated together with the electricity, and an exact statement of the dates
and place of production;

- the exact quantity of electricity from higéfficiency cogeneration in accordance with
the provision of Article 363 of this Act;

- a specification of the primary energy savings calculated in accordance with the

provision of Article 363 of this Act;

the nominal electric and thermal efficiency of thgeweeration plant.

(3) A guarantee of origin issued by a competent issuing authority in another
European Union Member State in the manner and under the conditions referred to in Directive
2009/28/EC and Directive 20012/27/EC shall have the same effpaiaffof the data
referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article as guarantees of origin issued by
the Agency. The Republic of Slovenia shall recognise guarantees of origin issued by another
Member State exclusively as proof of the shararmount of the energy produced from
renewable sources in the energy mix of the holder of the guarantee of origin.

(4) The Agency shall refuse a guarantee of origin when it hasewglided doubts
about its accuracy, reliability or authenticity. Thedewce for a refusal to recognise a
guarantee of origin must be based on objective, transparent amtiscaminatory criteria.
The Agency shall notify the European Commission of such refusal and its justification.

(5) If the Agency refuses to recogaia guarantee of origin issued by a competent
issuing authority in another European Union Member State it shall be obliged to recognise the
guarantee of origin at the request of the European Commission.



(6) The Government may also prescribe other thaththe guarantee of origin must
contain, the type of data that the producer must provide to obtain a guarantee of origin, as well
as the method of use of guarantees of origin.

Article 368
(The register of guarantees of origin)

(1) The Agency shalléep a register of guarantees of origin. As part of the
activities of the Centre for RES/CHP Support referred to in Article 376 of this Act, the
electricity market operator shall provide technical management and maintenance of the
register of guarantees ofigin.

(2) The register referred to in the preceding paragraph shall contain at least
information on the following:

- the electricity produced per individual electricity generation unit;

- the guarantees of origin of a holder, including the data on dhatry in which the

guarantee was issued;

all transfers of an individual guarantee of origin;

- the use of guarantees of origin to prove that a given amount of electricity has been
produced from higlefficiency cogeneration or from renewable sources (redempf the
guarantee), including all the data on the redeemed guarantee and data on the holder of the
redeemed guarantee;

- guarantees of origin exported from the Republic of Slovenia or imported into the
Republic of Slovenia.

(3) When a guarantee holdsra natural person, the following personal data shall
be entered into the register:
- the name and surname of the holder;
- the permanent residence of the holder.

(4) Personal data from the register may be used solely for the purposes of keeping
the regiser of declarations for generation units and the register of guarantees of origin.

(5) A part of the register of guarantees of origin shall also include an account into
which the data on an individual holder of guarantees of origin and the data oaraltges
of origin by means of which the holder carried out all transfers and payments (hereinafter:
transactions) shall be entered. A producer6s
producer holding a valid declaration for the electricity gemaratnit, a trader and by any
other person who acquires or performs transactions with the guarantees of origin.

(6) An account holder shall only have access to data in his account or accounts.

(7) By means of a general act, the Agency shall spdafynethod and rules for
keeping a register of guarantees of origin, conditions for opening, maintaining and closing the
register account, as well as the manner and form of communicating data on electricity
production by persons eligible for guarantees.



Section 3: Connection to the network and the transfer of the electricity produced from
renewable sources and cogeneration

Article 369
(Connection approval)

(1) An electricity system operator shall not be entitled to refuse connection
approval to an ivestor in a unit producing electricity from renewable sources or from high
efficiency cogeneration for the reason referred to in the third indent of the eighth paragraph of
Article 147 of this Act. The costs of any analysis required for the issuancereatmm
approval shall be borne by the electricity system operator.

(2) The cost of the construction of the connection line from the generation unit to
the network of the electricity system operator shall be borne by the investor in the unit
producing &ctricity from renewable energy sources and/or faffltiency cogeneration.

(3) An investor in a generation unit producing electricity from renewable sources or
high-efficiency cogeneration shall not bear the costs of the reinforcement of the existing
transmission or distribution network that is necessary for the connection to the generation
unit.

(4) Where the reinforcement of the part of the electricity network to which the
investor would like to connect the generation unit producing electfioity renewable
sources or higtefficiency cogeneration has already been envisaged in the development plan
of the electricity system operator in the following two years, the connection approval for this
generation unit shall be obtained within a periodaaf years at the latest. The relevant
network reinforcement shall be taken into account as a priority in the drawing up of the next
development plan, whereas the issuance of the connection approval for the generation unit
must be obtained no later than ivef years from the filing of the first application for
connection approval by the investor.

(5) If the investor in the generation unit undertakes in the agreement to pay the
costs of the reinforcement and extension of the network, the electricitynsyperator shall
immediately start to carry out the activities necessary to reinforce and extend the network.
The manner of reimbursing the invested funds shall be regulated by a special contract, which
shall be concluded upon the adoption of the investplan of the electricity system operator
and after the issuance of the decision of the Agency on the regulatory framework for this
investment plan.

(6) Notwithstanding the second paragraph of this Article, the investor in the unit
producing electricit from renewable sources or higffficiency cogeneration shall be obliged
to reimburse to the electricity system operator the costs incurred by network reinforcement
and other costs relating to the network reinforcement if, within a reasonable perioé of ti
agreed upon with the electricity system operator, the investor fails to enable the connection of
the generation unit, or if, within a period of six months from the connection of the generation
unit to the system, the investor fails to obtain the dettardor the generation unit due to
non-compliance with the prescribed requirements for obtaining the declaration.

(7) Prior to the issuance of connection approval for the generation unit due to which
the transmission or distribution network needsdaadinforced, the investor shall, at the



request of the electricity system operator, provide an appropriate surety which the electricity
system operator may forfeit if, within a reasonable period of time agreed upon with the
electricity system operator,ghnvestor fails to enable the connection of the generation unit,
or if, within a period of six months from the connection of the generation unit to the system,
the investor fails to obtain the declaration for the generation unit due tcongpliance with

the prescribed requirements for obtaining the declaration.

(8) If the costs incurred by the electricity system operator to reinforce the network
exceed the amount of the forfeited security, the electricity system operator shall have the right
to claimthe difference to obtain the full reimbursement of costs.

(9) Every two years, the electricity system operator shall submit a report to the
ministry responsible for energy on the connection of generation units utilising renewable
energy sources and aaggeration of heat and electricity to the network. The report shall state
specific cases and provide reasons when the connection of the generation unit could not be
ensured within a period of two years, and measures carried out for the drawing up of the nex
development plan; it shall also contain a cost analysis of the network development due to the
connections of generating units utilising renewable energy resources and cogeneration of heat
and electricity, as well as proposals for necessary measureprtavarthe existing
frameworks and rules for bearing and sharing costs for connecting new producers to the
network.

Article 370
(The transmission and distribution of electricity from renewable energy sources and-high
efficiency cogeneration)

(1) The eékctricity system operator shall ensure the transmission and distribution of
electricity produced from renewable energy sources anddifgiiency cogeneration.

(2) The electricity system operator shall, within the framework of balancing
network activites and on the basis of transparent anddisariminatory criteria, give priority
to generation units using renewable energy sources anettiigiency cogeneration insofar
as this permits the secure operation of the national electricity system.

(3) If significant measures are taken by the electricity system operator to curtail
renewable energy sources in order to guarantee the security of the electricity system and the
security of the energy supply, the electricity system operator shall report thaseres to the
Agency. The report shall also indicate which corrective measures the operator intends to take
in order to prevent significant curtailment of renewable energy sources.

Article 371
(The determination of interconnection points and conditiofes units producing electricity
from renewable sources and higéfficiency cogeneration)

(1) The electricity system operator shall provide investors in units producing
electricity from renewable sources or higfficiency cogeneration who wish to be oceated
to the network with comprehensive and necessary information, including:.
- a comprehensive and detailed estimate of the costs associated with the connection;



- a reasonable and precise timetable for receiving and processing applications for a
network canection;
- a reasonable indicative timetable for any proposed network connection.

(2) In the Network Code under Article 144 of this Act, for connecting units
producing electricity from renewable energy sources anddfighiency cogeneration with a
nominal power capacity not exceeding 10MW, the electricity system operator shall establish
the ways of determining interconnection poin
provide a secure network operation, lay down the requirements for the teeguiahent of
units on the basis of which the permit to connect to the network shall be issued. For
generation units with a nominal power capacity exceeding 10MW, the technical equipment
requirements for generation units shall be defined in the natioat#hligplan for the
individual generation unit in order to ensure secure operation of the network.

(3) Under the Network Code referred to in Article 144 of this Act, an electricity
system operator shall establish standard rules for determining thettstsechnical
implementation of the connection and integration of units transmitting electricity produced
from renewable energy sources or hgfficiency cogeneration into the network. Those rules
shall be objective, transparent and stiscriminatoryand shall, for units not exceeding
10MW, be based on equal starting points as used for connecting electricity customers. For
production units not exceeding 1MW, standardised factors of connection to the network shall
be determined in the Network Code.

(4) At the request of an investor in a unit producing electricity from renewable
sources or higlefficiency cogeneration with nominal power capacity exceeding 10MW and
for which a national spatial plan was adopted, the electricity system operator to whose
network the unit should be connected shall be obliged to provide a comprehensive and
detailed cost estimation of the connection and a timetable for the network connection work
within 60 days after receipt of the request.

(5) The estimate of the costs the connection referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be prepared by taking into account the standard rules of the electricity system
operator for determining the costs of technical implementation of the connection, which shall
be objective, transpant and nofdiscriminatory.

(6) If the investor referred to in the preceding paragraph does not agree with the
cost estimation and timetable, he may present his own connection proposal. If the electricity
system operator does not agree with theinve$tes pr oposal , the Agency
cost estimation and timetable.

Section 4: Support for the production of electricity from renewable energy sources
and highefficiency cogeneration

Article 372
(Support for the production of electricity fromenewable energy sources and high
efficiency cogeneration)

(1) If the costs of electricity generation by generation units holding a valid
declaration for the production of electricity from renewable energy sources and high



efficiency cogeneration, inatling a proper market return on investment, exceed the price of
electricity that can be achieved in the market for this type of electricity, the electricity
producer may be granted supports.

(2) Support shall be allocated for units utilising renewabérgy sources which do
not exceed a nominal power capacity of :0MW, with the exception of generation units
utilising wind power where the installed capacity is not allowed to exceed 50MW, and for
high-efficiency cogeneration units which do not exceed ainahpower capacity of 20MW
and which were selected on the basis of the public call for tenders of the Agency referred to in
Article 373 of this Act.

(3) The types of energy technologies for generation units using renewable energy
sources and cogeneiati units that are eligible for support schemes pursuant to the preceding
paragraph shall be laid down by the Government in a decree.

(4) If so stipulated by the Government, the generation units using technologies that
are not included in the decreeartd to in the preceding paragraph shall also be eligible for
support, provided they use energy sources that correspond to the definition of renewable
energy sources or energy technologies and their combinations corresponding to the definition
of high-efficiency cogeneration. In this case, the Government shall set an annual quota for the
allocation of these support schemes or other conditions to obtain the support.

(5) The support may not allow that the revenues associated with the operation of
electridgty generation units for which the recipient is granted support exceed the costs referred
to in the first paragraph of this Article. If the recipient of support also obtains other state aid,
the support for the electricity from this generation unit shalidduced depending on the
level of support received.

(6) The support shall be provided as:
- a guaranteed purchase of the electricity produced and supplied to the public electricity
network at a price to be fixed by the Government for units with a nbmaveer capacity
below 1MW;
- financial operational support for other producers.

(7) If instead of a guaranteed purchase, the producers referred to in the first indent
of the preceding paragraph independently sell the electricity produced, they sHajitbe
for financial support for continuing operation. In this case, the balance scheme member to
whom the generation unit belongs shall be liable for the settlement of differences between the
forecast and actual production. The Government shall detetmenmaximum number of
changes allowed in the methods of providing supports and the minimum duration. In the event
of independent sale, the parties to the supply contract shall be obliged to disclose the contract
price of independently sold electricityttoe Agency, which shall use the obtained data for the
support scheme analysis and which may publish and forward such data to the Centre for
RES/CHP Support in aggregate form that does not reveal the value of an individual contract.

(8) Support may bergnted for refurbished generation units whose costs exceed
50% of the investment costs for a new comparable unit. Support feefiigiency
cogeneration units shall be provided for a period of 10 years after the refurbishment and for
generation units usg renewable energy sources for a period of 15 years after the
refurbishment.



(9) Supports may be obtained only for the generated electricity for which a valid
guarantee of origin has been submitted.

(10) Individual support may be provided for:

- new units producing electricity from higéfficiency generation, for a period of 10
years;

- new units producing electricity from renewable energy sources, for a period of 15 years;

- for older units, also for a shorter period of time representing the diffebataeen the
actual age of the generation unit, calculated from the first operation of the unit, and the
abovementioned longest time period for providing support. The period of the provision of
support shall be determined by means of a decision granioupH.

(11) The Government shall prescribe details regarding the types of energy
technologies eligible for support, the level and duration of each type of support, the conditions
and manner of obtaining supports, the procedure for the reductiorhdravital of support,
and other matters related to granting and using supports. In this respect, the following criteria
shall be followed:

- the level and duration of the necessary support as regards the size and technology of the
electricity production, takiginto consideration the already acquired benefits;

- the sustainability of the electricity production, placing particular emphasis on
sustainable production and the use of biomass;

- the positive effects regarding achieving the set targets, in particuladireggaeducing
green house gas emissions in electricity production;

- the conditions and restrictions regarding the provision of support for new generation
units in terms of the approved level of funds necessary for implementing the support
schemes;

- consisency with the objectives of the environmental, spatial, agricultural and other
policies;

- the size of the company that is granted support for the generation unit and its current or
future market share on the electricity market.

(12) The Government mayetermine that operational support shall also be
provided for generation units using wood biomass which due to their age no longer fulfil the
eligibility conditions for the support scheme, provided that the costs of wood biomass make
the production of eledtity no longer possible at a price which is lower than the market price
that can be achieved for electricity produced from these units. In the event of such,
operational support shall be determined in accordance with the same principles as those
applicalbe to determining the variable part of the reference costs for new generation units
using wood biomass.

(13) Producers of electricity from renewable energy sources angfiigiency
cogeneration that have entered into a guaranteed purchase agrdethéet deemed to have
concluded an open supply contract with the Centre for RES/CHP Support.

(14) Producers of electricity from generation units with a nominal capacity below
1MW that obtain guarantees of origin but not are granted support due 1d tgef their
generation units may conclude an open contract with the Centre for RES/CHP Support
determining that the latter purchases all the electricity not used by the producer. The price
shall be determined as the product of the reference pricedatfieity determined by the



Agency on an annual basis and factor B for the type of unit, as stipulated in regulations
governing support schemes for electricity produced from-affjbiency cogeneration or
renewable energy sources, reduced by 3%. Prodatelsctricity from units with a nominal
capacity exceeding 50kW shall be obliged, at the request of Centre for RES/CHP Support, to
submit hourly electricity generation forecasts. The guarantees of origin for electricity
purchased by the Centre for RES/EBupport pursuant to this paragraph shall be transferred
to the Centre for RES/CHP Support.

(15) Producers of electricity from new generation units with a nominal power
capacity below 1MW who have not yet concluded an open and separate contractséde th
of electricity may sell the electricity produced on the basis of the contract to the Centre for
RES/CHP Support at the reference market price determined by the Agency on an annual
basis; such price shall be applicable from the start of operatitve oew generation unit
until the provision of the support based on the guaranteed purchase agreement, but not for
longer than 12 months. The producers shall submit a written application for the purchase of
electricity to the Centre for RES/CHP Suppotieatst one month prior to the envisaged
commencement of the production. A producer requesting the conclusion of such a contract
shall be obliged to select guaranteed purchase as the first type of support. If the Centre for
RES/CHP Support establishes th@raducer who has concluded such a contract, previously
or subsequently concluded an open market agreement for the sale of electricity with a supplier
or obtained a decision granting operational support, it shall notify the Agency thereof; the
Agency shalthen revoke the decision on the provision of support.

(16) By 31 October each year, the Agency shall forecast the market position of
units producing electricity from renewable energy sources anedfiigiency cogeneration.
This forecast shall be uddor setting the price of electricity referred to in the first paragraph
of this Article and shall provide a basis for determining the necessary level of operational
supports in the next year. The Government shall lay down the rules for the drawinipep of
forecast.

(17) For the purpose of maintaining sustainable financing of support schemes, the
Government may determine that the annual installed power capacity of the generation units
using renewable energy sources or kefficiency generation mayerestricted to types of
technology and energy sources entitled for support, provided that the share of such installed
generation units exceeds the planned scope of installed units for that particular year, as
adopted in the renewable energy or energyiefiicy action plan.

Article 373
(The selection of projects for entry into the support scheme)

(1) The Agency shall, each year before 1 October, issue a public call, which must
be open at least until 1 November or until the filling of the plannedasere funds for
implementing the support scheme for electricity for the next year, inviting investors to submit
projects for generation units using renewable energy sources eeffigancy cogeneration
that are applying for the next year. The applaafior projects with a nominal capacity
exceeding 50kW shall include investment documentation drawn up in accordance with the
decree determining a uniform methodology for the drawing up of investment documents in
the field of public finance. The Agency $haaintain on its website a public record of
applications submitted for projects, arranged by dates of receipt, selected technology and



source, as well as a record of the envisaged power capacity of generation units, and of the
planned completion of prajes.

(2) The Agency shall select the projects on the basis of the following criteria:
the allowed increase in funds providing support over the next year allocated by the

Government when adopting the annual energy balance on the basis of Article &5 of th

Act;

- compliance of the project with the plan for the operation of the support scheme under
Article 25 of this Act with a view to achieving the targets set in the renewable sources
action plan and energy efficiency action plan in terms of technologgifatasion;

- the guaranteed part of the necessary funds from calls for the allocation of European
funds;

- the price offered for the production of electricity.

(3) Following the selection procedure, the Agency shall issue a decision approving
or rejectingthe project. On its website, the Agency shall make publicly available information
on the selected projects, with an indication of the investor, the selected technology, the power
capacity of the generation units and the reference price of electricitydbaiffered by the
investor and shall be applicable at the time when the investor expects the start of the operation
of the generation unit and entry in the support scheme.

(4) An investor who has received a decision approving a project must obtain a
declaration for the generation unit within three years of the service of the decision or the
approved project shall not be eligible for support. For projects involving facilities classified
under building construction regulations as complex works, thetovenay, already in his
application to tender, request a longer time period, which shall not exceed five years. An
investor who has received a decision rejecting a project may again submit a bid with the same
project the following year.

Article 374
(Deciding on support)

(1) The Agency shall decide on eligibility for support in an administrative
procedure at the request of the applicant.

(2) If the investor is not an owner or the sole owner of the generation unit, the
application for obtaining suppt must include the authorisation of the owner or all other co
owners or joint owners for the submission of the application for obtaining support and for the
conclusion of the contract on the provision of support for the generation unit as a whole.

(3) The Agency mayex officioor on the initiative of the Centre for RES/CHP
Support, issue a decision repealing, revoking or amending the decision granting support, if
under the changed circumstances the recipient is not entitled to support or is enéitled
different amount or different duration of support.

(4) If the declaration for the generation unit expires, the Agency shall adopt a
decision repealing the decision on granting support.



Article 375
(A change in circumstances and unjustifiably gréed support)

(1) A recipient of support shall inform the Agency of any facts that arise after the
issuance of the decision and have an impact on the eligibility for support, its amount or the
period of receiving support. The recipient shall reportetasts within eight days of the day
he or she became aware of them.

(2) If, subsequent to the issuance of the decision, the recipient of support has
received another state aid for the generation unit or the production of electricity from this unit,
dueto which the unit is not eligible for support or for the granted level of support, the Agency
shall annul the decision granting support and replace it with a new one granting a different
level of support and establishing the unjustified level of funduag needs to be returned.

(3) If, subsequent to the issuance of the decision, circumstances arise due to which
a new decision granting support should be issued, the Agency shall annul the decision and
replace it with a new one granting a different leMesupport and establishing the unjustified
amount received that needs to be returned or providing for a different period of receiving the
support.

(4) If a decision granting support was issued on the basis of false statements and
data of the recipidror on the basis of a forged document or the perjury of a witness or expert
witness, or as a consequence of some act punishable according to the Penal Code (Uradni list
RS, no 50/12 official consolidated text), the Agency sheaX officioout carry outenewed
proceedings by virtue of its office.

(5) Unjustifiably received funding must be returned by the recipient within 30 days
of the final decision. If unjustifiably received funding has been obtained in good faith, interest
shall be calculated fdhe period between the unjustifiably obtained funding and the issuance
of the decision at the European interbank interest rate for a maturity of one year, in the
amount effective on the date the unjustifiably received level of support was received. A
recipent who knew or should have known that they were entitled to the received level of
funding shall be obliged to return the unduly received level of funding with the statutory
default interest. Following the expiry of the finality of the decision, thetsigtdefault
interest shall be charged.

(6) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Centre for RES/CHP Support and
the recipient of support may agree on the method and time period for the return of the
unjustifiably received funding in such a mannhat the recipient's liability is offset against
the disbursement of support.

Article 376
(Centre for RES/CHP Support)

(1) The activities of the Centre for RES/CHP Support shall encompass the
following tasks:
- management of the contribution fundfereed to in Article 377 of this Act;
- the conclusion of contracts of support and the disbursement of support;



- the purchase of the electricity referred to in the first indent of the sixth paragraph of
Article 372 of this Act at a price to be fixed by thev@mment;

- the purchase of electricity from the producers referred to in the fourteenth and fifteenth
paragraphs of Article 372 of this Act;

- the disbursement of financial support for current operations;

- the sale of purchased electricity on the market, aeti@u by tender, or on the energy
exchange.

(2) In addition to the tasks referred to in the preceding paragraph related to support
for the production of electricity from renewable energy sources aneeffligiency
cogeneration, the Centre shall alsorg out other activities related to the provision of
information, awareness raising and training referred to in Article 351 of this Act.

(3) The contractor performing the activities of the Centre for RES/CHP Support
may not carry out the activity of aectricity system operator.

(4) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall be obliged, no later than within 30 days
after being informed of the service of the decision on granting support, to submit a contract to
the beneficiary for signature, on the basfisvhich the provision of support and other matters
of mutual relations in this respect shall be arranged. The contract on the provision of support
shall regulate the rights and obligations of the recipient of support regarding compliance with
the rules bthe Centre for RES/CHP Support, the adjustment of the variable part of the
support, and the planned quantity of the purchased electricity and mutual information. If the
contract on the provision of support does not comply with the decision, the detialbhe
directly applicable to matters not in conformity. If, due to changed circumstances or the
renewal of the procedure, the decision granting support is amended, the Centre for RES/CHP
Support shall invite the recipient to conclude a new contradteprovision of support. If the
recipient of support fails to conclude the contract within one month after being invited to
conclude a contract on the provision of support and also fails to do so within the extended
time limit, which may not be shorter thd5 days, the recipient shall no longer be entitled to
support.

(5) If the Agency issues a decision referred to in the preceding Article by means of
which support has been withdrawn, the Centre for RES/CHP Support shall discontinue the
payment of supgrt on the day on which it has been informed of the service of the decision
withdrawing support. The contract on the provision of support shall cease to be valid on the
date the decision granting support ceases to have effect.

(6) The Centre for RES/CH®Bupport shall keep separate accounting books and
records on the funds provided from fees for cogeneration and renewable sources to be paid by
electricity customers in accordance with this Act and on the use of these funds for various
types of supports, éhoperation of the Centre for RES/CHP Support and other prescribed
purposes. The Government shall determine in detail the manner of carrying out the tasks
referred to in the first paragraph of this Article and the separate keeping of accounting records
andbooks.

(7) Persons that receive support from the Centre for RES/CHP Support or sell
electricity through the Centre for RES/CHP Support and electricity system operators to whose
networks the abovmentioned persons are connected shall be obliged tenresthe Centre



for RES/CHP Support, at its request, all the data needed by the Centre to perform its tasks
within the framework of a service of general economic interest in accordance with this Act.

(8) The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall keep sstegof support recipients. In
the context of its obligatory reporting, it may present data on allocated supports to the
competent authorities. The Centre for RES/CHP Support shall also publish data on the
amounts of support and support recipients owébsite.

Article 377
(The provision of funds providing support for the production of electricity from renewable
energy sources and higbfficiency cogeneration)

Funds for the implementation of support scheme programmes shall be provided to
the Centrdor RES/CHP Support through:

- a fee for providing support for the production of electricity from kefficiency
cogeneration and renewable energy sources, which is to be paid for an individual delivery
point by every final customer for the electricity,tural gas and other energy gases
supplied from network and district heating;

- a fee for providing support for the production of electricity from hafficiency
cogeneration and renewable energy sources which is to be charged for solid and liquid
fossil fuds, liquefied petroleum gas and liquefied natural gas and is paid to the supplier by
every final customer;

- the sale of electricity purchased by the Centre for RES/CHP Support at the guaranteed
purchase price;

- budget funds if separate budget headings aated and budget revenues allocated for
the production of electricity from higéfficiency cogeneration and renewable energy
sources;

- funds from the Climate Change Fund, established under the Environmental Protection
Act (Uradni list RS, nos 39/06 official consolidated text, 49/06 ZMetD, 66/0671
Constitutional Court Decision, 33/G7Z P Na | r ti,ZFC1A,/7Q/GB, 108/09, 108/09
i Z P NaA, 48{12, 57/12 and 92/13).

Article 378
(The determination of fees for the promotion of electricity generatioonh renewable
energy sources and higefficiency cogeneration)

(1) The Government shall prescribe details regarding the manner of determining
and calculating the fees referred to in the preceding Article, whereby in determining the share
of individual goups of final customers the impact of the level of fees on economic
competitiveness may also be taken into account if such economic relief does not contravene
the rules on granting state aid.

(2) The level of the fee referred to in the preceding Artichich is to be paid by
final customers shall depend on the capacity and voltage of delivery points, the category of
customers and the purpose of the use of the electricity. For supplied solid fossil fuel, liquid
and gaseous fuels and heat, the fee &lediévied on customers per every MWh of energy
supplied.



(3) The level of fees referred to in the preceding Article shall be fixed by the
Agency by means of an instrument and, upon the prior approval of the Government, published
in theUradni list Repblike Slovenijeand it shall be based on the assessment by the Centre
for RES/CHP Support regarding the level of the necessary funds for implementing support
schemes and other purposes for which these funds are used by law, and on the funds available
for support from the other remaining sources referred to in the preceding Article. Pending the
Government's approval of the new level of fees, the level of the fee from the previous period
shall apply.

(4) Final customers shall pay the fee specified séggrim the monthly network
charge invoice or in the invoice for the supplied fuel or heat. A person receiving the fee with
the payment of the invoice shall be liable to transfer it immediately and free of charge to the
Centre for RES/CHP Support.

(5) Suppliers of solid fossil fuel, liquid and gaseous fuels and heat shall pay the fee
monthly on the basis of sales benefiting the Centre for RES/CHP Support.

(6) Funds for the implementation of supports shall be used for the following:
- the operation ofhe Centre for RES/CHP Support;
- the provision of supports;
- the purchase of electricity from producers under support schemes which are eligible for
guaranteed purchase;
the settlement of differences between forecasted and actual production of electricity;
other purposes specified by law.

(7) The level of the funds for the operation of the Centre for RES/CHP Support
from the part of the fee providing support for the production of electricity from high
efficiency cogeneration and renewable energy soutwdklse determined by the Government
on the basis of a reasoned proposal submitted by the Centre for RES/CHP. In drawing up the
proposal, the Centre for RES/CHP Support shall take into account all revenues and costs
associated with its operation. Pendihg Government's approval of an increased level of
funding for the operation of the Centre for RES/CHP Support, the level of funding approved
in the previous period shall apply.

Section 5: Exceptions applicable to natural persons producing electracityufmits with a
nominal capacity below 50kW

Article 379
(Performance of the activity)

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of this Act, the activity of electricity production
by only one generation unit using renewable energy sources eetfigencygeneration
with a nominal capacity below 50kW may also be performed by a natural person (hereinafter:
an individual producer) who is entered in the register of natural persons performing the
activity of the production of electricity (hereinafter: registeith the Agency of the Republic
of Slovenia for Public Legal Records and Related Services (hereinafter: AJPES).

(2) The entry in the register shall include data on the natural persons performing the
activity of electricity production (full name, adels and personal identification number), data



on the real property and the generation unit from the register of declarations on generation
units producing electricity from renewable energy sources anddfiigiency cogeneration.

(3) AJPES shall obtaiex officiothe data referred to in the preceding paragraph
from the existing official records kept by duly authorised authorities.

(4) The data referred to in the second paragraph of this Article, other than personal
data on the natural person, shmlpublic.

(5) The register shall be established, administered and kept by AJPES.

(6) AJPES shall issue a certificate of the registration of the individual producer
referred to in the first paragraph, which shall be submitted to the individualqaodnd the
competent tax office.

(7) AJPES shall, in agreement with the Agency, lay down detailed instructions for
keeping and administrating the register.

Chapter VI: RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES IN TRANSPORT

Article 380
(The obligatory share of biofels)

(1) Distributors of gaseous and liquid fuels for transport shall each year place on the
market the share of biofuels or other renewable energy fuels for the transport determined in
the renewable sources action plan referred to in Article 28 ofttim relation to the
guantity of fuels placed on the market in that year.

(2) The Government shall issue a decree laying down mechanisms and measures to
implement and verify the fulfilment of the obligations referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) Only biofuels meeting sustainability criteria for biofuels under the
environmental protection regulations governing the aforementioned criteria for biofuels can
be counted towards the fulfilment of such obligations.

(4) In meeting these obligationfie quantity produced from biofuels produced
from wastes, residues, néood cellulosic material, and ligreellulosic material shall be
considered to be twice that made by other biofuels.

Article 381
(Labelling of biofuels at points of sale)
Whenthe percentage of biofuels blended in mineral oil derivatives exceeds 10% by

volume, fuel dealers shall be required to indicate this at the point of sale.

Article 382
(Reporting on the sale of fuels and electricity in the transport sector)



(1) Sellersof liquid fuels that are used in road transport shall report the quantity of
the fuels sold to the ministry responsible for energy. In the report, the data shall be organised
by individual types of fuel or their mixtures and structured according to #temars buying
fuels.

(2) The operators or owners of public car parks and car parks accessible to the
public, and car parks of public sector entities shall report the number of charging stations for
electric vehicles and the quantity of electricity aomgd at these charging stations to the
ministry responsible for energy.

(3) The minister responsible for energy shall define the type of information and the
manner of the reporting referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article.

Part $x
ENERGY AGENCY

Chapter I: General provisions

Article 383
(Establishment of the Agency)

(1) The Energy AgencyNgencija za energijowhich shall be the national regulatory authority of the
Republic of Slovenia for the energy market is hereby astea (hereinafter: the Agency).

(2) The Agency shall be governed by the act governing public agencies. The Agency shall be a legal
person under public law.

(3) The Agency shall monitor, direct and control electricity and natural gas energy operatasyand
out tasks regulating energy operatorsd activitie

Article 384
(Agencybs autonomy and independence

(1) The Agency shall be independent and autonomous in performing its tasks and competences.

2 n performing their tasks, the Agencyds directo
Agencyb6s Council shall not be subject to any dec
government, local community or other authorities, legal persomslividuals, and shall not seek

them.

(3) The Agency shall lay down its internal organisation and job classification in an autonomous
manner.

(4) The Agency shall decide on the required number of staff and on the financial sources needed to
efficiently peform its tasks and competences in an autonomously, and shall define them in the work
programme and financial plan.



Article 385
(General objectives of the Agency)

In performing its tasks, the Agency shall pursue the following objectives:

- promoting a corpetitive, secure and environmentally sustainable internal market in electricity and
natural gas, and effective opening of the market to all customers and suppliers;

- developing competitive and properly functioning regional electricity and gas markets;

- eliminating restrictions on trade in electricity and natural gas;

- encouraging, in the most cesfifective way, the development of secure, reliable and efficient non
discriminatory systems that are conswwgented, and promoting system adequacy and, in
accordince with general energy policy objectives, energy efficiency and the integration of large
and smaliscale production of electricity and gas from renewable energy sources and distributed
generation in both transmission and distribution networks;

- facilitating access to the network for new production capacity, in particular removing barriers that
could prevent access for new entrants to the electricity and gas market, and of gas from renewable
energy sources;

- ensuring that system operators and users areegrappropriate incentives, in both the short and
long term, to increase efficiencies in system performance and foster market integration;

- ensuring that electricity and gas customers benefit through the efficient functioning of their
national market, promistg effective competition and helping to ensure consumer protection;

- helping to achieve high standards of public service for natural gas and electricity customers,
protection of vulnerable customers and compatibility of necessary data exchange processes fo
customer switching.

Article 386
(Agency's international cooperation activities)

(1) The Agency shall cooperate with ACER.

(2) The senior representative and the alternate member in the ACER Board of Regulators under the
first paragraph of Article 14fdRegulation (EC) No 713/2009 shall be appointed by the Agency
Council for a renewable term of office of five years. The senior representative and the alternate
member shall meet the conditions provided for in the first paragraph of Article 393 of this Ac

(3) The term of office of the senior representative and his/her alternate shall be terminated early for
reasons applicable to Agency Council members, as referred to in the first paragraph of Article 394 of
this Act, and on the day of termination of Buepresentative's or alternate's employment in the

Agency.

(4) The Agency shall cooperate, consult and provide information necessary for carrying out the tasks
of ACER, of other regulatory authorities, electricity and gas TSOs of other Member Stattly dind
within the framework of regional cooperation, and, if necessary, in cooperation with the competent
authorities of other countries.

(5) The Agency shall encourage and enable the cooperation of system operators at regional level,
including on tras-border issues, in view of establishing a competitive internal gas and electricity
market, and encourage the provision of a harmonised legal and regulatory framework in geographical
areas defined in compliance with the third paragraph of Article 12 afl&emn (EC) No 714/2009, or

in other geographical areas.

(6) The Agency shall cooperate with regulatory authorities of other Member States in implementing
measures designed to:



- foster the creation of operational arrangements in order to enable thalaptimagement of the
network, promote joint electricity and gas exchanges and the allocation oboroes capacity,
and to enable an adequate level of interconnection capacity, including through new
interconnections within the region and between regioralow for the development of effective
competition and improved security of supply, without discriminating between suppliers in
different Member States;

- coordinate the development of all Network Codes for TSOs and other market actors;

- coordinate theules governing the management of networks, and

- exercise its powers in compliance with Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011.

(7) The Agency may enter into agreements with other regulatory authorities in view of enhancing
regulatory cooperation. In carrying out aseires referred to in the preceding paragraph the Agency
shall, if necessary, consult the ministry responsible for energy, the TSO and the market operator.

Article 387
(Agencybs cooperation with author i andesponsibtdes ponsi |
for regulating the financial instruments market)

(1) The Agency, the authority responsible for the protection of competition and the authority
responsible for regulating the financial instruments market shall exchange the data andiorformat
required to exercise their competences. In doing so, they shall preserve the confidentiality of such
information, including commercially sensitive information.
(2) The volume of data and information referred to in the preceding paragraph shaitdsedima
proportionate to the purpose of the exchange.
Chapter Il Legal status of the Agency
Section 1: General
Article 388
(Status of the Agency)

(1) The founder of the Agency shall be the Republic of Slovenia.
(2) The Agency shall report annuabiy its activity to the National Assembly of the Republic of

Slovenia The Agency shall submit its annual report for the previous year to the National Assembly by
30 June of the current year.

Article 289
(Rules of Procedure of the Agency)

(1) The Agencyshall have Rules of Procedure that lay down the internal organisation and operations
of the Agency and its bodies.

(2) The Rules of Procedure shall be adopted by the Agency Council with a majority vote of all
members.



Section 2: Bodies of the Agency

Article 390
(Bodies of the Agency)

The bodies of the Agency shall be:
- the Council;
- the Director.

Article 391
(Competencies of the Agency Council)

(1) The Agency Council shall be the management body of the Agency.

(2) The Agency Council shall:
adopt gerral acts of the Agency in view of exercising public authority;

- issue consents to those general acts of performers of energy sector activities requiring the
agreement of the Agency in compliance with this Act;

- adopt the work programme, the financial plawl éhe business report of the Agency;

- adopt the Report on the state of the energy sector prepared by the Agency;

- supervise the legality of the work of t he Dir
terms of results and performance;

- appoint andlismiss the Agency Director;

- carry out other duties in compliance with this Act and the general act of the Agency.

Article 392
(Composition and operation of the Agency)

(1) The Agency Council shall be composed of five members.

(2) The President and méers of the Council shall be appointed and dismissed by the National
Assembly at the proposal of the Government.

(3) The minister responsible for energy shall notify the Government and the National Assembly of the
expiry of the term of office of the Pregint or of a Council member no later than six months before
the expiry of the term of office concerned.

(4) Within thirty days of receiving the information referred to in the preceding paragraph, the minister
responsible for energy shall publish a catldandidates for the office of President and/or member of
the Council. Proposals shall be sent within a time limit that shall not be shorter than 30 days, and in
the case of an early termination of the term of office, not shorter than 15 days aftettipnbditthe

call. The proposals shall be substantiated and shall contain the written consent of the potential
candidate confirming that she/he is willing to accept the candidacy.

(5) The minister responsible for energy shall, from among candidates smldtrieor member, make a

short list of candidates and submit it to the Government. Based on the short list, the Government shall
prepare a proposal and submit it to the National Assembly for deliberation. The Government may
prepare its own proposal for Brdent or member of the Council. The Government proposal shall be
substantiated and shall contain the written consent of the potential candidate confirming that she/he is
willing to accept the candidacy. The Government proposal shall be submitted withays36f the

expiry of the time limit referred to in the preceding paragraph.



(6) The National Assembly shall vote on the proposed candidate for Council President or member
within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the Government proposal.

(7) If the prposed candidate for Council President or member does not receive the required majority
of votes, the President of the National Assembly shall immediately notify the Government thereof; the
latter shall, within fourteen (14) days, inform the PresidentefNational Assembly of its decision
regarding the subsequent procedure for the appointment of the Council President or member.

(8) The Council President and members shall be appointed for a term of office of six years. The term
of office of a Council metmer may be renewed once and the appointment of the President shall also be
considered as the appointment of a Council member.

(9) Half of the membership of the Council shall be appointed or renewed every three years. If, due to
the early termination ohe term of office of the Council President or member, it is necessary to
appoint a new President or member, such President or member shall be appointed for the remaining
period of the term of office concerned.

(10) The Council President and members giatllbe employed by the Agency.

(11) Decisions of the Council shall be valid if the President and at least three members are present at
meetings where such decisions are taken.

(12) Decisions of the Council shall be taken by a majority vote of all memipethe event of an
equal number of votes in favour and against, the presiding member has the casting vote.

(13) The President and members of the Council shall be entitled to attendance fees and reimbursement
of other costs in compliance with the regdidas governing attendance fees and the reimbursement of
costs in legal entities established under public law.

Article 393
(Appointment of the President and members of the Agency Council)

(1) Any person meeting the following conditions may be appoiRtedident or a member of the

Council of the Agency:

- is acitizen of the Republic of Slovenia;

- has at least an education acquired in a second cycle study programme or the level of education
acquired in study programmes that correspond to second cycleiedunathe relevant field in
accordance with the act governing higher education;

- is an expert in electrotechnical, mechanical engineering, economic or legal matters related to the
energy sector; the Council of the Agency shall include at least one pecsonefch of the
aforementioned fields appointed as a member or President;

- has not been convicted by a final judgment of a criminal offence carrying a prison sentence of six
months or more, which conviction has not yet been spent;

- is not a deputy of the Nanhal Assembly, a member of the Government of the Republic of
Slovenia, a state secretary or a member of an official body of a political party;

- does not hold the office of mayor or deputy mayor in a municipality.

(2) The President or a member of the Caumeist not be any of the following:

- afunctionary in a state authority;

- astate employee;

- an employee of a performer of energy sector activities;

- amember of the management or supervisory body of a performer of energy sector activities.



(3) The Presidendr a member of the Council or any person connected to them must not

- hold an equity share in a performer of energy sector activities; other rights on the basis of which a
person has the right to share in the profits or to vote or may receive paymentutthna s
performer of energy sector activities shall be considered as equivalent to an equity share within the
meaning of this indent; or

- perform any work or service for, or supply goods to, a performer of energy sector activities if this
might affect the indpendent decisiemaking of the President or a member of the Council within
their official duty.

(4) A connected person within the meaning of the preceding paragraph shall be any of the following:

- the spouse of the President or a member of the Coundiliséiver cohabitant, registered civil
partner or relative in direct line up to the second degree;

- alegal person that the President or a member of the Council directly or indirectly controls because
he/she or the person referred to in the preceding inoteatlegal person under his/her control
holds a majority interest in the capital of this legal person or the majority of voting rights in the
management or supervisory body of this legal person.

(5) If, upon the appointment, any of the reasons referradttte second or third paragraph of this

Article exist in relation to the President or a member of the Council or a person connected to them, or
if such reasons arise during their office, the President or member of the Council must amend his/her
status acordingly not later than within two months of the appointment or occurrence of the reasons.
The President or member of the Council shall be free from this obligation if the reason referred to in
the third paragraph is such that it does not affect the amattgmce of his/her decisionaking.

Article 394
(Dismissal of the President or member of the Agency Council)

The National Assembly shall dismiss the President or a member of the Council of the Agency on the

proposal of the Government in the followingsea:

- at his/her own request;

- in the performance of his/her duty, he/she has committed a serious violation of this Act, an EU
regulation or a gener al act of the Agency that

- it is established that, upon appwmient, he/she did not fulfil all the conditions referred to in the
first paragraph of the preceding Article;

- he/she has been convicted by a final judgment of a criminal offence carrying a prison sentence of
six months or more;

- he/she does not fulfil the ndition referred to in the first or fifth indent of the first paragraph of
the preceding Article;

- any reason referred to in the second paragraph of the preceding Article exists in relation to him/her
and he/she has not eliminated such reason within tkeelitinit referred to in the fifth paragraph of
the preceding Article;

- any reason referred to in the third paragraph of the preceding Article exists in relation to him/her
and he/she has not eliminated such reason within the time limit referred to inhtipafdgraph of
the preceding Article, except when it can be expected that this will not affect the independence of
his/her decisionmaking;

- he/she is no longer able to perform the duties of the office for health reasons.

Article 395
(Director of the Agacy)

(1) The Director shall be the management body of the Agency.



(2) The Director shall perform the following tasks:

represent the Agency in legal transactions;

issue the acts of the Agency;

manage the Agency and its operation;

decide on the employmerights of Agency employees;

determine the internal organisation of the Agency and job classification;
appoint Agency executives.

(3) The Director shall be responsible for the lawfulness of the Agency's work.

(4) The provisions on damage liability of adnstrative board members provided in the act governing
companies shall applyutatis mutandiso the Director's damage liability with regard to the Agency's
operations.

Article 396
(Appointment of the Director)

(1) Any person meeting the following cotidhs may be appointed Director:

is a citizen of the Republic of Slovenia;

has at least an education acquired in a second cycle study programme or the level of education
acquired in study programmes that correspond to second cycle education in the figielvant
accordance with the act governing higher education;

is an expert in technical, economic or legal matters related to the energy sector and has at least
three years of work experience in the electricity or natural gas market;

has at least ten yeavfwork experience, including at least five years in managerial posts;

speaks English;

has not been convicted by a final judgment of a criminal offence carrying a prison sentence of six
months or more, which conviction has not yet been spent;

is not a depty of the National Assembly, a member of the Government of the Republic of
Slovenia, a state secretary or a member of an official body of a political party.

(2) The Director shall be appointed by the Council of the Agency, following an open compétition,
a period of six years, and may beampointed once.

(3) The Director shall enter into an employment contract for the duration of his office. The term of
office shall be deemed to start on the day the Director takes office in accordance with thyenemiplo
contract.

Article 397
(Incompatibility)

(1) The office of the Director of the Agency shall not be compatible with the office of the President or
a member of the Council of the Agency. If a person who performs the duties of an office with which
the office of Director is incompatible is appointed Director, he/she must amend his/her status
accordingly before taking office.

(2) The Director of the Agency must not

be a functionary in a state authority or local community authority who performs the diitiee
office in a nonprofessional capacity;

be employed by any employer other than the Agency;

be a member of the management or supervisory body of a performer of energy sector activities;



- hold an equity share in a performer of energy sector activither rights on the basis of which a
person has a right to share in the profits, has the right to vote in any body of such a performer or
may receive a payment from such a performer shall be considered as equivalent to an equity share
within the meaningf this indent; or

- perform work or service for, or supply goods to, a performer of energy sector activities.

(3) The prohibitions in the fourth and fifth indents of the preceding paragraph shall also apply to any
person connected to the Director withie tineaning of the fourth paragraph of Article 393 of this Act
if this might affect the Director's independent decision making within his/her official duty.

(4) If, upon the appointment, any reasons referred to in the second or third paragraph of teis Artic

exist in relation to the Director or a person connected to him/her, or if such reasons arise during his/her
office, the Director must do everything necessary to eliminate the reasons no later than within two
months of the appointment or occurrence efrttasons. The Director shall be free of this obligation if

the reason referred to in the third paragraph of this Article concerning the connected person is such
that it does not affect t henakingpdependence of t he

Article 398
(Dismissal of the Director)

The Council of the Agency shall dismiss the Director in the following cases:

- it is established that, upon appointment, he/she did not fulfil all the conditions referred to in the
second paragraph of the preceding Article;

- he/she habeen convicted by a final judgment of a criminal offence carrying a prison sentence of
six months or more;

- in the performance of his/her duty, he/she has committed a serious violation of this Act, an EU
regulation or a general act of the Agency govertiiregperformance of his/her tasks;

- he/she fails to perform the duties of his/her office conscientiously;

- he/she does not fulfil the condition referred to in the first or seventh indent of the first paragraph of
Article 396 of this Act;

- any reasons referremb in the first, second and third indents of the second paragraph of the
preceding Article exists in relation to him/her and he/she has not eliminated such reason within the
time limit referred to in the fourth paragraph of the preceding Article;

- any reaens referred to in the fourth and fifth indents of the second paragraph of the preceding
Article exists in relation to him/her and he/she has not eliminated such reason within the time limit
referred to in the fourth paragraph of the preceding Articlegxahen it can be expected that
this will not affect the independence of his/her decisi@king;

- he/she is no longer able to perform the duties of the office for health reasons.

Section 3: Operation of the Agency

Article 399
(Annual report, work pragmme and financial plan of the Agency)

(1) The Agency shall keep books of account and draw up annual reports in accordance with the act
governing the accounting of legal persons under public law.

(2) Notwithstanding the act referred to in the precegiagagraph, the Council of the Agency must
adopt the annual report for the preceding year annually bja®dh. The Agency Council shall decide
on the adoption by a majority vote of all members.

(3) The annual report of the Agency must be reviewed bytdiedrauditor.



(4) By 30September of the current year, the Council of the Agency must adopt the work programme
and financial plan for the next year. The work programme and financial plan of the Agency shall
include the programme of tasks that need toarded out in the forthcoming year, the plan of

financial resources required for their performance, the staff plan of the Agency and the amount of
compensation to be paid by the electricity and gas TSOs. The Agency Council shall decide on the
adoption ofthe work programme and financial plan by a majority vote of all members.

(5) The work programme and financial plan of the Agency shall require the approval of the National
Assembly. The work programme and financial plan shall be considered to be apptbeddational
Assembly does not decide otherwise within three months of their receipt.

(6) Until the expiry of the time limit referred to in the preceding paragraph, or if the work programme
and financial plan are not approved, the Agency shall badathin accordance with the decision on
provisional financing adopted by the Council of the Agency.

Article 400
(Financing of the Agency)

(1) The Agency shall be financed exclusively from the following:
- compensation from gas and electricity TSOs forAbency's regulatory tasks;
- other revenue generated by the Agency through its operations.

(2) In relation to its tasks, the Agency must not accept donations or payments other than those referred
to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 401
(Compensationrdbm operators)

(1) Gas and electricity TSOs shall pay to the Agency annual compensation in the amount determined
in accordance with the third paragraph of this Article.

(2) The compensation shall constitute the revenue of the Agency.

(3) The amount oftte compensation referred to in the first paragraph of this Article shall be

determined by the Council of the Agency in the programme of work and financial plan of the Agency

for a particular year per one unit of transmitted electricity or natural gdsatsédgether with other

expected revenue of the Agency and the amount of reserves from previous years exceeding the amount
of permanent reserves the Agency must hold, it will suffice to cover the planned expenditure of the
Agency related to the performamof its tasks.

(4) The National Assembly shall approve the amount of compensation to be paid by gas and
electricity TSOs for a particular year when deciding on the approval of the programme of work and
financial plan of the Agency. The decision on appi®hall be published in Uradni list Republike
Slovenije.

Article 402
(Surplus and deficit of the Agency)

(1) Any revenue in excess of the expenditure of the Agency related to the performance of its tasks
shall be separated from the Agency's reserves.



(2) The Council of the Agency shall determine the minimum amount of reserves that the Agency must
hold permanently, except in the case of temporarily covering of deficit. If, in a particular calendar
year, the amount of reserves exceeds the minimum arabpatmanent reserves, the surplus shall be
used to finance the Agency in the following year.

(3) If, in a particular calendar year, the Agency does not cover all its expenditure from the revenue,
including the reserve surplus that is used to financAgeacy under the preceding paragraph, the
deficit shall be temporarily covered from the Agency's minimum reserves.

Article 403
(Agency employees)

(1) The act governing employment relationships shall apply to the position, rights and obligations of
emplogyees of the Agency.

(2) The provisions of the regulations governing the salary system in the public sector shall apply to
the salaries of employees, whereby the funds for special projects requiring an increased workload and
the payment for such increasedrkload shall be determined independently by the Agency within
earmarked project funds under the financial plan for the current year.

(3) The act determining job classifications in the Agency shall be adopted by the Director of the
Agency.

Section 4: Rporting by the Agency and the supervision of the use of Agency funds

Article 404
(Report on the state of the energy sector)

(1) The Agency shall, at least once a year byy@@e for the preceding year, submit a report on the

state of the energy sectiarthe Government and the National Assembly of the Republic of Slovenia.

(2) The report referred to in the preceding paragraph shall include the following:

- data on the allocation of crebsrder capacities;

- data on mechanisms for eliminating congestiomansmission and distribution networks;

- the time required by operators for connections and repairs;

- data on access to networks and to the natural gas storage or liquefied natural gas terminal;

- data on the connection of new electricity producers to theankt

- data on the separate clearings of performers of energy sector activities under this Act;

- data on the performance of operator tasks;

- the assessment of transparency and competition on electricity and natural gas markets;

- data on the percentage of indival production sources in the overall electricity structure of
individual suppliers in the preceding year;

- data on anticipated electricity and natural gas demand and on the balance between supply and
demand;

- data on the additional capacities plannedraten construction;

- data on the quality and level of maintenance of electricity and natural gas systems;

- data on measures to be taken in the event of peak load or shortfall of one or more suppliers of
electricity or natural gas;

- data on any predominant ptish in electricity and natural gas markets, and on actions restricting
competition;



- an overview of changes in the ownership of undertakings and measures taken at state level to
secure a sufficient number of participants in the market or measures tattendtgite to promote
competition and enhanced crdssrder exchange;

- an assessment of the investment plans of electricity TSOs with regard to their compliance with the
Communitywide network development plan referred to in point b) of the third paragrph o
Article 8 of Regulation (EC) N@14/2009; the assessment may include recommendations for
amendments to these investment plans;

- data on activities and measures carried out by the Agency with regard to the fulfilment of its tasks.

(3) The Agency shall pdish the report referred to in the first paragraph in a manner accessible to the
public. All the information to which access is denied under the regulations governing access to
information of a public character shall be removed from the report beforgblisation.

(4) The Agency shall forward the report referred to in the first paragraph of this Article to the
European Commission and ACER by3&ily at the latest for the preceding year.

Article 405
(Supervision of the use of funds)

Supervision of théawfulness, designated use, and efficient and effective use of the Agency's
resources shall be carried out by the Court of Audit of the Republic of Slovenia.

Chapter IlI: Tasks of the Agency

Article 406
(Tasks of the Agency)

(1) The Agency shall, aictg under public authorisation, carry out the administrative and other tasks
specified in this Act, EU regulations stipulating the powers of national regulatory authorities in the
energy sector or the general act of the Agency adopted pursuant to this Act.

(2) By fulfilling its tasks, the Agency ensures the following:
that electricity system operators, and system owners and electricity undertakings, where
appropriate, fulfil their obligations under this Act, EU regulations and general acts of the Agency,
including those regarding crebsrder issues;

- that gas TSOs and DSOs, and system owners and natural gas undertakings, where appropriate,
fulfil their obligations under this Act, EU regulations and general acts of the Agency, including
those regarding crodsorder issues.

(3) The Agency shall comply with and implement any legally binding decisions of ACER and the
European Commission.

(4) The Agency shall prevent cresabsidies between transmission, distribution, and supply activities.
Article 407
(Requst for information)
(1) When necessary for the performance of administrative and other tasks of the Agency, the

performers of energy sector activities must, regardless of whether or not they are undergoing an
inspection procedure, immediately submit te fkgency at its request all information, documents and



other evidence at their disposal, including information that is designated as a business secret in
accordance with the regulations governing companies.

(2) If an activity performer does not submit tledevant information at the Agency's request as

referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall order the submission of information by way
of a special decision, which shall contain the legal basis, the purpose of the request, a specification of
the required information, an appropriate time limit for its submission, and a notice on penalty for
submitting incorrect, incomplete or misleading information or for failing to submit information within
the specified time limit. There shall be no appeaiisg} this decision; however, an administrative

dispute shall be allowed.

(3) If a performer of energy sector activities submits to the Agency incorrect, incomplete or
misleading information or fails to submit the information within the specified timg line Agency
may, notwithstanding Articl88 of the Inspection Act (Uradni list RS, A8/071 official consolidated
text), issue a decision on a fine of up to ERIRO00. The time limit for paying the fine may not be
shorter than 15 days and not longean one month.

(4) When issuing the decision referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall issue a
decision specifying a new time limit for the submission of information. No appeal against the decision
shall be permitted; however, an admirasire dispute shall be allowed. The Agency shall issue
decisions on fines against a performer of energy sector activities refusing cooperation until the sum
total of fines from all decisions amounts to one per cent of the annual turnover of the persea refe

to in the first paragraph of this Article in the preceding financial year.

(5) The decisions under the third and fourth paragraphs of this Article shall be enforceable.
Enforcement shall be conducted by the tax authority in accordance with theyreolegd down for
the enforcement of tax liabilities.

(6) The Agency shall, by way of a general act, determine the method for the submission of data and
documents by performers of energy sector activities.

Chapter IV: General acts of the Agency

Article 408
(General provisions)

(1) The Agency shall issue general acts in cases where it is authorised to do so by this Act or an EU
regulation.

(2) The Agency shall publish the general act issued for the exercise of public authority in Uradni list
RepublikeSlovenije.

Article 409
(General acts on network charges andafsgystem tariff)

(1) Prior to the adoption of the general act issued for the exercise of public authority that regulates the
methodology for establishing the eligible costs of operatwisdatermining the amount of network

charge and the methodology for calculating the tariff for the use of system, the Agency must publish
its proposal on its website.



(2) The Agency must provide for the public debate on the proposed general act refarrdubt
preceding paragraph for a period of at least one month following its publication. The Agency must
allow comments and proposals to be submitted within the public debate.

(3) Notwithstanding the first paragraph of this Article, the Agency shaptealgeneral act without a

public debate in the following cases:

- when it concerns minor amendments to a general act with no substantial consequences for
operators or system users;

- when it concerns amendments to a general act that have to be implementdty imgorder to
prevent threats to human health and life or to immovable property of great value.

Article 410
(Request for review)

(1) A person who proves that he/she suffered damage because of the general act referred to in the
preceding Article, maywithin two months of its publication, submit to the Agency a request for a
review of the general act, requesting that the Agenexamine the entire content or a part of the
general act.

(2) In the request for review, the person referred to in theeplieg paragraph must prove the
occurrence of damage and clearly state the reasons for which he/she is requestiagaimnation
of the general act and the scope of thexamination.

(3) A request for review shall not stay the entry into force géeral act issued for the exercise of
public authority.

(4) The Agency shall, within two months of receiving a request for review, carry out a review of the
contested part of the general act and inform the applicant of its decisions in this regardpflitant

submits a request too late, does not prove the occurrence of damage or states unfounded reasons in the
request, the Agency shall dismiss the request within one month of its receipt.

Article 411
(Abrogation or repeal of general acts)

(1) If the European Commission decides that the Agency must fully or in part amend, repeal or
abrogate a general act issued for the exercise of public authority because it is not in compliance with
the guidelines of Directive 2009/72/EC, Directive 2009/73/EC dfldmegulation, the Agency shall

be obliged to issue a general act amending, repealing or abrogating in part or in fulktioenpdiant
general act within two months of receiving the decision of the European Commission, and
immediately inform the EuropaaCommission thereof.

(2) An abrogation of a general act shall apply from the date of entry into force of the abrogated
general act of the Agency.

(3) Not later than within one month of the entry into force of the general act by which a non
compliant geeral act is abrogated, the Agency sleallofficioreopen the procedure for deciding on
any acts it issued pursuant to the abrogated general act.

Article 412
(Powers of the Agency to deal with issues instead of operator)



(1) If an operator or any oth@erson performing an energy sector activity has not adopted a general
act complying with this Act and general acts of the Agency, which in accordance with this Act
requires the approval of the Agency, the Agency may, by way of its general act issuedef@rttise

of public authority, regulate issues that said person failed to regulate in accordance with this Act and
general acts of the Agency. A general act of an operator or another person shall not apply in the part
regulating issues that the Agency Inegulated differently. The Agency may publish a general act

which it has approved, if the person that issued the general act has not published it within the time
limit specified in the approval.

(2) The Agency, by way of a decision, shall impose on greqn referred to in the first paragraph of
this Article the payment of the costs of publication of the general act and the costs of Agency's work
related to it.

Chapter V: Agency's decisions on particular matters

Article 413
(Resolution of disputes)

(1) In disputes regarding obligations arising from an EU regulation, this Act or an implementing

regulation issued pursuant to this Act or act issued for the exercise of public authority, the Agency

shall be responsible for deciding on disputes concethimdpllowing issues in relations between

electricity system users referred to in point 43 of Article 36 of this Act or users of natural gas system

referred to in point 56 of Articl@59 of this Act and operators or the electricity market operator:

- accesgo the system;

- amount charged for the use of the system;

- violations of the Network Code;

- established imbalances and amounts for covering the costs of imbalance settlement and violations
of general acts governing imbalances and their settlement;

- other issus where so stipulated by this Act.

(2) In the case of disputes referred to in the first indent of the preceding paragraph, a potential user
wishing to acquire access to the system in accordance with this Act shall also be considered a system
user.

Article 414
(Exclusion of an official)

The Director shall decide on the exclusion of an Agency's official and the President of the Council of
the Agency shall decide on the exclusion of the Director.

Article 415
(Procedure for deciding on disputes)

(1) Whena party requests that the Agency decide on a dispute with another party, such a request is
allowed only if the first party provides evidence that it has requested in writing from the party against
which it is filing a request (hereinafter: the opposingypahat said party accede to its request that is

the subject of the dispute and has set an appropriate time limit for the opposing party to respond to the
request. This time limit may not be shorter than 15 days.



(2) A party may file a request for theg&ncy to decide on a dispute with the opposing party within 15
days of serving the written response of the opposing party by which the opposing party refuses, fully
or in part, the written request of the party or within 15 days of the expiry of the tmédr response,

if the opposing party has not responded to the written request.

(3) Within 15 days of serving the request of the party that the Agency decide on the dispute, the
opposing party may file a counterclaim if the counterclaim concerns thesteof the party or if the
request of the first party and the counterclaim can be offset.

Article 416
(Conciliation hearing)

(1) In a procedure not involving parties with opposing interests, the Agency may hold one or more
conciliation hearings.

(2) In addition to the Agency's official, other public employees and professional assistants of the
Agency may participate in a conciliation hearing.

(3) The public shall be excluded from conciliation hearings. The exclusion of the public shall not
apply to @rties, legal representatives, their authorised representatives and professional assistants.

(4) At the conciliation hearing, the Agency and party must make every effort to agree on facts
important for deciding on the matter.

(5) At the conciliation heang, the Agency and the party may reach an agreement on particular issues
in the procedure for establishing a regulatory framework.

(6) Minutes shall be kept of the conciliation hearing. Notwithstanding the provisions of the act
governing the general adnistrative procedure, the minutes shall include only the reconciled
observations regarding the facts important for deciding on the matter, any agreements between the
Agency and the party, and the statements of the party that the party has requesteddximthe
minutes.

Article 417
(Taking of evidence)

(1) The Agency may request the party that is the performer of an energy sector activity, the owner of
the network or the provider of services on the network to submit documents or data, including the
necessary calculations, in accordance with the provisions of this Act concerning the submission of
data to the Agency in the reporting and supervision procedure.
(2) In the procedure for deciding on a particular matter, the Agency may take into abeofauts$
established in the procedure for reporting and supervision concerning the party.

Article 418

(Legal remedies in administrative procedure)

(1) The decisions of the Agency shall not be subject to appeal.

(2) A decision of the Agency cannot beragjated or repealed by the right of scrutiny.



(3) Only the Agency may declare its decisions null and void under the conditions and according to the
procedure provided in the act governing general administrative procedure.

Article 419
(Decisions)

(1) The time limit for issuing a decision in a procedure initiated at the request of a party shall be two
months from the filing of a complete request, unless otherwise provided by this Act. The Agency may,
by way of a decision issued before the expiry of fini timit, extend the time limit once and for no

more than two months if this is necessary owing to an extensive procedure to establish facts or to other
circumstances for which the Agency is not responsible. The Agency may extend the time limit with

the onsent of the person that filed the request.

(2) When a procedure is initiatexk officiq and if this is in the interest of the party, the Agency must
issue a decision within two months of the start of the procedure if no speciahéiog proceedings
are necessary before the decision is made, or within four months if specfaidatg proceedings
have to be conducted.

(3) By way of a decision, the Agency shall
decide on a request of a party or other subjects of the procedure;

- order the party toarry out an action in accordance with this Act and the general act of the Agency
issued for the exercise of public authority, including the conclusion of relevant contracts;

- prohibit the party from carrying out an action that is not in accordance wittAthiand the
general act of the Agency issued for the exercise of public authority;

- repeal, partially or in full, a contract or any other act concluded contrary to this Act, the general
act of the Agency issued for the exercise of public authority or ¢mergl act of the operator
issued for the exercise of public authority;

- decide on a claim concerning an overpaid or underpaid network charge or price for other operator
services;

- decide on other matters if so provided by this Act.

(4) For a certain periodntil the issuing of a final decision, the Agency may suspend the conclusion
of contracts related to the proceedings it is conducting, when this is essential to protect the rights of
the party concerned and other persons in the market and proportiorespedat of the needs of

market operations and energy supply.

(5) Any contract concluded contrary to a decision of the Agency shall be null and void.

Article 420
(Administrative dispute)

(1) The procedure for deciding on administrative disputes coimgeandecision of the Agency issued
in a procedure for deciding on or approving the network charge or for deciding on the tariff for the use
of, or access to, the network shall be an urgent procedure.

(2) If a court abrogates a decision issued in a pnaeetbr deciding on or approving the network

charge or for deciding on the tariff for the use of, or access to, the network and the Agency by way of

a decision in a repeat procedure establishes or approves a different network charge in the regulative
periad concerned, the network charge as established in accordance with the abrogated decision shall be
applied in this regulative period. The difference between this network charge and the network charge
the Agency established in the repeat procedure shaffd®t m the next regulative period. The



regulations and general acts of the Agency in force at the time of the issue of the abrogated decision
shall apply in the repeat procedure.
Chapter VI: Supervision by the Agency
Section 1: General provisions ampgrvisory procedure
Article 421
(Supervisory powers)
(1) The Agency shall supervise the implementation of the provisions of this Act concerning the
electricity and natural gas markets, and regulations and general acts issued pursuant to this fAct, excep

in cases that according to this Act fall within the competence of particular inspection services.

(2) The Agency shall also supervise the implementation of the provisions of EU regulations on
internal electricity and natural gas markets.

(3) The Agencyshall conduct inspection procedures and impose supervisory measuféisia
Article 422
(Application of regulations governing inspection)
(1) The provisions of the act governing inspection shall apply with regard to inspection procedure.
(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of Artic#® of the Inspection Act (Uradni list RS, n8&/02 and
26/07), penalties for minor offences shall be imposed in accordance with this Act.
Article 423

(Parties in inspection procedures)

(1) A party in an inspectioprocedure is a person that is subject to supervision by the Agency
(hereinafter: the person subject to supervision).

(2) A person submitting an initiative, report, message or other submission shall not have the status of
a party.

Article 424
(Protectionof confidential sources)

(1) At the request of a person that is the source of a report or other information that the Agency uses
in the exercise of its powers, the Agency must protect the identity of such person if it is likely that
disclosure might caesthis person significant harm.

(2) When submitting documents, a person requesting the protection of his/her identity must also

submit a version of the documents which omits any information that could result in disclosure of the
source.

Article 425



(Authorised Agency employees)

(1) The supervisory tasks of the Agency shall be performed by persons employed by the Agency who
are authorised by the Director for this purpose.

(2) In performing supervisory tasks, an authorised Agency employee shall cormtedyres
independently and issue decisions in administrative procedures and minor offence proceedings.

(3) Authorised Agency employees must meet the conditions for inspectors stipulated by the act
governing inspection.

(4) Specialist work in inspectioprocedures may also be carried out by specialised legal or natural
persons on the basis of the authorisation of the Director if this is not in conflict with the public interest
or the interests of the parties.

Article 426
(Oral hearing)

In inspection pocedures, the Agency shall make decisions without an oral hearing, unless the official
conducting the procedure assesses that an oral hearing is required to clarify or establish essential facts.

Article 427
(Minor offence authority)

(1) The Agency shallecide on minor offences concerning violations of this Act and regulations
issued pursuant to it, the implementation of which it supervises as a minor offence authority in
compliance with the act governing minor offences.

(2) Agency employees authoriséat supervision shall also be authorised officials conducting the
proceedings of a minor offence authority and deciding in the proceedings, all under the conditions of,
and in accordance with, the act governing minor offences.

Section 2: Agency powers

Article 428
(Agency powers)

(1) Authorised Agency employees shall have the following powers in inspection procedures:

- to request that performers of energy sector activities submit information in accordance with
Article 407 of this Act;

- to enter and inspéfreely accessible premises, land, plants, installations, objects, goods, substances
and work and transport means at the undertaking's registered office or at other locations where that
undertaking or another undertaking authorised by that undertakirigrmpsrthe activity and
business;

- to examine books of account, contracts, papers, business correspondence, business records and
other information relating to the business of the undertaking, irrespective of the medium on which
they are stored (hereinafténisiness books and other documentation);

- to take or obtain copies of, or extracts from, business books and other documentation with the use
of the photocopying devices and the computer equipment of the undertaking or the Agency. If it is
not possible to nme photocopies with the photocopying devices or the computer equipment of the



undertaking or the Agency for technical reasons, business books and other documentation may be
removed for the time required to make photocopies. An official note of this shalhte;

- to seal any business premises and business books and other documentation for the duration of, and
to the extent necessary for, the inspection;

- to seize objects and business books and other documentation for not more than 20 working days if
a reasoable suspicion arises of violation of laws or other regulations, without impeding the
activity of the natural or legal person;

- to interview parties and witnesses if a reasonable suspicion arises of violation of laws or other
regulations, without impedindpé activity of the natural or legal person;

- to request that an employee of the undertaking submit for inspection business books and other
documentation if the request concerns the documentation or data base that the person subject to
supervision is obligedo keep pursuant to this Act or other regulation. If the prescribed
documentation is in electronic form, the authorised person has the right to request to be given
access to the prescribed data base;

- to request any employee of the undertaking or any ddgadl or natural person indicated in the
examined or seized documentation to provide an oral or written explanation of facts or documents
relating to the subject matter and purpose of the inspection and to make a record of it. When the
authorised persorequests a written explanation, he/she shall also set a deadline for its submission;

- to obtain, free of charge, the following personal data from official records and other data bases
concerning the person subject to supervision, which are necessary yangcaut the inspection:
name, surname, address, tax identification number and other data necessary for the inspection
procedure;

- to examine papers disclosing the identity of persons;

- to perform other actions in accordance with the aim of the inspection.

(2) An inspection record shall be made of the seizure of objects, except in the case of the fourth indent
of the first paragraph of this Article, which shall include a description of the objects seized and the
location where were seized. A receipt of thsgizure shall be issued.

(3) Authorised persons must carry the inspection in a manner that causes the minimum disturbance to
the undertaking's operations.

(4) When business books or other documentation which could be relevant for the Agency to adopt a
decision under this Act are obtained in criminal proceedings, an investigation procedure of the
authority responsible for the protection of competition or other judicial or official proceedings during a
house search or by any other method, the Agency naanesethe court, the authority responsible for

the protection of competition or other authority to provide it with a copy of the documentation or
allow it to examine the documentation, unless this would be contrary to the interests of criminal or
other pra@eedings, the confidentiality of such proceedings, or would clearly hinder their execution.

Article 429
(Court decision on detailed inspections of business premises and electronic data media)

(1) During the inspection of business premises of an undegakat are not freely accessible to the

public, a detailed inspection of premises and objects on the premises may be conducted without the
consent of the person subject to supervision on the basis of a court decision and in the presence of two
adult witresses. A detailed inspection of business premises and objects shall mean an inspection of all
closed parts of the premises, including written documentation and other items on the premises. A
representative of the undertaking the premises of which are ibsjpected and its legal representative

have the right to be present at the inspection.

(2) A court shall issue a decision as referred to in the preceding paragraph at the request of the
Agency if a suspicion arises that the person subject to superkiessoviolated or is violating



regulations and it is probable that evidence important for an inspection procedure or minor offence
proceedings will be found during the inspection of premises and objects on the premises.

(3) Authorised Agency employees maxaenine the content of electronic and related devices and
electronic data media (hereinafter: electronic devices), such as telephone, fax machine, computer, disk,
optical media and memory cards, without the consent of the person subject to supervistonasisth

of prior decision of the court if a reasonable suspicion arises that the person subject to supervision has
violated or is violating regulations, the violation of which is punishable by a fine of up to 10% of

annual turnover or EUR0000O, and iff is probable that the electronic device contains electronic

data important for an inspection procedure or minor offence proceedings.

(4) The person using the examined electronic device must allow the authorised Agency employee
access to the device, sutb@ncryption keys or passwords and explain how the device is used.

(5) The examination of electronic devices must be conducted with the minimum encroachment on the
rights of persons who are not subject to supervision and so that the confidentialiorrobiidn is

protected and no disproportionate damage is caused. If the electronic device is used by a person who
justifiably expects privacy with regard to its use, that person has the right to be present during the
examination of the content of the elexctic device.

(6) A decision under the first and third paragraphs of this Article shall be issued by a court, not later

than within 24 hours of a complete request for inspection, which must contain the following

information:

- the identification of premisex electronic devices that need to be examined,;

- the reasons for the examination;

- adescription of the evidence or content of data sought;

- a statement on the circumstances for the use of the investigative act and the manner of its
execution.

Article 430
(Obstruction of inspection)

(1) If an undertaking refuses to permit, or obstructs, entry to its premises, or if it denies or obstructs
access to business books or other documentation, or otherwise interferes with an inspection, or where

it is reasonably epected that this will occur, the authorised Agency employee shall have the right to

enter the premises or access business books and other documentation with the assistance of the police.

(2) If an undertaking obstructs authorised persons in the exefdiseiiopowers under Articles 428

and 429 of this Act, the Agency may issue a decision impaosing a fine on the undertaking of up to one
per cent of its annual turnover in the preceding business year. The time limit for paying the fine may
not be shorter thel5 days and not longer than one month.

(3) If a natural person obstructs authorised persons in the exercise of their powers under Articles 428
and 429 of this Act and it is not deemed that the inspection has been obstructed by the undertaking
accordingto the fifth paragraph of this Article, the Agency may issue a decision imposing a fine on

the person of up to EUR B00. The time limit for paying the fine may not be shorter than 15 days and
not longer than one month.

(4) Decisions referred to in thesond and third paragraphs of this Article shall be enforceable.
Enforcement shall be conducted by the tax authority in accordance with the procedure laid down for
the enforcement of tax liabilities.



(5) It shall be deemed that an undertaking is obstrigaiin inspection if the inspection is obstructed
by members of its management or supervisory bodies, its employees, or by its external contractors.

Section 3: Supervisory measures

Article 431
(Agency measures)

() If, in the performance of supervisagsks, an authorised Agency employee establishes that this
Act or another regulation or act the implementation of which he/she supervises has been violated,
he/she shall have the right and obligation to

- carry out preventive measures and issue a warning;

- carry out measures to protect the rights of other persons;

- propose that another competent authority adopt measures;

- order other measures for which the Agency is authorised by this Act or any other regulation.

(2) If, in the performance of supervisory taskan authorised Agency employee establishes that this
Act or another regulation or act the implementation of which is supervised by another authority or
inspection service has been violated, he/she shall determine the facts and draw up a report on the
findings and submit it to the competent authority or inspection service.

Article 432
(Remediation of violations)

(1) If, during an inspection, the Agency establishes violations in the implementation of this Act or EU
regulation or regulations issued punsui them and other general acts, it shall inform the persons
subject to supervision of the violations and provide them with an opportunity to explain or remedy the
conseguences of the violation and set a time limit for this, which may be shorter tays30 the

case of repeated violations or if the person subject to supervision agrees, unless otherwise stipulated
by this Act or EU regulation.

(2) If the person subject to supervision does not remedy violations within the specified time limit
referredto in the preceding paragraph, the authorised Agency employee shall, by way of a decision,
adopt appropriate and proportionate measures as referred to in the first paragraph cf3Artclthis

Act in order to ensure the remediation of a violation igsdonsequences within the time limit he/she
sets.

(3) If measures are laid down differently for the remediation of violations of the Act or other
regulations supervised by the Agency, the authorised Agency employee may impose a measure under
the precedig paragraph only if it is not possible to remedy an established violation with the special
measures.

(4) If the person subject to supervision fails to remedy the established violation within the time limit
set by the Agency, the authorised Agency em@ayay by way of a decision, if necessary, prohibit

the performance of activity or seize the objects and documents used for the violation or created by the
violation until the violation is remedied or until necessary. The authorised Agency employee has the
right to order any other measures referred to in Article 35 of the Inspection Act (Uradni list RS,
no.43/071 official consolidated text) related to the prohibition of activity.

(5) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraphs, the authorised Agency empiayen cases of direct
and serious threat to public order, public safety or the life and health of people or in cases of possible



serious economic or operational difficulties for other performers of energy sector activity or
customers, adopt temporary emency measures as referred to in the first paragraph of Article 431 of
this Act in order to remedy the situation, including the prohibition of performance of activity without
prior setting of time limit for the remediation of irregularities.

Article 433
(Content of decisions on the remediation of violations)

(1) A decision on measures for the remediation of violations shall in its operative part contain the
following:

1. a description of violations and their consequences, the remediation of which sednpy the

decision;

2. an appropriate time limit within which the person subject to supervision must remedy the violations
and their consequences and submit a report on the remediation of violations;

3. the method of remediation of violations and their consecg® when the Agency requires the
person subject to supervision to remedy violations and their consequences in a certain manner;

4. documents and other evidence, when the Agency requires the person subject to supervision to
submit documents or other evidermmcerning the remediation of violations.

(2) The decision shall be issued as a decision under the act governing general administrative
procedure.

Section 4: Monitoring of the operation of electricity and natural gas markets

Article 434
(Monitoring d market operation)

(1) Under this Act, the Agency shall monitor the operation of markets in the field of regulated and
market activities in the energy sector.

(2) The monitoring referred to in the preceding paragraph shall comprise the monitoringis fac
that have an impact on effective competition in electricity and natural gas markets, in particular on the
following:

1. the provision of nosiscriminatory access to networks, the provision of stipulated network
availability and reliability and the pr@ion of effective implementation of key processes for
market operation (connection of system users, measurement, billing, supplier switches, provision of
universal service, etc.);

2. the level of transparency of the relevant market, including wholesales @iw prices for final
customers;

3. the level and effectiveness of market opening and competition at wholesale and retail levels,
including power and natural gas exchanges, disconnection rates, switching rates, maintenance costs
and complaints by householdstomers;

4. the satisfaction and welfare of customers from the perspective of market operation effects
(requests, complaints, availability, adequate information, etc.);

5. the occurrence of restrictive contractual practices, particularly supply exclusiviseslavhich
may prevent large nemousehold customers from contracting simultaneously with more than one
supplier or restrict their choice to do so;



6. the monitoring of trade in wholesale energy products in accordance with Regulation (EU)
No 1227/2011 in ordeto detect and prevent trading based on inside information and market
manipulation;

7. the occurrence of other restrictive practices of market participants that prevent, restrict or distort
market competition, also from the perspective of the actions of takitegs in a dominant position
and from the perspective of concentrations;

8. the monitoring of the security of supply on which depend the balance of supply and demand in the
national market, the level of expected future demand and envisaged additionatychpantj
planned or under construction;

9. the compiling and keeping of a comparative record of prices listed in regular price lists for
household and small ndrousehold customers to enable a comparison of valid regular price lists
of electricity and naturajas suppliersThe Agency shall not keep a comparative record of prices
for special or package offers;

10the prevention of crossubsidies between transmission, distribution and production activities.

(3) The Agency shall compile a monitoring report whittall comprise an assessment of

transparency and competition in electricity and natural gas markets. The content of the report shall be
a constituent part of the annual report on the state of the energy sector referred to in Article 404 of this
Act.

Article 435
(Data collection and the register of market participants)

(1) For the purposes of monitoring market operations, operators, electricity producers and
wholesalers, suppliers to final customers, the electricity market operator, exchanges andnoshafr fo
organised markets, the centre for support and final customers (hereinafter: persons with reporting
obligation) shall be obliged to report, in the manner specified by the Agency in accordance with
Article 407 of this Act, in particular the followingets of data:

a) operators

- data on the connection of users to the network;

- data on the achieved quality of supply and quality assurance of electricity supply (covering the
continuity of supply, commercial quality, voltage quality), including data on cmstoan non
standard supply quality,

- data on requests for the enforcement of access to networks, separately for each type (capacity
requirements, etc.),

- data on supplier switching, separately for different user categories, including data on energy
guantity,

- data on the provision of universal service (sustaining supply, vulnerable customers),

- data on the performance and effectiveness of key processes in electricity and natural gas
markets (processes for switching supplier, measuring, billing, etc.) andrd#ta provision
of effective and standardised data exchange among individual market participants,

- data on the complaints of household customers, separately for each type (connection, billing,
supply quality, etc.),

- data on the planning or performance ofrkvbecessary to ensure network reliability,

- data on transmitted and distributed quantities of electricity and natural gas and data-on cross
border transmission capacities,

- data on the planning and provision of ancillary services,

- other data important forseablishing the existence of ndrscriminatory and transparent
access to the network and the state of the highest possible network capacity;

b) electricity producers and wholesalers

- data on the capacities, availability and maintenance of production units,

- data on the planned connection of new production capacities and their characteristics and the
planned shutlown of existing production units,



- data on concluded agreements on the joint sale of electricity, the identity of contracting parties
and energy qudities,

- data on wholesale prices and electricity and natural gas quantities for each transaction,
including data on contract duration, the identity of contracting parties, clauses oir-take
pay", rebate, exclusivity and price adjustments, and liquididethges,

- data on the internal billing prices of vertically integrated undertakings,

- other data important for establishing the degree of competitiveness and opening of the
wholesale market;

c) suppliers to final customers

- data on the quantities and retpilces of electricity and natural gas, separately for each user
category, including discounts,

- the number of final customers by categories, including data on the share of energy supplied in
each category,

- data on complaints, separately for each type gb#lervice costs, transparency of bills, etc.),

- complaints against the functioning of the operator (access to data, etc.),

- data on the implementation of processes for the provision of universal service (sustaining
supply, vulnerable customers),

- other datamportant for establishing the degree of competitiveness and opening of the retail
market;

| )market operator

- data on the recording of closed contracts and on imbalance clearing,

- data on the management of the balance scheme (data on members, violations, exclusions, etc.),

- data on the maturity of closed contracts,

- data on the provision of effegé and standardised data exchange among market participants,

- other data important for the functioning of the balance scheme and the operation of the market;

d) exchanges and other forms of organised market

- data on participants in exchange trading,

- data orthe prices, quantities and products on the exchange,

- data on the prices and quantities of energy traded pursuant to AdRlef this Act,

- other data important for establishing the degree of competitiveness and opening of the retail
market;

e) centre forsupport

- data on the delivery and sale of purchased electricity in an organised market,

- other data important for establishing the degree of competitiveness and opening of the retail
market;

f) final customers

- data on active participation in consumption agement,

- data on restrictive contractual practices,

- other data important for establishing the degree of competitiveness and opening of the retail
market.

(2) The Agency may also require other persons entering into transactions in the wholesale energy
market, including persons issuing orders for trading in wholesale energy products, to submit data to be
reported pursuant to Articke of Regulation (EU) Nd227/2011.

(3) According to ACER's instructions, the Agency may request the persons referredetdirist thind
second paragraphs of this Article to submit the record of transactions in the wholesale energy market,
including the record of orders for trading in wholesale energy products.

(4) In its request for data submission, the Agency shall specifgtail the types of data and their

content and the duration of reporting obligation, time limit for data submission, frequency of reporting
and other circumstances important for the obligation of data submission with regard to the purpose of
data collecton. Data shall be submitted free of charge, and in the manner and form determined by the
Agency.



(5) The undertakings and affiliated undertakings from EU Member States or third countries that carry
out an energy sector activity in the Republic of Slovehil also be obliged to submit to the Agency

the data referred to in the first paragraph of this Article. In addition, third persons acting for the
account of the persons referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article shall also be
persors with reporting obligation.

(6) When collecting the data referred to in the first paragraph of this Article and for the purposes of
the monitoring of market operation, the Agency shall collect, keep and process, in accordance with the
act governing pemhal data protection, the following personal data: name and surname, address of
permanent residence and business address.

(7) The Agency shall set up and keep a register of market participants entering into transactions that
must be reported to ACER ir@ordance with the first paragraph of Arti@®f Regulation (EU)
No 1227/2011.

Article 436
(Processing and provision of data)

(1) The Agency may use the acquired data referred to in AdR3eto compile the reports that it is
obliged to compile pwuant to this Act and for statistical analysis within the monitoring and to fulfil
other obligations under this Act.

(2) For the purposes of increasing the transparency of markets, the Agency may publish only data of
public character not designated asfmential (e.g. prices).

(3) The Agency shall be obliged, upon a reasoned request, to provide to, and exchange data with,
other authorities of the Republic of Slovenia, regulatory authorities and other authorities of Member
States and bodies of the Eueam Union that need them to exercise their powers. In so doing, the
Agency shall be obliged to ensure their level of confidentiality.

Article 437
(Confidentiality of information)

(1) Agency employees and persons who occasionally perform certain tagis fggency shall be
obliged to protect as an official secret the content of data referred to in A8klef this Act if the
data are considered personal data, a business secret or classified information.

(2) The obligation to protect official secretferred to in the preceding paragraph shall still apply
after the termination of employment relationship at the Agency or after the cessation of performance
of certain tasks for the Agency.

Article 438
(Market research)

(2) If the Agency establishesidng monitoring that barriers to the access of new market entrants
exist, or that price rigidity or other circumstances show that the market is not sufficiently competitive,
it may conduct research of a particular part of the market. In so doing, theysiell cooperate with

the authority responsible for the protection of competition and the authority responsible for consumer
protection.



(2) The Agency shall jointly conduct analyses of transnational markets with the competent regulatory
authorities obther EU Member States as covered by such transnational markets.

Article 439
(Research report)

(1) The Agency shall compile a report on the research conducted.

(2) If the Agency establishes in the research that effective competition is preventéctecestr

distorted in a particular electricity or natural gas market and that this has, or could have, an adverse

impact on consumers, the following information shall be included in its report:

- the type of measures to prevent, eliminate or reduce advews&cts on competitiveness or
consumers;

- proposals to competent authorities to take measures in accordance with their powers;

- proposals for necessary amendments to regulations governing the electricity and natural gas
markets.

(3) The Agency may publishraport on research findings that do not include confidential
information.

Article 440
(Cooperation of the Agency on investigations conducted by other authorities)

Upon a request, authorised Agency employees may cooperate with the authority respmrtbible f
protection of competition, the authority responsible for the regulation of financial instruments market,
or the European Union in investigations concerning violations of competition rules conducted by these
authorities.

Section 5: Special provigig on ensuring effective competition in the wholesale electricity and natural
gas markets

Article 441
(Ensuring competition in the wholesale electricity and natural gas markets)

(1) When the Agency establishes in research of a particular market tibassand permanent

obstacles to access to electricity or natural gas production sources exist in the wholesale electricity or
natural gas markets, owing to which the market at the retail level is not sufficiently competitive,
resulting in adverse impacts €inal costumers, it may, by way of a decision, require an electricity
producer or natural gas supplier to release certain quantities of electricity or natural gas or to
transparently and nedliscriminatorily offer to interested buyers contractual rightisnport natural

gas.

(2) Following consultations with the authority responsible for the protection of competition, the

Agency shall initiate the procedure for imposing a measure under AMi2ler 443 of this Act.

Article 442
(Release of mandatoryigntities of electricity or natural gas)



(1) The Agency shall require a producer to release a certain quantity of electricity or natural gas so
that it becomes reasonable to expect a substantial increase in the competitiveness of the market at the
retail level. In so doing, the Agency shall take into account the principle of proportionality.

(2) In imposing the measure referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Agency shall specify the

following:

- the mandatory total quantity of energy subject to the oreasncluding the identification of
different energy products with regard to quantities and duration of supply;

- the duration of the measure;

- the starting price or the methodology for determining the starting price at which the person liable
shall be obligd to release the mandatory quantities;

- payment and other elements of the supply contract;

- the type of procedure according to which the person liable shall be obliged to release the
mandatory quantities;

- the conditions for access to the transmission nétwor

- the conditions for access to final customers;

- other conditions required to achieve the purpose of the measure.

(3) In determining the mandatory total quantity of energy, the Agency must take into account the size
and structure of the market, the legélertical integration of the market, the presence of vertically
integrated undertakings on the retail market and free capacities in the transmission network. In
identifying different energy products, the Agency must take into account the reasonalbdésrefjue
interested buyers to adjust the structure of mandatory quantities according to their own needs.

(4) The duration of the measure must be fixed so that it is sufficient for the conditions of competition
in the market to change significantly and pemnanatly.

(5) The starting price at which the person liable shall be obliged to sell the mandatory quantities of
energy must enable competition in the retail market to develop.

(6) The payment and other elements of the supply contract offered by thepkakbta to interested
buyers must not deter buyers from purchasing the mandatory quantities of energy.

(7) The allocation of mandatory quantities of energy may be carried out through market operator or
energy exchange, or in case of mandatory quantitieataral gas also through auctions organised by
the person liable. The auction procedure must be designed so as to enable all interested buyers to
participate under equal and Rdiscriminatory conditions.

(8) When a vertically integrated undertaking hessed capacities in the transmission network, the
Agency may require the undertaking to release capacities in relation to the operator in volumes
corresponding to the mandatory release of quantities, if this constitutes an obstacle to access to the
trangnission network for buyers of these quantities.

(9) The Agency may require a vertically integrated undertaking to allow its final customers in the
retail market to switch to another supplier without disproportionate costs if contractual relationships
on supply constitute an obstacle to access to final customers.

Article 443
(Mandatory allocation of contractual rights to import natural gas)

(1) If the Agency assesses that the measure referred to in the preceding paragraph will not
significantly increaseompetitiveness in the retail natural gas market, it may impose on the natural gas



supplier a measure of mandatory transfer of contractual rights and obligations to import certain
guantities of natural gas.

(2) The transfer of contractual rights and ohtigns to interested buyers shall be permanent and shall
be carried out on the basis of an auction organised by the natural gas supplier.

(3) In imposing the measure under this Article, the Agency shall apptsitis mutandithe
conditions referred to ithe second paragraph of Articld2 of this Act.

Article 444
(Issuing a decision)

(1) The Agency shall impose measures referred to in Artid@sand 443 of this Act by way of a
decision in which it shall determine the following:

- the content and scepf the measure,

- obligations to ensure the implementation of the measure and its supervision, and

- the time limit for the implementation of the measure.

(2) When the implementation of measures is contingent on the approval or other actions of the
Agency,the Agency shall decide thereon by decision.

(3) The Agency may by a request for information require the electricity producer or natural gas
supplier to provide a report on the implementation of measures and obligations imposed by decision.

Article 445
(Abrogation or repeal of decision)

The Agency magx officioabrogate or repeal a decision on the mandatory release of production

capacities of electricity or natural gas by issuing a new decision abrogating or repealing the previous

decision in full andletermining the new content and scope of the measure, obligations to ensure the

implementation of the measure and its supervision and the time limit for fulfilling the obligations, in

the following cases:

- the market circumstances on which the decision veaed have changed considerably following
the issue of the decision;

- serious difficulties are encountered in the fulfilment of obligations referred to in the decision,
preventing the achievement of the purpose of the decision, through no fault of thelipdteo

Article 446
(Cooperation of the Agency with other regulatory authorities)

The Agency shall be obliged to consult with the regulatory authorities of other EU Member States
before adopting, amending or repealing a measure if this has an impgeati® among EU Member
States.

Article 447
(Public influence)

(1) Prior to the adoption of a measure referred to in Articles 442 and 443, the Agency shall be obliged
to obtain and take due consideration of the opinions of the interested public.



(2) Prior to the adoption of a measure, the Agency shall be obliged to publish its proposal and collect
opinions within the time limit published, which may not be shorter than 30 days.

(3) After the expiry of the time limit referred to in the preceding pardgeaql prior to the adoption

of the measures referred to in the first paragraph of this Article, the Agency must publish on its

website the opinions and comments obtained, together with a statement regarding the manner in which
they were taken into accounit the reasons they were not taken into account. In so doing, it shall not
publish information and data of a confidential nature.

Section 6: Data exchange among participants in the electricity and natural gas markets

Article 448
(Identification of entiies in data exchange)

(1) Performers of energy sector activities shall be obliged to assign identifiers to virtual and physical
facilities, services and products (hereinafter: entities) used in electronic data exchange on the energy
market.

(2) In the dentification of the entities referred to in the preceding paragraph, the performers of energy
sector activities must use open standards specifying appropriate standardised identification systems
and the form of identifiers. In data exchange procességiSlbvenian energy market, performers of
energy sector activities must use all existing standardised identifiers of entities applied in the European
Union.

(3) Performers of energy sector activities generating data subject to identification shallopsitdsp

for the allocation of identifiers and shall keep registers of entities and supervise the exchange of these
data. If the performers of energy sector activities perform the function of issuing or allocating
identifiers, they must ensure the integatyd continuity of the service of identifier issue or allocation

and comply with the rules on allocation with respect to the identification system chosen.

(4) The Agency shall, by way of a general act, stipulate in detail the type of systems usedfyo ident
entities, the rules and obligations of performing the service of allocating identifiers to individual
entities and the transitional period for the introduction of new entity identification systems.

Article 449
(Persons liable for data exchange)

(1) Performers of energy sector activities must allow the data at their disposal within their activity to
be exchanged with other participants in the electricity and natural gas markets that need these data for
their unimpeded operation in the market.

(2) In the same manner, performers of energy sector activities shall be obliged to enable users access
to data generated in their activity. In determining the type and structure of data and the method for
their exchange, participants in the electricity and nagasa markets shall be obliged to apply the open
standards available.

(3) The type and structure of data and method of their exchange to which the obligation from the
preceding paragraph refers, and which are not defined by open standards or regukitaisie an

this field, shall be stipulated by the performers of energy sector activities in accordance with their
responsibilities and role in the market. In so doing, they shall be obliged to take into account the state
of the art and cost efficiency.



(4) Data shall be exchanged in aggregate and impersonal form. The performers of energy sector
activities must document every data exchange business process required for the smooth operation of
the market or containing data related to usesy. processed master and measurement data

exchange, the supplier switching process, processes of data exchange required for imbalance clearing
T by using standardised models and notations.

(5) The obligation of data exchange shall not apply to the following:

- data degnated as classified pursuant to the act governing classified information for reasons of
public safety, state defence, confidentiality of international relations or confidentiality of
intelligence and security activities of state authorities;

- data defineds a business secret in accordance with the act governing companies;

- personal data the disclosure of which would constitute an infringement of the protection of
personal data pursuant to the act governing personal data protection;

- data acquired for the poose of administrative procedure conducted by a performer of energy
sector activity the disclosure of which would prejudice the procedure;

- data acquired in connection with the internal operation or activities of performers of energy sector
activities thedisclosure of which would disturb the operation or activities of the performer in
guestion.

(6) The obligations of performers of energy sector activities referred to in this Article shall not
prejudice the obligations of these persons under other prosgisichis Act that require them to allow
access to data or to provide data to the Agency and other persons entitled under this Act to acquire
certain data from performers of electricity activities.

Article 450
(Obligations of persons liable for data baoge)

(1) Persons liable for data exchange shall be responsible for the formal correctness of their data and
their timely availability for exchange in standardised form.

(2) With regard to the obligation referred to in the preceding paragraph, peedaddr information
exchange must ensure data storage and quality, authenticated and authorised access to them and their
safety and confidentiality.

(3) Taking into account the conditions referred to in the preceding Article, persons liable for data
exchange shall designate in their acts persons responsible for data exchange and stipulate procedures
and measures for effective data exchange, which shall comprise the following:

- the set, type and structure of data;

- rules for accessing data;

- the period of aailability of data; and

- the method of data capture.

(4) The Agency shall, by way of a general act, stipulate the mandatory content of the acts referred to
in the preceding paragraph, if necessary, to unify approaches in the computerisation of dat& exchang
Part Seven
INSPECTION

Article 451
(Inspection)



(1) The inspectorate responsible for energy (hereinafter: the energy inspectorate)
shall supervise the implementation of the provisions of this Act and its implementing
regulations, with the excepti of the provisions supervised pursuant to Article 421 of this Act
by the Agency and/or the competent inspectorates referred to in paragraph 2 or paragraph 3 of
this Article.

(2) The inspectorate responsible for market surveillance shall carry ckgtmar
supervision of the ecodesign of energlated products referred to in Article 327 and energy
labelling and advertising referred to in Article 328 of this Act.

(3) The inspectorate responsible for construction shall conduct inspections of
energy pdormance certificates.

(4) The authority responsible for public legal records and related services shall be
responsible for inspecting the implementation of the provisions of the first and second
paragraphs of Article 108 and Article 234 of this Act.

Article 452
(Inspection by energy inspectors)

(1) The energy inspectorate shall supervise the implementation of the technical
requirements set out in this Act, its implementing regulations and general acts for the exercise
of public authority in the awstruction, maintenance, operation and use of energy facilities,
installations and networks, in particular:

1. compliance with the technical requirements of this Act and other regulations and the
mandatory standards applicable in the field of energy effigieraectricity and
mechanical energy;

2. compliance with the technical requirements in the construction, operation and use of
facilities, plants, lines, installations and connections intended for the generation,
transmission, distribution, metering, proteatiomanagement, own consumption and
electricity consumption, with regard to:

T generation units in electric power and heat plants, installations for the transmission and
distribution of electricity within switching substations, transformer substationsptont
centres, electricity networks and lines in buildings;

T compliance with the technical requirements for electricity supply, in particular with
regard to interruptions, reductions and voltage quality;

T efficient use of electricity in facilities and plarunder the inspectorate's competence;

T compliance with the provisions of the operating instructions for networks, facilities,
plants and individual assemblies and the system operating instructions;

T implementation of regulations governing load shedding electricity consumption;

T technical requirements for issuing approvals for the connection of electricity facilities;

3. compliance with technical requirements in the construction, operation and use of
facilities, plants, lines and installations intendedthe generation, transmission, storage,
distribution, metering and indication, and heat and gas consumption, which shall cover in
particular:

T plants and installations intended for heat and/or cooling generation;
T heat plants and installations intexdfor the generation of electricity and heat for district
heating or direct consumption for technological purposes;



T equipment under pressure and transportable pressure equipment in use;

T plants and installations which use heat, technical gases, rgasraf other types of

energy gases;

T gas, steam and hot water transmission and distribution pipelines and associated
installations and equipment;

T filling stations and storages of liquefied petroleum gas (hereinafter: LPG) and technical
gases, and comggsed natural gas (hereinafter: CNG) filling stations;

T lines in facilities, namely heat, cooling, technical gases, natural gas and/or other energy
gas lines;

T efficient use of heat and fuels by installations and plants;

T ventilation and air conditiongisystems in buildings;

T compliance with the provisions of the transmission and distribution network codes for
natural gas and heat and/or other energy gas distribution networks.

(2) The energy inspectorate shall also supervise the expertise anctafiatis of
workers operating energy installations with a view to ensuring the safety and security of
operation and the efficient use of energy.

(3) Particular specialist tasks within inspection procedures may also be carried out
by a professional legak natural person on the basis of the authorisation of the head of the
inspectorate if this is not in conflict with the public interest or the interests of the parties.

Article 453
(Requirements for energy inspectors)

A person appointed an energygpector must hold at least a degree acquired in the
second cycle study programme in the field of mechanical engineering and metalworking or
electronics and energy or a degree acquired in study programmes that, in accordance with the
law, correspond to theecond cycle degree in the field of mechanical engineering and
metalworking or electronics and energy and must have at least 5 years of work experience,
must have passed the professional examination for an inspector, and must also meet other
general requements for state administration employees.

Article 454
(Measures taken by inspectors)

In addition to the powers under the Act governing inspections, energy inspectors
shall have the right to:
i order that irregularities and/or deficiencies establisbe remedied within the time limit set
by the inspector;
T order that further use of facilities, installations, plants, lines be halted and/or power supply
discontinued;
T prohibit further use of energy systems, facilities, plants, lines and netwatks &unther
performance of the work in contravention of technical or other rules that may pose a threat to
the life and health of people or cause substantial material damage;
T prohibit a worker from continuing to operate an energy installation if hieedissnot
qualified in accordance with the rules governing professional training.



Article 455
(The obligations of the legal or natural persons liable)

Legal or natural persons and individuals shall facilitate and ensure undisturbed
inspection by thereergy inspector, allow free access to facilities and energy installations,
networks, plants and lines and make available all required information, technical
documentation and other documents and reports.

Article 456
(Notification of the measure implemead)

The responsible person of the legal or natural person or an individual shall inform
the energy inspectorate of the implementation of the measures it imposed by a decision no
later than within eight days of the expiry of the time limit set to renaedigficiency.

Article 457
(Notification of circumstances)

The responsible person of a legal or natural person or an individual who operates
the energy facilities, installations, plants or lines subject to inspection under this Act shall
immediatelynotify the energy inspectorate of any damage or defect resulting in the
interruption or reduction in energy supply, or any threat to the life and health of people or the
risk of substantial material damage.

Article 458
(Natification of construction workand test commencement)

The responsible person of a legal or natural person or an individual who carries out
work on the energy facilities, installations, lines and/or plants shall inform the energy
inspectorate of the date of the commencement of aattn, reconstruction or renovation
works and the date of the commencement of the operation andstadts on the energy
installations, lines, plants and facilities.

Article 459
(Periodic examinations)

The responsible person of a legal or natpeakon or an individual who operates
the energy facilities, installations, plants or lines shall ensure that the prescribed periodic
examinations and tests are carried out in accordance with the rules referred to in the third
paragraph of Article 32 of th Act governing periodic examinations of individual types of
facilities, installations, lines and networks.

Article 460
(Powers of inspectors to supervise energjated products)



(1) In addition to the powers under the Act governing inspectionrenAdt
governing market inspection, energy inspectors and inspectors responsible for market
surveillance shall also have the following powers when supervising compliance with eco
design requirements and energy labelling of eneetpted products (hereirtaf: products):
T to carry out appropriate product compliance examinations and tests;
T to require that a supplier or distributor provide evidence of the accuracy of information on
labelling and product information cards when in doubt about their accuracy;
T to order to remedy irregularities and deficiencies;
T to require necessary information and access to conformity documents issued and technical
documentation;
T to take samples of products free of charge;
T to prohibit the use of conformity documeifds non-conforming products;
T to require correct labelling of products;
T to order that illicit markings be removed and to prohibit the illegal use of labelling;
T to prohibit a product from being placed or made available on the market or prohibit its use
until evidence is submitted on its conformity or compliance with the requirements referred to
in the first paragraph of Article 327 or in the first paragraph of Article 328 of this Act;
T to prohibit the display of a necompliant product until it is madgd with a clear indication
that the product is not to be placed on the market or made available until its compliance is
ensured;
T to order that established neompliances be remedied in an appropriate time period and
prohibit a product from being placet the market, restrict its availability on the market or
prohibit its use if nofcompliance persists;
T to require that products be marked with the prescribed labelling and information, to order
that illicit labelling, marks, symbols or inscriptions benm/ed,;
T where there are reasonable grounds to suspect that the products do not conform with the
regulations, to temporarily prohibit any supply, supply offer or display of these products for
the period needed to perform examinations and tests.

(2) In addition to the powers under the Act governing inspection and the Act
governing market inspection, inspectors responsible for market surveillance shall also have
the power to ban misleading advertising when supervising compliance with tdesgo
requirements referred to in Article 327 of this Act and the energy labelling of products
referred to in Article 328 of this Act.

(3) If the competent inspection authority lacks appropriate professional knowledge
or equipment for sample taking, examinationesting, it shall assign such particular tasks to
a professional or organisation with the necessary expertise. An accredited organisation shall
be deemed to have the necessary expertise.

(4) Where the competent inspection authority decides to prohitestrict trading
in or use of a product or decides to withdraw a product from the market, a safeguard clause
notification shall be submitted in accordance with the regulation governing the method of
international exchange of information about measuresatahs restricting trade in
products. The notification shall give reasons for the decision, namely:
i failure to comply with implementing regulation requirements;
T incorrect use of harmonised standards;
i deficiencies in the harmonised standards.
These decisions shall be made available to the public.



(5) Where a natural person or legal files a report demonstrating potential non
compliance of a product on the market or in use, inspectors shall take measures in accordance
with the Inspection Act.

Article 461
(Specifics regarding control of energy performance certificates and inspection reports on
air conditioning and heating devices)

(1) The competent inspectorate referred to in Article 451 of this Act shall control
the energy performance certifites and inspection reports on air conditioning and heating
devices no later than within five months of receipt of a request.

(2) Where irregularities are established, the inspectorate responsible for
construction shall order the person who issuectteegy performance certificate to remedy
the irregularities or to issue a new energy performance certificate.

(3) The responsible inspectorate referred to in Article 451 of this Act shall submit a
copy of the notes/records and a decision to the mimsgonsible for energy, which may
initiate the procedure under Article 346 of this Act.

(4) The responsible inspectorate referred to in Article 451 of this Act shall report to
the ministry on the inspections twice a year and propose appropriate esg@asiunprove the
situation.

Part Eight
ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE

Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 462
(Definition of infrastructure)

(1) The energy infrastructure shall consist of the following facilities, installations
and networks:
T the electreity transmission network and the natural gas transmission system;
T the electricity distribution network and the natural gas distribution system;
T the LPG system;
T the system for natural gas production and storage;
T the system for the generation andtdbution of heat for district heating;
T the system for the distribution of other energy gases;
T the system for the generation of electricity together with connection to transmission or
distribution systems.

(2) The facilities, installations and nedvks referred to in the preceding paragraph
shall be deemed the energy infrastructure (hereinafter: the infrastructure) for electricity,
natural gas and heat supply.



(3) The provisions of this Act relating to the infrastructure shall also apply te right
in remand other rights in immovable property connected with the construction,
reconstruction, operation, control and maintenance of the facilities, installations and networks
referred to in the first paragraph of this Article.

(4) The infrastructuréor the electricity transmission network and the natural gas
transmission system, the electricity distribution network and the natural gas distribution
system, the LPG system and the system for the distribution of other energy gases shall be
deemed publieconomic infrastructure in accordance with the Act governing construction.

(5) Following the proposal of the minister responsible for energy, the Government
shall specify the types of facilities, installations, networks and systems constituting
infrastiucture and the method of keeping the infrastructure records.

Article 463
(Construction and maintenance)

(1) The infrastructure shall be designed and constructed to beftexdive and in
line with the latest developments in technology and shalldietained to ensure the best
possible technical operation and ceffectiveness.

(2) Owners of facilities, installations or networks forming the infrastructure shall
provide for routine and major maintenance works and provide for adequate damageesura

(3) With a view to providing services of general economic interest in the energy
sector, the Government shall adopt a decree specifying the types of maintenance work for the
public benefit on facilities, installations and networks for the transonigsd distribution of
electricity, and natural gas, the distribution of heat and the supply of other energy gases and
the method of performing the work in compliance with the provisions of the Act governing
the construction of buildings.

Article 464
(Work on the infrastructure carried out in emergencies)

(2) If, due to an accident, damage or other incident, urgent work and/or other
measures required to protect infrastructure or ensure its operation and access enabling rapid
and efficient performanaaf work cannot be ensured through the established easements for
the public benefit or through other rights to immovable property, the owners or holders of a
real property on which urgent temporary access to the infrastructure is required and/or the
infragructure is located, shall allow temporary access to the infrastructure and the necessary
work and measures subject to just compensation. Urgent temporary access required to protect
or ensure the operation of the infrastructure shall be employed in sughreer so as to least
affect the owner or holder of the real property and cause the least damage.

(2) The preceding paragraph shall not give investors in the infrastructure the right
to build on private real property within the meaning of the regulatimverning the
construction of buildings.



(3) If an owner or holder fails to allow temporary access under the first paragraph,
an energy inspector shall order temporary access and specify its duration, scope and the
manner of its execution.

(4) If an owner or holder and an investor fail to agree on compensation, the
undisputed part of the compensation determined by a certified appraiser shall be paid to the
owner or holder by the investor before a decision on the dispute is made.

Article 465
(Spdial intervention guidelines and approvals)

(1) Gas TSOs and electricity system operators shall:
T cooperate with the ministry responsible for energy in drafting guidelines and opinions for
spatial acts in accordance with spatial planning regulaticchshés Act;
T lay down project conditions, if so requested by investors, prior to the elaboration of projects
for acquiring a building permit and give approvals to project solutions for planned spatial
interventions in the safety zones of transmissiondasttibution networks pursuant to the Act
governing the construction of buildings and this Act.

(2) Guidelines, opinions, project conditions and approvals of project solutions shall
be issued for planning and construction in safety and protection abaketricity and
natural gas systems.

(3) Gas TSOs and electricity system operators shall notify the ministry responsible
for energy of the project conditions referred to in the second indent of the first paragraph of
this Article if they are determed for facilities with a connected load greater than 10MW or
annual consumption of natural gas greater than 5 millioh Sm

Article 466
(Municipal spatial plan guidelines)

The minister responsible for energy shall stipulate in detail the mandatagnto
of the municipal spatial plan guidelines and specify:
I the conditions and requirements to plan efficient heating and cooling in settlements;
T the parts of settlements, depending on the plot factor, where the planning of heating and
cooling systemshall be obligatory.

Article 467
(Authorisation to issue spatial development guidelines and approvals)

(1) Local communities may issue an ordinance vesting a distributor providing a
local service of general economic interest in the field of the loligion of natural gas, heat
and other energy gases, with public authority to:
i provide guidelines and opinions for spatial planning arrangements in the spatial document
drafting procedure in accordance with the spatial planning regulations and this Act;
T lay down project conditions, if so requested, prior to the elaboration of projects for
acquiring a building permit and give approvals to project solutions for planned spatial



interventions in the safety zones of networks pursuant to the Act governiogrteuction
of buildings and this Act.

(2) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, a local community responsible for
spatial planning in the area covered by the national spatial plan shall represent the interests of
a distributor providing a local sace of general economic interest in the field of the
distribution of natural gas, heat and other energy gases in the procedure for developing
national spatial plans.

Article 468
(Electricity system safety zone)

(1) An electricity system safety zoshall consist of a strip of land along the power
lines and facilities where other facilities and installations may only be built and works that
might affect the network operation may only be carried out under specific conditions and at a
certain distancéom the network lines and facilities.

(2) The width of the safety zone of an electricity network shall be measured from
the axis of the power line and/or the external fence of the transformer station or substation and
shall amount to:

T 40m for overhad multisystem lines and substations of nominal voltages of 400kV and
220KV,

T 10m for underground cable systems of nominal voltages of 400kV and 220kV;

T 15m for overhead mulBystem lines and substations of nominal voltages of 110kV and
35kV;

T 3m forunderground cable systems of nominal voltages of 110kV and 35kV;

T 10m for overhead mulsystem lines of nominal voltages of 1kV up to and including 20kV;

T 1m for underground cable systems of nominal voltage of up to and including 20kV;

T 1.5m for overhad lines of a nominal voltage of up to and including 1kV;

i 2m for medium voltage switching substations and medium voltage transformer substations.

(3) Conditions for building other facilities and installations in the electricity system
safety zones ancbnditions for work performed within these safety zones shall be prescribed
by the minister responsible for energy.

Article 469
(Natural gas system safety and protection zones)

(1) A natural gas transmission system safety zone shall consist af stignof
65m from the system's axis running along both sides and a land strip of 65m from metering
and regulating station fences and other transmission system facilities, except compressor
stations. The safety zone of natural gas transmission systelmnslshaclude a 100m area
from the fence of the compressor station. A natural gas distribution system safety zone shall
include a land strip of 5m from its axis running along both sides of the pipeline.

(2) Other facilities, installations and linesaynonly be built in the natural gas
system safety zone and works that might affect the network operation may only be carried out



under specific conditions and at a certain distance from pipelines and facilities of this network
depending on their type andnpose.

(3) When constructing facilities, installations or lines and/or carrying out other
work at a distance from a natural gas transmission system beyond the safety zone referred to
in the first paragraph of this Article, the gas TSO shall envisdd#i@al protective
activities and/or take measures to ensure an acceptable level of risk to the pipeline or other
parts of the transmission system; these interventions and measures shall be taken within the
framework of a service of general economicriest of the gas TSO and the costs incurred
shall be deemed eligible costs of the service of general interest.

(4) A natural gas transmission system safety zone shall include a land strip of 5m
from its axis running along both sides of the transmissystem.

(5) No other facilities, installations and lines may be planned or built or works
carried out within the natural gas transmission system safety zone unless necessary for the
construction, reconstruction, operation, monitoring or maintenance afftiastructure and/or
public economic infrastructure in accordance with the regulations governing construction and
subject to approval granted by the TSO to an investor and/or contractor prior to the
commencement of works.

(6) Conditions for the intgentions within the safety zone referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article shall be determined by the minister responsible for energy, by taking
into account the network nominal pressure and pipeline diameter.

(7) Conditions for the construoti, operation and maintenance of pipelines and
natural gas network facilities as well as specific safety measures to increase the safety of
network operation shall be determined by the minister responsible for energy.

Article 470
(Registration of the natral gas, heat and other energy gases distribution infrastructure)

(1) Operators and natural gas, heat and other energy gases distributors shall provide
for an infrastructure register comprising a survey cadastre of lines and connections and a list
of the elements and devices incorporated in the system, and shall thus ensure support for safe
and reliable system operation. Operators and natural gas, heat and other energy gasses
distributors shall also report to the consolidated cadastre of public intiast.

(2) Operators and natural gas, heat and other energy gases distributors shall report
on the infrastructure scope and location to a concession provider and to the consolidated
cadastre of public infrastructure in a manner stipulated by theateyuboverning the
consolidated cadastre of public infrastructure.

Chapter Il: EXPROPRIATION AND EASEMENT FOR THE PUBLIC BENEFIT

Article 471
(Subsidiary application of the Act)



Issues related to the expropriation and establishment of an easentéstgublic
benefit not governed by this Act shall be subject to the provisions of the Act governing
expropriation and the restriction of ownership rights for the public benefit and the provisions
of the Act governing the siting of spatial arrangemehtsational importance.

Article 472
(Public benefit determination)

(1) The construction and acquisition of facilities and land required for the
transmission and distribution of electricity, natural gas, and the distribution of heat and other
energy gass supply shall be for the public benefit and subject to the first and the third
paragraphs of Article 93 of the Spatial Management Bcagni list RS nos 110/02, 8/08
amended, 58/0BZZK-1,33/07 ZPNa | r t | ZGDQA@ahd88/10 ZUPUDPP,
hereinafter: ZUreR).

(2) The construction and acquisition of facilities and land required for electricity
generation, natural gas storage, liquefiedirstgas terminals or the transport of liquid fuels
via pipelines shall be for the public benefit and subject to the fourth paragraph of Article 93 of
the ZUreP1.

Article 473
(Special provisions on expropriation and the establishment of an easemenhé&public
benefit)

(1) When an investor fails to conclude a contract to acquire property rights on a real
property referred to in the preceding paragraph within 30 days of serving a relevant offer, an
expropriation motion shall be filed by the statél/an a municipality and/or an operator
providing a service of general economic interest under this Act upon the proposal of the
investor. The offer to conclude the contract shall include an appraisal by a certified appraiser.

(2) A contract on the digisal, encumbrance or rental of expropriated real property
concluded in contravention of the purpose of the expropriation by a beneficiary of
expropriation, i.e. the operator providing a service of general economic interest under this
Act, shall be null angoid. A note on the prohibition shall be entered in the land register
officio.

(3) When an investor fails to conclude a contract to establish an easement for the
public benefit on a real property referred to in this Article within 30 days of seitvengffer
concerned, the investor may forthwith file a proposal for the restriction of property rights. The
offer to conclude the contract shall include an appraisal by a certified appraiser.

(4) Notwithstanding the provisions of other Acts, contréetsstablish an easement
for the public benefit shall be concluded for the duration of the infrastructure operation and to
the benefit of the respective operators of individual infrastructure items or the dominant land
owned by the operator.

(5) Notwithstanding Article 104 of the ZUreP, the procedures for restricting
property rights and the expropriation procedures under this Act shall be deemed necessary if



the public benefit is shown in accordance with the third paragraph of Article 93 of the-ZUreP
1 and an expropriation beneficiary deposits with the court for safekeeping the amount of the
assessed compensation for real property subject to expropriation or restriction of the property
rights and a security deposit of ehalf of the assessed compeimatfor any potential

damage in accordance with the regulations governing expropriation; thereby the condition for
transferring the tenure of the expropriated real property shall be deemed fulfilled. Reasons of
urgency need not be specifically explained a@asoned.

(6) A notarial record or acceptance document testifying that the money has been
deposited for safekeeping shall specify the time limit for safekeeping the amount referred to
in the preceding paragraph, which shall be either the time ofysagishe requirement for
payment of damages or a period not shorter than 10 years, whichever is less. Payment to a
person subject to expropriation or other entitled person shall be conditional on the submission
of a damages agreement or a final decisioexpropriation.

(7) Notwithstanding the third paragraph of Article 92 of the ZUtekhe
expropriation procedure or the procedure to restrict property rights on the real property
located in the area of a spatial planning document for spatial arrantgeaf national
importance shall not examine whether the state has any other appropriate real property at its
disposal for the purposes of expropriation or the restriction of property rights.

(8) Notwithstanding Article 100 of the ZUreR the expropstion procedure or the
procedure for restricting property rights on real property for the purposes referred to in the
first or second paragraphs of Article 472 of this Act shall not be initiated by way of an order
but shall start after the competent auttyoreceives a complete expropriation request or a
request to restrict property rights and decides to initiate the expropriation procedure by issuing
a relevant decision. No appeal shall be possible against this decision. The decision to initiate
the expreriation procedure shall be recorded in the land registeficia

(9) The transfer of property rights or an easement on the expropriated real property
to an investor shall not be subject to the regulations governing the sale of tangible property of
the state.

Article 474
(Property rights or easement for the public benefit by the force of law)

(1) On the date of the entry into force of a detailed municipal spatial plan and a
national spatial plan in accordance with the regulations governinglgganning, real
property owned by the Republic of Slovenia or local communities envisaged to be subject to a
restriction of property rights for the purposes referred to in the first paragraph of Article 472
by an easement for the public benefit shalleha free of charge easement established for the
public benefit for the purposes specified in the spatial document, except for easement on
waters and waterside land managed by the ministry responsible for waters, the payment of
which shall be determined accordance with the Act governing waters and regulations issued
on its basis.

(2) Where property rights on the real property referred to in the preceding
paragraph are acquired by the Republic of Slovenia or a local community following the entry



into force of the plan referred to in the preceding paragraph, the easement referred to in the
preceding paragraph shall be established on the date of acquiring property rights.

(3) The easement referred to in the first paragraph of this Article shall be

estdlished for electricity lines and shall not exceed the maximum width of the safety zone of
the electricity line concerned, as provided by Article 468 of this Act, and shall not extend
beyond the area set by the adopted spatial planning document. Thergaséene=d to in the
first paragraph of this Article for natural gas systems and heat or other energy gas distribution
pipelines shall not extend beyond:

T 5m from the axis on both sides of the line for natural gas transmission lines;

T 2.5m from the axisn both sides of the line for natural gas distribution lines;

T 1.5m from the axis on both sides of the line for heat or other energy gas distribution

lines.

(4) During the construction of the lines referred to in the preceding paragraph, the

easementeferred to in the first paragraph of this Article shall be established as follows:

T for electricity lines up to their respective maximum safety zones; the contractual right to

build and/or carry out work on such real property shall cover the width efdhe

corridor;

T 12m from the axis on both sides of the line for natural gas transmission lines;

T 6m from the axis on both sides of the line for natural gas distribution lines;

T 5m from the axis on both sides of the line for heat or other energy ¢sutisn lines.

(5) The manager of a real property owned by the Republic of Slovenia or a local
community and an entity having the benefit of the easement for the public benefit referred to
in the first paragraph of this Article shall conclude a canteatablishing the scope of the
easement referred to in the first paragraph on the real property concerned and, in the case of
waters and waterside land, also the easement payment; the contract shall be concluded no later
than within 6 months of the finduilding permit for the infrastructure facility subject to the
easement for the public benefit. If the contract is not concluded within the stipulated time
limit, the real property manager or the dominant tenement shall seek a judgment in lieu of a
contract.

(6) Notwithstanding the sixth paragraph of Article 3 of the Public Roads Act
(Uradni list RS nos 109/10 and 48/12), the first paragraph of Article 16d of the National
Farmland and Forest Fund Attradni list RS no 19/10° official consolidatedext and 56/10
i ORZSKZ16) and the fourth paragraph of Article 13 of the Motorway Company of the
Republic of Slovenia Act{radni list RS nos 97/10 and 40/1i2ZUJF), compensation for an
easement for the public benefit for the purpose referred to inrthg@diragraph of Article 472
of this Act shall not be paid for land owned by the state or local communities.

(7) An investor shall file a request for registration of the easement referred to in the
first paragraph of this Article in the land registerlater than 24 months from the entry into
force of the plan referred to in the first paragraph of this Act or following the acquisition of
the property rights within the meaning of the second paragraph of this Article. An entry in the
land register shafiot have a constitutive character.

(8) Notwithstanding the provisions of other laws and regulations concerning the
arrangements for individual types of land, the provisions of this Act shall apply in relation to



the scope of an easement created fopth#ic benefit on land owned by the Republic of
Slovenia or local community.

(9) Notwithstanding the fifth paragraph of this Article, a contract establishing the
easement scope and easement payment for water and waterside land managed by the ministry
responsible for waters shall be concluded after the water management consent under the act
governing waters becomes final.

(10) Notwithstanding the seventh paragraph of this Article and the third paragraph
of Article 475 of this Act, an investor shalillef a request for registration of the easement on
water and waterside land managed by the ministry responsible for waters after the contract
referred to in the preceding paragraph has been concluded. The right to build on water and
waterside land managed the ministry responsible for waters shall be demonstrated by a
land register entry of the easement for the public benefit and/or by a concluded and notarised
easement contract and a copy of the application to enter the contract into the land register
indicating data on the land register restriction of the application.

Article 475
(Infrastructure construction)

(1) Proof of the right to build electricity systems of nominal voltage of 110kV and
over or natural gas transmission systems shall includemsegdin accordance with the
Construction ActUradni list RS nos 102/04 official consolidated text, 14/05amended,

92/051 ZJGB, 93/05i ZVMS, 111/05i Constitutional Court Decision, 126/07, 108/09,

61/107 ZRud-1, 20/11i Constitutional Court Decisn, 57/12, 101/18 ZDavNepr and

110/13) and the following documents:

T a notarised contract and land registry permission concerning an acquired property or other
rightin remon a real property within the safety zone of electricity networks referredhe in
second paragraph of Article 468 of this Act or on a real property located within the area of the
national spatial plan and/or a safety zone of natural gas transmission systems referred to in the
third paragraph of Article 469 of this Act;

T a certificate issued by a competent authority stating that the procedures under the
Denationalisation Act have not been concludgdadini list RS nos 27/91, 56/9P

Constitutional Court Decision, 13/93Constitutional Court Decision, 31/93, 24/05
ConstitutionalCourt Decision, 20/9¥ Constitutional Court Decision, 23/97Constitutional

Court Decision, 65/98, 76/98Constitutional Court Decision, 66/@0mandatory

interpretation, 66/00, 11/01Constitutional Court Decision, 54/04ZDoh and 18/0%
Constitutonal Court Decision);

T a certificate issued by a competent court indicating that inheritance proceedings under the
Inheritance Act(radni list RS nos 15/76 and 23/78lradni list RS nos 13/94 ZN, 40/941
Constitutional Court Decision, 117/00Consttutional Court Decision, 67/01, 83/010Z

and 73/04 ZN) or pursuant to the Inheritance of Agricultural Holdings Adta@dni list RS

nos 70/95 and 54/99Constitutional Court Decision) have not been completed,;

T a chronological extract from the landyigter indicating that a real property was entered in

the name of an agrarian community and/or a certificate issued by a competent authority that
the procedures of property restitution under the Act Regulating tiestablishment of

Agrarian Communitiesrad Restitution of Property and Rightdradni list RS nos 5/94,

38/94, 69/95, 22/97, 97/98Constitutional Court Decision, 56/99, 72/00 and 51/04
Constitutional Court Decision) have not been completed;



T a certificate issued by a competent authorityaating that the procedures of property
restitution under the Cooperatives Adrédni list RS no 62/07 official consolidated text)

have not been completed,;

T an extract from the land registry indicating that a real property has been entered as a public
good,

T a certificate issued by a competent authority indicating that a declaration of the death of a
real property owner was sought or an evidence of death procedure under the regulations
governing norlitigious proceedings has been initiated,;

T a decisbn issued by a competent administrative body referred to in the eighth paragraph of
Article 473 of this Act on the initiation of an expropriation procedure and/or a certificate that
the procedure to acquire an easement for the public benefit has bededniti

(2) After having completed the individual procedures referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the investor in infrastructure and the real property owners shall jointly institute a
procedure to acquire an easement for the public benefit or a fgragét or a building title
for the public benefit in accordance with this Act and regulations governing expropriation.

(3) In the cases referred to in the first paragraph of Article 474 of this Act, in the
procedures for issuing a building permithiai be deemed that the right to build is
demonstrated by the entry into force of the national spatial plan and/or detailed municipal
spatial plans, while in the cases referred to in the second paragraph of Article 474 of this Act,
this right shall be deeed demonstrated on the date the state and/or local community acquires
the property right.

Article 476
(Agrarian operations)

(1) An investor in the infrastructure or its owner as well as an infrastructure
operator who is not the owner of the infrastame shall be deemed a party to the procedures
related to agrarian operations (e.g. land consolidation, land reclamation and land reparcelling)
when these are carried out in an area where the infrastructure is already in place or in an area
intended for ifrastructure construction by a spatial planning document drafted in accordance
with the regulations governing national spatial plan arrangements.

(2) If an investor in the infrastructure has not concluded a contract to create an
easement for the publibenefit or a contract to acquire a property right before the
commencement of the procedure related to an agrarian operation, this right shall be acquired
by the infrastructure investor by an administrative decision issued in the implementation of
the agraian operation.

(3) The decision referred to in the preceding paragraph shall create easements of the
same scope in the locations of existing easements for the public benefit on potential new land
parcels created, whereby a dominant tenement holdemoe@eady any compensation thereon.

(4) The authority conducting an agrarian operation shall take into account the
national spatial plan and implement the agrarian operation so as to ensure that the
infrastructure investor acquires appropriate buildigbts.



(5) The decision of the administrative authority referred to in the second paragraph
of this Article, which includes a land register permit or a certificate issued by an
administrative authority that a procedure concerning an agrarian opdrasidieen initiated
shall be deemed proof of the right to build under Article 56 of the Construction Act.

(6) An infrastructure investor may begin, continue or complete the construction of
infrastructure regardless of the fact that the procedure congeaniagrarian operation has
been initiated but not finally completed.

Article 477
(Guardian for special cases)

(2) If, for the purposes of concluding a contract on an easement for the public
benefit or a contract to acquire a property right or admgltitle for the public benefit, an
infrastructure investor fails to acquire the data from the official records as these data do not
exist or the authorities keeping official records have no such data available, the infrastructure
investor shall submit proposal to a social work centre to appoint a guardian for a special
case.

(2) The social work centre shall appoint a guardian for the special case within 60
days; the guardian shall conclude a contract on an easement for the public benefit or a
contract to acquire a property right or a building title for the public benefit with the
infrastructure investor.

Part Nine
OTHER COMMON PROVISIONS

Chapter I: SPECIAL PROVISIONS ON ENFORCEMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
WITH REGARD TO ENERGY SECTOR ACTIVITY PERFORMERS

Section 1: Enforcement

Article 478
(Items exempt from enforcement)

(1) Energy infrastructure facilities, installations and networks necessary for
providing the services of general economic interest under this Act may not be subject to
enforcement, vih the exception of electricity or natural gas production facilities owned by
natural and legal persons and with no direct or indirect equity holdings by the Republic of
Slovenia.

(2) The exemption referred to the preceding paragraph shall not agmy if
enforcement is conducted with a view to settling a claim under a loan facility granted for the
purchase of a particular item, or a loan granted for the development of services of general
interest, or in the event of enforcement for recovery of a daicared by a lien on such
property item.



Section 2: Bankruptcy

Article 479
(Exemption of concessionaires and public companies from bankruptcy proceedings)

(1) Companies holding concessions granted under this Act to provide services of
general econoru interest which are in 100 percent ownership of the Republic of Slovenia or
a local community and public companies that provide services of general economic interest
under this Act and are owned by the state or local community may not be subject to
bankuptcy proceedings in accordance with the Financial Operations, Insolvency Proceedings
and Compulsory Dissolution ActU¢adni list RS nos 126/07, 40/09, 59/09, 52/10, 106/10
ORZFPPIPP21, 26/11, 47/110RFZPPIPP241, 87/11, 23/12 Constitutional Court
Decision and 47/13).

(2) The founders of the legal persons referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be
subsidiarily liable for the liabilities incurred by these legal persons.

Article 480
(Special rules on the sale of assets in bankruptcy)

Energ infrastructure and property rights needed in their entirety for the provision
of a service of general economic interest under this Act may only be sold in bankruptcy as an
entire business.

Article 481
(Pre-emptive right in bankruptcy)

(1) If a debbr in bankruptcy is a legal or natural person that does not provide a
service of general economic interest, a provider of a service of general economic interest shall
have a preemptive right over the entire business in the bankruptcy proceedings antleover
energy infrastructure in bankruptcy and property rights constituting infrastructure under this
Act.

(2) The preemptive right of the provider of a service of general economic interest
shall also apply to land which is part of the bankrupt's eatatéhas facilities, installations or
lines of the provider of the service of general economic interest located thereon.

(3) If the debtor in bankruptcy is the provider of a service of general economic
interest under this Act on the basis of a buildingervice concession, the mode of sale of
assets referred to in the preceding paragraph and ttergive right under this Article shall
not prejudice the right of exclusion of a grantor under the Act governing gublete
partnerships.

(4) The pe-emptive right of the provider of a service of general economic interest
referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article shall be exercised in accordance
with the regulations governing the exercise of lawfultgmgotive rights in bankruptcy
proceedings.



Article 482
(Special rules on the continued operation of a debtor in bankruptcy)

(1) Notwithstanding the regulations governing the operations of a debtor in
bankruptcy after the commencement of bankruptcy proceedings, a debtor inpb@ankru
providing a service of general economic interest or authorised by the provider of a service of
general economic interest to carry out the tasks of the service of general economic interest
shall be allowed to continue to provide the service of gemgmakst or carry out other tasks
necessary for unhindered provision of the service of general economic interest in accordance
with Article 317 of the Financial Operations, Insolvency Proceedings and Compulsory
Dissolution Act Uradni list RS nos 126/0740/09, 59/09, 52/10, 106/100RZFPPIPP21,

26/11, 47/11 ORZFPPIPP241, 87/11, 23/12 Constitutional Court Decision and 47/13).

(2) A receiver shall ensure that in the case referred to in the preceding paragraph
the service of general economic inteériegprovided in full.

Chapter II: SPECIAL PROVISIONS ON STRIKES AT PERFORMERS OF ENERGY
SECTOR ACTIVITIES

Article 483
(Provision on the restricted right to strike in the energy sector)

Workers employed by the employers referred to in Articles 484486 of this Act
shall exercise their right to strike subject to the fulfilment of minimal work process
requirements in accordance with Articles 484 and 485 of this Act.

Article 484
(The restricted right to strike at providers of services of generalneenic interest)

(1) Workers employed by employers providing a service of general economic
interest under this Act shall carry out work and tasks necessary to ensure operational
readiness of facilities, networks and installations during a strike agipexsfor Sundays,
public holidays and workree days. The tasks and duties to be carried out during the strike
and the method thereof shall be specified by the Government by a decree.

(2) The workers shall perform the tasks referred to in the pregediagraph in a
timely and efficient manner and according to the instructions given by a management body. If
the workers on strike fail to reach an agreement, the management body shall adopt a decision
appointing workers to carry out tasks in accordanitie tive preceding paragraph during the
strike.

(3) The obligations referred to in the first and second paragraphs of this Article
shall also apply to workers at employers to which tasks in the area of a service of general
economic interest were traesfed by the provider of the service of general economic interest.



Article 485
(The restricted right to strike at ancillary service providers)

During a strike, the workers employed by an employer providing ancillary services
to an operator shall ensustandby duty and carry out all the tasks and duties in the scope of
the contract obligations necessary to provide reliable and timely system services required by
the operator to manage the system.

Part Ten
CARBON DIOXIDE TRANSPORT

Article 486
(Carbondioxide transport)

Transport of captured carbon dioxide shall be allowed through the pipes of the
transmission and transport networks (hereinafter: transport network) in the territory of the
Republic of Slovenia.

Article 487
(Conditions for transpoting carbon dioxide)

(1) The transport of captured carbon dioxide through a transport network in the
territory of the Republic of Slovenia shall be possible under the following conditions:
a) before commencing the transport or processing of carbon dideidéransport, a
company shall notify the Agency of its activity;

b) access to a transmission and transport network or to the processing of carbon dioxide

shall be provided in a transparent and -d@triminatory way. The following shall be
taken into consieration:

T the technical and other capacities of the transport networks and plants which are or can
be made available;

i the compatibility of technical specifications;

T the proportion of the transport network user reduction obligation as specified by
regulations;

T the need to respect the needs of the owner, operator and other users of the transport
network, storage or carbon dioxide processing facilities who may be affected.

(2) A legal or natural person operating the transport network (hereirgigrator
of the transport network) may refuse to transport carbon dioxide through the transport
network on the grounds of a lack of capacity when duly substantiated reasons are given. In
this case, the operator shall make an analysis of potential metsarssire capacities. If a
measure is economically viable or funded by the refused user, the operator of the transport
network shall increase the transport network capacity.

Article 488
(Disputes relating to access to a carbon dioxide network)



(1) Disputes relating to access to a network shall be settled by the Agency, which
shall take into account the number of parties interested in the transport. The Agency shall
have the right to require that the parties submit all data necessary to settleute disp

(2) In the event of crosgorder disputes relating to access to the carbon dioxide
transport network, the Agency shall cooperate with the competent authorities of other states.

(3) The Agency shall submit a report on access requests and disglatang to
access to the transport network to the Government once a year by 1 July.

Part Eleven
PENAL PROVISIONS

Article 489
(Minor offences under Part One of this Act)

() A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person failing to submit the data required by the regulation referred to in the second paragraph
of Article 32 of this Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader for committing the minor offence referred toha preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person or the responsible person of a sole trader for the minor
offence referred to in the first paragraph of this Article.

Article 490
(Minor offences under Part Two of the Act)

(1) A legal person who is an operator or vertically integrated undertaking shall be
imposed a fine of up to 10% of its annual turnover in the preceding business year for:
T acting contrary to Artle 61 of this Act;
T failing to act in accordance with Article 66 of this Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and 10,000 shall be imposed on the responsible
person of a legal person for the minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to ensure system users access to an electricity transmission system under non
discriminatory conditions (point 8 of the secondgamaph of Article 54 of this Act),
T failure to notify the Agency in accordance with the first, second and third paragraphs of
Article 65 of this Act;
T acting contrary to an enforceable decision by the Agency to remedy a violation referred to
in the thirdparagraph of Article 66 of this Act;
i performing an activity deemed a service of general economic interest under this Act
(Articles 55, 81 and 99 of this Act) without having acquired the right to perform it;



T failure to ensure the electricity DSO diractd permanent access to all data used and
obtained for the purpose of carrying out the transferred tasks as provided by the fourth
paragraph of Article 78 of this Act;

T acting in breach of Article 109 of this Act in the keeping of accounts;

T failure toadopt and publish its acts in accordance with Article 144 of this Act;

T failure to notify the Agency in accordance with the first, second and third paragraphs of
Article 187 of this Act.

(4) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be impmsadsole
trader for committing the minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(5) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person or the responsible person of a sole tragemfapth
offence referred to in the third paragraph of this Article.

(6) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to provide sustained electricity supply at the requestcofstomer in accordance
with the second paragraph of Article 44 of this Act;
T failure to communicate data on changes in prices in accordance with the third paragraph of
Article 46 of this Act;
T failure to send the energy checklist to final electricitgtomers in accordance with the
regulation referred to in the second paragraph of Article 47 of this Act;
T the drafting of general terms and conditions whose substance is contrary to the third or the
fourth paragraphs of Article 48 of this Act;
T failureto publish the general terms and conditions and information on applicable prices and
tariffs for household customers and small+#mausehold customers on its website in
accordance with the fifth paragraph of Article 48 of this Act;
I specifying or changim general contractual terms and conditions of electricity supply to
household or small nenousehold customers contrary to the fifth and/or the sixth paragraphs
of Article 48 of this Act;
T charging flatrate operating costs contrary to the tenth paragoépiticle 48 of this Act;
T failure to appoint a person to receive and decide on complaints by household customers
concerning electricity or natural gas supply in accordance with the second and third
paragraphs of Article 50 of this Act;
T failure to pravide information to household customers in accordance with the fourth
paragraph of Article 50 of this Act;
T failure to publish the rules referred to in the eighth paragraph of Article 50 of this Act;
T failure to ensure sufficient means for the functngnof the appointed person or persons in
accordance with the ninth paragraph of Article 50 of this Act;
T failure to ceoperate in the balancing market in a way provided by the regulation referred to
in the second indent of the fourth paragraph of Ar@dlef this Act;
T failure to submit an annual report for publication in the manner provided by the act
governing companies (the first and second paragraphs of Article 108 of this Act);
i failure to submit to the Agency an annual report within the time heférred to in the third
paragraph of Article 108 of this Act;
T failure to ensure that energy facilities, installations and lines of a legal person comply with
the prescribed technical norms and standards and other conditions to ensure the technical
sdety of energy plant operations (Article 145 of this Act);



I connecting facilities, installations and lines to an operator's network and/or enabling the
connection of other facilities, installations and lines without the operator's approval (Article
147 d this Act);

T failure to notify a customer of a temporary disconnection (the third paragraph of Article 150
of this Act);

T failure to reconnect a customer to its system at its own expense and within 24 hours if
unjustifiably disconnected (the second maegh of Article 154 of this Act);

T acting contrary to the first paragraph of Article 156 of this Act;

T failure to make information available in accordance with the general act of the Agency
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 156 of this Aabther electricity market
participants under the second paragraph of Article 78 of this Act.

(7) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader for committing the minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(8) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person or the responsible person of a sole trader for the minor
offence referred to in the sixth paragraph of this Article.

(9) A fine of between ER 400 and EUR 2,000 shall be imposed on an individual
for committing a minor offence referred to in the sixth paragraph of this Article.

(20) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to notify a customer of his or her rights and obligations prior to connection to the
system in accordance with the third paragraph of Article 39 of this Act;
T failure to enable a final customer to switch suppliers within the time limit referredhe
second paragraph of Article 40 of this Act;
T failure to send a final customer who switched suppliers their final account within the
prescribed time limit (the fourth paragraph of Article 40 of this Act);
i failure to provide periodic informatmto final customers on their actual electricity
consumption (the first paragraph of Article 41 of this Act);
T charging access to data on electricity consumption in contravention of the third paragraph of
Article 41 of this Act;
T failure to provide accesto data on consumption in accordance with Article 41 of this Act to
final customers or other persons who encl ose
access to data on consumption;
T failure to indicate the data referred to in the first paragpArticle 42 of this Act on
electricity invoices issued to final customers;
T failure to include, as a minimum, all the elements referred to in the second paragraph of
Article 48 of this Act in the supply contract.

(11) A fine of between EUR,000 ad EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or selemployed person who commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding
paragraph.

(12) A fine of between EUR 100 and EUR 500 shall be imposed on the responsible
person of a legal person, the resgible person of a sole trader and the responsible person of
a seltemployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the tenth paragraph of
this Article.



Article 491
(Minor offences under Part Three of the Act)

(1) A natural gas undertalgi legal person, sole trader or sethployed person
shall be imposed a fine of up to 10% of its annual turnover in the preceding business year for
the following minor offences:
T acting in breach of Article 183 of this Act;
T failure to comply with Aticle 188 of this Act;
T acting in breach of Article 194 of this Act;
T discriminating in favour of its related undertaking in ensuring access to the natural gas
transmission system in contravention of point c of the second paragraph of Article 190.

(2) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed for the minor
offence referred to in the preceding paragraph on the responsible person of a legal person, the
responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible person eémpédied peson.

(3) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
i performance of an activity deemed a service of general economic interest under this Act
(Articles 177 and 216 of this Act) withb having acquired the right to perform it;
T acting in breach of Article 235 of this Act in the keeping of accounts;
T failure to ensure system users access to a natural gas transmission system under non
discriminatory conditions (the fourth paragraphAsticle 238 of this Act).

(4) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a selemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(5) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 sHati be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the third
paragraph of this Article.

(6) A fine of betveen EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to ensure that the energy facilities, installations and lines of a legal person comply
with the prescribed technical norms and standards andamthditions to ensure the technical
safety of energy plant operations (the third and fourth paragraphs of Article 32 and Article
269 of this Act);
T failure to send the energy checklist to final natural gas customers in accordance with the
regulation refared to in the second paragraph of Article 165 of this Act;
T failure to communicate the data necessary for the functioning of a single point of contact in
accordance with the third paragraph of Article 171 of this Act;
T drafting general terms and condiigcontrary to the third or fourth paragraphs of Article
172 of this Act in terms of substance;
T failure to publish the general terms and conditions and information on applicable prices and
tariffs for household customers and small#@usehold customeos its website in
accordance with the fifth paragraph of Article 172 of this Act;



T specifying or changing general contractual terms and conditions of natural gas supply to
household or small nenousehold customers contrary to the fifth and/or the giathgraphs

of Article 172 of this Act;

I charging flatrate operating costs contrary to the tenth paragraph of Article 172 of this Act;
T failure to publish the rules referred to in the eighth paragraph of Article 175 of this Act;

T failure to ensure suffient means for the functioning of the appointed person or persons in
accordance with the ninth paragraph of Article 175 of this Act;

T failure to appoint a person to receive and decide on complaints by household customers
concerning electricity or naturgas supply in accordance with Article 175 of this Act;

T failure to provide information to household customers in accordance with Article 175 of this
Act;

T failure to submit an annual report for publication in the manner provided by the act
governing canpanies (the first and second paragraphs of Article 234 of this Act);

T failure to submit to the Agency an annual report within the time limit referred to in the third
paragraph of Article 234 of this Act;

T failure to adopt and publish its acts in accoawith Article 268 of this Act;

T failure to notify a customer of a temporary disconnection (the third paragraph of Article 273
of this Act);

T failure to ensure the issuance of a single bill in accordance with the first paragraph of
Article 249 of thisAct;

T connecting facilities, installations and lines to an operator's network and/or enabling the
connection of other facilities, installations and lines without the operator's approval (Article
270 of this Act);

T failure to reconnect a customer tosistem at its own expense and within 24 hours if
unjustifiably disconnected (the fourth paragraph of Article 276 of this Act);

T acting contrary to the first paragraph of Article 280 of this Act;

T failure to make information available in accordance vhthgeneral act of the Agency
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 280 of this Act to other natural gas market
participants in accordance with the second paragraph of Article 216 of this Act.

(7) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 dtelimposed on a sole
trader or a selemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(8) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible pdramole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the sixth
paragraph of this Article.

(9) A fine of between EUR 400 and EUR 2,000 shall be imposed on an individual
for committing a minor fience referred to in the seventeenth indent of the seventh paragraph
of this Article.

(20) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to enable a final customer of naturatgo switch suppliers within the time limit
referred to in the third paragraph of Article 162 of this Act;
T charging costs for switching natural gas suppliers in contravention of the third paragraph of
Article 162 of this Act;
T failure to send a finatustomer who switched suppliers a final account within the prescribed
time limit (the sixth paragraph of Article 162 of this Act);



T failure to provide periodic information to final customers on their consumption (the first
paragraph of Article 163 of thi&ct);

T failure to provide information to final customers on their consumption and its characteristics
(the first paragraph of Article 163 of this Act);

T failure to provide access to data on energy consumption to final customers of natural gas or
toothe persons who request access and encl ose
(the second paragraph of Article 163 of this Act);

T charging for information on natural gas consumption and its characteristics in contravention
of the third paragraph @rticle 163 of this Act;

T failure to include, as a minimum, all the elements referred to in the second paragraph of
Article 172 of this Act in the supply contract.

(11) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR.0,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or sk-employed person who commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding
paragraph.

(12) A fine of between EUR 100 and EUR 500 shall be imposed on the responsible
person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the respassibleffze
selfemployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the tenth paragraph of this
Article.

Article 492
(Minor offences under Part Four of the Act)

(1) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
pern acting contrary to Article 305 of this Act in the keeping of accounts.

(2) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a selemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article.

(4) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to ensure the metering referred to in Article 291 of this Act;
T failure to implement the measuregoarantee the security of heat or other energy gases
supply specified by a regulation referred to in the second paragraph of Article 294 of this Act;
T failure to have acts adopted, approved and published in accordance with Article 297 of this
Act;
1 failure to have a control system for the distribution system established in accordance with
Article 298 of this Act;
T failure to form heat prices of district heating in accordance with the methodology prescribed
by the Agency referred to in the second parnalgmef Article 299 of this Act;
T failure to obtain prior approval of the starting price of the supply of heat for district heating
or any changes regarding such (Article 302 of this Act);



T connecting its facilities, installations and lines to the opégaiswlated distribution system
and/or enabling the connection of other facilities, installations and lines without the
distributor's approval (Article 306 of this Act);

T failure to notify a customer of a temporary disconnection (the third paragrapticé 807

of this Act);

T failure to reconnect a customer to its system at its own expense and within 24 hours if the
customer is unjustifiably disconnected (the second paragraph of Article 309 of this Act);

T failure to report the data required by theulegjon referred to in Article 311 of this Act.

(5) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a seléemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(6) A fine of between EUR 2,000 @fEUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the fourth
paragraph of this Article.

(7) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to communicate to distributors the information referred to in Article 292 of this Act
as a customer otaking heat from a paof a building or from a building at the common
consumption point of several customers or buildings;
T failure to draw up or inform customers of general contractual conditions in accordance with
the fifth paragraph of Article 297 of this Act;
T failure toinform the Agency of changes in the price of the supply of heat for district heating
(the fourth paragraph of Article 299 of this Act);

(8) A fine of between EUR,000 and EURL.0,000 shall be imposed on a sole trader
or selfemployed person who commasminor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(9) A fine of between EUR 100 and EUR 500 shall be imposed on the responsible
person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible person of a
selfemployed persowho commits a minor offence referred to in the seventh paragraph of
this Article.

(10) A fine of between EUR 50 and EUR 400 shall be imposed on an individual for
committing a minor offence referred to in the first indent of the seventh paragraph of this
Article.

Article 493
(Minor offences under Part Five of the Act)

(1) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to collect and transfer funds to the Eco Fund in accoedaith Articles 317 and 323
of this Act;
T failure to ensure the achievement of energy savings among final customers in accordance
with Article 318 of this Act;



T failure to place biofuels or other renewable energy sources on the market in accordance with
Article 380 of this Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a seléemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shat &k imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article.

(4) A fine of betveen EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to report to the Agency in accordance with Article 321 of this Act;
I drawing up energy audits that are not in compliance with the methodologgdete in the
second paragraph of Article 354 of this Act;
T failure to carry out an energy audit in accordance with the third paragraph of Article 354 of
this Act;
T failure to measure and charge for energy in accordance with Article 355 of this Act;
T failure to provide information to final customers in accordance with Article 358 of this Act;
T failure to label fuel at the point of sale as stipulated by Article 381 of this Act;
T failure to inform the Agency of any changes to a generation unit that affglt the
validity of the declaration (the fifth paragraph of Article 365 of this Act;
T failure to take into account the necessary network reinforcement as a priority when drawing
up a development plan in order to enable the connection of a unit Gyegetactricity from
renewable energy sources or from hafficiency cogeneration within five years of the
investor's first application for the connection approval (Article 369 of this Act);
T failure to provide investors in units generating electriftityn renewable sources or high
efficiency cogeneration who wish to be connected to the network with comprehensive and
necessary information (the first paragraph of Article 371 of this Act).

(5) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be indbose sole
trader or a seléemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(6) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person ofradetedr the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the fourth
paragraph of this Article.

(7) A fine of between EUR 400 and EUR 2,000 shall be imposed on an individual
for committing a minor offenceeferred to in the seventeenth indent of the fourth paragraph
of this Article.

(8) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to display an energy performance certificate pncminent place in accordance with
the first paragraph of Article 336 of this Act;
T failure to ensure regular inspections of air conditioning systems (Article 337 of this Act);
T failure to ensure regular inspections of heating systems (Article 33& &dt).



(9) A fine of between EUR,000 and EURL0,000 shall be imposed on a sole trader
or selfemployed person who commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(10) A fine of between EUR 100 and EUR 500 shall be imposed oegpensible
person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible person of a
selfemployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the eighth paragraph of
this Article.

(11) A fine of EUR 1,000 shall be impaken an issuer acting contrary to Article
340 of this Act.

(12) A fine of EUR 300 shall be imposed on the owner of a building or building
unit who fails to submit the original or copy of a valid energy performance certificate of the
building or buildingunit to a buyer or tenant as stipulated by Article 334 of this Act prior to
concluding a sales or rental contract.

(13) A fine of EUR 1,000 shall be imposed on the operator of a building or building
unit owned or occupied by the public sector and hgpuimotal useful floor area of over 2506m
for failure to display a valid energy performance certificate as stipulated by Article 336 of this
Act.

(14) A fine of EUR 300 shall be imposed on the owner of a building or building
unit for the following minoioffences:
T failure to ensure regular inspections, as provided in Article 337 of this Act, of air
conditioning systems of buildings or parts of buildings in which air conditioning systems of a
nominal output capacity exceeding 12kW are installed;
T failure to ensure regular inspections, as provided in Article 338 of this Act, of a building or
building unit with an installed heating system of a nominal output capacity as prescribed by
the minister.

(15) A fine of EUR 250 shall be imposed on the ownea btiilding or building
unit for failure to ensure, as stipulated by Article 334 of this Act, that the energy performance
indicators of the energy performance certificate of the building or the building unit are stated
in advertisements when such are oftefer sale or rent.

(16) A fine of EUR 200 shall be imposed on the owner of a building or building
unit for failure to ensure heat consumption meter readings for an individual building (the first
paragraph of Article 356 of this Act).

(17) A fine of EUR 1,200 shall be imposed on a supplier of heat from a distribution
network or the operator of a common boiler house for the following minor offences:
T failure to bill heat consumption of an individual building on the basis of meter readings for
the indvidual buildings concerned (the third paragraph of Article 357 of this Act);
1 failure to bill individual units in multapartment buildings and other buildings with at least
four separate units by their respective actual heat consumption in accorddmitewi
regulation referred to in the third paragraph of Article 357 of this Act.

(18) A fine of EUR 1,200 shall be imposed on a heat consumption cost division
administrator in multapartment and other buildings with at least four units for failingto a
in compliance with the regulation referred to in the third paragraph of Article 357 of this Act.



(19) A fine of EUR 1,200 shall be imposed on a heat consumption billing
administrator in multapartment and other buildings with at least four unit$aiting to act
in compliance with the regulation referred to in the third paragraph of Article 357 of this Act.

(20) A fine of between EUR 100 and EUR 500 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible personletder, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in paragraphs
sixteen to nineteen of this Article.

(21) A fine of EUR 200 shall be imposed on the owner of a building unit for failing
to install ametering device in compliance with the first paragraph of Article 357 of this Act.

Article 494
(Minor offences under Part Five of the Act concerning the energy labelling and ecodesign
of products)

(1) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 20,000 dbalimposed on a legal
person and a fine of between EUR 3,000 and EUR 10,000 on a sole traderarmeifed
person who, as a supplier and in connection with the provision of its activities, places on the
market and/or puts into service an energiatedproduct and:
T the product concerned fails to comply with the prescribed technical requirements for the
ecodesign of products (the first indent of the first paragraph of Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to carry out a conformity assessment of the prodietsecond indent of the first
paragraph of Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to issue an EC declaration of conformity (the third indent of the first paragraph of
Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to draft and keep technical documentation in the prestrfanner (the fourth indent
of the first paragraph and the second paragraph of Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to provide the information for final customers in the Slovenian language (the sixth
indent of the first paragraph of Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to provide technical documentation to the surveillance authority (the fourth paragraph
of Article 327 of this Act);
T affixes product markings likely to mislead users as to product conformity (the fifth
paragraph of Article 327 of this Act).

(2) A fine of between EUR00 and 1,000 shall be imposed on a legal person, a sole
trader or a selemployed person who, as a supplier and in connection with the performance of
its activities, fails to affix to a product the CE conformity label (the fiftkemmt of the first
paragraph of Article 327 of this Act).

(3) A fine of between EUR 250 and EUR 500 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person or the responsible person of a sole trader or the
responsible person of a selmployedperson who, as a supplier and in connection with the
performance of its activities, commits a minor offence referred to in the first and second
paragraphs of this Article.



(4) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 5,000 shall be imposed on a legal
persorand a fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 3,000 on a sole trader-emgxtfyed
person who in relation to the performance of activities as a distributor or user:
T fails to provide information for final customers in the Slovenian language (the sixth indent
of the first paragraph of Article 327 of this Act);
T fails to provide technical documentation to the surveillance authority (the fourth paragraph
of Article 327 of this Act).

(5) A fine of between EUR 200 and EUR 400 shall also be imposed on the
respansible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person who in connection with the performance of its activities as a
distributor or user commits a minor offence referred to in the pireg@aragraph.

(6) A fine of between EUR 3,000 and EUR 10,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person and a fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 5,000 on a sole tradereondelfed
person who in relation to the performance of its activities as a sup@leaspbn the market
and/or puts into service a product and:
T fails to have the measuring procedures conducted (the first paragraph of 228abé this
Act);
T fails to affix to products the energpfficiency label and standard product fiche (the second
indent of the first paragraph of Article 328 of this Act);
T fails to ensure the accurate design and content of the label and standard product fiche (the
second paragraph of Article 328 of this Act);
T fails to draft and keep technical documentation sigfficto enable an assessment of the
accuracy of information contained in the label and the standard product fiche (the third indent
of the first paragraph and the third paragraph of Article 328 of this Act).

(7) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR Z)Ghall be imposed on a legal
person, a sole trader or selihployed person who in relation to the performance of its
activities as a supplier or distributor:
T fails to provide the necessary labels and standard product fiches to dealers free of charge
(the fourth paragraph of Article 328 of this Act);
T fails to make available necessary documentation evidencing the accuracy of the information
contained in the label and the standard product fiche, at the request of the surveillance
authority (the fifth pargraph of Article 328 of this Act).

(8) A fine of between EUR 200 and EUR 400 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person who in connectiith the performance of its activities as a
supplier or distributor commits a minor offence referred to in the sixth or seventh paragraph
of this Article.

(9) A fine of between EUR 1,000 and EUR 2,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person and a fine of beeen EUR 800 and EUR 1,500 on a sole trader oesetfloyed
person who in relation to the performance of its activities as a supplier, distributor or dealer:
T fails to provide final users a label or information indicated on the label and standard produc
fiche in the Slovenian language when selling or displaying a product or offering it for rent
(the second and the sixth paragraphs of Article 328 of this Act);
T advertises products without including the prescribed information or indicates information in
an inappropriate manner (the seventh paragraph of Article 328 of this Act);



T indicates inaccurate information about the energy efficiency or tries to conceal essential
information in advertising (the ninth paragraph of Article 328 of this Act);

T affixes other norcompliant labels, marks, symbols or inscriptions to products where such
presentation is likely to confuse end users as regards the consumption of energy or other
essential resources during use (the eighth paragraph of Article 328 of this Act).

(10) A fine of between EUR 200 and EUR 400 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person who in connection with the performance of itSteegias a
supplier, distributor or dealer commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 495
(Minor offences under Part Six of the Act)

(1) A legal person, a sole trader or a-sgtifployed person shall be imposed a fine
of upto 1% of its annual turnover in the preceding business year for failure to act in
accordance with the second paragraph of Article 432 of this Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for acting contrarg tArticle 444 of this Act.

(3) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a selemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(4) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 sHati be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the first and
second paragraphs of this Article.

Article 496
(Minor offences under Part Seven of the Act)

(2) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 250,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T preventing or obstructing an energy inspector from performing inspection, og failin
make available all required information (Article 455 of this Act);
T failure to notify the energy inspectorate of any damage or defect (Article 457 of this Act);
T failure to carry out prescribed periodic examinations and tests (Article 459 of this Ac

(2) A fine of between EUR 15,000 and EUR 150,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a seléemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article.



(4) A fine of between EUR 400 and EURQQ shall be imposed on an individual
for committing a minor offence referred to in the first paragraph of this Article.

(5) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for the following minor offences:
T failure to irform the energy inspectorate of the implementation of measures in due time
(Article 456 of this Act);
T failure to inform the energy inspectorate of the date of the commencement of construction,
reconstruction or renovation works or the date of the comemeeut of the operation and
startup tests on energy installations, lines and plants (Article 458 of this Act).

(6) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a seléemployed person for a minor offence referred tthapreceding paragraph.

(7) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a mmaffence referred to in the fifth
paragraph of this Article.

(8) A fine of between EUR 50 and EUR 400 shall be imposed on an individual for
committing a minor offence referred to in the fifth paragraph of this Article.

Article 497
(Minor offences unekr Part Ten of the Act)

(1) A fine of between EUR 5,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person for failing to properly issue notification of carbon dioxide transport or processing as
stipulated by poin& of the first paragraph of Article 2&f this Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR 3,000 and EUR 100,000 shall be imposed on a sole
trader or a selemployed person for a minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 2,000 and EUR 10,000 shall also be irdmosthe
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader, or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for committing a minor offence referred to in the first
paragraph of this Article.

Article 498
(Minor offences reated to the provisions of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009)

(1) A fine of between EUR 30,000 and EUR 100,000 shall be imposed on an
electricity and/or gas TSO for:
T failure to set transparent charges in accordance with Article 14(1) of Regulation (EC) No
714/20009;
T failure to treat the market participants in a +ascriminatory way when addressing
network congestion problems, as stipulated by Article 16(1) of Regulation (EC) No 714/20009;
T failure to use transaction curtailment procedures in emergeneyiaitsi only as stipulated
by Article 16(2) of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.



(2) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR},000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a gas TSO and/or electricity TSO who commits a minor offence
referred to in the igceding paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 20,000 and EUR 50,000 shall be imposed on an
electricity TSO and/or gas TSO for:
T failure to put into place coordination and information exchange mechanisms in accordance
with Article 15(1) of RegulationEC) No 714/2009;
T failure to publish information in accordance with Article 15(2) of Regulation (EC) No
714/2009;
T failure to publish estimates of available transfer capacity in accordance with Article 15(3) of
Regulation (EC) No 714/20009;
T failure to make the maximum capacity of the interconnections available in accordance with
Article 16(3) of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009;
T failure to reattribute to the market the allocated capacity not used as stipulated by Article
16(4) of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009
T failure to net the capacity requirements of any power flows in the opposite direction in
accordance with Article 16(5) of Regulation (EC) No 714/2009.

(4) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person ofgas TSO and/or electricity TSO who commits a minor offence
referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 499
(Minor offences related to the provisions of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009)

(1) A fine of between EUR 30,000 to 100,000 shall be imposedyaes aSO who:
T fails to use tariffs approved by the Agency in accordance with Article 13(1) of Regulation
(EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to offer services on a nafiscriminatory basis to all network users as stipulated by
Article 14(1)(a) of Regulation (EC)dN715/2009;
T fails to take account of the market value of the service in transport contracts as stipulated by
Article 14(2) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T requests guarantees that constitute undue mariet barriers or are discriminatory, ron
trans@rent or nofproportionate pursuant to Article 14(3) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to make maximum capacity available to market participants in accordance with Article
16(1) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to implement and publish nahiscriminatory and transparent congestimanagement
procedures in accordance with Article 16(3) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to apply nordiscriminatory and transparent capa@fiocation mechanisms in the
event of physical congestion in accordanvith Article 16(4) of Regulation (EC) No
715/2009;
T fails to design fair, nowliscriminatory and transparent balancing rules based on objective
criteria in accordance with Article 21(1) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to charge for an imbalanaeaccordance with Article 21(3) of Regulation (EC) No
715/2009;



T fails to develop harmonised transport contracts and procedures on the primary market to
facilitate secondary trade of capacity and fails to recognise the transfer of primary capacity
rights in accordance with Article 22 of Regulation (EC) No 715/20009.

(2) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR,000 shall also be imposed on the
responsible person of a gas TSO who commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding
paragraph.

(3) A fine of between EUR 20,000 and EUR 50,000 shall be imposed on a gas TSO
for:
T setting tariffs that hamper trade (Article 13(2) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009);
T fails to provide firm and interruptible thiplarty access services in accordance with Article
14(1)(b) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to offer to network users long and shigitm access services in accordance with Article
14(1)(c) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to publish and implement natiscriminatory and transparent congestinanagement
procedures in accordance with Article 16(2) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to publish detailed information regarding the offered services and the relevant
conditions to gain effective network access in accordance with Article 18(1)R@gofiation
(EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to publish appropriate and detailed information on tariff methodology and structure in
accordance with Article 18(2) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to publish information on technical, contracted and availedgecities for relevant
system points in accordance with Article 18(3) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to disclose the information required in a meaningful, quantifiably clear and easily
accessible manner and on a fthscriminatory basis in acadance with Article 18(5) of
Regulation (EC) No 715/2009;
T fails to publishexanteandexpostsupply and demand information in accordance with
Article 18(6) of Regulation (EC) No 715/2009.

(4) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR!,000 shall also be ippsed on the
responsible person of a gas TSO and/or electricity TSO who commits a minor offence
referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 500
(Minor offences related to the provisions of Regulation (EU) No 994/2010)

(1) A fine of between EUR 800 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a natural
gas undertaking legal person, sole trader or sethployed person who:
T fails to implement the measures imposed on natural gas undertakings by applicable national
or joint preventive action plans in@rdance with Article 5(1)(b),(c),(d) of Regulation (EU)
No 994/2010 or fails to implement these measures in the prescribed time limits;
T fails to meet the obligations referred to in Article 6(5) of Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 in
the prescribed time limit
T fails to submit to the Agency a proposal and/or a request referred to in Article 7(1)(a) and
(b) of Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 in the time limit set by Article 7(1) of the
aforementioned Regulation;



T fails to ensure standard gas supply to protectstomers in accordance with Article 8(1) of
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 or acts in contravention of Article 8(2) of the aforementioned
Regulation;
T fails to implement the measures imposed on natural gas undertakings in accordance with
Article 10 of Regtation (EU) No 994/2010 by the Emergency Plan adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EU) No 994/2010 or fails to implement the aforementioned measures in the
prescribed time limits or fails to implement the measures imposed on these undertakings by
the competerduthority or other competent undertaking in line with the powers under the
Emergency Plan or fails to implement the aforementioned measures in the prescribed time
limits;
T fails to provide the competent authority on a daily basis at least the folloviamgation in
accordance with Article 13(2) of Regulation (EU) No 994/2010:

(a) daily natural gas demand and supply forecasts for the following three days;

(b) the daily flow of gas at all crodmrder entry and exit points as well as all points

connectinga production facility, a storage facility or an LNG terminal to the network;

(c) the period, expressed in days, for which it is expected that gas supply to protected

customers can be ensured.

(2) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR 10,000 shall beposed on the
responsible person of a legal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person for the minor offence referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Article 501
(Minor offences related to the provisns of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011)

(1) A fine of between EUR 25,000 and EUR 125,000 shall be imposed on a legal
person, a sole trader or a sethployed person who:
T uses inside information in relation to a wholesale energy product contrary te A(tlg(a)
of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011,
T discloses inside information to any other person contrary to Article 3(1)(b) of Regulation
(EU) No 1227/2011;
I recommends or induces another person, on the basis of inside information, to conclude a
deal contray to Article 3(1)(c) of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011,
T fails to disclose inside information related to the entity concerned or their related persons in
accordance with Article 4 of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011;
T concludes a deal or places an orderifading or disseminates information in a way
deemed, or potentially deemed, to be market manipulation contrary to Article 5 of Regulation
(EU) No 1227/2011:
T fails to provide ACER with a record of wholesale energy market transactions in accordance
with Article 8(1) of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011;
T fails to notify the Agency of the transactions which are required to be reported in
accordance with Article 9 of Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011 prior to entering into these
transactions or fails to forthwith nogithe Agency of any changes to data included in the
application for registration in a register of market participants referred to in Article 435 of this
Act.

(2) A fine of between EUR,000 and EUR 4,000 shall be imposed on the
responsible person of adal person, the responsible person of a sole trader or the responsible
person of a selémployed person who commits a minor offence referred to in the preceding
paragraph.



(3) A fine of between EUR 500 to 2,000 shall be imposed on a natural person who
commits a minor offence referred to in the first, second and third indents of the first paragraph
of this Article.

Article 502
(Fines imposed in an expedited procedure)

A fine in an amount exceeding the lowest amount prescribed by this Act may be
imposed in an expedited procedure for minor offences under this Act which can be sanctioned
by a fine established in terms of a range.

Part Twelve
TRANSITIONAL AND FINAL PROVISIONS

Article 503
(LEC compliance)

LEC adopted prior to the enforcement astAct shall be deemed LEC in
compliance with this Act and do not need to be amended.

Article 504
(Time limits for spatial plan harmonisation and design document compliance as regards
the method of heating)

(1) Local communities shall harmonise thgatial plans with the LEC within two
years of the adoption of the LEC.

(2) Until local community spatial plans are harmonised with the LEC, the design
documents for the relevant method of heating shall be deemed to be in compliance with the
provisionsof the municipal spatial planning documents if:

T a facility is located within the decision area of a local community referred to in the eighth
paragraph of Article 29 of this Act and the envisaged method of heating complies with the
aforementioned decigip

T a facility is located outside the decision area of a local community referred to in the eighth
paragraph of Article 29 of this Act or the area is not defined and the envisaged method of
heating complies with the regulation on efficient energy useiidibgs.

Article 505
(Energy efficiency action plan)

The Government shall adopt an energy efficiency action plan for the period up to
2020 referred to in Article 27 of this Act by 30 April 2014.






